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Our purpose

Tullow’s purpose is to build
a better future through
responsible oil and gas
development

Who we are

Tullow Onlis an independent oil and gas exploration

and production company, We have producing assets

in West Africa, with material positions in discovered

respurces in Kenya and emerging basins in Latin America UK
We are headguartered i Londen and qur shares are

listed on the London, Irish and Ghana stock exchanges.

Tullow also pursues near-field exploration opportunities

in and around its producing and development assets.
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2021 key metrics

Group working interest production

59,200 boepd

2020: 74,900 boepd

Operating cash flow

$711m

2020: $598m

Adjusted EBITDAX

$1.0bn

2020: $0.8bn

Loss after tax

$(81)m

2020: $(1,222)m

Capital investment

$263m

2020: $288m

Net debt

$2.1bn

2020: $2.4bn

Free cash flow

$245m

2020: $432m

Gearing

2.2 times

2020: 3.0 times
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What we do

Tullow is an exploration and production {E&P) company focused on Africa and South America.
We are a full cycle upstream oil and gas company, operating assets through the lifecycle of
exploration and appraisal, through to the development and production phase to decommissioning
at the end of life. Our business 1s focused on finding, or acquiring assets to extract, oil and gas
which s then sold in the global commodity market.

By doing the above, Tullow is able to unlock and maximise value from the hydrocarbon resources of its host nations. We are
commitied to doing this efficiently and safely, while minimising our environmental impact. Through our work, we also deliver
shared prosperity and value far our investors, host nations and people.

Upstream

Tullow’s activities

Exploration and appraisal
2-Dyears

Identify Explore

Explaration is the process of identifying
potential hydrocarbons and involves
acquiring seismic and drilling prospects.
This may be followed by appraisal wells
to better understand the size and
quality of a geological play.

Tullow's activities:

In addition to setective exploration in
emerging basins, we are focused on
leveraging our geoscience expertise

to enhance the vatue of our core
assets. This s largely done through
‘Infrastructure-led exploration’, which
involves identifying new resources near
existing infrastructure.

Development
3years +

Identify Develap

Developments require host Government
approval and need to be commercially,
technically, environmentally and soctally
viable. Developments are capital
intensive, requirmg spend on new
infrastructure as well as investment in
local jobs and suppliers.

Tullow’s activities:

Our development activities are

focused on preparing capital efficient
development plans that enable the
production of discovered resources. For
Tutlow, this primanily relates to Project
Oil Kenya and further developrnents of
our existing producing frelds such as
the Jubilee South East Development.

Z Tullow Oil ple 2071 Annua. Repart and Accounts

Production
2D years +

Identify Produce

The extraction and sale of hydrocarbons
can last decades, bringing material
value to host nations through tax and
royalties while providing revenue to the
participating oil and gas companies.
When production ceases, facilities

are decommissioned, and the site 15
fully remnediated.

Tullow’s activities:

We have a goal to become a leading

West African cperator and we are

striving for top quartile operating '
perfarmance n terms of safety,

emissions, reliability and costs.

We operale both the Jubitee and

TEN felds in Ghana and work in

partnership with the operators of

our non-operated assets.



Our stakeholders

Qur investors: Qur host nations: Our people:
Delivering sustainable Creating shared prosperity Providing a great place to
returns on capital work

Our investment case

Responsible, safe and reliable Generate material free

operations cash flow frem production
West African

Engineering and subsurface production base Plan to reach gearing of 1.5x

technical expertise Over 3 billion bbls of oil in place gzts;j;;)lt: EBITDAX by 2025 at
with <50% produced to date

Cost focus and capital Deliver tangible social and

discipline S e economic benefits to our

host natiens
Unlocking upside value

Realise value from discovered
resources in Kenya, positions in
emerging exploration basins
and M&A

Commitment to Net Zero by Create value for our investors,
2030 (Scope 1 & 2 net equity host natiens and people
emissions)

Significantly reduce carbon
emissions from our operations

Prudent financial strategy with
revenues protected by hedging

Managing our risks

Commercial | F Seemoeonpageds&® Financial B See mare on pages 38,39 & 40
Stakeholder : I -Se-e m-o-re-or; pa.ge 39. People - z .See r;mr.e lorn pargerlaf)” V
Cimate | Seemorconpegeds  Ethics & Conduct " Seemore onpage Al

EHS or S’éc'u'r'it'y' - I See rr\roreror{ pa;;e 39 7 Cyber ¥, Seemoreonpage 41
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Our strategy

A strategy to fulfil our purpose

Over the past year, Tullow has refined its strategy in light of growing

climate pressures, and we believe the oil and gas industry can, and should

be, an engine of development for developing economies, particularly in Africa.
As long as global hydrocarbon demand exists, it is imperative that Africa’s oil
and gas assets are managed responsibly, efficiently and transparently and that
oil and gas production in developing economies creates long-lasting economic
and social benefits. Tullow has a long and strong history in Africa and is well
positioned to continue as a leader in the continent’s oil and gas industry.
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We intend to fulfil our purpose through the following strategy:

1

To produce and develop oil and gas resources in Africa

We believe that reliable and adeguate energy supplies are critical for world economic and political stability and that
fossil fuels will remarin an integral part of the energy mix far some time. Therefore, oil and gas resources need to be
developed and produced responsibly. Africa continues to suffer from extreme energy poverty and there is a strong
case for a fair transition where African economies have the opportunity [like much of the world until now] to benefit
from the respansible development of their resources.

To grow our business through the development of discovered resources, near field exploration and M&A

The Jubilee and TEN fields in Ghana pravide a set of highly profitable investment opportunities through a combination
of infill drilling, facilities expansiun, production from currently nindeveloped parts of the fields and near field exploration.
Tullow's non-operated production in Gabon and Cote d'lvoire also provides infrastructure-led (ILX) exploration
opportunities and a number of dwerse low-risk investment projects. Tullow will also seek to reatise upside through
Its discovered resources in Kenya and unlock value from its exploration assets. As many companies allocate capital
away from the upstream business and divest assets, Tullow also has potential to grow its business through acguisitions.

To continue to focus on cost management and capital efficiency to deliver a robust balance sheet

We continue to carefully manage our costs and believe that every barret matters and every dollar counts.

The issuance of $1.8 billion of Senior Secured Notes with a $500 million revolving credit facility in May 2021 has
put Tullow on a much firmer financial footing and the Group now has a pathway to invest in its assets to maximise
their value.

To be a competitive operator, renowned for operational excellence, strong safety standards and leading
geoscience expertise

We must achieve low cost and capital efficient operations to produce barrels competitively while ensuring the safety
and wellbeing of our people and minimising our environmental impact. Delivering reliable asset performance is critical
to this, carrying out timely maintenance and having the right processes and people in place to maximise uptime.

To be a trusted partner, supporting the economic development of emerging, oil-exporting economies

Tullow's assets generate material revenues for governments through the production and sale of ol and gas. Our
assets also have the potential to allow us to partner with governments to contribute towards domestic energy needs
and help alleviate energy poverty in Africa. This must be achieved with high standards of compliance, zero tolerance
for cerruption and continuous tax transparency to maintain and develop quality relatienships with our host
governments.

QN V1 | W

Te maintain our social license to operate and ensure continued access to capital through environmental
stewardship and our commitment to shared prosperity

Tullow is committed to developing local content and investing in social projects to improve the everyday life of the
people in our host nations. With a target to achieve Net Zero by 2030 on Scope 1 and Z net equity emissions and
an emphasis on responsible operations, Tullow will ensure that the oil and gas resources of host countries are
developed efficiently and safely while minimising the environmental impact. Through our work, we will deliver
shared prosperity and create value for our investors, staff, host nations and communities.

To create a collaborative, supportive and transparent work environment where our people have a breadth

of opportunities to grow and develop

We are fostering an open team culture, with good engagement from our people. Equality and transparency

are central lo the way we cperale and to helping us earn the trust of all thase with whom we interact, Tullow

is becoming more performance focused, empowering our pecple to deliver and be valued for their contribution.
We alzc have a renewed focus on diversity and inclusion, recegnising that collectively leveraging our individually
diverse backgrounds and experiences will make us a mare successful orgamisation.

Tullow Qil plc 2027 Annua. Reporl and Accaunts 5



Chair’s statement

Positioned to build a
positive and sustainable
future in Africa

Phuthuma Nhleko joined Tullow in Cctober 2021 as a non-executive Director and became
Chair of the Group in January 2022. Phuthuma brings extensive emerging markets experience
to Tullow having worked successfully across Africa over the past three decades. He discusses

his initial reflections and ambitions for Tullow.

"2021 has been a transformational
year for the Company and | am
excited to join at this important
stage In its development. With
a stable balance sheet and a
clear strategy underpinned by
a commitment to Net Zero by
2030 and to responsible and
safe operations, Tullow is
well positioned to re-establish
itself as a leader in Africa.”

Phuthuma Nhleko
Chair
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It is an honour to serve as Chair of your Company and | believe

that Tullow has an important and sigmificant role te play in
Africa in developing and producing host nations’ hydrocarbon
resources. | have followed Tullow with much interest since its
inception and | have been particularly impressed with the
successful operational turnaround and transformaticnal
refinancing achieved in 2021. Your Company is now well
positioned for a positive and sustainabte fulure, building on
its strong position and reputation in the African oil and gas
sector. | am privileged to succeed Dorothy Thompson who
ably steered Tullow through some difficult and turbulent
times and Dorcthy leaves Tullow with our best wishes and
thanks for a job well done.

A new direction and delivery in 2021

At the Capital Marksts Day held in November 2020, Rahul and
the team set out a new direction for Tullow. The long-term
Business Plan focuses our capital principally on the large
resources that underpin our producing assets, while also
seeking to unlock value from our material pasitions in Kenya
and emerging basins. With a singular focus on costs, the team
is working to deliver high margins and cash flows to fund our
investments and reduce debt. A disciplined approach to
capital allocation is ensuring high returns and rapid paybacks.
Gur strong geoscience and subsurface skills are enabling us
to rnaximise recovery and add additional resources to provide
further value frorn our productng base.

I am pleased to report that in 2021 the team have made
dermanstrable progress in delivering the Corporate Business
Plan. Nearly $1 billion in self-help was delivered through cost
savings and the successful sale of non-core assets. This,
along with the early evidence of operational improvements,
positioned us for & transformational $1.8 billion bond issuance
in May which has provided a pathway for the Company to
imvest in its assets to maxirmse their value. A relentless focus
on operations is delivering strong performance at both FPS0s
in Ghana and successtul drilling campaigns i Ghana and Gabon,
MNatable production growth came from Jubtlee in Ghana and
Simba in Gaban, but production was lawer than expected from
TEN and Espoir. At the same time, ail prices have recoverad
from historical lows in April 2020, to over $120 per barrel
today. All tagether, the Group 15 on a far stronger fimancial and
operationat footing.



Financial discipline

| have been struck by the team’s commitment to cost
management and capitel discipline. There has been a lot of
enthusiasm around Rahul's encouragement to our staff to
treat every dollar of spend as if it was their own. | am very
supportive of this approach given that Tullow's debt remains
elevated. Achieving an optimum and sustainabte capital
structure and making the balance sheet more robust remains
one of the Board's top priorities. Furthermore, the now
avident inflationary pressures in the oil services sector
underline the iImportance of tight cost contral.

Les Wood

As previously announced, Les Wuud, Chief Minancial Officer, will
step down from the Board and leave Tullow on 31 March 20272,
having been Chief Financial Officer since 2017. Les’s leadership
of the finance team cutminated in last year’s comprehensive
debt refinancing. We thank Les for his significant contribution
to Tullow and wish him the best in fus future endeavours.

As at the date of this Report, Tullow's recruitment of a new
CFO and Executive Director to replace Les is ongoing and

the process is expected to conclude shortly. The Nominations
Committee has approved the appamntment of Richard Miller,
Group Financial Controller, as interim CFO with eftect from

1 April 2022. Richard is a chartered accountant and has
worked in a nurmber of senior roles within Finance since

he joined Tullow in 2011,

Tullow - a leader in Africa

Notwithstanding the ongoing focus on reducing the use of
fossil fuels, the world will consume mare energy going
forward and fossil fuels will rernain an integral part of the
energy mix for the foreseeable future. There is a need for oil
and gas resources to be developed and produced, but this
has to be done responsibly and with minimal epvironmental
impact. To this end at Tullow, we have a responsibility to
reduce and, in time, eliminate the emissions under our
control. Our Net Zero commitrment underscores the
seriousness of our intent.

Through my extensive experience of heading the MTN
Executive tearn as we established telecommunication
infrastructure across many African countries, | have
witnessed the positive impact of the o1l and gas industry an
economic development. At the same time, Africa cantinues
to suffer from extrerne energy poverty, with a minimal
cantribution to global emissions. So, | believe there 15 a strong
case for an energy transition where African econcmies have
the opportunity to benefit from the responsible development
of their resources. This was aptly highlighted by HE Nana
Akufo-Addo, the President of Ghana, in his speech at COP24
in Glasgow, when he said: "We beljeve that a balance must
be struck and maintained between our social, economic
and environmental imperatives’.

Today, Tullow 15 umiquely placed to be a leader in Africa

and deliver the balance that was hightighted by President
Akufo-Addo. As many companies look to exit or reduce their
exposure to Africa, we have renewed our commitment to the
continent and are seeking to grow. Through the safe and
efficient delivery of cur business plan, we will bring shared
prosperity to our host nations and communities, while
reducing our environmental impact.

| look forward to bringing my experience from doing business
in Africa to Tullow and to building relationships with our key
stakeholders across our countries of operation. One of my
key areas of focus will be Ghana, where | hope to positively
contribute to the delivery of the "Ghana Value Maximisation
Plan’ and delivering shared prosperity to our host nation.

| am alsc pleased to note the constructive relationship
between Tullow and the Government of Ghana, even where
we have material differences of opinion in certain areas, and
continued strengthening of our partnership will be one of my
key areas of focus gomng forward.

Conclusion and outlook

2021 has heen a transformational vear for your Company and
tam excited to have joined Tullow at this important stage in its
development. With a stable balance sheet and a clear strategy
underpinned by a commitrent to Net Zero by 2030 and to
responsible and safe operations, Tullow is well positioned to
re-establish itself as a leader in Africa. | look forward to
working with Rahul and his team as they grow the business,
deliver Shared Prosperity and create value for our investars,
staff, host nations and communities.

Phuthuma Nhleko
Chair

8 March 2022
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Chief Executive Officer's statement

A year of progress,
delivery and operational

improvement

In 20217, Tullow underwent further transformation under the lead of Rahul Dhir,
Chief Executive Officer. Rahul outlines the progress Tullow has made and how the Group

is well positioned to reach its full potential.

"We believe that oil and gas
production can, and should
be, a driver of long-lasting
economic and social change
in developing economies.”

Rahul Dhir
Chief Executive Officer

This has been a year of profound change and transformation
for Tultow. ! am very proud of the progress achieved in the
midst of existential challenges facing our industry and the
COVID-19 pandemic. We began the year in refinancing talks
with our lending banks and bond holders and had reached a
firm financial footing by year end. The delivery of aur lang-term
Business Plan 1s progressing well, and our performance is at
the upper end of expectations with significant improverments
in safety, operating efficiency and drilling perfermance.

Board changes

Tullow’s transformation owes much to two colleagues who
are leaving Tullow. Dorothy Thompson, who very ably led
Tullow through the end of 2017 as non-Executive Chair and
until 8 September 2020 as Executrve Chair, stepped down
from the Board an 371 December 2021, Les Wood, our
Chiet Financial Officer, who hias delivered Tullow's financial
strategy during this critical time, will step down on

31 March 2022. | arn deeply grateful te both Dorothy and
Les for their tremandaus contribution ta Tullow and for
their support to me in my first 18 months as CEQ. Please
join me in wishing them well for the future.
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| am delighted to welcome Phuthuma Nhleko as our new
Chairman. Phuthuma is a widely acclaimed business leader
with a deep understanding of doing business in Africa, having
contributed to building a successful and truly pan-African
business. He also brings experience from listed companies
across international markets, including the UK and Africa.

As at the date of this Report, our recrurtment process of a
new CHO and Executive Director is ongoing and the process
is expecied to conclude shortly.

Mook farward to working closely with both Phuthuma and our
new CFO when appointed as we re-establish Tullow as the
leading ail and gas company in Africa.

Qur performance in 20217

As ever, my first priority 1s the health and safety of our staff and
everyona who Is associated with our operations. There has been
a marked improvernent i our ERS pertormance relative to
last year, despite increased activity levels. This has been achieved
through the implementation of a safety improvement plan,
active leadership interventions and a good repaorting culture.

Unsurprisingty, COVID-19 rmingation rernained top of mind
across our entire business. We experienced a small number
of positive COVID-19 cases offshore and took rapid and
decistve achon, including temporarily reducing manning.
Consequently, there was no impact on safe production
operations and the potential for contagion was contained.
100% of our core crew in Ghana are now vaccinated.

The successful refinancing of our debt was the highlight of the
first half of the year. Substantial self-help in the form of cost
reductions and asset sales, strong operational performance,
and improved market conditions allowed us to address aur
near-term debt maturities. The longer maturities of our
current debt provide the financial headroom and afford us
time to invest in aur assets and deliver production and value.
This was a transformational transaction. | am indebted to all
those in the Company who worked on the project and our
external advisers for successfully executing this transaction.

Our improved financial situation has been further enhanced by
our gperational performance and | am very pleased to report
that Tutlow performed well in 2021 with irmprovernents in
FPS0 upume, gas olltake and water injection. This strong
operational performance was also reflected in our drilling
programme that saw Tullow successfully drill and complete
four wells [three at Jubilee; one at TEN] in 2021 and allowed
| us tc achieve notable production growth at Jubilee where



average daily preduction grew from ¢.70,000 bopd at the
beginning of 2021 to ¢.90,000 bopd by the end of the year.
This preduction growth was partially offset by lower than
expected production st TEN follawing higher production
decline rates than expected at some wells.

The drilling programme in Ghana is at the core of our strategy
and underpins the Ghana Value Maximisation Plan. The early
success of this plan validates our thesis that we can deliver
production growth and value through a well-crafted capital
investment programme. Because of this success, we are
engaging with our partners in Ghana and considering whether
to hire a second rig for use in Ghana in early 2023, We are also
in the process of increasing our equity interests in both the
Jubilee and TEN fields following the exercise of our right of
pre-emption related to the sale of Occidental Petraleum’s
interests in Ghana to Kasmos Energy. These initiatives align
well with our evolving drilling plans for 2022-25 which are
focused on the eastern flank of the Jubilee field and the
Greater Ntomme and Tweneboa areas at TEN.

In Gabon, we continue to deliver stable production.

Our operational and subsurface teams have worked closely
with our partners to identify surrounding near-tield prospects
that can sustain and increase production. The Simba expansion
project was accelerated into 2021 and the Sim-03 welt was
completed in September. Consequently, production from
Simba is expected to be 40% higher year-on-year.

We reoriented our exploration effort to enhance value In
our core areas. Consequently, there was much focus on the
Tano Basin across Ghana and Céte d'lvoire, maturing some
interesting epportunities in the vicinity of the TEN FPS0.

In Gabon, the team has matured several prospects around
the Simba and the Tchatamba South licences,

We exited 11 blocks in 2021 which we assessed to he
insufficiently attractive to justify further investment. Tullow
retains matarial positions in emerging basins in Guyana and
Argentina and continues to seek strategic partners, to reduce
its capital exposure in these areas. To date, we have been
unable to secure new partners resulting in expected
exploration capex in 2022 of c.$45 million.

Another area with very significant change in 2021 has been

in Kenya where our team, In close consultation with our Jaint
Venture Partners, reworked the development plan. The new
plan targets more resources, delivers higher production and
significantly cuts the project costs. This plan has restructured
a commercially difficult project inte an investible opportunity
and we have good engagemeant with the Government of Kenya.
Accordingly, we are now working with potential strategic
partners to reduce our stake in the project to be more in line
with a company of our size and | expect to see our work in
Kenya progress materially in 2022

Stakeholder engagement

| have been greatly encouraged by the supportive and open
engagement with all our major stakeholders. As travel
restrictions eased, | have been able to meet many of our key
stakeholders in person. In Ghana, HE Nana Akufo-Addo, the
President of Ghana, as well as the Minister for Energy, Hon.
Dr. Prempeh, Finance Minister, Ken Ofori-Atta and other
senior officials have been very supportive of our investment

in the Ghana Value Maximisation Plan. This support also lends
itself to constructive discussions on some of our more
challenging issues, for example in respect of our dispute with
the Government of Ghana over branch profit remittance tax
where, after consultation with the Government of Ghana, the
matter was referred to international artitraton (full details on

page 119]. It was recognised that it is not uncomman to utilise
the dispute resolution process in Petroleum Agreements to
resolve such disagreements. [ commend the Government of
Ghana for not letting this ongeing dispute distract from our
core business of developing and producing Ghana's oil & gas
and | am confident this will continue to be the case gaing
forward. In Kenya, Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Hon. John
Munyes, and Permanent Secretary Andrew Kamau and their
teams have monitored and challenged our thinking as we
developed the revised Field Development Plan. The Ivorian
Energy Minister, Hon. Thomas Camara, and his team have
engaged as we have refined the prospectivity in Cl 524 and
developed our plans for further investment in Cdte d'lvoire,
Colleagues across our Partners and at our key suppliers
have worked closely with us as we have developed and
implemented our Business Plan and improved operational
performance. In May 2021, we appointed & Ghana Advisory
Board of Phyllis Christizn, Elly Ohene-Adu and Alex Hutton-Mills
to provide strategic guidance and advice on our operations in
Ghana and the delivery of cur business plan. | am already
benefitting enormously from their counsel on managing key
relationships and delivering shared prosperity in Ghana.

Climate and Shared Prosperity

| reflected in last year's Annual Report on why | joined

Tullow and why the Company's commitment to climate risk
management and shared prosperity 1s so important. This year,
as part of this commitrment, we have taken two important
steps with regard to our wider respaonsibilities to society and
the countries in which we work. In March 2021, we commutted
to being Net Zero on our Scope 1 and 2 net equity emissions
by 2030, supporting the goal of limiting global temperature
nse to well below 2°C as per Article 2 of the Paris Agreement.
We will achieve this through decarbonising our production and
oftsetting hard to abate emissions through nature-based
solutions. In September 2021, we laid out our purpose -
affirming our belief that o1l & gas production can and should
be a driver of long-lasting economic and sccial change in
developing economies as long as those resources are
developed efficiently, safely and responsibly. This supports a
fair energy transition for African countries and sligns with the
outcomes of COP26 which recognises the need to "strengthen
climate action in the context of sustainable development and
efforts to eradicate poverty”. For more details about how we
manage our impact and deliver shared prosperity, | would ask
shareholders to read our Sustainabitity Report which yau can
also find at tullowoil.com.

Outlook

QOur successful transformation in 2027 has been driven by the
hard work of the entire Tullow team. We are fortunate to have
dedicated and committed colleagues who deserve the credit
for Tullow's vastly improved performance and balance sheet.
They are well aware, as | am, that we remain a company in
transiticn and that the job is not complete. However, there
should be no doubt that we have the assets, the plan, the
capital structure and financial discipline te reach the full
patential of this company. | would like to thank all our host
governments and communities, Joint Venture Partners, staff
and our investors for their continued support and | look
forward to another year of delivery in 2022.

Rahul Dhir
Chief Executive Officer

8 March 2022
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Business model

How our business creates value

Tullow's business model is to monetise oil and gas fram our portfolio of assets
and in doing so, fulfil our purpose of building a better future. Tullow's facus
has changed in recent years from an exploration-led business to a company
focused on unlocking value from its producing assets. This is reflected in our
decision to allocate in excess of 90% of our capital expenditure to our

producing assets.

Inputs

Our investors:

Tuttow has both equity and debt
investors. We regularly meet
with our investors to update
them on our business and listen
ta their feedback.

14bN wocsorare

Qur host nations:

Tullow requires the suppart of
host governments te operate in
their licences and/or to gain
approval to develap their
resources.

8 countries of operation

Over 30 licences

Our people:

Our highly experienced and
committed professionals
work hard to deliver Tullow'’s
business plan while upheolding
our values.

353 employees
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Funding

Self-funded business through cash from operations

B Y

usiness priorities

Safe, reliable operations and production
performance

Unlock value from discovered resources and
exploration acreage

Cost and capital discipline

Utilise geoscience expertise in engineering,
subsurface and exploration

Deliver tangible social and economic benefits to
aur hgst nations

Strengthen the balance sheet

| v

nvestment decisions

Balance investment for both near and longer-term
cash flow



Delivering improved operating performance to maximise value from our
producing assets Is a key focus, alongside steps taken to reduce our cost base
and simplify cur capital structure. Together, these building blocks deliver a
highly cash generative business plan that seeks to generate material cash flow
to fund investment, grow cur business and reduce debt, while providing
multiple benefits to our host nations. We have a number of stakeholders but
consider cur investors, our host nations and our people to be the primary

participants for our business.

Cash generation

Generate material cash flow

M
Use of cash

Reinvest and grow our business

Service and repay debt

Shareholder returns

——\

Capital allocation

>?0% allocatad to maximising value from our
producing assets, including near field exploration

Limit capital at risk from explaration

High levels of scrutiny across G&A caosts

Appropriate investment in our Net Zero and
sustainability strategies

Value creation

Our investors:

Our platform for growth

and path to lower debt is
expected to deliver a tangible
increase in equity value. Our
commodity hedging portfolio
provides significant oil price
downside protection for

our revenues.

$711m

2021 operating cash flow

Our host nations:

The sale of oiland gas
generates material revenue
for host nations in terms of
taxes paid. We also invest in
local suppliers to help run
our operations.

$234m

Payments to Governments

Our people:

We provide appropriate
reward and recoghition
through compensation and
benefits. We are building a
culture of empowerment
with a commitment to invest
in development.

760

Recognitions shared through
our ‘Celebration Hub’
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Markets

A recovering market amidst
an ongoing global pandemic

2021 brought hope for global economic growth following 2020's downturn. Energy prices
have seen a strong recovery while the pathway to Net Zero has been brought into even

sharper focus.

1 Geopolitics

The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic remained
the key global political and economic risk
in 2021

In 2021, COVID-19 continued to dominate the politicat agenda
as the world moved away from the strict enforcement of
major non-pharmaceutical interventions and towards
controlling the pandemic through vaccines, anti-viral
treatments and testing.

Towards the end of 2021, the pandemic took an unexpected
turn with the Omicron vartant, which was first sequenced in
South Africa, spreading rapidly in every continent but with very
different and milder cutcomes to previous waves for those
affected and especially for thase with prior immunity either
through previous exposure {o the virus or vaccination.

The global economy was surprisingly robust in 2021 as
economies rebounded to close to pre-pandemic levels.
Consumers took advantage of savings made during periods
of lockdown and of low interest rates which, in turn, lead to
significant increases in inflation. This spike in inflation waill
likely be controlled by interest rate rises through 2022 albeit
fram histerically low levels.

The oil price recovered strangly in 2021 as international travel
re-started and as governments, particularly state and national
government in the US, indicated that they were not inclined to
deal with future virus waves thraugh lackdowns and long-lasting
traval restrictions. The oil price also benefitted from a
disciplined approach in OPEC~+ which has very effectively
pushed prices up and pushed oil in storage down. The lack

of investment in ail and gas developments since the ol price
crash of 2014 has also had, and will continue to have, a
significant effect on the oil price.

Other commodities also increased in price as economies
rebounded, supply chains became stretched and worker
shortages intensified. In the UK and Europe, natural gas
prices rose by as much as ?00% on the previous year reaching
8 high of 452p/therm on 21 December as President Putin of
Russia demonstrated his control of gas supplies inta a highly
gas-constrained EU.
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In Africa, the pandermnic has had s sporadic effect with significant
rmonitoring of COVID-19 limited to only a few African countries
and it continues to be difficult to be entirely certain about how
far the virus has spread in Africa. Vaccine take-up in Africa
has also been limited both by low levels of supply from
developed countries and the UN's COVAX programme and

by lack of demand due to distrust of government.

Either way, Africa did not recover as quickly as developed
economies and that slower rate of growth is foracast to
continue into 2022 with a number of countries having to
consider painful debt re-structuring. African leaders were
both present and vocal at COP2é in Glasgow with a number
of senior leaders pointing out the need for a just energy
transition for Africa that reftected the continent’s minuscule
impact on global warming and low levels of current and
htstoric carbon emissions. Sorme African Heads of Gavernment,
including President Akufo-Addoe of Ghana, went further and
stressed their determination that African countries be allowed
to develop their natural resources, including hydrocarbons,
as part of a just energy transition.

Looking ahead, there are local and national elections in
Kenya towards the end of 2027 and the outcome, at this
peint, remains uncertain.

2 Oil price

2021 saw a strong recovery in the oil
markets with prices topping $80/bbl and
upward pressure driven by the gas market,
although COVID-19 remained a concern
through year-end

2021 was a year that saw a volatile and uneven recovery

from the pandemic, with the oil and refining markets each
respanding differently. Brent crude traded inside a $50-86/hbl
range and an average of $71/bbl. Prices rose firmly in January
amud the prospect of tighter crude supply and 2 declining
trend in global oil stacks, before surging more than 15% in
February, reaching the highest monthly average [$62/bbl]
since Janvary 2020. March marked the Hifth consecutive
month of nsing crude prices, supported by posttive
fundamentals including projections of a stronger econormic
rebound 10 2127, and an acceleration in the vaccination
roll-out, mainly in the OECD region. The second half of



March saw financial investors liguidaling part of their bullish
positions as the market began to soften. April then saw the
first crude price fall in six months amid a resurgence of
COVID-19 in & number of countries, stoking fears around
reduced near-term demand. This was reversed by strang
gains in May as prices rose 6% m-o-m, with APAC and
European refiners showing buying interest in advance of the
summer driving season and expectations of further demand
recovery, while the accelerated vaccination programmes and
easing of mobility restrictions in Western countries ectipsed
the worsening situation in several Asian countries. The
decision of OPEC to gradually adjust production frem May to
July alsn supported market confidence. This cantinued firmnly
throughout June and into July amid a volatile futures market
and strong physical market fundamentals. However, financial
investors reduced their long positions in July given concerns
around the new Delta vanant of COVID-19 and expectations
af increasing global supply. Prices in August reflected such
concerns, falling due to concerns around short-term demand
outlook in Asia, higher global supply, and mixed economic
data. However, this was reversed somewhat in the last week
of the month as concerns around demand eagsed, and the
rebound continued firmly in September [c. 5% m-o-m] with an
improved COVID-19 situation in Asia and supply disruptions in
the Gulf of Mexico after Hurricane lda. Concerns around the
risk of natural gas and coal shortages in Asia and Europe
furthier boosted oil demand as a substitution fuel source.
October saw a price surge of more than 12% with prices
surpassing $80/bbl, driven largely by concerns over supply
Issues in Asia and Europe’s power sector ahead of the winter
period, with soaring gas and coal prices. The end of the year
saw a decline in prices amid fears surrounding the COVID-19
Crnicron variant and an increase in cases in Europe and
elsewhere, as well as concerns around strategic reserve
releases, while gas prices moved lower, with a December
average oil price of $75/bbl.

Climate Change Policy
and energy transition

COP26, hosted by the UK Government in
Glasgow, was the clear highlight for
Climate Policy in 2021

Prior to COP26, the United Naticns Environment Programme
(UNEP) issued a report stating that current commitments to
cut greenhouse gas emissions put the planet on track for a
rise of 2.7°C temperature this century which is some way
shart of the 2/ 1.5°C target adopted in 2015 as part of the
Paris Agreement. Their October 2021 report stated that new
and updated Nationatly Determined Contributions woutd
only take off 7.5% of predicted 2030 emissions while 55%

is needed to mect the 1.5°C target. This followed a report
by the Intergovernmental Panal on Climate Change (IPCC]
in August 2021 that stated global warming was dangerously

close to spiralling out of control. During the Northern
Hemisphere summer, a number of weather-related events
also served to focus the minds of global leaders in the run up
to COP26, including record-breaking summer temperatures
in the Pacific North West and devastating floeding in Germany
and Belgium in July 2027,

Despite these events, COP26 delegates met with low
expectations about what might be achieved and, while COP26
did not meet sorme of the loftier targets that were set, the
main outcomes st least suggested that good progress had
been made and that further progress is possible.

Key outcomes included the launch of the Glasgow

Financial Alliance for Net Zern [GFANZ] which saw more
than $130 trillion of private capital committed to transforming
the global economy towards the Paris climate goal of 1.5°C,
a commitment by major banks to ending all international
public financing of new unabated coal power by the end of
2027, an agreement by more than 100 countries to decrease
their methane emissions by 30% by 2030 compared with
2020 levels and the establishment of a new International
Sustzinability Standards Board (1IS58B) to increase the global
focus on climate risk disclosure and reporting.

On the debit side, the failure to, as the UK Government had
wanted, "consign coal to history” led the headlines at the end
of the conference and the commitment to secure $100 billion
of climate finance, originally agreed at COP15 10 2009

in Copenhagen, was pushed to 2023,

Looking at COP26 from a Tullow perspective, the focus on
coal meant that oil and gas were barely mentioned while
COPZ7, which 1s taking place in Cairo in November 2022,
seems likely, given its location, to place far greater emphasis
on Africa and on developing economies.

Elsewhere, progress towards an EU Taxonomy, which the
UK will likely mirror, continued. The EU Taxonomy is a green
classification system that translates the EU's climate and
environmental objectives into criteria for specific economic
activities for investment purpases. The Taxonomy 1s a
transparency tool that will introduce mandatory disclosure
obligations on some companies and investors, requiring them
to disclose their share of Taxonomy-atigned actvities. This
disclosure of the propartion of Taxonomy-aligned activities
will allow for the comparison of companies and, critically,
investmeant portfolios and will quide market participants in
their investment decisions.

Climate Change and Energy Transition continue to be fopics
of considerable natienal and international debate butinthe
last quarter of 2021 the dynamics of this debate changed.
First, leaders from Africa and other developing countries
made it clear through their contributions at COP26 that their
voices would be heard and that an unfair energy transition
that failed to recognise which countries had made the biggest
contributions to global emissions would not be acceptable.
Second, very high gas prices in Europe driven both by
geopolitics and reliance on gas imports suggested that
Wastern Europe needed to think again about how it would
meet the energy demands and price expectations of

its people.
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A balanced scorecard

Measuring our performance

Our scorecard aligns both executive pay and employees performance-related pay
to Key Performance Indicators [KPIs) measuring our performance across a range
of operatianal, financial and non-financial measures.

2021 Scorecard 1. Safety 9.8/9.8%

2. Financiat Performance 7.0/9.8%
5.5/9.8%
9.9/13% 3. Production 9.9/13%
L . -
9.1/9.8% 4. Business Plan Imptementation 5.5/9.8%
G .
7.049.8% 5. Capital Structure 9.1/9.8%
L.776.5% .
6. Sustainability 4.7{6.5%
.8/9.8% ; f
9.8/7.8% 5.2/6.5% 7. Leadership Effectiveness 5.2/6.5%
8. Total Shareholder Return 0/35%
0/35%
Hemurneration Report pages 11 e 87
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2022 Scorecard

7.5%
10% 5%

5.0% 10%

7.5% 5%

50%

1. Safety

2. Financial Performance

3. Production

4. Business Plan implementation
5. Sustainability

4. Unlocking Value

7. Leadership Effectiveness

8. Total Shareholder Return

Remuneration Reparl pages 71 tc 87

7.5%
5.0%
10.0%
7.5%
5.0%
10.0%
5.0%
50.0%

KPI Performance Strategic objective
Totat Recordabla Inaident Rate [IRIR| of between 078 and 0.51, 4
1. Safety Loss of Primary Cortanment [LOPC] Tier 1ard 2 as per 0GP defieticn of 1
or less at lier Zand Dot Tier
2. Financial Performance Greup underlying Operating Casb Flow {OCH of $513 midlior to $627 rmillior at T 3
' aBient price of $460/pbl
3. Production 55 41 kobpd preduced, sutilee production efficiercy of 76 987, TEN !
' preductior effiviercy of 97-9% 5
. . 1 2
4. Business Plan Implementanon Aebeve TUG7 ayte=d wark programme for $452 million ageeed butget
5 4
5. Sustainability Achieve 90 16 160% of ESG key deliverable melestores
&. Unlocking Value Having compleled the refinarcirgin 2027, focus 15 row cn urlocking value Z
: 9 through a number of critial action: discussed below
. . 7
7. Leadershlp Effectiveness Organsaticr s positioned for sustainable success
1 2 3 4
. lo Creating sharekolder value
8. Total Sharehclder Return’ 3
5 6 7
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Operations review

A review of our operations

Production, reserves and resources

In 2021, Group working interest production averaged 59.7 kboepd,
in line with guidance, with notable production growth from the
Jubilee field in Ghana and Simba figld in Gabon, but lower
production than expected frorm the TEN fields in Ghana and the
Espoir field in Cote d'Ivoire.

In 2022, Group working interest production guidance is 55 to

61 kboepd. This forecast is based on Tullow's existing equity
interests in Jubilee [35.48%) and TEN (47.175%) and will be
adjusted fotlowing completion of the pre-emption of the sale of
Occidental Petroleum’s interest in Ghana to Kosmos Energy

The estimated full year impact of the completed pre-emption
would be an addition of ¢.5 kboepd [net] to the Group's 2022
production forecast, subject to adjustment for completion timing.

FY 2022

FY 2021 guidance

Group average working interest production {khoepd) |kboepd}
Ghana’ 421 39-42
Jubilee 26.6 28-30
TEN 15.5 11-12
Non-operated portfolio? 17.2 16-19
Total preduction 59.2 55-541

1 Ghana preduction represented he’ore impact of pre-emption on Deep Water
Tano (DWIT) Block

2 2021 figure inciudes partial prodaction from assets in Equatona. Guinea and
the Dussafu Mann Permit in Gabon, ahead o divestment during the year. 2022
production guidance does not include any production from these assets

The Group's audited 2P reserves decreased from 260 mmboe
at the end of 2020 to 231 mmboe at the end of 2021. About
half of this reduction was the result of the sale of assets in
Equatorial Guinea and the Dussafu Marin Permit in Gaban
[15 mmboe). Reserve additions and positive revisions includged
a 13 mmboe increase at Jubilee following improved field
performance and acceleration of new projects and a

11 mmboe increase in the non-operated portifolio due to
better field performance and maturation of new projecis.
These gains were offset by a 16 mmboe decrease at TEN
reflecting poorer than expected Ntormme field perforrmance
and re-categorisation of certain reserves at Enyenra. Overall,
with the Group producing 22 mmboe during 2027, the organic
reserves replacement ratio was approximately 34%.
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The Group's audited 2C resources decreased from 640 mmboe
to 623 mmboe. The reduction was driven primarily by the

sale of assets in Equatorial Guinea and Gabon, the maturation
of selected TEN projects from 2C to 2F and poorer than
expected fleld performance at TEN, However, these reductions
were largely offset by a positive revision from Tullow's
auditors of the Kenyan assets, ta align with the updated

i"reld Developrment Plan.

Ghana

Jubilee

The Jubilee field averaged 74.9 kbopd gross [net 26.6 kbhopd)
in 2021, ahead of guidance at the start of the year. Average
daily production grew from ¢.70 kbopd at the beginning of the
year to exceed 90 kbopd by year-end, as new wells were
brought anstream and operational performance remained
high with FFPS0 uptime averaging c.98%, gas offtake rates
averaging ¢.85 mmscfd and water injection rates averaging
over 200 kbwpd. The annual gas offtake rate was impacted by
overrunning maintenance and subsequent reduced capacity
at the Ghana National Gas Company [GNGC] onshore gas
processing plant during the fourth quarter of the yvear. Tullow
continues to work closely with GNGC to help improve offtake
reliability. Gas offtake has now returned to regular rates of
over 100 mmscfd and Tullow and its JV Partners are still
targeting average offtake of ¢.13% mmscfd in 2022.

The drilling programme, which commenced in April, delivered
two producers [J56-P online in July, J57-P online in December),
one water injector [J55-WI online in September] and a work
over [J12-Wl online early in January 2022]. Strong drilling
parfarmance was achieved during the year with wells casting
approximately 20% less than wells drilled from 2018 to 2020,
ahead of the assumptions included in the Business Plan.

The field continues to perforrm well, and average 2022
production is expected to increase to between ¢.80 to 84 kbopd
gross (net: 28 to 30 kbopd). This forecast includes a planned
shutdown in the second quarter of 2022 for approximately two
weeks. Three new wells are planned to be drilled at Jubilee in
2022, focused on delivering reliable in-year preduction: a

[ water tnjector, which will provide pressure support to existing

producers, is due anstream n the first quarter; this will be
followed by 2 producer and a second water injector.



The core developed area of lthe Jubilee field has ¢.1.5 hillion
barrels gross oit initially in place [STCIIP], with an estimated
ultimate recovery [EUR] approaching 40%. To date, around
half of the expected reserves have been produced. Outside of
the core area, the developmaent of the Jubilee North East
[UJNE] and Jubilee South East [JSE) arezs marks a step
change that targets relatively untapped areas of the field,
containing over 900 mmbbls gross ol 1n place. These areas
combined gross EUR 1s aver 170 mmhbbls gross oil, of which
less than 10% has been produced. The 20272 work programme
Is focused oninvestment in infrastructure for the JSE and
JNE prejects that will access the undeveloped resources and
lead to meaningful production growth in subsequent years.

TEN

The TEN fields averaged 32.8 kbopd gross [net: 15.5 kbopd)

in 2021, below guidance given at the start of the year. This was
primarily due to higher production decline rates than expected
on particular wells. A gas injector at the Ntomme field
(Nt06-Gl), was brought onstreamn in the fourth gquarter to
provide pressure support to existing production wells. Ni06-Gl
also encountered o1l at the base of the well, de-risking the
development potential of areas further to the north of Ntormme.
In 2021, uptime on the TEN FPS0 was ¢.97%, water injection
was .65 kbwpd and gas injection was c.135 mmscfd. In 2022,
TEN is expected to produce between 22 to 26 kbopd gross
[net: 11-12kbopd),

Within the core developed areas of Ntomme and Enyenra,
which contain ¢.750 mmbbls gross cilinitially in place
[STOIIP), around half of the expected reserves have been
produced to date. However, production decling within this care
area has been faster than expected and while materiat
reserves remain, the overall view of ultimate recavery from
these fields has reduced. As a consequence, Tullow and its
Joint Venture [JV] Partners have improved their understanding
of the broader TEN area and the significant remaining
potential. The add:tion of undeveloped reservoirs in the
Tweneboa area, accessible from the Ntomme riser base area,
and the extension of the Enyenra field development to the
north and south of the core developed area, introduce a
similar volurne of undeveloped STOIIP as the core areas.
Tullow and its JV Partners will start to target these new areas
in 2022, with two development wells ptanned in the Ntomme
riser base area. Investment in infrastructure will allow these
to be brought on stream from 2023. Furthermore, an
additional production well is planned in the undeveloped
Enycnra North area in the fourth quarter of the year.

Operational Transformation Plan

The operational transformation that Tullow embarked on in
2020 has delivered strong performance across safety, reliability
and costs. A singular focus on personal and process safety
across the crganisation and visible leadership have provided
a foundation for a strong safety culture. The production
potential is being maximised by optimising performance of
every element of production frarm the reservoir to the surface
facilities. High levels of facility uptime have been achieved at
both FPSOs by addressing long-standing equipment defects
and sustaining this by implementing systermised monitoring
and mitigating of equipment risk. In addition, Tullow is
building an equipment systems maintenance management
wilastructure to help sustain the reliahility improvements.
All this has been achieved by taking more direct control of
day-to-day operations on the Jubilee and TEN FPSOs.

In order to build on these improvermnents and to achieve the
ambition to be a top quartile operator in terms of safety,
reliability and costs, Tullow, supported by 1ts JV Partners

and the Government of Ghana, has taken the decision to
self-gperate the Jubilee FPSO. Accordingly, Tullow will take
over all operations and maintenance [0&M] from MODEC an
the Jubilee field when the current O&M contract comes to a
scheduled end in 2022, This will allow greater control and
integration over the core areas of safety, efficiency, emissions,
reliability and local content, in turn presenting an opportunity
to further reduce costs.

Progress towards elimination of routine flaring in Ghana

As part of Tullow’s commitmeant to becoming & Net Zera
Cornpany by 2030 on its Scope 1 and 2 emissions, work to
increase gas processing capacity at the Jubilee FSPQ is
planned during a scheduled shutdown in the second quarter
of 2022, which together with compressar upgrades and other
facility de-bottlenecking activities through 2022 and early 2023
will increase gas handling capacity and contribute towards the
target of eliminating routine flaring in Ghana by 2025, Other
activities planned during the shutdown will focus on maintenance,
integrity, and reliability of the FPSO for the long-term.
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Operations review continued

Ghana gas commercialisation

Assotiated gas from Jubilee and non-associated gas from the
TEN fields has the potential ta be a significant value driver for
Tullow and for Ghana. In 2009, Tullow and its JV Pariners
pledged to provide 200 bef of rich/wet associated gas [Foundation
gas] from the Jubilee field free of charge to the Government of
Ghana. The Group currently expects to complete the provision
of this Foundation gas, which Tullow estimates has delivered
over c. $2.4 billion of value to Ghana including the onshare
extraction of liquids yrelds, by the end of 2027. Based on
Tullow's calculations, gas from the Jubilee field currently fuels
¢.30% of thermal power generation in Ghana and continued
offtake of associated gas from the Jubilee field is vital to
rmaintaimng ol production, increasing power generation

in Ghana and the production of Liquid Petroleum Gas for
Ghana's domestic market. Tullow is currently in commercial
negotiations with the Government of Ghana to finalise the
Post Foundation Volume Gas Sales Agreement which would
deliver 500 bef of natural gas and would add ¢.6 kboepd to
Group production. The Group's investrment in upstream gas
handling infrastructure on the Jubilee FPSO and the ability to
supply comingled Jubilee & TEN gas gives Tullow confidence
that it can meet growing domestic demand and be the most
commpetitive supplier of gas into the Ghanaian market.

Tullow 15 also in positive discussions with JVY partners and
the Government of Ghana on the development of incremental
gas volurmes present at the TEN fields where ¢.7 tcf of gas s
estimated to be in place. Because of the upstream infrastructure
in place, including a gas pipeline to shore, TEN gas s well-placed
to be a stable and reliable source of gas at potential rates of
& kboepd for Ghana and, as the power sector in West Africa
develops further, the wider region. With such substantial
volumnes in place, this resource has the potential to drive
significant industral transformation in Ghana across the
rmining and petrochemical sectors among others and be a
reliable and low-cost provider of wet gas at a time when the
benelit of having significant domestic gas supplies is so clear.
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Pre-emption of Deep Water Tano component of Kosmos
Energy/Occidental Petroleum Ghana transaction

In Navember 2021, Tuliow exercised its right of pre-emption
related to the sale of Occidental Petroleum's interests in the
Jubilee and TEN fields in Ghana to Kosmos Energy. As a
result, Tullow's equity interests are expected to increase to
38.9% 1n the Jubilee tield and 54.8% in the TEN fields upan
completion of the transaction. The transaction documents are
now in agreed farm between Tullow and Kosmos. On this
hasis, Tullow and Kosmos have jointly requested consent from
the Government of Ghana and discussions with the
Governrnent are progressing positively.

Non-operated portfotio

Production from Tullow's non-operated portfolio averaged
17.2 khoepd in 2021, including contributions from Tullow's
continuing interests in Gabon, Céte d'lvoire and partial
contribution from divested assets. 2022 net production is
expected to average between 16 to 19 kboepd.

In February 2027, Tullow announced an agreement to sell its
entire interests in Equatorial Guinea and the Dussafu Marin
Permit in Gabon to Fanoro Energy ASA. The deals were
completed in March 2027 and June 2021, respectively, for
$180 millon including contingent cash payments of up to

$40 millisn which are linked to asset performance and oil price.

In Gabon, the Simba expansion project made good progress in

2021, and an infill well was brought enstreamn in Septermber

2021, A new 10-inch pipeline, allowing increased ol offtake w
from the field, became operational in December 2021, After

initial operational issues post start-up, the well is now

performing as expected and consequently, net production for

the Simba field in 2027 15 expected o average c.bkbopd, 40%

hugher than in 2021, Also in Gaban, two infrastructure-led '
exploration wells were drilled in the year near the Tchatamba

field. One well was unsuccessful and the other resulted in the

Wamba [TCTS-B14] discovery in the second half of 2021,

Wamnba is adjacent to the Tchatamba South oil field and

extended produchion tests are planned in 2022,

In Céte d'lvoire, the Espoir field was shut down for approximately
four weeks in the first half of the year following a major incident
onboard the FPSO in January 2021 A further shutdown of
approximately eight weeks was conducted 1n the second

half of the year ta carry out remediation work identified by
BW Otfshare, the FPS0 operator. The field is now back
onstream and Tullow continues to engage with the operator
{CNR International) on further remediation plans for the
FPSO and on identifying developimient drilling opportunities.



Decommissioning

In the UK, post-decaommissioning surveys have been completed
and submitted as part of the operated decommissioning
programme approval process, with formal approval expected in
2022. The Group’'s non-operated decommissioning activities are
ongoing and are expected to continue through to 2026.

in Mauritania, the Group's operated decommissioning
programme of the Banda and Tiof fields is expected to
commence in the fourth guarter of 2022. Planning 15 well
advanced, with major service providers secured. Non-operated
decommissioning of the Chinguetti field 1s ongoing and seabed
infrastructure clearance 1s expected to complete this year.

The expecled remaimng UK and Mauritania decommissiening
exposure aver 2022-24 is ¢.$180 million, with over half of this
forecast spend in 2022. The final exposure may vary depending
on the final required scope and work programmes agreed
across the various projects. Provisioning for decommissioning
of producing assets in Ghana and parts of the non-operated
portfolio has commenced this year at ¢.$30 rillion per annurm.

Kenya

In 2021 Tullow and its JV Partners [Africa Oil and Total Enargies)
completed the redesign of the Kenya development project
(Blocks 10BB and 13T licences| to ensure it 1s a technically,
commercially and environmentally robust project. The key
changes to the development concept have been driven by
incorporating the production data from the Early Oil Pilot
Scheme [EQPS), optimising the nurmber of wells to be drilled and
changing the producer to injector ratic, adding the Ekales field
into the first phase of production and increasing the Central
Processing Facility capacity to 130,00 bopd and the pipeline size
fram 18" to 207 to handle the increased flow rates.

These changes have increased total gross capital expenditure
(capex], which covers both the upstream and the pipeline to
First Qil, to ¢.$3.4 billion and delivers a 30% increase in
resources whilst lowering the unit cost to $22/bbl (previously
¢.%$31/bbl]. A higher production plateau of 120 kbopd is now
planned, with expected gross oil recovery of b85 mmbo over
the full life of the field. This resource position is supported by
a Competent Persons Report completed by external
international auditors Gaffney Cline Associates [GCA)

Simultaneous to the development, an exploration and
appraisal [E&A] plan will be implemented to ensure the
remaining five discoveries are developed efficiently. This will
extend and sustain initial plateau rates while keeping costs
low by using the rigs used for development drilling. The E&A
plan also focuses on additional exploration potential within
the Blocks 10BB and 13T licences and exploring the wider
Blocks 10BA and 12B licence acreage.

Tullow and its JV Partners have taken the opportunity of this
review to improve the environmental and social aspects of the
project. Carbon emissions will be limited through a combination
of heat conservation, use of associated gas for power and
reinjection of excess gas into the reservoir. Further, there are
opportunities to use the Kenyan nationat grid that 1s
substantially powered by renewables and options to offset
rermaining emissions. As per the previous development plan,
the 823 kilometres long pipeline that will transport the crude
oil from Turkana to the port of Lamu will be heated and buried
to avoid long-term disruption. The project will also require
water for reservoir pressure which will be abstracted through
a pipeline from the Turkwell Dam and will also be used to
provide water to local cammunities. This project would also
be Kenya's first oil and gas development and weuld represent
a stable, long-term source of income for the Government

of Kenvya.

In line with licence extension requirements, Tullow and its
WV Partners submitted a final FOP to the Government of
Kenya in Decernber 2021, incorporating their feedback

on the draft FDP submitted earlier in the year.

Submission of the FDP for the 10BB/13T licences will aliow
Tullow and its JV Partners to secure the Production Licences
fer blocks and the continuation of the exploration licences on
the 10BA and 12B blocks through the commitments made in
the E&A plan. The JV is now working closely with the Ministry
of Petroleurn and Mines to secure FOP approval which needs
to be ratified by the Kenyan parliament. The FDP is conditional
on a number of critical work streams for both the Government
of Kenya and the JV Partners, including, but not limited to, the
successful introduction of a new strategic partner. Constructive
discussions with interested parties are progressing as Tullow
and the JV Partners look to secure a strategic partner for

the project.

“Through the redesign of the
Kenya development concept
Tullow and its JV partners have
created a commercially and
environmentally robust project.”
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Operations review continued

Exploration

In Tullow's core area of West Africa, the exploration team is
focused on maturing near-field and infrastructure-ted (ILX)
explaration cpportunities around existing producing fields, to
unlock additional value from the Group's asset base.

in Gaben, focus in on strengthening the prospective resource
base within the Simba licence and several low-risk and
compelling investment options adjacent to infrastructure have
been identified which will be considered for future drilling
programmes.

In Cote d'lvoire, Tullow has a 90% interest in offshore Block
CI-924 which 15 a continuation of the proven Cretaceous
turbidite plays that are producing at the adjacent TEN and
Jubilee fields. This block presents a unigue opportunity due to
Tullow's deep understanding of the area and its proximity to
the Group’s producing fields that could realise cost and
aperaticnal synergies in the event aof discoveries. Focus has
been on maturing opportunities through 30 seismic
reprocessing which has identified additional prospective
resources In several stacked reservoirs that are being
matured as future drilling candidates. Tullow, together with s
JV Partner PetroCi, has proceeded into the second exploratien
phase in CI-524, which includes a commitment well to be
drilled before August 2024.

In Ghana, focus I1s on opportunities around the Jubilee and
TEN fields to unlock additional value from the Group's asset
base, with potential reserves additions from ILX opportunities.
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Tuliow also continues to focus on unlocking value from the
substantial prospective resource base in the emerging basins
of Guyana and Argentina, while seeking to mitigate capital
exposure from historical work commitments. In 2022,
commitments include the Beebei-Potaro exploration well in
the Kanuku Block in Guyana, which will target the Cretaceous
light oil play of the Guyana-Suriname Basin, as wall as
seismic acquisition over Block MLO 122 in Argentina.

In 2021, Tullow dnilled the unsuccessful Goliathberg-Voltzberg
North exploration well, on Block 47, offshore Suriname. The
well encountered good guality reservoir but only rminor oit
shows. In Argentina, a multi-client 30 seismic acquisition was
completed on Tullow-operated licences MLO114 and MLG119.
In Cote d'lvoire, Tullow has now exited all onshore blocks but
retains its 90% interest in the offshore Block C1-524, adjacent
to the TEN fields.

The Group continued to rationalise its portfolio during the year
and exited 11 explaration blocks in 2021, including all of its
licences in Suriname and Peru, reorienting its exploration
effort towards near-field and infrastructure-led exploration
activities to enhance value i core areas. In January 2022,
Tullow also exited the PEL 90 licence in Namibta,

“The exploration team is focused
on maturing near-field and
infrastructure-led exploration
opportuntties around existing
producing fields, to unlock
additional value from the
Group's asset base.”



Chief Financial Officer’'s statement

Creating a pathway
for future growth

2021 was a transition year for Tullow as the Group began to execute and deliver on the
10-year Business Plan we presented at our Capital Markets Day at the end of November 2020,
and | am pleased to report on the good progress we made during the year.

‘I leave Tullow confident that it
has a great team of people who
are working with much improved
processes, re-focused capital
discipline and the platform
to thrive.”

Les Waod
Chief Financial Officer

Transformational refinancing delivered

The comprehensive refinancing of Tullow's debt was a
significant event for Tutlow in 2027, to simplfy our capital
structure, increase our financial resilience and give us the
foundation to deliver our Business Plan. This was cornpleted
in May 2021, with the issuance of $1.8 billion of Senior
Secured Notes (maturing in 2024], and the placement of a
$500 million revolving credit facility with nine of our lending

banks previously in the Reserves Based Lending [RBL] facility.

The new notes, along with cash on balance sheet, allowed
us to repay and redeem existing bonds that were due in 20271
and 2022 and repay and cancel our RBL facility. Tullow’s next
material maturity 1s now its $800 million of Senior Notes
dus in 2025, creating a clear pathway for Tullow to invest

in 1ts assets to maximise their value and deliver our cash
generative plan.

Continued prudent financial strategy

Tullow’s Business Plan supports deleveraging, with cashflows
expected to reduce our leverage to 1.5x net debt to EBITDAX
by 2025 [at $65/bbl], and at higher gil prices we would expect
to achieve this earlier. Key to achieving this target is strict
capital atlocation, a focus on costs and prudent financial

risk management.

Rigorous capital allocation is now embedded at Tullow as
we focus on high return and fast payback investments in our
production assets. Capital expenditure was $263 million

in 2027, with over 80% of spend allocated to our producing
assets, compared with ¢.70% on average over 2016-20.

Cornmodity hedging remains a key component of our financial
risk management. In 2021, as required under the terms of the
reftnancing, we built up a portfolio which protects 75% of our
production entitlements for a period of 24 months from
completing our debt refinancing in May 2021, and 50% of cur
production entitlements for another 12 manths beyond that.
Our hedge portfolic from 2022 to May 2024 has weighted
average collars of ¢.$53-76/bbl, giving us robust downside
protection as well as good access to upside. Higher oil prices
in the second half of 2021 did mean we lost out on some
higher oil price upside, resulting in a $153 mullien loss on

the realisation of commodity hedges for the year. While this
outflow may seem disappointing, | rernain firmly of the view
that downside protection s incredibly important to praotect the
Company against cil price volatitity, as evidenced during the
two most recent downturns when over $1 billion of revenue
was generated through hedging dewnside protection.

Continued focus on costs

In 2021, we continued to deliver cost savings across the
business with net G&A down to $44 miltian (2020: $87 miltion].
Qur net aperating costs wera also reduced to $2469 million
{2020: $332 million], primarily due to savings of ¢.$50 million
in Ghana due to facilities O&M costs and the result of asset
disposals. While our culture is becoming ever more performance
focused, where every barrel matters and every dollar counts,
we faced somea cost pressures in 2027, Despite lower net
operating costs unit operating costs increased to $12.4/bbl
[2020: $12.1/bbL!. However, this was primarily due to lower
production and increased costs related to extended COVID-19
operating procedures. A normalised unit operating cost

was $12.1/bbl.
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Chief Financial Officer's statement continued

Continued focus on costs continued

Financing costs also remain high relative to cash flow
generation at $356 million in 2021 {2020: $314 million),
however, this includes one-off refinancing fees of $18 million.
Looking ahead 1o 2022 and beyond, financing costs are sef to
steadily reduce as we pay down debt. Tullow continues to
have exposure to legacy legal issues such as the ongoing tax
dispute with the Ghana Revenue Authority [as detaited on
page 119], and while we endeavour to settle these issues,
there are occasions where arbitration is the only way to bring
these matters to a clese. In February 2022, we announced the
result of an Arbitration with HiTec Vision (HiTec] regarding
payments related to the purchase of Spring Energy in 2013.
The panel delivered an award in favour of HiTec and ruled
that Tullow should pay $76 million. While the verdict was
disappointing, Tullow accepts the outcome and patd the
amount from existing cash balances. On a more positive note,
also in February, a Final Investment Decision for the Tilenga
project was taken in Uganda, triggering a contingent
consideration of $75 million in relation to the sale of our
Uganda assets to Total in 2020,

Further refinement of our pertfolio

Following the sale of Tullow's interests in Uganda in 2020,
Tullow's portiolio management activities continued in 2021
with the sale of our Equatorial Guinea assets and the Dussafu
Marin permit in Gabon. These value accretive transactions
raised $133 million, delivering important cash flow for the
Group to further strengthen the balance sheet, Together with
the significant cost savings generated, these actions delivered
around $1 billion of ‘self-help’, a critical compenent that
underpimned the refinancing.

We have also substantially simplified our exploration portfolio,
exiting non-cere areas including Peru and Suriname and
anshore licences in Céte d'lvoire. We also looked to farm down
and reduce our stake in licences in Guyana and Argentina,
which have near-term work cormmitments, with goad interest
from potential buyers. However, these efforts are yet to result
in new partners, primarily due to a challenging external
backdrop during 2021, resulting in higher than planned
exploration spend in 2022.

In Navember 2021, Tullow exercised its right of pre-emption
related to the sale of Occidental Petroleum’s interests in the
Jubrlee and TEN fields in Ghana to Kesmos Energy. As a
result, Tullow's equity inferests are expected to increase o
38.9% in the Jubilee fleld and 94.8% in the TEN fields upon
completion of the transaction. The transaction documents are
now in agreed form between Tullow and Kosmos. On this
basis, Tullow and Kosmos have jointly requested consent from
the Government of Ghana and discussions with the
Government are progressively positively.
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In Kenya, the submission of a revised Field Development
Flan was a key focus, and Tullow and its JV Partners
submitted the plan in December 2021, as per the licence
extension requirements provided by the Government of Kenya
in September 2020, The JV Pariners also continue 1o seek

a strategic partner for this project and constructive
discussions are progressing with interested parties.

Key 2021 financial results

Our financial strateqy, comprehensive refinancing and

focus on cost discipline have led to positive results. Tullow
generated $1.3 bullion revenue (2020: $1.4 billion], resulting

it $711 million of operating cash flow (2020 $598 million],
However, the Cornpany made a loss after tax of $81 million,
primarily driven by impairments and restructuring costs and
other provisions. Post financing costs, Tullow generated $245
mithion of free cash flow [2020: $432 million], allowing us to
reduce net debt to $2.7 billion [2020: $2.4 billion] with year-end
gearing of 2.2 times net debt to EBITDAX [2020: 3.0 times). We
closed the year with strong liguidity headroom consisting of
free cash and undrawn facilities of $876 million.

Following an independent reserves audit of our producing
assets we have reparted pre-lax impairments of $54 mulbion.
These were primarily driven by a decrease in TEN 2P reserves
and an increase In future capex partially offset by a higher
long-term cil price assumption of $65/bbl.

Reflections on a challenging but rewarding tenure

In September 2021, Tullow announced that | would step down
as Chief Financial Officer [CFO) and teave the business at the
end of March 2022. The decision to move on comes after eight
years with the Company, with my last five years spent as CFO.
Following our comprehensive refinancing earlier this year,
which was the culmination of a number of steps to strengthen
the Group's balance sheet, it is the right time for me to

leave Tullow.

While my tenure has been hugely challenging as we guided
Tullow through some of the most difficult times in its histary,
I arm very proud to have led the team responsible for Tullow's
financial turnaround and to mput into the Group’s future
strategy. | leave Tullow confident that it has a great team of
peaple in place, who are working in a company with much
impreved processes, re-focused capital discipline and the
platform to thrive. | have built excellert relationships that

I know will endure and | lock forward to watching Rahul and
his talented team execute our ambitious strategy over the
years to come.

oo U1

Les Wood
Chief Financial Dfficer

& March 2027



Insights from the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD) scenario analysis

fn 20271 Tullow continued to test the resilience of its portfolic against a range of scenanos including these of the International
Energy Agency [IEA), a commonly accepted source for the global energy sector. The four [EA scenarios, the Net Zero
Emissions by 2000 Scenario, Announced Pledges Scenario, Stated Policies Scenario and the Sustainable Developmant
Scenario, assess the impact of the energy transition on a wide range of industries with different regional impacts, including
the impact on energy demand and energy mix in different markets. However, as a predominantly oil producing company with
no downstream assets, the key material nsk far our business remains cil price and to a lesser extent carbon price.

Our assessment reflects the impact of each scenario on the Group's Operating Cash Flow (OCF) aver 1, 5, and 10 years. The
choice of OCF instead of Nel Present Valua [NFV], which was nised last year, has been made to reflect cur Group Scorecard
and the guidance given to investors about our future financial performance in our Trading Statements. The OCF KPI reflects
our ability as a company to generate the cash we need to invest in the business and to finance the activities of the business.
Whilst the discounting of cash flows in the NPV calculation implicitly captured the different impacts of the scenarios over
time, we have chosen to make the changing impacts over time mare explicit.

Refer to Note 24 for assessment of climate change risk on the Group’s Financial Statements,

OCF impact 1 Year S Year 10 Year
STEPS Stated Policies Scenario

APS Announced Pledges Scenaro

Pasitive impact

S0Ss Sustainable Development Scenario Loss of 0-10%

NZE Net Zero Emissions by 2050 Scenario Loss » 10%

IEA scenarios

(Real Terms 2020 $/bbl) 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
STEPS Stated Policies Scenario 66 68 69 70 72 73 74 76 77 80 B3 85 88
APS Announced Pledges Scenario méb 65 b6 b6 66 66 67 67 67 b6 bb 465 b4
Sbs Sustainab_lg“Development Scenario b4 63 672MMZT 40 59 58 K7 B& HH K3 57 6O

NZE Net Zero Emissions by 2050 scenario 62 5% B Hh2 4% 46 472 3% 36 33 30 27 24

Tullow Planning Assumption [$465/bbl 62 &1 60 59 58 57 5h 54 B3 48 44 40 36
fiat norninal

Tullow complies with the TCFD disclosure recommendations fully within this Report and mare comprehensively in our Climate
Risk and Resilience Report, see table below for information regarding these disclosures. Our Climate Risk and Resilience report
can be found at www.tullowoil.com/sustainability.

TCFD disclosures

Governance  Describe the Board s oversight of camate-related risks and apporlumities Page 26-h7
Describe the Management's role in assessing and managing climate-related risks and opportunities Page 57
Strategy Describe the ciimate-related risks and opportunilies the orgarisation has ident.fied avar the short, medium and leng term Risks - Page 38

Opportunities - Page 4-5

Describe the impact of cumate-re.ated nisks and cpportunities on the orgamsation’s businesses, strategy and inancia, planning Page 23
IPage 146 {Note 24)

Describe the resiience of the orgamsation’s strategy, taking into consideration different clirmate-related scenarios, PPage 23

nc.uding a 2°C o1 .ower scenario, Page 146 [Note 24]
Risk Describe the argamsation’s processes foridentifying and assessing climate-re.ated risks. Page 36-38, 40
management

Describe the orgamsation’s processes for managing climate-re.ated risks Page 36-38, 40

Describe how processes ‘or identifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks are integrated into Lhe argarisation’s Page 36-38. 40

cveral. risk management

Metrics and Disclose the metrics used by the arganisation to assess chimate-related risks and opoartunities, in Uine w.thits straveqy and OCF - IPage 23
largets risk management process Emissions —Page 31-32
Disciose Scope §. Scope 2 and, «f appropriate, Scope 3 greenhouse gas [GHG] emissions, and the re.ated risks. Page 31-32
Describe the targets used by the orgamisatien to manage camnate-re.ated risks, opportunitizs, and performances against targets Page 14-15, 76, 82

Tullow Oil plc 2021 Annual Kepart and Accounls 23



Finance review

2021 financial results

Financial summary 2021 2020 2021 2020 .
Working interest production volume Profit and Loss
(boepa] 59,200 74,900 Revenue ($m) 1,273 1,394
Sales valume (boepd] 55,450 74,600 Underlift/ Qverlift income/
Realised ofl price {$/bbt) 62.7 509 | lexpensel ($ml 20 (161]
Total revenue [($m) 1,273 1,396 Balance t'?heet .
A - T Ynderlift {$m) 27 20 !
3
Gross profit [$m] ‘ 834 40 Overtft ($m] " 4]
Underlying cash operating costs
Eﬂi@g@)——_yg——””&tyﬂ Underlying cash operating costs, depreciation, impairments,
Exploration costs written off {$m) 60 987 write-offs and administrative expenses
Impairment of property, plant and Underlying cash operafing costs amounted to $26% miliion;
equipment, net ($m) 54 251 $12 4fpboe (2020: $332 mittion: $12.1/boe). The reduction in
*—ﬁf—f—f‘—‘—ﬁ—ﬁ'—ﬁk**ﬁ‘—ﬁm— operating costs 13 mainly driven by the disposal of Equatonial
mwﬂg_h,ﬂf";ﬁ Guinea in 2027 ($23 mullion) and decrease in Facilities O&M
Profit/[Loss] before tax [$m) 203 [1,273] | costsin Ghana {§47 million], offset by an increase in Gabon
{oss after tax (%m)] T (81} 11.227} mainly dug to the costs r(_elatmg to the Simba well which came
— onstream in 2021 ($12 million).
Basic loss per share [cents) (5.7) (86.6) . '
P —— - | Cash operating costs excluding COVID-17 operating
Capite! investment ($m)’ 263 288 procedures and shuttle tanker operations in Ghana were
Adjusted EBITOAX ($m]! L 804 $12.1/bae (2020. $11.8/bae].
Nel debt [$m])! o 2,131 2,376 Depreciation, depletion and arnortisation (DD&A] charges
Gearing ltimes)’ 22 30 on production and development assels amounted to
— ——————————— —————————= | $341 mitlion; $16.7/boe 12020: $446 million, $16.3/boe).
E@miﬁﬁﬂﬁ 432 This increase in BD&A per barrel is mainly attributable
Underlying operating cash flow [$m] 711 598 to a downward revisian of TEN 2P reserves.
Pre-financing cash flow i($m)’ 529 625 Administrative expenses of $64 million [2020: $87 million] have

1 Alternative pertarmance measures are explained and reconciled an pages
161 16 162

Production and commodity prices

Group working interest production averaged 5% 200 boepd,

a decrease of 21% for the year (2020: 74,900 boepd]. The
decrease in preduchon primarity resutted frorn the sale of
Tuliow's interests in Eguatorial Guinea and the Dussafu Marin
Permit in Gabon in 1H21, and lower than expected production
from the TEN fields.

The Group's realised oil price aiter hedging for the period
was $62.7/bbl and before hedging $70.3/bbl. 12020: $50.9/bbi
and $42.9/bb\ respectivety). There has been a strong recovery
in ait markets which has ted to higher reabised prices partially
affset by hedge losses, decreasing total revenue by

$153 million (2020; increased revenue by $219 millianl.

|

decreased against the comparative period. In February 2020,
Tullow concluded its Business Review, which included a review
of the Group's organisation structure and resources and
resulted in a significant headcount reduction, Furthermore,
the Graup has fecused on reducing nan-payroll G&A costs
including outsourced information systems expenses,
professional fees and office rent. However, this is partially
offset by the adverse GBP:USD FX varance in 2021. During
2027, Tullow met its $125 mullion cost savings target by
delivering $127 mullion in cash savings and is expected to
deliver in excess of this in 2027 and beyond.

The Group recogmised a net impairment charge on producing
assets of $54 million in respect of 2021 (2020: $251 mullionl.
Impatrments primanly related to the TEN fields following
reduced 2P reserves and higher capital expenditure offset

by higher price assumptions and lower expecled fulure
decammissioning costs. The TEN fields impairment was
offset by impairment reversals on the non-operated frelds
associated with increased 2P reserves and higher

| price assumptions,
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Impairment of property, plant

At 31 December 2021, the Group's derivative instruments had
a net negative fair value of $180 million (2020: net positive

and equipment [PP&E) 2021 2020 $2 million)
Pre-tax impairmeant of PP&E, Bought Bought
net ($m) 54 251 2021 hedge position bopd pul [floor]  Sold ca.. call
Associated deferred tax credit ($m] (21) (68) | Collars 39,000 $48.12 $44.47 -
Post-tax impairment of PF&E, Three-way collars
net {$m] 33 183 [call spread] 1,000 $50.00 %7280 $82.80
The total exploration cost wnitten off for the year ended Totalfweighted average 40000 $4877 $66.63 %8280
31 December 2021 was $60 million (2020- $987 million], -
predominantly driven by the write-off of the GVN-1 well Hedge position
costs and licence costs of Blocks 47 and 34 in Suriname. The at 31 December 2021 il ak i
remaining write-otts comprise of licence level costs associated | Hedged volume (kbopd)] 42,500 33,100 11,300
with Peru, Cornoros, Céte d'lvoire and Namibia due to no Weighted average bough put
planned activity and ticence exits. This is partially offset by a (floor) [$/bbl) $51/6bl  $55/bbl  $55/bbl
release of an indirect tax provision following settlerment in Weiahted d call
Uganda relating to its d Lin 2020, eighted average sold ca

ganda relating to its disposal In 1%/6bl) $78/bbl  $75/bbl  $75/bbl

Exploration costs written off 2021 2020

Exploration cost written off ($m] 50 987

Asset disposals

In March 2021, the Group completed the sale of its assets

in Equatorial Guinea with a cash consideration received of
$88.9 million. This transaction included contingent future
payments of up to $16.0 million which are linked to asset
performance and oil price. As per the SPA, a further $5.0 mitlion
of additional consideration was also received on comptetion
of the sale of the Dussafu Marin Permit in Gabon.

In June 2021, the Group cormpleted the asset sale of the
Dussafu Marm Permit in Gabon with a cash consideration
receivad of $37.0 million. This transaction included contingent
future payments of up to $24.0 million which are linked to
asset performance and ail price.

Tullow received $75 mulbion [net of $7 million indemnity
provision relating to tax audits] from Total following 2 Final
Investment Decision [FID] for the Lake Albert Development
in Uganda on 16 February 2022.

Derivative financial instruments

Tullow continues to undertake hedging activittes as part of the
ongoing management of its business risk to protect against
commodity price volatility and to ensure the availability of
cash flow for re-investment in capital programmes that are
driving business delivery.

At 31 December 2021, Tullow's hedge portfolio provides
downside protection for 75% of forecast production entitlements
through to May 2023 and 50% for & further 12 months to May 2024.
Since completion of the comprehensive debt refinancing in May
where increased hedges for May 2021 to May 2024 (75%, 75%,
50%) were a requirement, new hedges have been placed with
$55/bbl floors and weighted average sold calls of ¢.$76/bbl for
the period January 2022 to May 2024. The strong recovery in oil
prices allowed the Group to secure sold calls above $95/bbl by
the end of the hedging programme implementation.

AlL of the Group's dervatives are Level 2 (2020: Level 2]. There
were no transfers between fair value levels during the year.

Net financing costs

Net financing costs for the year were $312 million (2020:
$255 mullion). The increase in financing costs during the
period s mainly driven by finance fees, such as legal and
advisor fees related to the assessment of alternative
refinancing options of the extinguished RBL Facility directly
expensed to the income statement ($18 million), as well as
iIncreased average cost of debt following completion of the
refinancing transactions in May 2021, partly offset by the
net gain on early settlerment and derecagnition of the REL
Facility and the 2022 Notes (58 million credit].

Net financing costs include interest incurred on the Group's
debt facilities, foreign exchange gains/losses, the unwinding
of discount on decommissioning provisions, and the net
financing caosts associated with lease assets. These costs are
offset by interest earned on cash deposits. A reconciliation

of net financing costs is included in Note 2.

Taxation

The net tax expense of $283 million (2020: credit of

$57 million] primarily relates to tax charges in respect of
the Group's producticn activities in West Africa, as well as
UK decommissioning assets, reduced by deferred tax credits
associated with exploration write-offs, impairments and
provisions for onerous service contracts.

Based on a profit before tax for the period of $203 mullion
(2620: toss of $1,273 million], the effective tax rate is 139.8%
(2020: 4.1%]. After adjusting for non-recurring amounts related
to restructuring costs, exploration write-offs, disposals,
impairments, provisions for enerous service contracts and
their associated deferred tax benefit, the Group’s adjusted
effective tax rate 15 117.0% (2020: 35.6%)]. The adjusted effective
tax rate has increased primarily due to there being no UK tax
benefit from net interest and hedging expenses of $417 million,
compared to net profits of $16 million arising on hedging gain
and net interest in 2020. Non-deductible expenditure in Ghana,
the change in rnix of taxable and non-taxable prefits in Gabon,
prior year adjustments and taxes on uncerlain tax treatments
are additional contributing factors.
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Finance review continued

Taxation continued

The Graup's future statutory effective tax rate is sensitive to
the geographic mix in which pre-tax profits and exploration
costs written off arise. Unsuccessful exploration is often
incurred in jurisdictions where the Group has no taxable
profits such that no related tax benefit results. Consequently,
the Group's tax charge will continue to vary according to the
jurisdictions in which pre-tax profits and exploration costs
write-offs occur.

Analysis of effective tax rate Hoy lexpenseyl  Evactive tax
($ml) befare tax credit rate
Ghana FY 2027 4509 1163.3) 36.2%
FY 2020 0.4 0.6 [(139.21%
Gabon Fy 2021 178.3 {88.5) 49.6%
FY 2020 461 (34.6) 75.2%
Equatorial Guinea Fy 2021 15.5 [5.4] 35.0%
FY 2020 18.6 0.8 (4.1)%
Corporate Fy 2021 (386.00 (41.8]  [108%
FY 2020 (25.8] 8.1 31.3%

Other non-operated

and exploration FY 2021 {0.4] (3.6) (1,033.9)%

FY 2020 (20.1) 40 1200)%
Total FY 2021 258.4  (302.7) 117.1%
FY 2020 59.4  [21.1) 35.4%

Loss after tax from continuing activities and loss per share
The loss for the year from continuing activities amounted to
%871 million [2020: $1,222 million loss). Basic loss per share
was 5 7 cents [2020: 86.6 cents loss per sharel.

Reconciliation of net debt $m
Year end 2020 net debt 2.375.4
Sales revenue (1,273.2]
Operating costs 268.7
Other operating and administrative 2xpenses 10%.2
Cash flow from operations (895.3)
Mavement in working capital 523
Tax pad 26.1

Purchases of intangible exploration and evaluation

assets and property, plant and equiprnent 236.5
Other investing activities (134.8)
bther financing activities 447 4

Foreign exchange loss on cash (6.9]
Year end 2021 net debt 2,130.9

Capital investment

Capital expenditure amounted to $263 miliion [2020: $288 millian)
with $205 million invested in production and development
activities and $58 million invested in exploration and
appraisal activities.
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Tullow will continue to maintain capital discipline primarily
directing investment towards maximising value from the Group’s
producing assets. The Group's 2022 capital expenditure is
expected to total c.$350 million and comprises Ghana

capex of ¢.$270 mitlion, West Africa non-operated capex

of ¢.$30 million, Kenya capex of ¢.$5 million, and exploration
spend of ¢. $45 million.

Borrowings

On 17 May 2021, the Group completed a comprehensive
refinancing of its debt with the issuance of five-year $1.8 billion
Senior Secured Notes (2026 Notes) and a new undrawn

$500 million Super Senior Revalving Credit Facility [SSRCF)
which will be primarily used for working capital purposes.

The 2026 Notes have been used to (il repay all amounts
outstanding under, and cancel all commitments made
available pursuant to, the Group’s RBL Facility, (i) redeem in
full the Group’s senior notes due 2022, (iii) repay in full and
cancel the Group's convertible bonds and (iv) pay fees and
expenses incurred in connection with the transactions.

The 2026 Notes, maturing in May 2026, require an annual
prepayment of $100 million of the outstanding principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest with the balance
due on maturity.

The Senior Notes due 2025 15 payable in a single payment in
March 2025.

The Revolving Credit Facility, maturing in December 2024,
comprises (1} a $500 million revolving credit facility and {ii)
a $100 million letter of credit facility.

The 2024 Notes and the SSRCF are senior secured obligations
of Tullow it Plc and are guaranteed by certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

Credit ratings
Tullow maintains corporate credit ratings with Standard & Poor's
(S&P's] and Moody's Investors Service (Maody's).

On 5 February 2021, S&P's placed Tullow's CCC+ corporate
credit rating and CCC+ ratings for bonds maturing in 2022
and 2025 on negative credit watch to reflect the uncertainty
associated with ongoing debt refinancing discussions at the
time. On 18 May 2021, S&P's upgraded Tullow's corporate
credit rating ta B-, remaved the rating from negative credit
watch and revised the outlook to stable. At the same time
S&P’s assigned a B- rating to the $1.8 billion 2026 Nates
and confirmed the CCC+ rating of the $800 million Senior
Notes maturing in 2025.

On 29 April 2021, Moody's assigned and placed under review
for upgrade a B3 rating to the $1.8 billion 2026 Notes, and at
the same time placed Tutlow's Caal corporate credit rating
under review for upgrade. Moody's confirmed their Caa?
ratings of the Seniar Notes maturing in 2022 and 2025

On Z9 October 2021, Moody's upgraded Tullow's corporate
credit rating to B3 with stable outlook from Caal under review
for upgrada, and at the same time upgraded its rating of the
$1.8 billien Senior Secured Notes to B2 with stable outlook
frorn B3 under review for upgrade. Moody's also affirmed their
Caa?Z rating of the Senior Notes maturing in 2025,



Ligquidity risk management and going concern

Assessment period and assumptions

The Directors consider the going concern assessment period
to be up to 31 March 2023. The Group closely monitors and
manages its liguidity headroom. Cash forecasts are regularly
produced and sensitivities run for different scenarios including,
but not limited to, changes in commodity prices, different
production rates from the Group's producing assets and
different outcomes on ongoing disputes or litigation.
Management has applied the following oil price assumptions
for the going concern assessment:

- Base Case: $76/bbl for 2022, $71/bbl for 2023.
- Low Case: $40/bhl for 2022, $6U/bbl far 2023.

- The Low Case includes, in addtion to lower oil price
assumptions, a 5% production decrease and 12% increased
apex compared to the Base Case aswell as increased
outflows associated with an ongoing disputes.

On 17 May 2021, the Group announced the completion of its
offering of $1.8 billion 2026 Nuotes. The net proceeds, together
with cash on balance sheet, have been used to [i) repay all
amounts outstanding under, and cancel all commitments
made available pursuant to, the Company's RBL Facility,

i) redeem ir full the Company's senior notes due 2022, (i) at
maturity, repay in full and cancel the Company’s convertible
bonds due 2021 and [iv] pay fees and expenses incurred in
connection with the transactions. The Group also entered into
a $500 million Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility (SSRCF)
which 1s undrawn and will be primarily used for working
capital purposes. The 2024 Senior Notes and the SSRCF do
not have any maintenance covenants (disclosure of key
covenants and the determination of availlability under the
SSRCF are provided in note 18). Following completion of these
transactions the Directors have concluded that the matenal
uncertainties noted in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts,
assaciated with implementing a Refinancing Proposal and
obtaining amendments ar wawers in respect of covenant
breaches or, in the event a Refinancing Proposal is
implemented, the revised cevenants are subsequently
breached, no longer exist.

The Group had $0.9 billion Liquidity headroom of unutilised
debt capacity and non restrictive cash as at 31 December 2021.
The Group's forecasts show that the Group will be able to
operate within its current debt facilities and have sufficient
financial headroom for the going concern assessment peried
under its Base Case and Low Case. These forecasts show full
availlabibity of the $500 million SSRCF, which under the

Basc Casc remains undrawn. Furthermore management

has performed a reverse stress test and the average oil price
throughout the going concern pericd reguired to reduce
headreom to zero during the assessment period is $39/bbl.
Based on the analysis above, the Directors have a reasanable
expectation that the Company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they have adopted the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the year end results.

Events since 31 December 2021

Adjusting events

On 15 February 2022 a panel of arbitrators, working under
the jurisdiction of Norwegian law, delivered an award in favour
of HiTec Vision {HiTec] in relation to its dispute with Tullow
[Awardl. The panel had been asked to adjudicate as to
whether discoveries made in the PL-337 Licence [Offshore
Norway) between 2013 and 2016 had triggered a further
payment under the SPA between Tuilow and HiTec regarding
the purchase of Spring Energy in 2013. With the Award, the
panel has decided by way of split decision that conditions for
a further payment outlined in the SPA were met. The Tribunal
ruled that Tullow should pay $76 million. This amount also
includes interest and costs This has been recognised in the
balance sheet as a liability as at 31 December 2021.

Non-adjusting events

FID for the Tilenga Project in Uganda and the East African
Crude Qil Pipeline [EACOP] as reported by Total Energies Lid on
1 February 2022 triggered a contingent consideration payment of
$75 million [net of $7 million indemnity provision relating to tax
audits] in relation to Tullow's sale of its assets in Uganda to Total
in 2020 which was received on 16 February 2022. This was
recognised as a current receivable as at 31 December 2021.

There have nat been any other events since 31 Decernber 2021
that have resulted in a material impact on the year end results.
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Sustainability

Sustainability as a key
to a better future

Tullow's purpose 1s to build a better future through
responsible oil and gas development. Through our activities,
we help address globat energy demand in a safe, cost-efficient
and environmentally and socially responsible way. We form
close relationships and partnerships in our host countries in
Africa and South America and our aclivities generate significant
economic and sgaial value, advancing national development
priorities, creating local business and investment opportunities
and helping to build local skills and capabilities.

Sustainability 1s embedded across the business through the
implementation of our strategy, management standards,
governance and audits. Qur approach considers the

Safe Operations Shared Prosperity

Material topics
- Employee health
and safety

Materiat topics
- Local content

and capacity
- Process safety - Community development

- Emergency response - Social investment

Read mare 29 Read maore 30

Tullow supports the following standards and partnerships:
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expectations of our key stakeholder groups, including our host
governments and communities, colleagues, shareholders and
the financial rarkets and suppliers, as well as important
topics for the sector defined by the International Petroleum
Industry Environmental Gonservation Association [IPIECA]
and at a global level by the UN in the form of the Sustainable
Development Goals [SDGs). Our sustainability framework
comprises of four pillars which combine the inputs and
expectations of all these groups. The material topics

which reflect our most important social and environmental
impacts were reviewed and approved by our Semor
Leadership Team in 2021.

Environmental
Stewardship

Eguality and
Transparency

Material topics
- Climate change

Material topics
- Compliance

- Biodiversity - Anti-corruption
- Spills - Human rights
- Waste - Inclusian and diversity

- Taxtransparency

Fead mare 31 and 32 Read more 33,34 and 35




Safe Operations

2021 highlights

- 75% reduction in total recordable injuries compared
o 2020

- 55% reduction in High Potential Incidents compared
to 7070

- Zero Tier 1 and zero Tier 2 Loss of Primary Containment
(LOFC] releases

- Three years of operations without a Lost Time Injury
at our Jubilee FP50 Kwame Nkrumah

- All operational workforce trained in Process Safety
Fundamentals

- Seven wellness programmae events attended per
employee, an average

Tullow 1s committed to the highest standards of health and
safety and we strive every day to maintain a positive safety
culture across our business. We work hand in hand with our
cantractors to ensure compliance with laws and regulations
governing safe working.

Occupational health and safety

In 2021, we stepped up our safety training programmes to
reinforce our culture of safe working and further embed safe
working practices in line with our safety management system
and International Asscciation of Qil and Gas Producers (I10GF]
Life Saving Rules implemeantation. Our focus was on renewed
safety leadership across all parts of the business with the
personal involvernent of Tullow leaders, including site visits to
our operations in Ghana by our CEQ, Rahul Dhir. Overall, we
saw 2 marked improvement in safety performance in 2021,
reversing a concerning dip in performance in 2020

Safety performance 2021 2020 2me
Lost Time Injuries 0.21 0.32 0.09
Frequency (LTIF)

Total Recordable Injuries 0.43 1.27 0.96
Frequency [TRIF] _

High Potential Incident 1.06 1.74 1.39
Frequency [HiPoF]

Workforce fatalities 0 0 0

Process safety

In 2021, we maintained a strong level of Process Safety
performance with zero Tier 1 and zero Tier 2 Process
Safety Events [PSE] related lo Loss of Primary Containment
(LOPC] releases.

Process safety events [PSE] 2021 2020 2019
Tier 1 0 0 1
Tier 2 0 4 3
Total 0 4 4

In 2021, we commenced a Process Safety Fundamentals (PSF]
programme, based on the I0GP PSF framework, throughaout
the organisation. We trained all our operational workfot e,
including our direct employees and contractors, on the P5Fs.
To support the roll-out, we nominated PSF champians at our
sites and held menthly events for deep dives on each of the
PSFs, sharing best practice, discussing further integration
into daily ways of working and ensuring the same high lavel

of understanding and engagement for all our workforce

at all locations.

Asset protection and emergency response

We are committed to maintaining and enhancing our abulity

to respond rapidly to unforeseen events in arder to rmaintain
business continuity and minimise negative impacts on people,
the environment, our physical and intellectual assets, and our
reputation. In 2021, we maintained emergency response
training and exercises involving credible emergency
scenarios. Extensive wetl capping, containment and oil spill
response training was conducted and followed by a major
exercise to test all parts of our response capability.

COVID-19 response and wellness programme

During 2027, we continued to operate in accordance with
relevant regulations and guidance relating to COVID-19 safety
measures to keep our colleagues, contractors and visitors
safe. Office-based colleagues warked from home during
intermittent closures, and we provided support to help them
deal with the challenges and higher stress levels that
characterised this period. We also assisted colleagues and
contractors who were away from home for extended periods
of time due to travel restrictions and quarantining rules.

We supported access to COVID-19 vaccines and strangly
encouraged our teams to be vaccinated. Additionally, our
wellness programme continued throughout 2021, offering

a range of talks and activities with expert speakers and
instructors, placing emphasis on assisting colleagues
navigate the challenges of the COVID-19 pandemic. We held
our annual global Wellness Fortnight in November 2027,
bringing the entire company together to participate in multiple
health and wellness activities. The 2021 wellness programme
attendee count was more than Z,500 throughout the year
which is on average seven different actyvities per employee.
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Sustainability continued

Shared Prosperity

2021 hightights

- $207 million local supplier spend in 2021, bringing total
five-year local spend to $1.2 billion

- Launch of Flat Confidence, first 100% Ghanaian owned,
crewed and flagged vessel contracted to support
offshore operations in Ghana

- QOver 700 loans warth $267,000 granted to Ghanalan
fishing sector businesses alongside business training
and development support

- Over 700 local suppliers trained on Industry best practice
with the Petroleurn Cormnussion/ Tullow Business
Academy in Ghana

- Over 7,800 students across Ghana, Kenya, Guyana and
Suriname benefitted from our range of inttiatives
supporting access to educational programmes and
schoobing facilities

Shared Prosperity 15 a core pillar of our Sustainability
Framework. Tullow 1s commitied lo investing in {1 tocal
content and creating conditions to enable local companies
to participate in our supply chain; (2] education and skills
development to enhance employability; (3] enterprise
development including supporting agricultursl livelihoods

to increase local entrepreneurship; and [4) mitigating
environmental and social impacts. We engage thoughtfully
and consistently to understand how our operations contnbute
to broader governmental aims and affect local communities
wherever we gperate. In 2027, for example, Tullow consulted
with 115 communities around our Jubilee and TEN operations,
including over 5,000 beneficiaries of cur social investment
activities 1o review impact mitngation imtiatives and social
investment programmes. In Kenya, we engaged with the
National Environmental Management Authority to reach an
agreement on waste management consolidation and started
new project disclosure and consultations on the Midstream,
Upstrearn and Water pipeline Environmental and Sociat
Irnpact Assessment.

Education and skills development

In 20217, Tullow advanced continuing and new initiatives to
encourage mere young people to gain education in STEM

and broaden their career cptions. in Ghana, we completed
construction of accormmaodation blocks at three schools for
mare than 1,100 pupils which will improve access to education
and attendance, as part of our five-year $10 milbon commitment
to senior high school infrastructure. In partnership with Youth
Bridge Foundation, the Tullow STEM Radio School continued
to broadcast STEM lessons to over 1,300 high school pupils
across Ghana. Additionatly, with Tullow's support, Youth
Bridge healped prepare aver 1,400 final year junior high schoaol
pupils for the 2021 Basic Education Certificate Examination.
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in Guyana, we continued to support STEM Guyana, to launch
a Virtuatl Academy programme, rolling out 20 learning pods
to enable continuity of education during the pandemic for
vulnerable childrer, reaching 500 pupils with almost 80% of
themn gaining positive results in national assessments and
advancing to the country’s leading secondary schools to
continue their studies.

Contributing to enterprise development

The Fishermen’s Anchor Project is a micro credit scheme
funded by Tullow Ghana and JV Partners and administered

by Oppoertunities Industriatization Center International.

The Project aims to provide critical financial support to
existing and new businesses in the fishing sector to boost
econemic activity in coastal districts aver a five-year period.
To date aver 700 loans to a value of $267,000 have been
granted to fish processing and fishing/agriculture businesses;
over 90% of these busmesses are owned by women. In addition
over 380 individuals received training and 280 individuals
receivad business development support,

Optimising local content

As a large operator in our host countries, we leverage our
spending power to beneht local businesses and their
participation in regonal and national economies. Tullow
Ghana's lacal supplier spend in 2021 was $204 million,

which constitutes 99% of Tullow's overall local supplier spend.

This year, we adopted a refreshed strategy with the principal
goal of increasing contract awards and spend with indigenous
Ghanatan companies. We made progress through supporting
the Ghana Petroleum Commission to launch the Business
Academy Fartnership to help meet the training and
development needs of local suppliers. During 2021, the
Academy delivered five training warkshaps to mare than

700 local supplters and other participants. Additionally,
Tullow supported finance training and rmentering programrmes
through Invest in Africa and Accenture in Ghana which
benefitted hundreds of current and potential suppliers.

Alsoin 2021, Tullow took delivery of the Flat Confidence
vessel, the first Ghanaian-owned, Ghanaian-flagged and
Ghanaian-crewed marine vessel 1o support offshore activities
in the oil and gas industry in Ghana. The Flat Confidence

was acquired by Flat C Marine Offshore Lirmited following a
long-term contract awarded by Tullow Ghana. This enabled
Flat C Marine Offshore Lirmited to raise financing to procure
the vessel which is now active in the Jubilee and TEN fields.
The completion of the Flat Confidence vessel reflects Tullow's
commitment to investing in capability growth in the Ghanaian
marine sectors. In late 2027, Tullow Ghana awarded a second
contract te another supplier to deliver a similar vessel in

the next 12-18 months.



Environmental Stewardship

2021 highlights

- InMarch 2021 Tullow setits goal to achieve Net Zera by
2030 (Scope 1 & 2 net equity emissions)

- Discussions with Ghana Forestry Commission and Terra
Global to identify offset projects that support Ghana's
Reduced Emissions from Deferestation and forest
Degradation (REDD+) strategy and support delivery of
Tullow's Net Zero commitment

- Over 65% reduction in emissions fram non-roufine flaring
associated with unplanned outages

- 88% reduction in water consumpticn per tonne of
hydrocarben produced

- 74% reduction in hazardous waste generation in our
Ghana operations

- B2% reduction in Scope 7 emissions over the last four years

- Appointment of Terra Global to support carbon
offsetting work

Tullow supports the goals of the Paris Agreement of 2015 to
hold the increase in the global average temperature to well
below 2°C and pursue efforts to limit the temperature
increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. Tullow has
committed to becoming a Net Zero Company by 2030 on our
Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions an a net equity basis through a
combination of decarbonising our operated and non-operated
assets and identifying nature-based solutions to affset our
hard tc abate emissions. Additionally, we are priorifising
decarbonisation of our operations with a target to reduce
emissions across our pertfolio by at least 40% by 2025 on

a net equity basis against a 2020 baseline. In creating our
pathway to Net Zero, the primary focus will be on our
operations in Ghana, where we have the greatest ability

to influence the decarborisation efforts,

Tullow’'s Net Zero pathway
Supported by our internal Net Zero Task Force and approved
by our Board of Directors and Senior Leadership Team, we

have defined a clear pathway to achieving our Net Zero target.

2030 Net Zero Pathway [Scope 1 & 2]

Oparated

[c.75%]" )
Jobileeard RN
deco-borization
[N

droa bsuea o

el e

Nature-based
affsets to
mitigate
residual
emissions

prooets

Non-cperated
[c.25%]

- 2025 = 2030

T Netequity basis

This comprises two main initiatives, in addition to cngoing
carbon efficiency projects throughout our operations,
as follows:

- Decarbonisation initiatives: through the elimination of
routine flaring of gas from our Jubilee and TEN fields
by 2025, we will reduce GHG emissions by at least 40%
lrom a 2020 baseline. The majority of spend linked to these
decarbomisation initiatives will be expended before 2025.

- Nature-based carbon offsets: by investing in verified
nature-based carbon offset projects imitially in Ghana,
we will offset hard to abate GHG emissions. Fartnering
with Terra Global allows Tullow to mitigate exposure to
medium to tong-tarm changes in nffset cnsts,

Decarbonisation initiatives

Our effort to progress tawards our goal of eliminating rautine
flaring by 2025 is on course to be delivered. Implementation of
the changes necessary to eliminate routine flaring for our Ghana
assets requires the shutdown of operations at each site to
allow for switching out core equipment and other upgrades.
Routine flaring elimination and flare reduction rates on the
Jubilee FPS0O will be achieved through re-motoring and
re-wheeling of high-pressure compressars alongside an
expansion of gas compression and processing capacity, and
higher produced water treatment capacity. The compressor
upgrade and capacity expansion are scheduled to be
completed during 2023. On the TEN FPS0, routine flaring
elimination will be achieved through gas flow maodification to
allow low-pressure gas to be processed without the need for
flaring. Work on this initiative will start in early 2022 and will
be completed during a planned maintenance shutdown in
2023. We are also working with the operators of our non-
operated assets to 1dentify decarboenisation initiatives and
have already reduced routine flaring on some assets in our

| Gabon pertfolio. In 2027 we have budgeted a study to re-route

gas from Simba to Tchatamba for powar generation and If
sanctioned this will allow to reduce flaring at the Simba field.

Nature-based carbon offsets

We plan to address our residual, hard to abate emissions
through the implementation of a diversified portfolic of
nature-based carbon offset projects, initially in Ghana. This
year we appainted Terra Global, a global leader in sustainable
forest and agriculture programme development, to advise an
the selection of suitable projects for financing and implementation
that will be independeantly verified and assured under leading
third-party carbon standards. Terra Glebal will assist with the
identification of potential initiatives that support Ghana's
REDD+ strategy, other natural resource management and
rural development poticies. Through discussions with Terra
Global and the Ghana Forestry Commission we target to
deliver, by 2030, a portfolic of projects that will generate
credits to offset emissions of 600,000 tCOe annually.

Climate risk and resilience reporting

Our detailed plans for achieving Net Zero and manaaging
climate risks for our business are laid out in our second
annual Climate Risk and Resilience Report, prepared in line
with the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD) recommendations, which can be found at
www.tullowail.com/sustainability.
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Sustainability continued

Environmental Stewardship
continued

Carbon efficiencies in 2021

We continue to drive carbon efficiencies through our
operations, resulting in a reduction 1n Scope 2 greenhouse
gas emissions over the past four years [530 (COe in 2021,
compared to 2,994 tC0.e in 2018). Our main office in the UK
utilises 100% renewable wind energy, which has eliminated
our Scape 2 emissrons in the UK, Further reductions in total
Scope 1 and 2 emissions will be realised with the
implementation of our pathway to Net Zero by 2030 as
described on page 31, However, as a result of aur continued
need to flare, our emissions intensity relative to production
grew from 2% kg CO,e/boe in 2020 to 35 kg CO,e/hoe this year.
We are cammitted to transparent disclosures of our emissions
on both an operated and net equity basis, and are continuing

to report Scope 3 emissions frorm our non-operated portfolio,
We recognise that Scope 3 emissions often represent & large
component of an organisation’s GHG emissions, and are
continuausly working to better understand the emissions within
our value chain and expand ocur disclosure accordingly.

Tetal air emissions;

thousand tco e 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
] Group Scope 1 2,234 2040 1,072 1,046 1,424
Group Scope 2 0.5 1.28 149 300 293
Total Group 72,235 2,041 1,074 1,049 1,4277
Group emissions
ntensity kg COefboa 35 29 - - -
Group energyuse 2,968 2682 2862 2707 2,232
(Gwh]
UK air emissions: )
thousand tC0,e 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
UK Scope 1 _ 0.11 027 024 - -
UKScope2 0 057 071 -
UK energy use |[GWh] 1.7 3.6 4.0 - -

1 GHG Data 15 fram controlled operations and the cawu.ation methodo.ogy
can be found in the Basis of Reporting and GHG Calcu.ation Methodo.ogy
documents al www.lu..owall com/sustaimability

2 Integrated Reparting & Assurance Services [IRAS] has provided irdependent
gssUrance over Scope 1 and 2 emissions.

Details of our Scope 1, 2 and 3 greenhouse gas emissions
for the years 2017-2021 on both an operated and net equity
basis can be found in our Sustainamilty Perfarmance

Data workbook at www.tullowoil.corn/sustainability.

32 Tutllow Oil ple 2021 Annual Repart and Azcounts

Water efficiency and waste management

Over the past year, we have reduced our total water consumption
by 88% on a per tonne of hydrocarbon produced basis, due to
continucus efficiency measures in our operations. More than
68% of our water withdrawal is seawater and we withdraw
zero water from fresh water sources, Overall, our waste
generation on a per tonne basis has remained stable at
modest levels over the past five years. More than 83% of

our waste is recycled, reused or treated and tess than 11%

is landfilled.

Biodiversity

Tullow strives to minimise negative iImpacts on biodiversity at
the planning, exploration, development and decormnmissioning
phases of our activities. In 2021, we continued to progress
decommissioning activities in Mauritania following cessation
of activity in non-operated areas in 2014, and in the United
Kingdom, following cessation of production in 2078.

We also make efforts to protect biodiversity through
restoration initiatives. In 2021, Tullow began a collaboration
with the National Agricultural Research and Extension
Institute INAREI] in Guyana to support the restoration of
mangroves which are endangered by human activities.
Mangraves play an important rote in carbon sequestration
while supporting coastline safety for Guyana's coastal
communities. Tullow's collaboration supparts the planting
of spartina grass sprouts to rehabilitate the area and the
planting of lacally grown black mangrove seedlings.

The first phase of this mangrove restoration programme
was completed in 2021 along 0.5 km of coastline and the
second phase will progress in 2022.



Equality and Transparency

2021 highlights

- %445 mitlion total sacio-economic contribution in our host
countries, bringing total five-year socio-econamic
cantribution to $2.9 billion

- $234 million paid to host countries in taxes

- 13 'Speak Up’ cases, of which 3 substantiated or partially
substantiated

- 29% women colleagues overall, with Senior Management
roles held by 10% women (compared to 30% and 18%
respectively in 2020)

- Senior Management roles held by 10% African [compared
to 9% 1n 2020

- Localisation in Ghana at 75% with target to achieve 90%

Socio-economic contribution

Our annual Payments to Governments Report provides details
of all mandatory and voluntary payments. Qur payments to
governments, including payments in kind, amounted to

$234 millian in 2021 [7070: $375% miilion]. Total payments to all
major stakeholder groups including suppliers and communities,
as well as governments, brought our total socio-economic
contribution to $445 million (2020 $542 million). In addition
to payments to governments, this included $207 million

spent with local suppliers, and $4 millien in discretionary
spend on social projects. Qur total payments made to the
Ghanaian Government in 2021 amounted to $172 million
[2020: $180 million].

Ethical conduct, campliance and human rights

Our Cade of Ethical Conduct governs the way we work and
reflects our zero tolerance for bribery, corruption and other
forms of financial crime as well as our position and controls
with regards to human rights, lobbying and advocacy,
prevention of the facilitation of tax evasion, anti-slavery and
data privacy. All individuals and arganisations involved in
Tullow's extended supply chain and operations are
contractually required to meet the standards of our Code of
Ethical Conduct, and we conduct risk-based third-party due
diligence to assess related risks. In 2021, we revised our Code
of Ethical Conduct to include Tullow's refreshed purpose and
values, and developed a new ontine e-learning training course
for all Tullow colleagues. 100% of Tullow colleagues completed
the required annual Code of Ethical Conduct e-learning, and
signed an acknowledgment, a declaration of how they have
upheld the Code of Ethical Conduct through the year.

We urge cur colleagues to "Speak Up’ if they observe
misconduct or behaviour that they believe 1s not in alignment
with our Code of Ethical Conduct. Our independent, external
integrity reporting mechanism [Safecalll is available 24/7 in
several languages. All repaorted cases are reviewed and
investigated by our Ethics & Compliance Team [E&C], with
regular summary updates provided to the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors.

Speaking up cases
Carruat an 7

Suoply chair 8

Treeed 13 speaking up cases

bR Morkriaces Conaact 7

Tullow’s human rights policy 1s aligned with leading
international human rights instruments such as the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights, the UN Guiding Principles on
Business and Human Rights, the Voluntary Principles on
Security and Human Rights [VPSHR] and the ILO Declaration
on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work and related
ILO conventions. For mare information about our
implementation of human rights, please see our Modern
Slavery Act Transparency Statements.

Transparency and disclosure of payments

Transparency regarding payrments to governments Is an
important way to promote honesty in our industry, mitigate
corruphion and support inclusive developrnent. Tullow has
been a corporate supporter/member cf the Extractive
Industries Transgarency Initiative [EITI) since 2011,
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Sustainability continued

Equality and Transparency
continued

Our people
We ended the year 2021 with 353 colleagues, 62% fewer than
five years ago.

Tullow employees 20717-2021

922

410
353

Wiz 23R 219 mnen il

Right-sizing our organisation to support our new business
strategy has been difficult, both for those who left the
organisation and for those who stayed through our
transformation. in all decistons, we took a considered and
equitable approach to restructuring the workiorce, focusing
an retention of skills needed to support ongoing value
creation far all stakeholders, while considering our linked
objectives of diversity and localisation. For those who left
Tullow, we provided enhanced redundancy terms including
extended notice periods wherever possible and supported
colleagues with assistance packages to help them through
the transition.

In 2021, as part of our restructuring processes, we adjusted
our compensation packages to ensure they were market
competitive and introduced a continuous performance
management process to enable the differentiation of
performance and allocation of bonus pay in line with overall
company results. We introduced a new cash Health Plan
which UK colleagues can join and allows them to clarm money
back towards the cost of managing and maintaining everyday
health and wellbeing. In 2021, we also updated our company-
wide Smart Working policy to enable greater flexibility for
working from home, managing work hours and working a
flexible week.
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Employee engagement

Compensation

Salary
Benus
Share Sthemes Benefits
Healthcare
Pensions
Haolday
Allowanres
Culture and Benefits
Our Values / beliefs
Qur reputation
Loadership
Coremunication
Recogrition Employee YBIUE
Proposition
Profassicnal
developmant
Career development
Work eRwronment :I“ rformance
anagement
Challenge
Periarmance Standards
Flexibility

During 2027, we enhanced our offerings and processes to
support our Employee Value Proposttion [(EVP), launched in
2020. We conducted two surveys amongst permanent employees
and an improvernent in average positive scores reflected a
clearer understanding of our purpose and strategy, a greater
sense of stability and an appreciation of intiat EVP imtistives.
Actions are being implermnented to improve the lower scoring
areas as well as to continue ta drive the increased positivity.

Summary Results frem our Employee Value Proposiion Survey in August 2021

Positive Change 'rom

EVP Cutegory responses” March 2027

Culture and Values 54% +10%

Professional development 9% o +2%

7\Nor'ming environmment S 68% o 4%
mle leadership &1% - —4%‘

Total survey 66% +4%

* Respenses were evaluated for positive, neulral and negative rasponses.



Leadership, performance and professional development

in 2021, we embarked upon an orgamzational capability
review process for the 24 senior leaders across our business.
The review will assist us in reinfercing our leadership team
as a key enabler of Tullow's ability to deliver on our purpose
and strategy in the coming years. Additionally, across the
organisation, we placed a specific focus on reinforcing our
culture of continuous improvement and introduced Continuous
Performance Management [CPM], a performance review
process in which 100% of Tullow colleagues participated in
2021. To support development, we relaunched our mentoring
programme with a first cohort of 25 colleagues paired with
senlor leaders to support leadership and other skilis.

Culture, values, inclusion and diversity

We maintain a culture of respect, equality and inclusion

and strive to be a company where everyone feels they belong.
Tullow maintains zero tolerance for ali forms of prejudice
and discrimination in the workplace and we actively foster an
environment in which speaking up is encouraged. At Tullow,
a meaningful commitment te Inclusion and Diversity [1&D)
means addressing all dimensions of diversity both through
our organisational practices and continuous education and
awareness intiatives. In 2021, we held several education and

awareness events that were well attended by Tullow colleagues.

The key themes included: race and equity, unconscious hias,
psychological safety and the meaning of belonging.

Localisation

In 2021, we revised our strategy to help us accelerate
lacalisation in order to reach a new goal of 0% lacalisation

in Ghana. Our naw localisation strategy includes appointing
lacal nationals into more seniar roles and hiring highly skilled
Ghanaian professionals from other sectors with transferable
skills, rather than focusing our search on those from aur
sector. in 2021, we made three appointments of Tullow
colteaguas into senior roles and hired an experienced
Ghanaian from another sector.

% of local nationals employed in Ghana
[includes Tullow colleagues and contractors)

81% 5
5% 79% e%

75%

2017 2618 2019 2C22
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Governance and risk management

We proactively manage risks

At Tullow, we recegnise that effectively managing risks and opportunities is essential
to our long-term success. Our ability to identify, assess and successfully manage
current and emerging risks is critical in ensuring we achieve our strategic objectives

and protect shareholder value.

Risk oversight and governance

A risk focused culture and consistent risk management
framework 1s embedded across atl levels at Tullow and is
driven by the Board. The Board is responsible for overseeing
the risk identification, assessment and mitigation process.

To this end, the Board undertakes a bi-annual assessment of
the risks facing the Company, including those risks that could
threaten our business strategy, operating model, performance,
solvency and liquidity. Emerging risks are discussed by the
Beard and the Senior Leadership Team periodically throughout
the year.

Board

- Overseesidentiication, assesament and
response te principal nsks

- Sets risk appetite

- Manitors e'‘ectiveness of the risk
manageiment process

Enterprise risks

Extended Leadership Team (ELT)

- ldentifies and assesses their respectie
business delivery risks Business
- Ensures eective risk mitigaticn actions delivery risks

are planned

- Monitors e'*ectiveness o risk mitiyatior
and response plans

Principat
risks

The Board is responsible for ensuring Tullow maintains an
effective risk rmanagement and internal cantrol system and
works closely with Tullow's Senior Leadership Team to ensure
this is in place. The Senior Leadership Team is collectively
responsible and accountable for the risk management process
in place across the organisation, with individual members
taking ownership for risks that fail in their business area.

Tutlow recagnises that risk cannot be fully eliminated and that
there are certain risks the Board and/or the Senior Leadership
Team accept when pursuing strategic business cpportunities.
Acceptance of risk is made at an appropriate authority level
and within Tullow’s defined risk appetite and tolerance levels.

Tullow's risk governance framework is illustrated below:

Senior Leadership Team [SLT)

- Sets the tone far an affectve nsk
management culture

- Identifies and assesses principat and
enterprise-wide risks

Maniters effectiveness of risk
rnanagerment aclhicns for those risks and
decides the focus of e'“art

- Decides which risks require period ¢
Beoard review

Business functions

- ldenti‘ies business delivery risks and
Project rases these tc the eadership team
risks - ldanti‘ies and assesses respective

project risks

Top-down/Bettom-up risk management

- Ersures effective nsk mitigation actions
are p.anned and imp.emented

Every layer of the argamsation is responsibe ‘or identiying key risks and
managing them in ane with cur risk appetite [as set by the Board]
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Risk management process

Our nisk management framework takes a 'top-down, bottorn-up’

appreach. It 1s a rigarous method that ensures ownership and
responsibility for identification, assessment and management of
key risks and opportunities, and 1s embedded throughout the
business. The Board sets the context for risk ranagement
through defining the strategic direction and risk appetite for
the crganisation.

Risk management framework

Project risk registers feed into the Enterprise Risk
Management process

Bhana business Non-cperated Kenya business Exploration

risks business risks risks business risks
Legal and People and
Finance risks compliance sustainability
risks risks

ELT led review and oversight

SLT led Principal and Enterprise-wide risk review
and oversight

Board led scrutiny of Principal risks

Principal risks 2021

Risks identification and assessment

Each Business Head and Head of function is responsible, and
accountable, for managing risk and risk mitigation within their
remit. The Extended Leadership Team [ELT] reviews and
reassesses risk on at least a quarterly basis to evaluate the
strength of existing controls and determine whether additional
risk reduction actions are needed to ensure the risk level is
within the risk appetite set by the Board.

Consolidation of business risks

To facilitate assessment of the main risks facing the business,
Tullow's leadership undertakes a bottomn-up review of the key
risks faced by the business. The key risks in each area are
identified by the Business Heads and Heads of Functions,
including mitigating actions and any emerging risks. These
are consolidated upwards into the Business Unit risk registers
and assessed according to their liketihood of occurring, and
the potential consequences to Tullow in terms of safety,
reputational, financial, legal and regulatory impact.

Fram this, the Senior Leadership Team 1dentifies the principal
and enterprise-wide rnsks which can be either a single risk, or
a set of aggregated risks which, taken together, are significant
for Tullow. Members of the Senior Leadership Team have
ownership and accountability for stewardship of each of the
principal and enterprise-wide risks. As a collective, the Senior
Leadership Team reviews and discusses the risks to understand
whether mitigations are being effectively executed within the
agreed tmeframe.

On a bi-annual basis the principal risks and mitigants are
discussed by the Board to pravide top-down’ challenge and
support. The result of this review 1s communicated back down
to the Business Units to facilitate risk awareness and effective
decision making throughout the organisation.

Risk appetite

The Board sets Tullow's risk appetite and acceptable risk
tolerance levels for each of the principal risk categories.

In considering Tullow’s risk appetite, the Board reviews the
risk identification process, the assessment of enterprise level
risks, the existing controls and mitigating actions and the
residual risks. During this process, the Board articulates
which risks Tullow should not tolerate, which should be
managed to an acceptable level and which should be accepted
in order to deliver our husiness strategy.

The risk appetite is reviewed at least annually by the Board
to ensure that it reflects the current external and market
conditions. A revised risk appetite was last reviewed by the
Board in December 2021,

Evolution of Tullow's management of risk

During 2027, Tullow's risk framework has been simplified and
realigned to reflect the revised business structure and reporting
lines. Senior risk owners have bean working to ensure a
greater culture of risk awareness and challenge 1s instilled
throughout the business with an increased focus on mitigating
actions. Further consistency in risk identification, measurement
and reporting has been embedded acrass the arganisatian.
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Governance and risk management continued

Categories of principal risks

Commercial
Cyher Stakehalder
Ethics and Principal risk Climat
. tmate
conduct calegories
Peopls EHS or
sopte security
Financial

Tuliow's risk profile

The Company risk profile has been closely monitored
throughout the year, with consideration given to the risks to
delivering the revised Business Plan, as well as whether
external factors such as the COVID-19 pandemic and oil price
volatibiy have resulted in any new risks or changes to existing
risks. The impact of these factors has been considerad and
managed across all principal risks. The following table
represents the Company's current principal risks.

Failure to deliver production targets (Commercial & Financial risk)

Risk details

Tullow's Business Plan s anchored on production from the Jubilee
and TEN fields in Ghana and non-operated figlds in Céte d'lvoire and
Gabon. A decline, or problems with the performance, of wells or
facitities could result in nat meeting planned production levels which
in turn would lead to a reduction in reverue and cash How ultimately
impairing our ability to reduce leverage.

Risk rmitigations

- Robust control over Operations & Maintenance [O&M] contractor
as well as ongaing O&M transformation project

- Cross discipline integrated performance management including
clear KPls and forums

- Maintenance and integrity management plans covering all
equipment classes

- Managament and oversight of JV Partners to ensure maintenance
and integrity plans are implemented effectively

A failure to grow the business via targeted mnvestment in existing
hields and/or investment in new fields could ultimately irmpact our
ability to meet longer-term production targets

- Juhilee Expansion project, Jubilee South East, North East and TEN
Enharcement Projects

- Exploration strateqy focused on acreage close to existing
infrastructure, to enable discoveries to be converted to
preduction quickly

- Continued investment in non-operated portfolio, including
accelerat:ng projects where possible

- Mergers & Acquisitions (M&A, inorganic growtt with a focus
on producing assets

Inability te secure assaciated gas afftake \n Ghana could lirmit aur
ablity to produce ol and impaclt revenue and value

- Warking with the Gavernment of Ghana la secure tempaorary
f.aming cermit

Werking to secure a long-term gas offtake commercialisation
contract in Ghana as agreed in principle by the Board

- Managing production processes to minimise production of gas
which needs (o be exported from the fields

38 Tutlow Oil plc 2021 Annua. Repart and Accoun's



Risk of a Major EHS incident (EHS or security risk}

Risk detals

A rmajor incident could potentiatly result in asset integnity failures
and/or extensive damage ta facilities. This may in turn lead to a loss
of life, environmental damage and potential for loss of praoduction
land therefore revenuel, increased costs and reputational damage.

Rigk mitrgations

- Risk management processes embedded at all levels of
the arganisation

- Asset and well integrity and maintenance programmes are in
place, including regutar self-verificalion and external certificaticn,
audit and assurance of integrity plans

- Root cause failure analysis processes in place for production
losses and EHS incidents to prevent recurrence and ensure
lessons are learned

- Emergency Response Plans and Incident Management
Framewerk to aid in escalation when incidents do occur

A failure of our colleagues or contractors to meet safety standards
or adhere to procedural requirements could result in operation of
equipment oulside safe operating limits leading to a major EH5 or
operalion incidenl.

- Tiered assurance aclivities ensuring alt criticat processes are
adhered to

- Robust EHS aspects are included at all stages of cortracl
management [from specification/pre-qualification through to
contract closure)

- Active contractor engagement oan safety throughout Life of contract
including EHS forums Lo enable direcl participation

Failure to unlock value (Stakeholder, Commercial & Financial riskl
Risk details

Significant non-associated gas resource has been identified on
current licences and failure to secure gas market share could delay
development of these resources.

Risk mitigations

- Aworksiream has been eslablished to assess commercialisation
oppartumities in Ghana and Lhe region that will enasle
development of the identified resources while playing an
importart role for the industral developmnent of Ghana

Delay in approval of a revised Field Development Plan [FDP) by the
Governmenl of Kenya could impact a final investment decision.

- Arevised FDP has been submitted to the Governmen! of Kenya
for approval in Line with the licence extensicn conditions

- Continued engagement with the Government of Kenya and
regulators lo ensure timely approval of the revised FDP

Failure to secure a strategic partner would impact our ability
lo prcgress the Kenya project o final investment dacision and
unlock value

- The Kenya JV Partners via an ongoing farm-down process are
actively seeking a strategic partner to fund the next stage of
development and unlock value. Discussions are under way with
potential bidders around a range of commercial arrangements

The inability to successlully explore and add accretive upside value
to Tullow's assets through addition of reserves and resources
around producing assets could Limit the return on the licences.

- Close collaboration focused on fully leveraging geoscience
expertise to identify and mature reserves and resources which
have the potentiat tc rapidly unlock value for producing assets

- Thisis reinforced by an Infrastructure-led exploration [ILX]
strategy to strengthen the portfolio, by focusing on opportunities
near producing assets, and create value through integration of
assels, expertise and regional knowledge

The inability to Lm:t our capital exposure to historic exploration
commitments in selective emerging basins of Guyana and Argentma
may result in having to divert capital from producing assets.

- A number of farm-down processes are under way to limit capital
exposure on selective emerging basins by aiming to reduce our
equity share. This will ensure Tullow can participate at an eguity
consistent with our capital allocation guidance
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Governance and risk management continued

Failure to manage geopolitical risks [Stakeholder & Firancial risk)

Risk detais

Political instability in the West Africa region, where aur producing
assets are concentrated, could delay and impact decision making
by host governmen:s and local partners and may also impact
security arrangements.

Risk mitigaticns '

- An extensive relationship managernent planis in place, to actively
manage senior relationships with host governments, including an
Advisory Board in Ghana

- We ensure alignment of our business plans with national priorities
and have developed a cornmunication plan to educate
stakeholders on the positive impact of our activities on host
nations and communities

Unreasaonable fiscal or regulatory demands by host governments
could obstruct efficient operations, delay implementation of our
growth plans and cause increased costs and financial loss.

- We have robust stabilisation clauses in all our Petroteum
Agreemenits and Production Sharing Contracts to protect us
against unreasonable demands

Failure to manage climate change risks [Climate risk}

Risk details

Tullow recognises climate change as @ material risk far
our busingss.

Thaere is a potential for climate related rizks, including regulatory
constrainls, carbon pricing mechanisms, low oil price er conditional
access to capital, to affect Tullow's abitity 1o implement our strategy

Challenges to our business strategy and failure to align with broader
energy transition goals could result in reduced or conditional access
lo capital or shareholder/investor reluclance to invest.

Failure to deliver on our commitment ta eliminate routine flaring by
2025 and Lherehy mitigate the carbon intensity of Tullow's business
may lead to stakeholder confidence erosion and impact our ability to
altract and retain talenl.

Risk rmitigations

- There is recognition and sugport from the Board that
decarbonisation requires investment. We are implementing our
plan to achieve Nel Zero by 2030 (Scope 1 and 2 net equityl,
through reducing our emissions fromn routine flaring and olfsetting
hard to abate ermussions

- We stress test our portfolio to ensure core assets are resilient in
different ol and carbon price environments

- Thereis ongoing engagement with host countries to understand
and align with their long-term energy transition strategies,
including Paris Nationally Determined Conlribulions

Risk of insufficient liquidity and funding capacity to sustain and grow the business / failure to deliver a highly cash generative business

{Financial risk]

Risk details

Tullow remains exgosed to erosion of its halance sheet and revenues
due to oil price valatility, unexpected operaticnal incidents, ongoing
costs associated with the COVID-1% pandemic and failure te deliver
targeted farm downs of exploration assets and Kenya.

Fanlure to deliver our Business Plan could have a material negative
impact on cash flow and our ability to reduce debt and strengthen
the batance sheet, which may affect our ability to meet cur linanciat
abligations when they fall due.

Risk mitigatians

- Business plan in place to deliver strong cash flow
and deleveraging

- Capital structure provides liguidity headroom through to
December 2024 even in a low ail price enviranment

- Disciplined capital allocation prioritising high return and short
payback investments, and a strong focus on cast control

- Matenizl commodity hedging programme protects against the
impact of a sustained low cil price e~vironment

Failure to develop, retain and attract capability [People risk]

Rick details

There 15 a risk that critical staff teave the organ'sation resulting
in diff.culty to deliver aga:rst our business 3lan.

We operate a lean and agile structure and are dependent on
asmal! number of key and criizal ro es. Loss of statt would
Increase pressure ¢n remsaining cotleagues and could lead 1o
deterioration in the wetlbeing of our colleagues, a poor working
environment and, potentially, further attrition.

Risk mitigatians

- A new Employee Value Proposition [EVP) was rolled out in 2021,
covering culture, working environment, remuneration, learning
and development and pertormance management
Employee engagement initiatives are in place, including an
ermployee advisory panel, Tullow Townhalls, coffee mornings
ana ernployee engagement surveys

We have refreshed our Inclusion and Diversity (1&0] policy and
hosted a number of speakers dunng the year, to increase
awareness and reaffirm our focus on 180

Successan plans are in place for critical roles. We have
undertaken a leadership capability review of the extended
leadership team, to ensure a focus on development and ensuring
the right capability 1s 1n the organisation
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Risk of a compliance or regulatory breach (Ethics & Conduct risk)

Risk details

The Company could be exposed to increased nisk of non-compliance
with bribery and corruption legislalion ar contraclual obligations
along with other applicable business conduct regquirernents.

In particular, an unforeseen material compliance breach could

l2ad to regutatory action, an unsettled litigation/dispute o~ additionat
future litigation that may result in unplanned cash outflow, penalty/
fines, reputational damage and a loss of stakeholder canfidence in

Management.

Risk mitigations

- Tullow maintains high ethical standards across the business.
Strong anli-bribery and corruption (ABCI governance processes/
procedures aren place as a core element of the Ethics and
Conduct [E&C) programme

- A mandatory annuat Code of Ethical Conduct elearning and
acknowledgement / certificalion process 15 in place for all
emoployees Third-party due diligence procedures and assurance
processes are in place

- Investigation procedures and an associated Misconduct and Loss
Reporting Standard are in place

- Processes and conlrols are in place to deliver General Dala
Proleclion Regulalion [GDPR] comptiance

- Anti-tax evasion risk assessments are undertaken with clear
mitigation aztions identified, including targeted employee training

Risk of major cyber-attack [Cyber risk)
Risk details

The external cybersecurity threat environment 1s continuously
evolving and intensifying, therefore the risk of a major cyber-attack
is anongo'ng risk that reguires constant monitoring and management.

Tullow may suffer an external cyber-attack which could have far
reaching conseguences for the business. Th's could timit our ability
to operate, impact production, expose the Company to high
ransormware demands or patentially trigger a major incident. This
could resutt in financial loss, loss of stakehalder confidence, loss of
praoducticn, or additional cost by way of fines or resolution of service.

Risk mitigations

- Securily Incident Event Management [SIEM] system in place,
supported by an Advanced Security Operations Centre (SOC)
providing Z4/7 netwark and device manitering, alerting and
response

- Secunly awareness programme In place supported by regular
staff susceptibility phishing training and testing. Annual
mandatory security awareness tramning for all staff

- Anindependent technical assurance programme is in place
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Governance and risk management continued

Lines of defence

First line of defence

Business leadership

[ownership and management of riskl
Own and manage business risks. Implement and execute
controls in business, Monitor risks and control at business
level
Assurance provided Lhrough self-reviews and focused
Assurance reviews,
Projects - implement and execute controls at sile/project
level Monitor risks and controls at site/project level.

Second line of defence
Risk management and compliance functions [oversight
of risk management]
Set the framework and support embedding of effective risk
rnanagement practices.
Provide challenge to leadership on the identification
and management of risk,
Manitar carnpliance with functional standards
[minimum controls].
Provide assurance through periodic reporting and focused
reviews

Third line of defence

Internal Audit lindependent assurance)
Provide independent assurance of respective governance,
internal cantrol systems and controls acrass all levels of
the business.

Assurance provided through risk-based internal
audit reviews,

Nature of assurance

- Assurance activities are put in place across the three
lines of defence to assure that control activities are
effective in mitigating risks to the business. These
specifically facus on areas where there are internal/
external changes, control failures and histanical issues.

- Business leadership is the first Line of defence and is
responsible for ensuring their key risks have been
identifted and that adequate controls are in place to
manage those risks.

- Risk management and compliance functions act as the
second line of deferice, providing support and challenge
to the business in managing risks effectively, and
providing assurance that compliance with functicnal
standards is being met.

- Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence and is
responsible for providing independent assurance
through its risk-based internal audit programme.

The dnternat Audn Pan and outpuls are reviowed by
the Audit Committee. Agreed actions for improving

the control environment and managing risk are owned
by assigned indwviduals and menitered through Tullow's
actions tracking process. The Audit Cornmittee
monitors the implementation of actions.

- Tullow's risk management and assurance processes
provide the Board and the Management Tearn with
reascnable, but not absolute, assurance that our assets
and reputation are protected.

'nternal control

A foundsation of effective governance, risk managerent and
control exists throughout the organisation. The effectiveness
of the internal control framework 15 reviewed through the risk
management procese and challenged as described ahove. In
addition to thus, the Senior Leadership Team and Audit
Committee perform an annual review of the elfectiveness of

internal control. This was last undertaken in March 2022.
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Section 172(1) statement

Statement by thc Dircctors in performance of their statutory
duties in accordance with s172(1) of the Companies Act 2006

The Directors are required by law to act 1n a way that promotes the success of the Company for the benefit of shareholders as a
whole. In sa doing the Company must, in accordance with s172(1)(a-f} of the Companies Act 2006, also have regard to wider
expectations of responsible business behaviour, such as having due regard to the interests of, and actively engaqing with, its
employees; the need to engage and foster business relationships with suppliers, customers and others; the need to act fairly as
between Members of the Company; the Likely consequences of any decision in the long term; the desirability of maintaining a
reputation for high standards of business conduct; and the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the wider
environment. The section below further details on how the Directors have fulfilled their duties.

During the year, the Board was closely involved in all key decisions of the Company. In addition to providing rigorous evalustion,
sk menagernent and chaltenge to maintain strong governance, the Board alsn engaged with stakeholders to inform decisions.
The Board 1s aware that in some situations, stakeholders’ interests will be conflicted, however, the engagement enabled them to
fully understand the key 1ssues relevant to our stakeholders. Further detaits on how the Board considered stakeholders during
the decision making process, and how the stakeholder engagement fed into this process, are set out on the next few pages.

The Board consider, both individually and together, that they have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would be most
likely to premote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders as a whole in the decisions taken throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Decision Approval of 2021 Budget and long-term Business Plan (10 years)}

Contextandlink The Company's long-terrm Business Plan and operating strategy was presented to investors and the wider market at ils

to strategy Capital Ma-kets Day on 25 Novemnber 2020. The long-lerm Business Plan and operating strategy is focused on short-cycle,
high-return epportunities and the substantial polential associated with the Group’s producing assels within its large
resource base.
The lang-term Business Plan reflects a shift in capital allocation frem previous years to focus over 90% of the Group's
capital expenditure over the next 10 years on its West African producing assels. The plan is also focused on generating cash
flow to significantly reduce debt and furt~er strangthen the balance sheet. After cap:tal investment and other costs, the
plan is expected to generate material cash flow in the medium term which the Group would nitiatly aso.y towa-ds reducing
gearing to 1-2x net debt / EBITDAX, while retaining appropriate liquidity

Challenges Im light of disappointing operational and financial perfermance in 2019, the Company carried oul a Business Review,
and outcome involving a thorough reassessmenl of the Group's aperational structure, cost base, future investment and asset portfalio
plans The result of this review was the long-term Busingss Plan.

The Board reviewed the long-term Business Plan as part of the 2021 budget process over the course of the second half of
2020, ahead of approval in January 7021. The Board considered that the long-term Business Plan can delrver material value
from the Company's assets and generate substantial cash flow. In addition, the long-term Business Plan delivers sulficient
operating cash flow to achieve an apprapriate balance between debl reduclion and value creation.

Stakeholder Whilst reviewing the 2021 budgel and lang-term Business Plan, the Board considered the following stakeholders:

considerations - [Investors/creditors: The lang-lerm Business Plan should deliver production growth in the medium term and the abilily
lo suslain production over the langer term. The expenditure under the plan is expecled lo be self-funded and nol to
require additional borrowing. In addition, the plan is expected to reduce the Company’s gearing to 1-2x net debt/EBITDAX
in the medium term while retaining appropriate liqu.dity.

- Host nations: The new plan is expected lo deliver producton growth and deliver significant value for Tullow's host
nalions. It also recanfirms the Company's commitment 1o further develop and unlock value {rom its core assets and
detliver shared prosperity to cur host nations in the process The long-term Business Plan also confirms the shift from an
exploration-led company to one focused on the sustainable exoloitalion of its producing assets and infrastructure in line
with the Company's Net Zero commitments.

- Employees: By crealing long-lerm value for the Company, the long-term Business Plan creates value for its employees
through exciting professional opportunities, career developrment and potential remuneration upside through the
employee share plans.

Link to KPIs . Working Capital and Cost Management
. Production
. Business Plan Implementation

. Capital Structure

oL B W N

. Total Shareholder return
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Section 172(1) statement continued

Decision

Refinancing of the Company’s debt

Context and link

Al the beginning of 2621, the Cornpany had sufficient Liquidity for its short-lerm needs. However, a lquidity shartfall was
forecast for Aprit 2022 following the repayment of the $650 milion Senicr Motes due in April 2022 This Liquidity shortfall felt

to strategy
inside the Liquidity forecast test periods in respect of the February 2021, September 2021 and March 2022 RBL Facility
redeterminations. As such, the ability of the Group to continue operating as a going concern relied on its ability to obtain
waivers or amendments from its banks with respect to the liquidity tests, and to implernent a refinancing proposal to address
the April 2022 maturity.

Challenges Tre Board considered various cplions to adaress the Company's debt matunties and concludes that the issuance of $1.8 billion

and outcome

Stakeholder
considerations

Senior Secured Notes and arrangement of a new $400 million Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility cornprising of a $500 million
revolving credit facility and a $100 million letter of credit facility was in the best interests of alt stakeholders, including the Group's
creditors. The refinancing delivered a more stable capital structure for the Company, removed the uncertainty associated with
protracted refiiancing discussions w th creditors, and addressed t~e Company's near-term debt maturities.

In reviewing the refinancing eptions for the Company, the Board considered the following stakeholders:

- Investors: The refinancing provides a clear pathway for the Company to invesl in its assets to maximise their value

- Creditors: The refinancing addressed the Company’'s near-term debt malurities and allowed creditors o be repaid at par
and the cheice to participale in the Refinancing.

- Employees: The refinancing provides employees with the confidence that Tullow remains an employer at which they can
continue to work with confidence and develop their skills and fulure opportunities

f

Suppliers: The refinancing provides cur suppliers with the confidence that lhey can continue to engage with Tullow 1n the
long term for lhe success of the Company.

Link to KPis

5. Capital Structure

8 Total Shareholder return

Decision

Exercise of Ghana pre-emption

Context and link
to strategy

Challenges
and outcome

Stakeholdar
cansiderations

On 12 Octooer 2021, Kosmos Energy announced That it had acgquired an additional 18.0% interest in the Jubilee fiela and an
additional 11.0% interesl in the TEN fields in Ghana from Ocaidental Petroleum for a purchase price of

$550 mittion Under the Deep Water Tano [DWT) Joirt Gperating Agreement [JOA), Tullow has pre-emption rights in respect of
the 11 05% participating interest with'n the offshore DWT Block acquired by Kosmos Energy which includes the TEN field and

3 portior: of the Jubilee field.

In making its decision to support the exercise of the pre-emption, the Board considered whether the acquisition was value
accretive, could be seli-funded and could generate additional cash flow to help accelerate debt reduction.

The Board assessed that.

- The add'tional equity in these assets s expected ta increase Group daily production by ¢.10% and generate over
$220 m'llier incremental free cash flow at $65/bbl for Tullow betwazn 2022 and 2026, which coutd help accelerats
debt reducton,

- The consideraticn for the 7.7% increase in equity is expected to be ¢ $150 million witn an econarmic effective date of
TAp-l 2027, subject to concluding definitive agreements and closing adjustments. The purchase of the paricipating
interest in the DWT Block will be funded from Tullow’s existing resources,

In addition, the Board considered that increasing the Group's operated stakes in the Jubilee ard TEN fields also

underscores the Company’s commitment to investing in and delwering its long-term Business Plan This apportunity alse

fits well with the Group’s strategy ta facus on maximising value from our preducing assets,

On 11 Novemmber 2021, the Company announced that it had exercised its night of pre-emption over its participating interest
in the DWT Block.

In making its decision, the Board considered the following stakehalders:

- Creditors: The Board consdered the alfordability of the transactior and concluded that Tullew could fund the transaction
from existing sources without causing undue risk to the Company's liquidity pasition.

Investors: The acquisition 1s expected to gererate over $200 million incremental free cash flow at $65/bbl for Tullow
between 2022 and 2026, Sel!-tunding the acquistion also presents no dilution to shareholders.

- Host natiens: The increased operated stakes in the Jubilee and TEN fields underscare the Company’s commitment Lo
investing in these asselts, wh chwill cantinue to generate revenues for the Government of Ghana.

Link to KPIs

3. Production

4. Business Plan Imptementation
5. Capital Structure

8. Total Shareholder Return
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Decision

Sale of assets in Equatorial Guinea and the Dussafu Marin permit

Context and link
to strategy

Since Tullow's announcemenl in December 2019 of Board changes and revisions to 2020 guidance, the Company has,
amongsl other things, been focused on delivering reliable production, lowering ils cosl base and exploring portiolio
management aptions to reduce debt and strengthen its balance sheet. On 12 March 2020, Tullow's Board announced its
plans to raise in excess of $1 billion of proceeds from portfolio managemenl aptions in erder to further streamline the
business and lo reduce gearing. This $1 billion target was ullimalely achieved through a combination of assets sales and
self-help measures. On 10 Novernber 2020, Tullow comipleted the sale of its assets in Uganda to Total for an upfront
consideration of $300 million with a further $75 million payable foliowing a Final investment Decision for the Lake Albert
Development.

0Un 9 February 2021, Tullow announced Lhat it had signed two separate sale and purchase agreements with Panoro
Energy ASA far all of Tullow's assets in Equatorial Guinea and the Dussalu asszet in Gabon

Challenges
and nutrome

When making the decision to sell Tullow's assets in Equatorial Guinea and the Dussafu asset in Gabon, the Board considered
that the sales would generata $180 million in proceeds, including $133 million in upfrent cash consideration. It also
considered that the transactions were value accret ve, with neutral impact on the G-oup's operating cash tow lat $50/bbl) and
would further strengthen lhe Cornpany’s balance sheet. The Board alsc considered that the sales were in line with Tullow's
strategy of focusing on its core high-margin production assets and were comfortable with potential risks stemming fram
increased concentration on Ghana as a result af the sales.

Stakeholder
considerations

In making its decision to suppart the sale of Tullow's assets in Equalorial Guinea and the Dussafu asset in Gabon, the
Board considered the following stakeholders:

- Creditors: The transactions were an impaortant step in reducing the Company’s net debt and were put lowards the
delivery of $71 billion of proceeds and savings achieved through portfolio managemenl and self-help measures over
twa yea~s. The sale of these assets provided imporlant incremental liquidity to the Group ahead of the
comprehensive refinancing of the Group’s debl.

- Investors: In addition to the lawering of the Group's cost base and capital expenditure, the transactions support Lhe
delwery of imaroved margins from the Group's remaining assets Exiling non-core assets allows the Group to focus
an investing on the highest value and highest relurn opportunities within its portfolio.

- Host nations: Due to Tullow's non-operated position in these assets, the Beard censidered thal the impacl of the
disposals on local employees would be extremely limited. The Governments of Equalorial Guinea and Gabon
approved the transactions.

- Employees: Due to Tullow's non-operated position in these two assets, the Board considered thal the impact of the
disposals on employees would be exlremely limited.

Link to KPis

2. Working Capital and Cost Management

2

4. Business Plan Implementation
b, Capital Structure

8 Tolal Shareholder Return
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Section 172(1) statement continued

Decision

Net Zero Commitment

Context and link
to strategy

In 2020, Tullow issued its first Clirmate Policy and formalised its support for the goals of the Paris Agreemenl, namely, to hold
the increase in the global average temperature lo well below 2°C and pursuing efforts to limit the temperature increase to
1.5°C above pre-industrial levels,

In 2021, Tullow refreshed its purpose, to build a better future through the responsible development of oil and gas. The
Company continues o support its host governments as they seek (o use oil revenues to support social and economic
development and Tullow is committed to work Lo align wilh the actions that they take to manage climate change

A number of oil and gas compantes, includ.ng seme of the Company’s peers, have announced ambitions to become Nel Zero
on Scope 1 and 2 net equity emissians, by decarbonising their assels as far as practicable and affsetting any residual
emIssIons.

Challenges
and outcome

The Board has endorsed Lhe Groug's commitment to becorme a Nel Zero Company by 2030 on its Scope 1 and 2 emissions

on a net equity basis In doing so the Board considered in particular how the Company expects to deliver this cormmitment and
the possible challenges:

- Anincrease in the gas handling capacity on the Jubilee FPSO and process modificatians on the TEN FPS0 are required Lo
eliminate routine flaring in Ghana by 2025. The lechnical aspects of these changes are well understood and form part of
Lhe long-term Business Plan which the Board has approved.

- Delivering Net Zero requires sustained gas offtake by the Ghana National Gas Company. After almost 10 years of excess
gas injection on Jubilee due to insufficient gas offtake, a request to flare was made to protect the reserveirs and to
rnaintain oil production at planned levets. The Board 1s satisfied that, following ergagement with the Government of
Ghana, there is strong alignment and a robust commercial foundation to achieve Lhe targeted levels of gas oiftake that
would enable the elimination of routine flaring from the Jubilee and TEN fields.

- The Board is satisfied with the progress made indentifying nalure-based carbon remaval projects such as refarestation,
afforestation and conservation projects in Ghana that are required to offset the res’dual hard to abate carbon emissions.

Stakeholder
considerations

Link to KPls

6. Sustainability

When approving the Net Zero commitment of the Company, Ine Board considered the following stakeholders

- Investors/Creditors: Companies commitments towards addrassing climate change are becoming central {s investors
investrnent decisions. Investars and corporates ace subject to growing pressures to clearly outline ambitious targets to
reduce carbon emissions. The Board is convinced that meeling Net Zero targels will be critical for the Company to
maintain access to capital.

- Host nations: in 2019, Ghana became tne third counlry to sign a landmark agreement with the World Bank that rewards
communily efforts to implement projecls that reduce carbon emissions from deforestalion and ferest degradation. Ghana
has a REDD+ strategy thal s designed to meet the requirements of the Warsaw Framework and the United Nalions
Framework Convention an Climate Change {UNFCCC). The Board 1s aware of the various engagements the Company has
with the Ghanaian Forestry Commission to align respective strategias and targets and help identify suitable REDD+
protects for carbon offsetting.

- JV Partners: Tullow's Nel Zero stralegy is aligned with the ambilinns of our JV Partners in Ghana.

- Employees: It is becoming increasingly important for individuals around the world to ensure that the organisation they
work for is preactively addressing climate change issues.
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Decision

Employee Value Proposition

Context and link

During 2020 Tullow fundamentatly reset and downsized its business. During that time the Group directed its focus on

to strategy managing individuals impacted by the changes in a respectful and fair manner.
In 2021, following the redefinition of the Group's purpose, strategy and values, the Cormpany decided to implement
changes to its Employee Value Proposition to ensure that Tullow remains a compelling place to work and to empower
and incentivise employees to focus on the delivery of the Corporate Business Plan.

Challenges The Employee Value Proposition introduced new working arrangements designed to provide staff with better work/Life

and outcome

Stakeholder
considerations

balance. These include: smart working arrangements; the ability for employees ta buy and sell up to five days annual
leave; and enhanced paternity leave available across all Tullow locations.

The restrictions imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic meant that much of 2021 was spent working remaolely When the
guidance from the UK Government to work from home was lifted, the Company introduced a hybrid working
environment enabling people to wark from hame, with lwe days working in the office to help build a cohesive culture.

Uther tealures of the Employee Value Propusitivi include competitive pay including bonuses; private medical
insurance for employees and their dependants; professional development opportunities; and an open, transparent and
inclusive culture.

'n July 2027 the Company also launched the Celebration Hub which provides a platform for Group-wide recognition of
the successes of indiwidual employees or teams across the whole business.

Finally, to address concerns of Tultow's Ghanaian employees with regards to the depreciation of the Ghanaian Ced:
against the US dollar and the impact this can have on their disposable income, the Company implemented a
mechamism to help mitigate this impact. This works by guaranleeing a lump sum payment as a percentage of
base salary where the inflation used te calculats annual salary iInc-ements 15 less thar the Cedi depreciation fo-
the prior year.

In making its decision, the Board considered the following slakeholders:

- Employees: In making decisions related to the Employee Value Proposition, the Board took into account the
feedback recewed via the Tullow Advisory Panel who met with the Board four bmes during 2021, market pay and
policy data was shared to support all compensation related decisions and the data from three employee su-veys
conducted in the year. The Boa-d believes that flexible working arrangements support an inclusive and diverse wark
environment.

- Investors/creditors: The Employee Value Proposition empowers and mcentivises Tullow employees to focus on the
regeneration of the business and on creating value from the Group's assets.

Link to KPIs

7. Leadership Effectiveness

Decision

Self-operate model for Jubilee FPSO

Context and link
to strategy

As part of a longer-term operational transformation plan, Tullow has taken the decision lo self-operate the Jubilee FPS0
Kwame Nkrumah and will take over all operations and maintenance [0&M] when the current third-party operator’s,
MODEC, contract comes to an end in mid-2022. Increased Tutlow control over the operational turnaround achieved in the
past 18 months demonstrated that Tullow has the in-house capacity to self-operate. Taking this further lo self-
operatorship presents an opportunity to realise and sustain efficiency improvements, cost reductions as well as gain ESG
benefits. Through this change, Tullow is targeling top quartile operating performance in terms of safety, emissions,
reliabity and costs.

The decision Lo self-operale Lhe Jubilee FPSO is part of a broader strategic goal to become a leading West African
operator, crealing a differentiating core competence for Tullow which could be leveraged for potential future acquisitions.

Challenges
and outcome

Following extensive discussions at the Board during lhe second half of 2020 and early 2021, a project team was
established in the second quarler of 2021 to assess, define and develop the plan for the transition. This plan was
reviewed and approvad by the Board in July 2021. The Board review of the self- operate transition plan covered various
governance, salety, and technical aspects. The implementation of the transfarmatian is angoeing, and the Board
continues to requla-ly review and support the transition process.

Stakeholder
considerations

In making its decision, the Board considered Lhe (ollowing stakeholders:

- Investors: When the Board was considering the decision to transition to a self-operate model for the Jubilee FPSO
in Ghana, 1t tosk into account Lhe leng-term value this could deliver to the Group tnrough reductions in operating
cosls and an increase in FPSO efficiency. It also considered how developing this core competence could be of benefit
to Tullow's broader strategy to grow in Africa.

- Local suppliers: The Board cansidered the potential additional revenue thal could be captured by local suppliers via
an increased direcl engagemert wilh the Group on the procurement process, and the potential transfer of skills to
indigenous Bhanaian companies via lraining.

- Employees: The Board tock time to understand any additional safety nisks seif-operation would bring to Tullow and

ensured appropriale mitigating systems and processes will be in place. Self-operate also provides opportunity for
professional development for many individuals in the Tullow tearn, especially in Ghana.

Link to KPIs

1. Safely
2. Working Capital and Cost Management
8. Tolal Shareholder Return
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Viability statement

Assessment pericd

In accordance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board has assessed the prospects and the viability
of the Group over a langer period than the 12 months required by the ‘Going Concern’ provision. The Board assesses the
business over a nurnber of time hornizons for different reasons, including the fallowing: Annual Corporate Budget [i.e. 2022),
Corpaorate Business Plan |5 years i.e. 2022-2024), long-term Business Plan (10 years). During 2021 the Board revised its period
of assessment for the purpose of the viability statement, which was previously three years, to five years for the following
reasons:

i. during the first half of 2021 the Group refinanced its near-term debt maturities with the issuance of Senior Secured Notes
due in May 2026 12026 Notes). The Group's only oiher outstanding debt are Senior Notes due in March 2025, and therefore alt
of the Group's debt matures outside of three years but within five years;

i, in September 2021 the Group provided guidance to the market over a five-year period (2021-2025); and

i

this period also atigns with the Corporate Business Plan which targets an increase in production and operating cash flow
generation over the next five years.

Notwithstanding the assesament period selected for the viability statement the Group will continue to assess the business over
all time horizans noted above.

Assessment of the Group’s principal risks

In order to make an assessment of the Group’s viatility, the Directers have made a detailed assessment of the Group’s principal
risks, and the potential irnplications these risks could have on the Group's business delivery and liquidity over the assessment
period. This assessment inctuded, where appropriate, detailed cash flow analysis, and the Directors also considered a number
of reasonably plausible downside scenarios, and combinations thereof, together with associated supporting analysis provided by
the Group's Finance team. A summary of the key assumptions aligned to the Group’s principal risks and reasonably plausible
downside scenarios can be found below. 't should be noted that sorme assumptions encampass multiple risks but have not been
repeated to avoud unnecessary duplication.

Principal risks Base case assumpticn Downside scenario

Failure to deliver Production is assumed to be in Line with the Carporate 5% reduction in production in each year.
production targets  Business Plan.

Failure to manage  The Group has included probable outflow associated with tax In addition to the exposure included in the base case the
geopolitical risks exposures [refer to page 118 for a description of the Group's  Group has included $56 million related to potential outflows
uncertain tax treatments). which are currently not deemed Lo be probable bul whose
tikelihood is greater than remote.

Failure to manage  The key impact of climate change on Lhe Group’s portfclio of - The Directors have considered an il price sens'livity in line with

climate change assets is reflected in the oil price assumptions See below. the |EA "Net Zero by 2050 Scenario’; see below.

risks The Group has also assessed the impact of carbon pricing, refer
to the TCFD disclosure.

Risk of insufficient Uil price assumptlians are based on the forward curve at Tha Group has analysed two downside ol price scenarios; the

liquidity and funding 31 December 221 for two years, followed by the Group's first 15 based on the Directors’ assessrment of a reasonably

capacity to sustain  Corporaie Businzss Plan assumption from 2024 onwards: plausitle downside scenario: 2022; $40/bbl; 2023; $61/bbl; 2024

and grow the 2022: $76/0bl; 2023: $71/0bl; 2024: $62/00L; 2025: $4/onl; $62/8bL; 2025: $64/bbt; 2026 $65/00l The second 1s i line with

. . ' ro": : :2023:
business / faiture to 2026 $65/bbl. the |E,0t Nel Zero by 2050 Scenario®: 2022: $42/bbl; 2023: $59/
deliver a highly cash Opera‘lmg costs and captta[lmvestment are assumed ta bein DBl 2024: $55{be; 2025: $52/bbt; 2024: $49/0bL.

line with the Corporate Business Plan. 12% increase in operating costs.

generative business

For detailed information on risk mitigation, assurance and progress in 2021 refer to the detailed discussion of risks on page 36.

Far ‘Risk of an asset integrity breach’, "Failure to unlack value’, 'Risk of a majar EHS accident and Security’, ‘Risk of a
compliance or requlatory breach’, "Failure to develop, retain and attract capability’, and "Risk of mzjor cyber-attack” the Group
has assessed that there is no reasonably plausible scenario that can be modelled 0 isolation or in combination with other risks
fram a cash flow perspective.
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Conclusion

The Group has $2.4 billion notes ocutstanding, maturing in 2025 and 2026. The Corporate Business Plan doas not project
sufficient free cash flow generation to allow the Group to fully repay these notes when they fall due, and tharefore it will need to
access debt markets within the viability assessment period.

fn the base case, net debt and gearing are forecast to reduce sufficiently such that the Directars are confident that the Group
will be able to secure the funding required to maintain adequate liguidity headroom throughout the viability assessment period.

Under the two downside scenarios, which assume all risks arise simultaneously, execution of a refinancing would be very
challenging. Management is focused on mitigating the risks around production, operating cast increases and potential outflows
associated with disputes in order to reduce the likelihood of these risks materialising, or their impact in the event these risks
materialise. Furthermore, the Directors have considered additional mitigating actions that may be available to the Group, such
as incrernental commeodity hedging executed in periods of higher oil prices, alternative funding options, further rationalisation of
the Group's cost base including cuts to discretionary capital expenditure, M&A, portfolio management and careful management
ol slakehiulder relationships.

Based on the results of the analysis and the ability to mitigate some of the risks associated with the downside scenarios, the
Board of Directors has a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities,
including through refinancing activities, as they fall due aver the five-year period of their assessment.
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Non-financial reporting

Tullow aims to comply with the non-financial reporting requirements contained in sections
414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006.The table below outlines to stakeholders Tullow's
position, principal policies, main risks and KPls on key non-financial areas.

Regquirement

Group appraach and pelicies

Environment

Further information: Environment,
see pages 31 to 32.

Oil and gas production carries a high risk of enviranmental impact and
incidents related to production processes.

Our product and the process associated with its production generate carbon
emissions which contribute to climate change. Tullew is working to reduce
its impact on the environment through its Met Zero 2020 commitment and
through its standards and policies,

Employees

Further information: Our People,
see pages 33 to 35.

Further information: Health and Safety,
see page 29.

Tullow aims to create an inclusive environment, free from discrimination,
where individual differences and the centributions of all our staff are
recognised and everybody is treated fairly. We have zero tolerance for any
form of discrimination and decisions related to recruitment selection,
development or promotion are based upon aptitude and ability only.

Sacial policy

Further information: Cammunity relations,

go to our Sustainability Report online.

We engage with communities early in the planning process to identify the
key impacts, both positive and negative, of our operations. We maintain
ongoing dialogue to provide information about Tullow's activilies and create
opportunities for people to contribute to decisions which affect them.

We always listen to feedback and concerns, answer enquiries and register
grievances made by communily members.

Respect for human rights

Further information: Our Approach,
go to our Sustainability Report online.

Tullow respects and promotes internationally recognised human rights as
set outin the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and the International
Labour Organization's Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at
Waork. When considering new investrents, we review associated potential
human rights issues and their relationship to our operations.

Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Further information: Anti-carruption and
anti-bripery, see page 33

Tullow has zero tolerance of any form of corruption. We conduct our
husiness honestly, fairly and transparently and we do not exercise improper
influence on any individual ar entity. We are subject to many anti-bribery
laws In the jurisdictions within which we work and, as a UK registered
company, are required to camply with the UK Bribery Act (20101

This Strategic Report and the information referred to herein have been approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Y

Phuthuma Nhleko

8 March 2022

50 Tullow Oil ple 2021 Annua. Report ard Accounts

Adam Holland
Chair Company Secretary

8 March 2022



Documents

Related KPIs

Related principal risks

Climate Policy

Safe and Sustainable Operations Policy
Code of Ethical Conduct
Non-Technical Risk Standard

Level 0 KPIl: Embed Sustainability
across the grganisation,

Lovel 1 KPPl Progress Net Zero plan.

Climate risk on page 40
EHS or security risk on page 39

Code of Ethical Conduct
Smart Woerking Policy

Level 0 KPI: Leadership effectiveness.

Level 2 KPls: Quarterly employment
engagement pulse checks; redefine
commitment to inclusion and diversity,
develop localisation plans.

People risk on page 40
Ethics & conduct risk on page 41

Cade of Ethical Conduct
Non-Techmical Risk Standard

Level 1 KPIs: Deliver 2022 social
investment plan and develop long term
shared prosperity strategy; implement
revised local content plan.

Stakeholder risk on page 39 & 40

Human Rights Policy
Code of Ethical Conduct

Level 2 KPI: Code of Ethical Canduct
training completed by all staff.

Stakeholder risk on page 39 & 40
Ethics & conduct risk on page 41

Code of Ethical Conduct

Level 2 KPI: Code of Ethical Conduct
training completed by all statf.

Ethics & conduct risk on page 41
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Directors’ report

A framework for

corporate governance

As a UK-listed company, Tullow Qil plc's governance palicies
and procedures are based on the Financial Reporting Councils
UK Carporate Governance Code [the Codel and the Financial
Reporting Council's Guidance on Board Effectiveness, both

of which can be found at www.frc.org.uk. This Directors’
Report summanises how the Group has complied with the
Code during the year ended 31 December 2021 and describes
changes to the governance structure that took place before
year end. The Code sets out how governance is achieved
through the apptication of its five ain principles and their
supparting provistons:

- Board leadership and Company purpose;
- division of responsibilities;

- composition, succession and evaluation;
- audit, risk and internal control; and

- remuneration.

Board leadership and Company purpose

The Board is accountable to sharcholders and the Group’s
other stakeholders for the creation and delivery of long-term,
sustainable operational and finanoal performance for the
enhancerment of shareholder and stakeholder value. The Board
rneets these aims through setting the Group's objectives,
Values and strategy and ensuring that the necessary resources
are available to achieve the agreed strategic priorities. During
2021, the Group has been focused on cost and operations to
achteve a more reliable and consistent operating performance
and a sustainable improvement in operating margins, Our
purpase s to build a better future through responsible ail and
gas development.

The Board operates through a governance framework with
clear procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated
authorities to ensure that strategy 1s implemented and
key nisks are assessed and managed effectively. These are
underpinned by the Board's work to set the Group's core
Values, behaviours, culture and standards of business
conduct and to ensure that these are clearly understood
by the workforce, sharehalders and other stakeholders.

The Board alse ensures that there is sufficient engagement
with the Group's stakeholders such that their views can be
considered in Board decision making. The Group’s stakeholders
are divided into the following main groups: our investors,

our host countries and their cormmunities, aur peaple.
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Division of responsibilities

The Chair is respensible for leadership of the Board and its
averalt effectiveness whitst the Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the operational management of the business,
for developing strategy in consultation with the Beard and for
implementation of the strategy with the Senior Leadership
Team. One of the nan-executive Directars has been selected
by the Board to be the Senior Independent Director. The
Board is fully satisfied that the Senior Independent Director
demonstrates complete independence and robustness of
character in this role. The Senior Independent Director is
available to meet shareholders if they have concerns that
cannot be resolved through discussion with the Chair or

for matters where such contact would be inappropriate.

in additian, during the year the Senior Independent Director
meets with the other non-executive Directors, without the
Chair present, to discuss the Chair's performance. The Chair
meets regularly with the other non-executive Directors, without
Executive Directors present, to review Board discussions
and engagement as well as the performance of the Senior
Leadership Team.

The Chair offers governance meetings with shareholders at
least once a year to receive their direct feedback. In line with
the guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators (ICSA], the Board has approved formal
terms of reference for a Committee of the Executive Directors.
The separation of responsibilities between the Board and the
Semor Leadership Tearns clearly defined and agreed by the
Board and is published on the Group’s website.

Until 31 December 2021, the Board consisted of eight
independent non-executive Directors and two Execuiive Direclors,
0On 31 December 2021 Dorothy Thompson stepped down as

the non-executive Chair of the Board and left the Company,
whereupon Phuthuma Nhleko, an existing non-executive and
independent Director and the Chair-Designate, was appointed
non-executive Chair of the Board. After 31 December 2021, the
independent non-executive Directors consist of an independent
non-executive Chair, one Sentor independent Director and five
independent non-executive Directors.

The Executive Directors consist of the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chef Financial Gfficer.



Audit

Committee
Responsible for financial
reporting, audit,
internal cantrol and risk
management processes.

The Board of Directors

Chair, Executive Directors, Senior Independent Directar and non-executive Directors
The Board operates under the leadership of the Chair and 1s collectively responsible for setting the Company’s strategy to
deliver long-term value to shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board ensures that the zppropriate resources, leadership
and effective controls are in place to deliver the strategy. The Board zlso sets out the Company’s culture and Values, monitors
business performance, oversees risk management and deterrmines the Company's risk appetite. The Board delegates some of
its responsibilities to the Board sub-committees. The Board is accountable for the stewardship of the Company’s business to the
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Nominations

Committee
Responsible for Board

composition, appointment

of Directors and
succession planning.

Safety and
Sustainability
Committee
Responsible for health,
safety, environment,
climate change, shared
prosperity, security and

Remuneration

Committee
Responsible for reward
and compensation for

the Chair, Executive
Directors and Senicr
Managers and reviewing

pages &1 to 4 pages 67 to 68

the rermnuneration
arrangements of the
workforce.

business sustainability.

pages &% to 70 pages 71 to 87

Senior Leadership Team

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Qfficer and three Senior Managers
The Senior Leadership Team operates under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer and is responsible for the
delivery and execution of the Board's strategy as well as the day-to-day management of the Company’s business including
operational performance. The Senior Leadership Team is accountable to the Board.

Following the appointment of the new Chair cf the Board, the
Board undertook a review of the schedule of matters reserved
for the Board and also the division of responsibilities between the
Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Senior Indspendent
Director, and all of these are available on our website.

The Board has reviewed the criteria set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and the FRC's Guidance on Board
Effectiveness and considers each of the non-executive
Directors to be independent in character and judgerment
with no conflicts of interest. in addition, the Board is satisfied
that all non-executive Directors have disclosed their other
significant commitments and confirmed that they have
sufficient time to discharge their duties effectively. The

Board is alsc of the view that no one indwvidual or group of
individuals dominates decision making.

As part of the governance framework, the Board has
delegated some of its responsibilitias to four Committees: the
Audit Committee, the Nomimnations Committee, the Safety and
Sustainability Committee and the Remuneraticn Committee.
The Board is satisfied that the Committees have sufficient
time and resources to carry out their duties effectively. Their
terms of reference are reviewed and approved annually by
the Board and the respective Committee Chairs report on
their activities to the Board. The individual Committee terms
of reference can be found on the Group’s website. Director
attendance at Board and Committee meetings 1s summarised
in the table overleaf.

Cormittes Heports on pages 61 to 87
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Directors’ report continued

Board and Board Committee attendance 2021

Safely and

Audit  Norminations  Sustainability  Remuneration
Director Board 8] Commuttee 5] Committee (3] Commuittee (4] Committee (4]
Phuthuma Nhleko 1! 1
Rahul Dhir 8
Mitchell Ingram 8 6 4
Les Wood 8
Dorothy Thompsan* 8 3 6
Jeremy Wilson 8 3 3 4
Mike Daly 8 5 3 5 27
Sheila Khama & 6
Genevieve Sangud 8 2t 3 4
Martin Greenslade g 5 - o

Denotes birectar]s] who joned the Campany part way through the year

1
2 Denotes Dwector(s] who cesszed to be & Committee member part way through the year.
3

Denctes Directar(s! who joined a Commitiee part way through the year
4 Denotes Directarfs) who are no longer Oirectors of the Company

The Board is supported and adwised by the Company Secretary
wha ensures that it has the policies, processes, information,
time and resources it needs for it to function effectively

and efficiently. The Company Secretary Is also responsible

for ensuring compliance with all Board procedures and for
providing advice to Directors when required. The Company
Secretary acts as secretary to the Audit, Nominations, Safety
and Sustainability and Remuneration Committees and has
direct access to the Chairs of these Committees.

The Board typically meets seven times a year. One of those
meetings 1s devoled to an extensive review of the lang-term
strategy of the business and ancther is usually held at an
overseas office of the Group to provide the Board with deeper
insights into the Company’s operations and an opportunity
to engage with siakeholders. In preparation for the Group's
refinancing, as well as the asset disposals implemented by
the Group, certain Directors and Committees held a number
of meelings and calls between meetings more frequently
than usual. Due to the restrictions imposed by the COVID-19
pandemic, several of these meetings were held via video-
conference. Unfortunately, the Board was unable to fravel as
a group te an overseas office. However, the Chief Executive
Officer was able to visit certain overseas offices, including
Ghana, and engage with a variety of stakeholders.

The focus of the Board's meetings during the first half of

the year was on operational performance, the oversight of

the Business Plan and the refinancing of the Group. The
second half ot the year focused on capital allocation and the
Campany's tong-term strateqy, stakehaolder engagament,

and the energy transitron and sustainabitity. Later in the

year, the Board focused on culture, and the Employee Value
Proposition. At various meetings durning the year, the Board
also reviewed the key risks facing the Company and discussed
the Group's appetite for those risks,
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Composition, succession and evaluation

To ensure that serving Executive Directors and Senior
Managers of the Company continue to possess the necessary
skills and experience required for the strategy of the business,
the Board has established a Nominations Committee

to oversee the process of appointments and succession
planning for Directors and other Senior Managers. The role
of the Nominations Committee 1s critical in ensuring that

the Group’'s Board and Committee composition and halance
support both the Group’s business ambitiens and best
practice in the area of corporate governance.

During 2021, two significant changes to the Board wers
announced. In June, Dorothy Thompson announced her intention
to step down as non-executive Chair of the Board. A search
process was imtiated and in October Phuthuma Nhleko was
appointed as an independent non-executive Chair-Designate
of the Board. Phuthuma brings extensive emerging markets
experience to Tullow having worked successfully across
Africa aver the past three decades. His biography can be
found on page 58. He was appointaed Chair of the Board on

1 January 2022, In Seplember, the Company announced that
Les Wood, Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director, had
mutually agreed with the Board that he would step down from
Tullow on 37 March 2022, atter the presentation ot the 2021
full year results. A search process was initiated and, as at the
date of this Report, Tullow's recruitment of a new CFO and
Executive Director to replace Les Wood 15 ongoing. Further
detail on the appointment process for these Directors can

be found in the Nominations Committee Report on pages

67 to 68.



Upon jaining the Board, Nirectors receive induction
programmes which are specifically designed to complement
their background, experience and knowledge with a more
detailed understanding of the upstream industry and other
matters reqularly discussed by the Board. The programmes
include one-to-one meetings with Senior Management,
functional leaders and, where possible, visits to the Group's
principal offices and operations. The Directors alse receve an
averview of their duties, corporate governance policies and
Board processes.

Directors are initially appointed for a term of three years.

All of the Directors will seek re-election at the next Annual
General Meeting. The Board will set cut in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting its reasons for supporting the
re-election or election of each of the Directors. In Octcber
2022, Jeremy Wilson witl have completed nine years on the
Board. It is his intention to seek re-election at the AGM in
early 2022 and in due course agree with the Board a date that
is mutually convenient for him to retire before Octaber 2022.

As part of the ongoing evaluation of the Board's effectiveness,
and following the externally facilitated evaluation of the
Board in 2019, the Board carried out an internal evaluation

of its performance and that of its Committees in 2021. This
was facilitated by the Company Secretary with input from the
Chair of the Board, the Semior Independent Directar and the
Chair of the Committees. The review required each of the
Directors to submit responses to a series of questionnaires
to reflect their individual performance, the performance of
the Board as a whole and the main areas under consideration
by the Board and its Commuttees. Contributors to Board and
Committee meetings and the wider group of direct reports to
Senior Managers were also provided with the opportunity to
provide their feedback to be incorporated into the evaluation.
All responses were compiled and discussed at the Board and
relevant Committee meetings.

The evaluations reported a number of positive cbservations
including that the Board believes it has a positive diversity

of views, skills and experience and a boardroom culture
where challenge is welcomed and delivered in a constructive
manner. Following the refinancing in 2027, the Board was
pleased to take the time to review and debate the Company’s
long-term strategy. The evatuation highlighted areas for the
Board to further focus on in the near term future, including:
a deep dive an the Company’s principal risks; succession
strategy: a strategy for data and technology; and in-person
engagement with the Company’'s senior leaders following
COVID-19. These areas have been incorporated into the
Board's agenda for 2022.

Board time* (%)
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givzrnarce 0%
Culture

_ Strategy 29%
ard peopiz 57
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sustaran !y

[z ading
stakeaala=~
engage~ent) 130,

Cac ta. strocture and
cap tal adocatar
254, S5 mas nneratinrs,
restoLctu vy
et

A o

marage et 73
* Percentages are approximate

Norinations Committee Repert on pages 67 and 68

Shareholder engagement
At the AGM on 16 June 2021, a significant number

[25.30%) of votes were cast against Resolution 7 to re-elect
Dorothy Thompson as a Birector of the Company. Although
the resolutions passed, members of the Board, including
the Senior Independent Director engaged with our major
shareholders who voted against the resclution and now
have an understanding of the concerns raised by them.
Iheir feedback was incorporated into the search for our

new Chair,
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Directors’ report continued

Audit, risk and internal control

The Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit
Committee to satisfy itself on the integrity of the Financial
Statements and announcements on financial performance,
overseeing the relationship with the external auditor and
reviewing significant financal reporting and accounting
policy issues.

The Audit Committee has also assumed responsibility
for overseeing the Group's internal audit programme and
the process af identifying principal and emerging risks
and ensuring that they are managed effectively. As part
of that process, the Company’s internal financial controls
and internal contrel and risk management systems are
assessed annually.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
Group's systems of internal contral which are designed

to safeqguard the assets of the Group and to ensure the
reliability of financial information for both internal use and
external pubiication and to comply with the requirements
of the Code. Overall control is ensured by a reqular detailed
reporting system covering bath operational and commercial
performance and the state of the Group’s tinancial affairs.

The Board has procedures for identifying, evaluating and
managing principal risks that impact the Group and these
are regularly reviewed. Tullow recognises that any systems
of risk management and internal control can anly provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that material
financial irregularities will be detected or that the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives 1s eliminated. However,
the Board does seek to ensure that Tullow has appropriate
systems in place for the identification and management

of key risks, including emerging risks. In accordance with
the requirements of the Code, the Board has established
procedures to manage risk, oversee the internal control
framework and determine the nature and extent of the
principal risks the Company is willing to take in order to
achieve its long-term strategic objectives.

Safety and Sustainability Committee

The Board has delegated to this Committee the responsibility
and oversight of the Company’s occupational and process
safety, people and asset security, health and environmental
stewardship. The Committee manitors performance and

key nsks associated with these areas. Tne Cornmittee also
provides oversight of the implementation of the Company's
strategic priarities with respect to sustainability, namely; a
Net Zero delivery plan, Safe Operations, Shared Prosperity,
Environmental Stewardship, and Equality and Transparency.

Sa‘ety and Sustamatilty Comimitiee Report pages 67 Lo 68

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee retains responsibility for oversight

of the external audit of reserves and resources. Board
governance was strengthened by the nomination of a
non-executive Director with appropriate techrical expertise
who has responstbility for engagernent with the Chief
Petroleum Engineer on all matters relating to reserves and
resources. The same non-executive Direclor s available to
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assist with techrnical concerns raised through the Company's
confidential speaking-up service, Safe Call. The Company's
external independent reserves auditor meets with the Audit
Committee at least once a year to provide the Committee
with an opportumty to ask questions and provide challenge
to Senior Managemenl's assumptions.

Audit Commuttee Report pages 61 to 46

Remuneration Committee

The policies and practices for determining the remuneration
of the Executive Directors and the Senior Managers have been
delegated to the Remuneration Committee. The principal role
of the Remuneration Committee is to develop and maintain

a Rermuneration Policy that ensures Executive Directors and
Senior Managers are rewarded n a manner that closely aligns
with the successful delivery of the Company’s long-term
purpose and strategy as well as those of the shareholders
and other stakehgiders, inctuding the workforce,

Remuneration Comrittea Report pages 71 to 87

Board oversight of climate change and disclosures in
alignment with TCFD

Climate change remains one of Tullow's nine Principal
Risks with governance over ctimate related risks provided
at Board, senior Management and operational levels. The
Board has ultimate accountability for ensuring Tullow
maintains sound climate risk management and internal
control systems. Directors are responsible for ensuring
they remain sufficiently infarmed of climate related

risks to Tullow and the broader energy sector, required

to be able to meet their fiduciary duties under the UK
Companies Act 2006.

The Board:

- takes account of the financial impact on Tullow's existing
portfalio stermming from the risks of lower ol demand,
lower ol prices and potential carbon taxes Wdentified in
a range of commanly accepted climate scenarios for the
energy industry;

- ensures mittgation of climate change risks 1s embedded in
Tullow's strategy, decision making on capital allocation and
Management compensation;

- monitors indications of any changes in Tullow's access to
and cost of capital and debt, particularly stemming from
shifts in investor sentiment towards the oil and gas sector
related to climate changeg;

approves Tullow’s carbon management and perfarmance,
including targets for emissions reductions; and

reviews Tullow's assessment of climate risks and
opportunities including host nations’ Nationally Determined
Contributions in support of the Paris Agreement.

The Board undertakes these responsibilities primanly
through three sub-cornmittees. The Safety and Sustainability
Cormmittee holds responsibility for operational performance
on carbon emissions management and how this translates
into sustainability perfermance and disclosures. Qversight



of decarbonisation initatives which underpin Tullows Mot
Zero commitrment 15 also part of the Committee’s remit.
The Audit Committee oversees the assessment of Tullow's
financial resilience considering the forecasts of various
scenarios on our portfolio and ensures it is appropriately
and transparently reflected in our financial disclosures.
Through the Remuneration Cemmittee the Board ensures
climate and sustainability performance, including
performance against our Net Zera target, is embedded

In the corporate scorecard and annual performance KPls.
The Board approved the inctusion of a Sustainability KPI
in the 2022 Scorecard with a weighting of 10%.

The Tullow Senior Leadership Team, led by the Nirector
of People and Sustainability, supports climate risk
management through review of Tullow’s commercial
resitience agaimnst various climate modelling scenarios.
The Senior Leadership Team Is also tasked with leading
the incorporation of climate related risks, opportunities
and scenario assumptions into enterprise risk registers.
The Ghana Managing Director 1s furthermore accountable
for the implementation of decarbonisation initiatives in our
Ghana operations. The Non-Operated Business Manager
and Head of Exploration are respectively responsible

for identifying and managing climate related risks and
opportunities for their businesses. Senior Leadership are
supported in managing these responsibilities through
our multi-disciplinary climate risk review process,
incorporating assessment of our partfolio and strategy
against a range of commonly accepted climate scenarios,
policy positions and regulations within our host nations,
Each part of the business therefore evaluates climate
related risks and opportunities within their remit as part
of an ongoing risk review cycle; climate risk management
reflects Tullow's top-down, bottom-up” approach to risk,
recognising the cross-cutting nature of climate change risk
which may affect other principal risk categories.

Audit Committee

Beyond its fiduciary duties in relation to the integrity of the
Company's Financial Statements, the Audit Commitiee 1s
also responsible for ensuring there 1s a sufficient level of
assurance being provided on the risk management and
internal controls systems, including for Climate Risk, and
whether it is sufficient for the Board to satisfy itself that
they are operating effectively. During 2021 this included

a review of the climate scenario analysis undertaken to
test the resilience of Tullow's portfolio as well as review
of clirmnate risks.

Safety and Sustainability Committee

Tullow medified the scope of its standing EHS Committee
to include safety and sustamability in 2019 to reflect

the material nature of ESG and sustainability risks.
Embedding sustainability acrass the organisation, which
includes progress against Tullow's Net Zero Commitment,
was a key focus of the Committee for 2021. Among others,
this included a review of the climate risk analysis process
and hindings of this assessment.

Compliance

The Board is satisfied that the Group has camplied in full with
the Code during the year ended 31 December 2021, with the
following exception:

1. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy, approved by
shareholders in 2020, provides that Executive Director
penstan contributions for new Executive Directors are
aligned [as a percentage of salary] with those available
to the workforce. However, it provides that pension
contributions for existing Executive Directors will be
frozen at the 2019 cash amount and adjusted dewnwards
s0 they are aligned (as a percentage of salary] with those
available to the workforce by 1 January 2023, This does
not comply with Provision 38 of the Code which reguires
these contributions to be aligned with those available
to the workforce; however, this is reflective of Provision
143 of the FRC's Guidance on Board Effectiveness, which
acknowledges that it may not be practical to alter existing
contractual arrangements. The Board confirms that the
pensian contributions for the Chief Executive Officer
appointed in 2020 and those of the new Chief Financial
Officer to be appointed in 2022 zre aligned {as a percentage
of salary] with those available to the workforce and that,
following the departure of Les Woed by mutual agreement
of the Board on 31 March 2022, there will no longer be any
Executive Director receiving pension contributions which
are not in line with the workforce.

LESP T -‘" :
Phuthuma Nhleko
Chair
8 March 2022
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Board of Directors

Phuthuma Nhiecko
Independent non-executive

Chair
Age 61

Tenur

1 year

Appointrment: October 2021
Independent Yes

Key strengths

Executive leadership, public company
gavernance and leadershup, emerging
markets. engineering nvestor
relationg, corporate inance, business
deve.apment, risk mansgement,
techna'ogy and innovation

Experience

FPhuthuma brings estensive emerging
rarkets experence to lulow having
worked success‘uly across Africa
aver the past three decades
Phuthuma was Chre’ Executive of
MIN Group, the leading pan-A'rican
telecommunications company, rom
2002 to 2011 During his Lime with
MTN, the Group grew rapidly in Africa
and the Middie East, gaining over

185 mullion subscr bers to becone
one of the largest Listed cempanies
in Africa. [n 2013, Phuthuma returned
to MTN s% 2 non-executive Director
and Chairrnan untl 2019 This
included a peried as Executive
Chairman from 2015 to 2017 He
remained parl of the international
advisary board ‘or the business until
August 2021 After stepuing down

as Chizf Executive of MTN in 2011,
Phuthuma was a non-executive
Director at BP p.c (2001-18] and
Ango-American p.c [2011-18)

He alzo served prewiously on the
Boards of Nedbank and Oud Mutua,
In South Africa,

Current external roles

IPhuthuma 1s Chairman of Phemban
Group, an investment group which
he founded int 1%%4, and 15
Chairman-designate o* the
Johannesburg Stock Exchange Ltd
Prutnurna 15 a.5u a non-executive
Directer of South Afrizan downstream
energy carmpany, Enger Petro.eam,
and & non-executive Cirector of

IS Towers, the NYSE-lisied
Emergirg Markets Te.ecom
Infrastructure Prowider

Rahul Dhir
Chief Executive Officer
Age 56

lenure 2 year:

Independent Ne
Key strengths
Upstream business, exp.a-ation,
deve.gpment and operations,
=xecutive leadership, capital markets,
MR&A emvironment, health, sa’ety
and sustanability,

Experience

Rahu. brings substanta’ leadership
experience in the ol and gas industry
to Tullow, having ‘ounded Delonax
Energy. an Africa-tocused o1, and

cas cornpany in 2373, Prigr to
establishing Bewonex, Rahul spent
si1x years at Cairn India as chief
executive of.cer and managung
director Under his .eadership Cairn
India successluly comp.eted 2

$2 billien IPO and grew tc a mrat kst
va.ue of neary $13 b JLon with
aperated production of aver 200,090
barrels of il eqawvalent per day
Rahul started his career as a
Petroleumn Eng.neer, be‘ore maving
into wnvestment banking where he 1ed
teams at Margan Stanley and Mernli
Lynch, advismy major on & gas
companies on merger and acgJisition
and capital market related issues

Current external roles

Member of the International Board of
Advisors at the Unwersity of Texas

at Austin

Les Wood

Chief Financial Officer
Age 59

Yénuré 4 years

Appeintment 2017

Independant No

Key strengths

Upstream busiress, corporate
finarce, accounting and audr,
business deve.opment risk
management, erecutive eadership
nvesto~ and government re.aion;

Experience

Les brings cansdarable financia.
and commercdl expertise to Tullow,
nc.uding majcr mergers and
azguis hiang devery, jaining in 2014
as Vice President Commercia. ard
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Finance after a 28-year career at

BP plc. Les held a number of senior
rotes at BP picincluding chief
financia. officer for BP p.c Canada
and BP p.c Middie East as well as
g.oba! head of business development
Les holds a BSc [Hons! in Chemistry
from Herriot Watt University,
Edinburgh, and an MSc in Inarganic
Chemistry from Aberdeen University

Current external roles
None

Mike Daly
Non-executive Director
Age 68
l]l:?” ure ?yﬁars )
Appu.niment: 2014

Independent Yes

Key strengths

Upsiream business, euporalion

and appralsal exscutive leadership,
business development, exerutive and
pub.ic company teadership, technotogy
and inngvation, erraronment, heaith,
sa‘ety and sustainabrity

Experience

Mike brings sigm‘icant upstream
experence 1o Tul.ow from a 40-year
caresr in the ail and gas busmess
Mike spent 28 years at BP ple where
he held a number of sznior gxgcutive
and ‘unctianal roigs withi~ the
explo-aticn and production deision
across Europe, South America, the
Middle East and A3, inc.uding eight
years as head cf exp.oration and new
business development He a.50 sarved
on BP 5 executive team as execllive
vice presigent exp.oratien, accourtab.e
‘or the leadarship of BP's exp.oration
business, Mke was a member o the
Waorld Econornic Forum’s G.oba.
Agenda Ceuncr. on the Archic and has
served on the adwiscry board o the
Briesh Geo.zgica. Survey He 1s a
vising pro‘essor at the Department ¢
Earth 5¢ ences, Oxforg Linwversity He
hads a BSo e Gaaaogy rom the
Unwersity Co.lege of Wales and a PhD
in Gea.sgy rom Leeds Un versity Mke
15 alsa 3 graduate af the Program for
Managermert Development Harvard

Busiress Schao., and in 2014 was
awarded The Geo.ogica. Society of
Londen's Petro.eurm Graup Meda..

Current external roles
Non-exacutwe directer o Compagnie
Géréra.e dz Géophysique. a g.obat
provider o gecszience and geophysical
services (3 the cil and gas industry,
winere he s chair of the hea.th, sa‘ety
envircnment and sustamable

develgpment commiltes and a
member cf the investmert committee.
Presigent o the Geowogica. Scaiety of
Lenden, a registered JK charity

Naon-executive Director
Age- 56

Tenure: 3years
Appointment. 2017
Independent: Yes

Key strengths

Corporate finance, accounting and
audit, risk management and execytive
and pub.ic company leadership

Experience

Martin, a chartered accountant,
brings extensive corporata hnancial
experience to Tulow from a 3é-year
career in the property, engineering
ang fnancial sectors in the UK and
acrass A'rica Scandinavia and
Europe From 2005 to 2021 Martn
was chief finanzial officer at Land
Securit:es Groug p.c, 3 lisled UK rea.
estate company Previously, he spent
five years as group finance director
of Alwis ple, an international deferce
and eng neermg company Marlin
halds an MA 10 Computer and
Natura Sciences “rom Cambridge
University and is also a graduate of
tne Stan‘ord Executive Program,
Stanfard Unwers'ty, Caafornia

Current external roles

Martin 15 a board trustee of the UK
arm of Internatio=al Justice Missian,
3 hurran nights charty fogused on
protecting the poor frem vio.ence and
ending human slavery

Sheila Khama
Non-executive Director
Age b4

Tenure. 3 years

Appomntment 2019
Indepe.ndent Yes

Key strengths

Extractves project and po.cy
refarm, executive leaders-ip,
carporate governarce, business
development, pubbic-private
partrersnip and sustainabiity

Experience

Shera brings to Tu.ow & wea'th of
executi¥e experience «n the banking ang
ratura. rescurces seclors across ATica
Shera served as the chie® executive

0% cer ¢f De Bea-s Botswana rom 2005
to 2010, a‘ter which she served as a

d rectgs of the oxtractives advisoy



pragrarnme at the African Centre far
Econeric transtormation In U3,
Sheila took up a position as directar of
the Matura: Resources Centre at the
Afncan Developmenrt Bank, Abidjan,
Céte d'varre. Shera subsequently
became a po.cy adwser at the Ward
Bank in Washinglan in 2016 In both
ro.es she adwised host gaver nments on
sustainabie developrnent poucies for
ratural resources During this time she
also represented the Alrican
Development Bank as an observer an
the internatiana. board of directors ot
the Extractive Industries Transparency
In tiztiwve hei.a holds a BA from tne
University of Botewana and an MBA
fram the Edinburgh University
Business Schoo!

Current external roles

Sheiais currently @ member of the
Advisory Board o the Centre for
Sustainable Devewpment Investment,
Catumbia Unversity and the audit
commuttee of the United Nations O*fice
of Operations, a non-executive director
o the Development Partner Inst.tute, as
we. as 8 non-execyutive Director o The
Metals Company, which s usted on the
MASDALD Stock Exchange in Mew York

R &

Mitchell Ingram
Non-executive Director

Independent Yes

Key strengths

Upstream business, corparate
finance, accounting and audit,
business development, risk
management, executive eadership,
investor and gavernment reatians.,

Experience

dMitchel, brings a wealth of o and
gas executive experience to Tu.low,
having establshed a distinguished
career spanning over 28 years of
experience in the oil and natura. gas
industry. Mstchel, joined Anadarke in
2015 and became execulive
vice-president of Internaticna., Deep
Water, and Exp.orationin 2018. Prior
to this, he served as deve.opment
drector and then asset genera.
rmanagear ‘or the Karachaganack “ield
In Kazakhstan at BG Group. fol.ow'ng
his time as managing directar of QGC
Australia Mitche. lbegan his career
at Ocoidental and spent 27 years in 3
number of technical and operationat
ro.es n the UK North Sea, Qatar and
Libya Mitchel. holds a BSc in
Ergineering Technology ‘rom Robert
Gordon Unwersity in Aberdeen

Current external roles
None

Genevieve Sangudi
Non-executive Director
Age 45

Tenure 3 years
Appm.ﬁtﬁ'\enﬂf 2019
Independent Yes

* Geneweve Sargad well e aggo atan Cha -

ot tF= Hemareraticr Lo
tre Conpanys Arual Gereral Mezting
R

Haz ol oy

Key strengths

Corpnrate finrance, accounting and
audit husiness development, risk
management, executive leadership
and investor relations

Experience

Genevieve brings cansiderable
marketing, investment and ‘und
management experience to luliow
from a 22-year careerin the finanzial
sector in the US and across A'rica
Genewvieve began her career in
business deve cprment as a marketing
executive at Procter & Gamb.e
Bostan, before joining Emerging
Capital Partners, a pan-African
private equity irm, as a pariner and
rmanaging directar At Emerging
Capital Pariners Genevieve served on
the boards of portiouo cormpanies
warking closewy with the exacutive
leams and sel up the company's
operations in Nigeria Smce 2011,
Genevieve has been managing
director, Sub-Saharan A'rica, “or the
American private equity campany
Carlyle Group, based in Johannesburg,
South Alnica, leading on a number of
significant transactions in Gaban,
lanzama, Nigenia and Uganda
Genevieve holds a BA fram
Maca.ester Col.ege, 51 Pau,,
Minnesota, an MA 0 Inlernationa.
Afairs fram Columbia Unversity,
New York, and an MBA fram Lthe
Calumbia Business Scheol,
Cotumbia University,

Current external roles

Genevieve 1S currenty managing
director, Sub-Saharan Africa, for the
American private equily company
Carly.e Group

Jeremy Wilson
Senicr Independent
Director

Independent- Yes

*A%er mzacly ne yedrs 45 a nan exanuive
Crrector of Tu.low, Jzrermy Wilsonw il
be siepping down belore Cetober 2022
arow . sleacown as Char of the
SRgmurzsatian Caarmittee immed ate'y
following the Company s Aaraal Genera
Veet ng n 2022

Key strengths

Corperate finance, accaunting and
audit, business deve.apment, risk
management, executive .eadarshep,
public company governanca and
leadership and investor relations

Experience

Jeremy brings extenswe strategre and
cerporate finance experience to Tul.ow
developed over a 30-year busmness
career. Mosl recently Jergmy spent
26 years al the investment bank

JP Morgan whero he held a number
of senior executive roes incwchng
head of European mergers and
gugursibons, co-head of globa. natura,
resources and diversilied industrials
and latterly vice chair of the bank's
energy group Up untirmid-2020
Jeremy was a non-execulive

directar of Jehn Woad Group ple, an
international engineering company
providing project and techmica.
services to the energy industry, where
he sarved as a senor independent
direclor an the auzit and norminations
committess and chasr of the
remuneration committee. Jeremy
ho.ds an MSe in Engineering fram
Carnbridge Urversity.

Current external roles
Jeremy s founder, ewner ard chair
of tne Lakeland Chimbing Cenlre.

Board composition statistics
Tenure
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average
tenure
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t—1C Years
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58 Years
average
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Gender
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77.8%
independent

‘nasperdent 7
Nar incapence-t Z

Committee membership key
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A Audit Comrnittee
N MNominations Cammittes
R Remuneration Commiitee

s Safety and Sustainability Committes
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Stakeholder engagement

Engaging with
our stakeholders

COVID-19 still posed significant challenges in the Beoard's ability to build on its relationships with all of Tullow’s key stakeholder
groups during 2021. Nevertheless, the Board sought out opportunities to engage virtually with our key stakehalders which
include investors and creditors, host nations and Tullow staff. Engagements were undertaken by the Chair, Executive Directors
and non-executive Directors and feedback from these engagements is considered during Board discussions and decision making.

Our key stakeholders

Our investors -

Our pcople -

How the Board engaged

Throughout the year, the CEO and CFO

met virtually with major investors to
discuss business performance as well as
the Group's Bustness Plan presented at
the Capital Markets Day in late 2020. The
CEQ and CFO also engaged with major
shareholders during the process of defining
its strategy and relaying its purpose that
was presented at Tullow’'s 2021 Half

Year Results.

The CEQ and CFO engaged with around 300
investors during a two-day roadshow for
the $1.8 billion Senior Notes offering.

The CED and CFO attended a number of
equity and debt conferences during the
year; and hosted a number of group or
1-2-1 meetings with current or prospective
investors. They have also hosted a number

in both Accra and Londaon during 2021; the
CEOQ also met Ghana's Ministers for Finance
and Energy in Accra and regularly engaged
with therm virtually,

The CEO and other seniar business leaders
met the Energy Minister for Kenya and
senior Kenyan officials in Nairobi and at
Africa Ol Week in Dubat.

The CEOQ and other senior business leaders
also met a range of senior politicians and

officials at Africa Oil Week including the

The non-executive Directors met with
members of the Tullow Advisory Panel
on three occasions during the course

of the year. These meetings provided

an opportunity to gather feedback from
employees to help shape decisions with
regards to the ongoing implementation
of the new Employee Value Proposition.
Such feedback led to the launch of some
significant initiatives to improve further
the Tullow employee experience in areas
such as recognition, hybrid working and
compensation policies.
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of dedicated webinars for Retail Investors
to engage with this important part of our
shareholder base.

- The Chair and Senior Independent Director

met with major shareholders to discuss
governance issues.

Tullow hosted a virtual Annual General
Meeting which was also attended by the
Directors. At the AGM on 16 June 2021,

a significant nurber {25.30%| of votes
were cast against Resolution 7. to re-elect
Dorothy Thampson as a Directer of the
Company. Althcugh the resolutions passed,
members of the Board, including the
Senior Independent Birector, engaged
with our major shareholders who voted
against the resotution and now have

an understanding of the concerns

raised by them.

Mirister for Energy from Céte d'Ivoire and
his officials. They also engaged with senior
representatives of the Ghanaian, Gabanese,
Mauritanian and British Governments as
well as industry partners and peers.

Additionally, the CEQ met virtually with
many of our key stakeholders across cur
business in connection with Tullow's major
transactions during the year.

In 2022, Tullow’s new Chairman will meet
with a range of key stakeholders from
across lullow's countries of operations.
The CEO and CFO hosted regular virtusl
town hall events which included open Q&A

throughout the year zand took feedback via
regular pulse surveys.

As travel restrictions began to lift, the
CEQ and CFO were able to meet with our
employees across our locations in person,
hosting many small group discussions.
Furthermore, they championed a restyling
of our office environments to create truly
inclusive and agile working environments.



Audit Committee report

Dear shareholder

The Audit Committee continues to focus on ensuring that
Tullow has a strong system of financial and non-financial
controls, risk management processes and internal

audit pregramme. In particular, the Audit Cortinittee’s
activities in 2021 included oversight of Tullow’s financial
reports, disclasures in key transactionat documents, as

well as assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control processes. In this report,

| also outline key areas of financial judgement and estimaticn,
which were considered in Tullow’s accounts and the action
taken by the Committee to ensure they fairly reflect Tullow's
financial position. In 2021 particular focus was given to
judgements made n respect of uncertain tax treatments and
the Group's going concern assessment and disclosure as it
has evolved pre and post the comprehensive refinancing in
May. The refinancing in May removed the short-term material
uncertainties around the business cantinuing as a going
concern and the increasing oil price improved operating cash
flows. The Committee continued to review the performance
of our finance and supply chain outscurcing partner and
reviewed ctimate risk, including 1ts TCFD analysis, scenarios
and disclosure.

The Committee has monitered the performance of Ernst
& Young LLF as the Company's statutory external auditor.
We continue to be encouraged by the focus and insight
provided by Ernst & Young, especially in the areas of
significant judgements and their use of data analytics.

The Committee oversaw the appaintment of 2 new Head

of Internal Audit and Risk. This was particularly important
due to the significant changes that occurred within the
organisational structure of the business and that of the
internal audit function during 2020 and 2021. Unfartunately,
the candidate left in 4027 to pursue other opportunities

and therefore the Committee oversaw the appointment of a
second Head of Internal Audit and Risk in 1Q22. The changes
in Head of Internal Audit and Risk and other resourcing
challenges in 2021 led to a reduction in the number of internal
audits performed, with seven of a planned 15 completed in
2021 and two in progress at the year end. The remaining five
audits have been deferred.

The Committee also met with the new Group Ethics and
Compliance Manager and received updates on matters
including the Code of Ethical Conduct, avenues available to
our staff and suppliers for speaking up, and procedures for
the detection and prevention of fraud.

Based on the results of the annua! effectiveness review of
risk management and internal control, the Audit Committee
cancluded that the system of internal controls operated
effectively throughout the financial year and up to the date
on which the Financial Statements were signed. There were
areas identified for improvement and the Audit Cormmittee 1s
canfident that they are in the process of being addressed.

Before advising the Board on the approval of the 2021
Annual Report and Accounts, the Committee asked the
Senior Leadership Team to demonstrate to the Committee
its processes and procedures for ensuring that the report
contains the relevant information necessary for shareholders
to assess Tullow's position, performance, business model
and strategy and that it 1s fair, balanced and understandable.
Furthermore, the Committee, I1n conjunction with the Board
provided detailed feedback to Managernent on the 2020
Annual Report and Accounts process, which has been
addressed through the 2021 process.

r’/U Lol A

Martin Greenslade
Chair of the Audit Committee

8 March 2022
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Audit Committee report continued

Governance

Martin Greenslade was appointed Audit Committee Chair in
2020 following the AGM. Martin is a chartered accountant.
He was Chief Financiat Officer at Land Securities Group ple
from 2005 to 2021 thus meeting the requirement of the UK
Corporate Governance Code for the Audit Committee to have
at least one member who has recent and relevant financial
experience. The other members of the Audit Camruttee are
Mike Baly and Jerermy Wilsan. Together, the members of

the Committee demonstrate competence in the oil and gas
industry, with Mike Daly having significant prior experience in
oit and gas companies, while Jeremy Wilson brings a wider
range of industry, commercial and financial experience, which
1s vital in supporting effective governance. The Company
Secretary serves as the secretary to the Committee.

The Chief Financial Officer, the Graup General Counsel, the
Group Financial Centroller, the Head of Internal Audit and
Risk and representatives of the external auditor are invited
to attend each meeting of the Committee and participated
in all of the meetings during 20271. The Chair of the Board
and the GEO also attend meetings of the Committee by
invitaticn and were present at most of the meetings 1in 2021.
The external auditor and the Head of Internal Audit and Risk
have unrestricted access to the Committee Chair.

In 2021, the Committee met on five occasions and also held
conference calls between meetings to consider specific
items. Meetings are scheduled to allow sufficient time for full
discussion of key topics and o enable early dentification and
resolution of risks and issues. Meetings are aligned with the
Group's financial reporting calendar.

The Committee reviewed its terms of reference during the year
to ensure they comply with relevant regulation, including the

UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, the Companies Act 2006,
the FRC's 2014 Guidance on Audit Commuttees, the FRC's 2014
Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Conirol and Related
Financial and Business Reporting and the FRC's Revised Ethical
Standards 2019 The Audit Committee’s terms of reference can
be accessed via the corporate website. The Board most recently
approved the terms of reference on 20 January 2022,

Summary of responsibilities
The Committee’'s detaed responsibilities are described in its
terms of reference and include:

- monitor the integnity of the Financia! Statements of the
Group, reviewing and reporting to the Board on significant
financial reporting 1ssues and judgements including going
concern and viability stalement assessments;

- review and, where necessary, challenge the consistency of
significant accounting policies, and whether appropriate
accounting standards have been used;

- review the content of the Annual Report and Accounts
and advise the Board on whether it s fair, balanced and
understandable and if it provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess Tullow’s positron, performarice,
business maodel and strategy;

- monitor and review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls and wnternal contral
and risk management systemns;
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- consider the level of assurance being provided on the risk
management and internal controls systems and whether
it is sutficient for the Board to satisfy itsell that they are
operating effectively;

- review the adeguacy of the whistleblowing system, and the
Company’s procedures for detecting and preventing fraud;

review and assess the annual Internal Audit Plan, s
alignment with key risks of the busmess and coardination
with other assurance providers and receive a report on the
results of the Internal Audit function’s wark on a periodic basis;

oversee its relationship with the externat auditor including
assessing its independence and objectivity, review the
annual audit plan to ensure it is consistent with the scope of
the audit engagement, and review the findings of the audit;

i

meet with the Chref Petroleumn Engineer and recewve reports
from the independent reserves auditor [TRACS);

- assess the qualifications, expertise and resources of the
external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process; and

- aversee the systemn of ethics and compliance, including its
procedures to prevent bribery apd corruption, and response
ta any signifteant instances of non-compliance.

Key areas reviewed in 2021

The Commuttee fully discharged its responsibilities during the
year and the following describes the work completed by the
Audit Committee in 2021:

Annual Report

For the Audit Committee and the Board to be satisfied with
the averall fairness, balance and clarity of the final repert, the
following steps are taken:

collaborative approach taken by the Group, with support
from the Executives and Group funcbons and direct mput
from the Board,

- acentral dedicated project team working closely with our
external auditor;

- early engagernent and planning, taking into cansideration
investors’ feedback, regulatory changes and leading practice;

- comprehensive guidance issued to key report contributors
across the Group:

- validation of data and information included in the report
both internally and by the external auditor;

- aseries of key proof dates far comprehensive review across
different levels in the Group that aim to ensure cansistency
and overall balance;

- the approach by management and resultant disclosure
associated wath climate change and TCFD; and

- Senior Management and Board review and sign-off.

Financial reporting

As part of the financial reporting process, the Committee
kept under review ongoing and emerging financial reporting
risks and judgements, The Committee met in September 2021
to review half-year Financial Statements and in December
2021 to discuss an imtial view of key financial reporting risks
and judgements before the year end process. Finally, the
Commitiee met for the full-year accounts approval in March
2022. At each stage of the process, the Committee



considered the key risks identified as being significant to the 2027 Annual Report and Accounts as well as accounting policy
changes and their most appropriate treatment and disclosure. The primary areas of judgement cansidered by the Committee
in retation to the 2021 accounts and how these were addressed are detailed averleaf. The related Group accounting policies
can be found on pages 109 ta 119,

Sigmficant financia.
judgements and areas
of estimation

Carrying value
of intangible
exploration and
evaluation assets

Haow the Committee addressed thass udgemsnts ard areas of estimation

A delailed accounting paper was received by the Comnmitlee from Management an the Group’s explaration and
evaluation assels, with a separale paper for Kenya, given ils maleriality The papers documented Management’s
assessment of indicators far impairmenlt and, if required, showed calculations for the impairments. The Committee
reviewed these papers and challenged Management's position, with particular focus on the Kenya development project
given key changes to the aroject in 2027, at the Ma~ch Audrt Committee meeling

The Committee supported Management's assessment that an impairment was not required in respect of Kenya based
on the judgemental assessment performed. The Committee also cancurred that explo-ation assets in Suriname should
be written off as proposed by Management and ensured there was an appropriate disclosure of this judgement in the
Annual Report and Accounts.

Carrying value of
properly, plant and
equipment [PP&E]

The Committee recewved and reviewed the papers prepared by Management on the Group's ail price and discounl rate
assumptions, which are used in the assessmenl of Lhe carrying value of PP&E. Al the September, December and March
Audit Committee meelings these assumptions were challenged by the Committee compared to independent ail price
forecasts. The Commitlee also challenged the Company's calculation of discourt rales, with parlicular focus on the
asset and exploration risk adjustments made by Management to a peer group weighted average cost of capital.

Al the September and March Audit Committee meetings the Audit Commitlee reviewed and challenged detailed papers
on Management's assessmenl of impairment triggers and resulting impairment tests for PP&E. The Committee

gave particular focus to TEN, given the materiality of historical impairments made to that asset. The Commitlee also
discussed lhe Groug's reserves and resources with the Group's principal external reserves auditor, TRACS, at the
March Committee meeting to gain comfort over Management's view of the carrying vatue of PP&E. The Committee
concurred with the impai-ment and impairment reversals proposed by Management and ensured there was an
adequate disclosure of this judgement in the Annual Report and Accounts.

Going concern
ana vishility

A delailed accounting paper and cash flow analysis was prepared by Management and provided to the Commitlee,
which then reviewed and challenged the assumptions and judgements in the undertying going concern and viabilily
statement forecast cash flows. The Commuttee discussed wilh Managemenl the risks, sensitivities and mitigations
identifled by Management Lo ensure the Company can continue as a going concern. The Cormmiltee agreed with
Management that the previously disclosed material uncertainties have been resolved following Lhe relinancing in
May 7021, I he Commuttee also discussed the five-year time horizon used py Managerment for the viability stateiment
which aligns with the revised debt maturities following the refinancing in 2022,

The Committee concurred with Management's assessment and ensured there was an adequate disclosure of this
judgement in the Annual Report and Accounts.

Decomrmissioning
costs

A detailed paper was prepared by Management detailing the Group’s decommuissioning provision assumptions making
reference, where appropriate, to relevant third-parly reporls, aperator estimates and market data. Al Lhe December
and March Audit Commitiee meetings, the Committee challenged the reasonableness of Management's assessment
of the changes to estimated decommissioning costs made during 2021, The Commiltee concurred with Management's
assessmenl and ensured there was an adequate disclosure of this judgement in the Annual Report and Accounts.

Provisions

A detalled accounling paper was prepared by Management on provisions and reviewed by the Committee. This included
a summary of independent legal advice on such disputes where appropriate. The Committee regularly monitors the
risk by receiving regular summaries of all open litigations and disputes as part of the Group’s Quarterly Performance
reporting. The Committee then challenged Managemenl's position at the Decernber and March Audit Cormmittee
meetings. The Commitlee concurred with Management's assessment and ensured there was an adequate disclosure of
this judgement in the Annual Report and Accounts.

Uncertain tax
and requiatory
treatments

Delailed accounting papers on all tax and regulatery exposures were prepared by Management for the Commuttee’s
review. Where relevant, the papers included sumnmaries of external legal or tax advice on parlicular lax ctaims and
assessments received. The Committee also met with the Head of Tax in the September and March meetings to discuss
and challenge the key judgerments and eslimates made including the likelihood of success and the quantum of the total
exposure for which provision had been made, The Committee concurred with Management's assessment and ensured
there was an adequale disclosure of this judgement in the Annual Keport and Accounts.
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Audit Committee report continued

Allocation of Audit Committee time* (%)
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Percentages are approximate

External auditar

Making recornmendations to the Board on the appointrment
or re-appointment of the Group’s external auditor, overseeing
the Board’s relationship with the external auditor and
overseeing the salection of a new external auditar, and
assessing the effectiveness of the external audit process

is

64

a key responsibility of the Audit Committee.

The UK Corporate Governance Code states that the Audit
Commuttee should have primary responsibility for making a
recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment or
removal of the external auditor. On the basis of the competitive
tender process carried out in 2018, the Committee
recommended to the Board the appaintment of Ernst & Young
LLF as Tullow's statutory auditor for the 2020 financial year,
which was approved by shareholders at the 2020 AGM. Under
current regulations, the Group will be required to retender the
audit by no later than the 2030 financiat year,

The external auditor is required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the Group audit every five years. Mr Paul
Wallek s Ernst & Young LLP's lead audit partner with effect
from 2020.

The Audit Committee assessed the qualifications, expertise
and resources, and independence of Ernst & Young LLP

as well as the effectiveness of the audit process. This
review covered all aspects of the audit service provided

by Ernst & Young LLP, including obtaining & report on

the audit firm's own internal guslity control procedures

and consideration of the audit hirm’s annual transparency
raports in line wath the UK Corporate Governance Code. The
Audit Committee also approved the external audit terms of
engagement and remuneration. During 2021 the Committee
held private meetings with the external auditor. The Audit
Committee Chair also maintained reqular contact with the
audit partner, Mr Paul Wallek, throughout the year. These
meetings provide an opportunity for open dialogue with the
external auditor without Management being present.
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- Matters discussed inctuded the auditor's assessment
of sigmificant financial risks and the performance of
Management in addressing these risks, the auditar’s
opinion of Management's role in fulfilling obligations for
the maintenance of internal controls, the transparency
and responsiveness of interactions with Management,
confirmation that no restrictions have been placed on it by
Management, maintaining the independence of the audit,
and how it has exercised professional challenge.

- Inorder to ensure the effectiveness of the external audit
pracess, Ernst & Young LLP conducts an audit risk
identification process at the start of the audit cycle. This
plan is presented to the Audit Committee for its review
and approval and, for the 2021 audit, the key audit risks
identified included: Oil and gas reserve estimation;
Impairment of Kenya exploration and evaluation [E&F’)
assets; Impairment and impairment reversal assessment
of 01l & Gas sssets; Manipulation of pericd-end manual
journals in order to averstate revenue and management
override of controls; Estimation of Ghana decommissioning
costs; and Uncertain tax treatments. These and other
identified ricks are reviewed through the year and reparted
at Audit Cormmittee meetings where the Cornmittee
challenges the work completed by the auditor and tests
Management's assurnptions and estimates in relation to
these risks. The Committee also seeks an assessment
from Management of the effectiveness of the external audit
process. In addition, a separate guestionnatre addressed to
all attendees of the Audit Commuttee and Senior Finance
Managers is used to assess external audit effectiveness.
As aresult of these reviews, the Audit Cormmittee considered
the external audit process to be operating effectively.

- The Committee closely monitors the level of audit and
non-audit services provided by the external auditor to
the Group. Non-audit services are normally limited to
assignments that are closely related to the annual audit
or where the work 1s of such a nature that a detailed
understanding of the Group Is necessary. An internal
Tullow standard for the engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services is in place to formalise
these arrangements. It was revised in January 2022 and
is reviewed hi-annually. It regquires Audit Committee
approval for all non-trivial categories of non-audit work,
A breakdown of the fees paid in 2021 to the external
auditer in respect of audit and non-audit work is included
in nole 4 to the Financial Statements and summarised
on the next page.



tn addition to processes put in piace tn ensiure segregation
of audit and non-audit roles, Ernst & Young LLP is required,
as part of the assurance process in relation te the audit, to
confirm to the Committee that it has hoth the appropriate
independence and the objectivity to allow it to continue to
serve the Members of the Company. This confirmation is
received every six months and no matters of concern were
identified by the Committee.

Fees payable to auditor [%]
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Internal controls and risk management

Responsihility for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk managerment and internal controt is delegated to the
Audit Commmittee by the Board.

In 2021, the Audit Committee reviewed, discussed and
briefed the Board on risks, controls and assurance, including
the annual assessment of the system of risk management
and internal control, to monttor the effectiveness of the
procedures for internal control over financial reporting,
compliance and operational matters.

The Audit Committee obtained comfart over the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
through various assurance activities that included:

- audits undertaken by the Internat Audit team;

- assurance undertaken by the Croup functions and
Business Units;

- enterprise risk management and assurance processes;

- the external auditor's observations on internal financial
controls identified as part of its audit; and

- regular performance, nsk and assurance reporting by the
Business Unit and Corporate teams to the Board.

During the year, in concert with the Board, the Audit
Committee completed a robust assessment of the significant
risks facing the Company, including those that would threaten
its business model, future performance, solvency or Liguidity.

This assessment included the identification of emerging risks.

The assessment process included engagements with the
Senior Leadership Team helping to support understanding,

ownership and accountability of enterprise-wide risks across
all layers of the Company. For each of the principal risk
categories, the Board reviewed the risk strategies ensure
they were still valid and their associated risk appetites.

Internal Audit periodically presented its findings to the Audit
Committee aver delivery of the assurance plan, progress

of issues raised and their timely resolution. On cccasions,
Senior Management representatives from the business were
also invited to the Audit Committee to provide updates on key
matters such as business process outsourcing and annual tax
strategy review.

In addition, during the year, the Audit Committee recewved
reporte from the printipal independent reserves auditor
TRACS and reviewed the arrangements in place for managing
risk relating to the Group's criticat information systermns.

All identified findings were assessed, with ng indications of
fraud noted.

Based on the results of the annual effectiveness review of risk
management and internal control systems, the Audit Committee
concluded that the system of internal controls operated
effectively throughout the financial year and up to the date

on which the Financial Statements were signed. There were
areas identified for improvement and the Audit Committee is
confident that they are in the process of being addressed.

Internal audit requirements

The Audit Committee’s role 15 to consider how the Greup's
internal audit requirements are satisfied and make relevant
recommendations to the Board. Throughout 2027 the
Committec reguested and received reports from Management
on its resource and budget planning for the Internal Audit
function in order to assess the effectiveness of internal audit
and satisfy itself that the quality, experience and expertise

of the function is appropriate for the business. The level of
internal resource available to the function was lower than
anticipated at the beginning of the year due to vacancies

for part of the year, and so the Committee challenged
Management to ensure sufficient budget was made available
for additional external resource where reguired, including
consultants for specialised audits. The Committee also
regularly provided feedback on progress against the 2021
internal audit plan and guidance on the prioritisation of
certain audits focused on the effectiveness of the control
environment, with audits related to longer-term issues such
as climate change deferred into 2022.

- Anew Group Head of Internal Audit and Risk was appointed
to the role in 2021, However, the individual subsequently
resigned and a new Head of Internal Audit and Risk
joined the Group in February 2022, The posttion’s main
responsibilities include evaluating the Group's assessment
of the overall control environment.
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udit Committee report continued

Internal audit requirements continued
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The Committee reviewed and challenged the programme
of 2021 internal audit work developed to address both
financial and overall risk management objectives identified
within the Group during the planning phase. The plan was
subsequently adopted with progress reported at the Audit
Committee meetings. A total of 15 internal audits were
initially planned for 2021 however seven were completed
and two in progress at the year end. The remaining five
audits have been deferred, The primary change in the

plan was due to changas in the Head of [nternal Audit

and Risk role and other resourcing constraints as well as
re-assessrments of the priorities of the organisation. Based
on the nature of the audits completed and those deferred
relating to longer-term issues such as climate change, the
assurance perfarmed by Management and subsequently
assessed by the Cornrmittee and the smaller scale of
organisation, the Committee believes an appropriate level
of assurance has been perfarmed over the Group internal
control environment.

Internal Audit also ran a systematic proagramme of audits of
suppliers’ campliance with cammercial and business athics
clauses, including brbery and corruption with regard to
significant and tugh-risk contracts.

Detailed results from the internal audits were reported

to Managerment and in summary to the Audit Committee
during the year. Where required, the Audit Committee
receives full reports and details on any key findings. The
Audit Committee receives regular reports on the status of
the implernentation of Internal Audit recommendations.

The Audit Committee assessed the effectiveness of Internal
Audit through meeting with the Head of Internal Audit, its
review and assessment of the Internal Audit Plan and the
results of audits reported.
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Whistleblowing procedure
We ensure that an effective whistleblowing procedure is in place.

- In line with best practice and to ensure Tullow works o the
highest ethical standards, an independent whistleblowing
procedure was established in 2011 and operated
throughout 2021 to aliow staff to confidentially raise
any concerns about business practices. This procedure
complements established internal reporting processes.
The whistleblowing policy is included in the Code of Ethical
Conduct which is availabie to all staff in printed form and
on the corporate intranet. Each member of staff 15 annually
required to complete an online awareness course to refresh
their knowledge of key provisions of Tullow's Code of Ethical
Conduct, which was included as a Group-wide KPI. The
Committee considers the whistleblowing procedures to be
appropriate for the size and scate of the Group.

- The Committee receives from the Group Ethics and
Compliance Manager summaries of investigations of
significant known or suspected misconduct by third parties
and employees including ongoing monitering and following
up of internal investigations.

Review of effectiveness of the Audit Committee

- In March 2022, the Audit Committee undertook a review of
its effectiveness during 2021, with the results reported to
the Board. The Cormnmittee was considered to be operating
effectively and in accardance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the relevant guidance. The feedback
provided has been used to shape the agendas and the
annual rolling agenda of the Committee in 2022.



Nominations Committee report

Dear shareholder

The main function of the Nominations Committee is to
ensure that the Board and its Committees are appropriately
constituted and have the necessary skills and expertise to
support the Company's current and future activities and
deliver its strategy for sustainable long-term success. Belaw
Board level, the Comrmittee focuses on the recruitment,
development and retention of a diverse pipeline of managers
who will occupy the most senior positiens in the Company in
the future,

The diversity of a board contributes to its success and
| am pleased that we continue te have a strong African
membership and a strong female membership an the Board.

The key activity of the Committee in 2021 was two-fold: 1] the
appointment and oversight of a Chair Selection Committee
to search for a new independent non-Executive Chair of the
Board, which resulted in the announcement on 25 Cctober
2021 of the appointment of myself, Phuthurma Nhleko; and

?] the search for a new Chief Financial Cfficer and Executive
Cirector, which 1s ongoing as at the date of this Repaort and
expected to conclude shortly.

| was appointed as an independent non-executive Director

of the Board and Chair Designate on 25 October 2021,
Dorothy Thompson stepped down as Chair of the Board and
Chair of the Nominations Committee on 31 December 2021,
whereupon | was appointed as the independent non-executive
Chair of the Board and Chair of the Neminations Committee
with effect from 1 January 2022. Because Dorothy Thompson
was Chair of the Committee during the search for her
replacement, the Committee appointed a Chair Setection
Committee led by the Senior Independent Director, Jeremy
Wilson, the Chair Selection Committee focused on identifying
candidates that possessed the skills, experience and values
required to lead the Board and support our Executive
Directors to deliver our long-term strategy in pursuit of aur
purpose. These included: excellence in leadership; a strong
depth of experience of working in and with cur African host
countries; experience in vil and gas; and a conviction for
creating value for all our stakeholders. | am detighted to
have been appeinted as Chair of Tullow, a company | have
followed with much interest since its inception and | believe
is uniquely ptaced to develop the ait and gas resources of

our hast countries efficiently and safely while minimising its
environmental impact. | look forward to supporting the Tullow
team as they grow the business, deliver shared prosperity
and create value for our investors, staff, host nations and
cornmunities. My biography can be found on page 58 of

this report.

The search process for a new Chair of the Board was assisted
by the search consultant Russell Reynolds, which has no
other connection with the Company, its Group or any of the
Directors. The search process for a new Chief Financial
Officer and Executive Director 1s being assisted by the search
consultant Cripps Sears, which has no other connection

with the Campany, its Group or any of the Directors.

The Committee is also responsible for ensuring there

are plans in place for the orderly succession of Senior
Manager positions within the business. The Committee and
the Board reviewed the proposals and arrangements for

the recruttment, development and retention of managers
occupying the senior positions in the Company. In 2022, the
Committee will continue in this work and will be particularly
focused on ensuring the team has the necessary skills

and expertise to deliver the future business strategy whilst
achieving a diverse and inclusive workforce population

with a nationality mix which is representative of our assets’
geographic footprint and improves our gender diversity.
Further details of our Inclusion and Diversity policy and how
it has been implemented in 2021, including our diversity
statistics, can be found on pages 34 and 35. The Committee is
canscious that, following the resignation of Dorothy Thompson
from the Board on 31 December 2021, the Board is no longer
composed of at least 33% women. However 1t 1s pleased
that, following my appointment, the Board has increased its
diversity of nationalities and 1s mare representative of our
assets’ geagraphic footprint. The Committee will continue to
review the diversity of skills and experience at the Board and
the need for gender diversity remains a priority.

In October 2021, the Committee initiated an internal
evaluation of the performance of the Board and tis
Committees. Further details on the process and results of
the evaluation can be found on pages 54 and 35 and those
results have been used to update the annual rolling agendas
of the Board and its Committees and will shape the training
programme for Directors, and will continue to inform the
work of the Committee in 2022,

Phuthuma Nhleko
Chair of the Nominations Committee

8 March 2022
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Nominations Committee report continued

Committee’s role

The Committee reviews the compasition and balance of

the Board and Senior Managers on a regular basis. it also
ensures robust succession plans are in place for all Directors
and Senior Managers. When recruiting new Executive or
non-executive Directors, the Committee appoints external
search consultants to provide a list of possible candidates,
from which a shortlist is produced. External consultants
are instructed that diversity 1s one of the criteria that the
Committee will take into consideration in its selection of the
shortlist. The Committee’s terms af reference are raviewed
annually and are set out on the carporate website.

Committee’s main responsibilities
The Commuttee’'s main duties are:

- reviewing the structure, size and camposition of the Board
{including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
its members) and making recommendations to the Beard
about any changes required;

- identifying and nominating, for Board approval, candidates
to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise;

- succession planning for Directors and other
Senior Managers:

- reviewing annually the time cammitment required of
non-executive Directors; and

- making recormmendations to the Board regarding membership
of the Audit, Remuneration and other Committees in
consultation with the Chair of each Committee.
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Committee membership and meetings
The membership and attendance of the Committee meetings
held in 2021 are shown on page 54.

In addition to three formal meetings, the Committee held
several informal discussions, telephone conference calls and
interviews during the year and were assisted in the critical
decisions arising from these discussions through consultation
with the whole Board.



Safety and Sustainability Committee report

Dear sharcholder

The Safety and Sustainability Committee monitors the
performance and sets the forward-looking agenda for the
Company in relaticn to Safe Operations, Shared Prosperity,
Environmental Stewardship and Equality and Transparency.
The Comrmittee also executes in-depth reviews of strategically
impaortant areas af concern for the Group.

In 2027 the Committee continued to recognise the importance
of process safety and particularly the need for a focus on
asset integrity and maintenance in Ghana with performance
reviewed at each Cormnmittee meeting. There was also
renewed focus on maximising the tearning from both
occupational and process safety related incidents aciuss
every part of the business, including the non-operated part of
our activities. The Cammittee has also had several deep dives
relating to the decision and preparations to self-operate the
KNK FPSO in Ghane from mid-2022.

Through 2021 COVID-19 continued to present a huge
challenge to our people, however, their commitment and
professionalism have resulted in continued safe operations
through the year.

Tullow continued to review its overall approach to
sustainability, with a focus on embedding sustainability in the
organisation. This involved regular review of the performance
of our Net Zero plan; cur socia-economic investments; our
local content plans and also the performance of our teams
and their engagement. The Group reviewed 1ts business for a
third year against the recommendations of the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures [TCFD], and for the first
time used third party to assure all of our non-financial data
and disclosure. The Cammittee reviewed the Climate Policy
and Human Rights pelicy, and continued to the review the
progress of the Net Zero Plan; the decarbonisation initiatives
identified to reduce emissions and eliminate reuting flaring on
Jubilee and TEN and the carbon offsetting project which 1s at
the feasibility stage of sourcing nature-based projects in Ghana.

At the end of 2020 | took on responsibility of Chair of the
Safety and Sustainability Committee and welcomed Genevieve
Sangudi as a8 member of the Committee.

3

Mitch Ingram
Chair of the Safety and Sustainability Committee

8 March 2022

Committee's rote

The Committee’s role I1s to monitor the performance and
key risks that the Company faces in relation to safety
and sustainability.

The Committee oversees the processes and systerns put

in place by the Company to meet cur stated abjectives

of protecting employees, the communities in which we
operate and the natural environment, and potential future
changes in external market drivers. Additionally, it monitors
the effectiveness of operational organisations across the
Company in delivering continuous improvement in EHS
through reviewing a wide range of EHS leading and lagging
indicators to gain an insight into how EHS policies, standards
and practices are baing implemented.

The Committee contmues to review high-potential incidents
{5 in 2021, especially where they have occurred repeatedly
in one lecation or activity. During 2021 we reviewad

incident trends, including events where there was a loss

of centainment of a hazardous flund in arder to 1dentify
comman causations and ensure that improvement activities,
including initiatives/campaigns, were appropriately targeted.
The Committee also scrutinises the outcome of audits and
nvestigations and impartantly the closure of related actions.

Additionally, the Committee reviews Tullow's broader
sustainability performance against our goals, aligned to our
overall purpose and business strategy. This includes receiving
updates on Tullow's performance as evaluated by £5G ratings
agencies, our shared prosperity performance, progress of

our Net Zero strategy and also the healih of the organisation
through employee engagements.
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Safety and Sustainability Committee report continued

Committee’s main responsibilities
The Committee’s main responsibitities are:

to review and provide advice regarding the Safety and
Sustainability, Climate and Human Rights policies of
tha Company;

ta manitor the performance, including regulatory
compliance, of the Company in the progressive
implementation of its environmental, health, security and
asset protection, and safety policies, including process
safety management;

to review matters relating to matenal environmental,
health, security and asset protection, and safety risks, and
to consider material regulatary and technical developments
in the fields of environmental, health, secunty and asset
protection, and safety management;

to review the pathways to decarbonise Tullow's operations,
and the asscciated costs and risks and to approve the
timeframe in which Tullow intends to achieve Net Zerg; and

to review Tullow’s approach to delivering shared
prosperity, including local content, social investment
and soctal performance,

The Committee's terms of reference are reviewed annually
and are available on the corporate website. The Committee’s
organisation changed al the end of 2020 with a handever

of the Chair position to Mitchell Ingram. The Committee
currently comprises four non-executive Directors. The
membership of the Committee and attendance throughaut the
year is set out on page 54. The Commitlee is supported by the
Company Secretary and the principal members of the Senjor
Leadership Team who report to the Committee are Julia Ross,
Director of People and Sustainsbitity and Wissarn Al-Monthiry,
Ghana MD.

The safety and sustainability related KPIs that the Company
measured 1ts performance on in 2021 can be found on pages
75 and 76 of this report.
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The Committee’s focus in 2022
~ A continuing emphasis on process safety, the asset integrity
in Ghana, topsides and subsea.

- Continually improving performance of safety, operational,
environmental and nsk management.

- Reviewing the capability and organisation to deliver safety
and sustainability performance,

- Ensuring sustarnable value creation through the delivery of
the sustainability strategy.

- A continuing focus on progress of the Net Zero delivery plan
in the near term [elimination of flaring by 2025) and the
long-term MNet Zero on scope 1 and 2 emissions on a net
equity basis by 2030,

- For our SECR disclosures, please qo to pages 50 and 51 of
the Strategic Report,



Remuneration report

Annual statement
on remuneration

The Remuneration Committee is focused on ensuring
Executive Directors and Senior Managers are rewarded
for promoting the long-term sustainatle success of the

Company and delivering on its strategy.

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am presenting the Remuneration
Committee’s report for 2021 on Directors’ remuneration.
The report is divided into three maimn sactions:

- this Annual Statement, which contains a surmmary of
performance and pay for 2021, an overview of Executive
Director remuneration for 2021 and 2022 and details in
respect of the operation of the Committee;

- the 2021 Annual Report on Remuneration, which provides
details of the remuneration earned by Directors in the
year ended 31 December 2021 and how the Policy will be
operated in 2022; and

- the Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report, which was
formally approved by the shareholders at the 2020 AGM and
sets out the forward-looking Directors” Remuneration Policy
for the Company.

2021 context

2021 was a year of transition for the business and our
workforce. | would like to take this opportunity to thank all
of our workforce for their efforts in delivering key initiatives
in what was a year of transition for themselves moving
from a COVID-19 restricted working environment to a truly
hybrid working environment. These initiatives undoubtedly
have put Tullow firmly back aon the path towards creating
sustainable long-term value both for our shareholders and
for tha communities in which we operate, The successful
transformational refinancing allowed the Company to repay
and redeemn existing bonds due in 2021 and 2022 and repay
and cancel the RBL facility, creating a clear pathway for
Tullow to invest in its assets to maximise their value and
deliver its cash generative plan. At the same time, asset
sales in Equatorial Guinea and Gabon were completed,
strengthening the balance sheet further. Whilst securing
the finances of the Company was key in 2021, the improved
operational performance through 2027 was also important to
underpin the business far the future and reflected the strong
performance by the teams; combined FPS0 uptime was

in excass of 97%, Jubilee gas offtake averaged 85 mmscfd

. "The Remuneration Commiittee
seeks to align reward with the
Company's strategy, culture
and delivery of long-term
shareholder value.”

Jeremy Wilson
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

and water injection averaged over 200 kbwpd, and Tullow
completed the drilling of 4 wells, allowing the Company to
achieve an average ol production of 59,200 bopd.

Summary of Executive Director remuneration for 2021

The Committee deliberated and has determined that it s
appropriate to make TIP Awards to our Executive Directors.
The KPI scorecard at 51.2% of maximum for 2027 reflects
the achievermnents led by the Executive Directors to stabilise
and put Tullow firmly back on the path tc creating long-term
value. The details of the KPI scorecard can be found on page
14. It was noted that there had been strong performance
across a number of our KPIs inciuding safety, financials,
praoducticn, business plan implemeniation, capital structure
and sustainability. The share price also increased by ¢.57%
over the course of FY21. As such, the Committee felt it
appropriate to award a TIP to both Rahul Dhir and Les

Wood at 204% of salary [1.e. 51% of the maximum 400% of

| salary potentiall, which takes into account the progress
against annual KPls and the TSR measurement period,
which commenced 1 July 2020, when Rahul Dhir joined the
Company. In line with the Policy, 100% of salary i1s paid in
cash, with the remaining 104% of salary deferred into shares
which vest after five years.
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Remuneration report continued

Summary of Executive Director remuneration for 2022
Base salary levels were last increased with effect from

1 January 2019 [3% increase) and frozen in 2020 and 2021.
Considering the higher inflation environment, the standard
pay increase awarded to UK based employees will be 3% and
the Commitiee has agreed the same increase for Rahul Dhir.
Given his planned departure, there will be no salary Increase
for Les Wood.

We have finalised our KPI scorecard for 2022 with a focus en
production, safety, cash flow, sustainability, and unlocking
value through the delivery of critical activities. Details can
be found on page 15. We believe all targets to be suitably
challenging.

When our new CEQ joined in July 2028, as previously mentioned
we needed to restart the relative Total Shareholder Return (TSR]
metric from July 2020 so hea bore no penalty or reward for

the time before he joined. We also reduced the weighting

of the TSR measure over 2020 and 2021 to 25% and 35%
respectively. This will revert to a 50% weighting in 2022, to
rebalance the focus placed on short-term and longer-term value
creation and to better reflect the shareholder experience.

For our new CFQ, any TIP payable for 2022 will be pro rated
for time served Iin 2022.

Remuneration arrangements for the wider workforce

As noted In my statement last year, the Committee reviewed
the revised Employee Value Proposition in December 2020
and was pleased to report 1ts alignment with the Values and
culture of the Company. The Committee has manitared the
implementation and effectiveness of the new arrangements
throughout 2021 and is confident that the new arrangement is
supporting the high-performance culture encouraged in the
Company. The Committee will cantinue to consider the
alignment of remuneration arrangements through the workfarce
ensuring all employees are rewarded fairly and consistently
for their contribution to the overall Campany performance.

Stakeholder engagement

Buring the year, members of the Committee met with the
workforce Tullow Advisory Panel (TAP], a staff panel, which
collectively represents Tullow's global workforce. These
meetings provided an opportunity to gather feedback from
employees to help shape decisions with regards to the ongoing
implermentation of the new Employee Value Proposition. Such
feedback led to the launch of some significant initiatives to
imprave further the Tullow employee experience in areas
including benefits and compensation policies.

Assessment of TIP Awards

At the beginning of last year, | engaged with many of the
Company’s major shareholders and institutions which
represent the views of many of our stakeholders to ensure an
understanding of the remuneration decisions taken ahead of
last year's AGM. This year | will again be contacting sur major
shareholders with an offer of engagement prior to the AGM
and look forward tc any feedback they wish to provide.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The existing Palicy was approved by sharehclders at the

2020 AGM and will therefore require reapproval at the 2023
AGM. During the course of 2022, the Committee will consider
whether any changes are required to the Policy. Any material
changes will be the subject of prigr consultation with our
major shareholders.

Remuneration Committee Chair

| will be stepping down as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee after the forthcoming AGM in 2022 and
will be replaced by Genevieve Sangudi as Chair of the
Remuneration Commuttee,

Concluding thoughts

On behalf of the Committee, | would like to thank
shareholders for their vote approving the Directors’
Remuneration Report at the last AGM. | took forward to your
continued support over the coming year where & key task of
the Commuttee 15 to review the current remuneration policy
in anticipation of a binding vote 1n 2023 and we will therefore
ne seeking to consult with key shareholders on any significant
changes during the secand part of 2022, If you have any
comments or questions on any element of the report, please
contact me via our Company Sacretary, Adam Holland, at
companysecretary@tutlowoil.com.

f:\‘@k-

Jeremy Wilson
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

8 March 2022
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Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration laudited]

The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 payable by Group companies in respect of qualifying
services and comparative figures for 2020 are shown in the table below:

Fixed pay lul.aw Incentwe P.an
Taxable Deferred Tala. Tola.
Salary/fees'  Pensions beneits’ TIP cash  TIP shares Tota: fixed vanab'e
€ £ £ £ £ £ pay pay
Executive Directors
Rahul Dhir® ;02_1 580,000 87,000 7,010 580,000 606,796 1,860,806 674,010 1,186,796
2020 291580 43,738 —1,461 174,870 174,870 686,519 336,779 349,740
l.es Wood? N 2021 461,500 115,374 78,291 461,495 482,816 1,599,476 _655,165 244,311
. 7 2020 4461500 115,374 10,846 78?52—1 _“—185,521 958,762 287,720 371,042
Subtotal 2021 2021 1,041,500 202,374 85,301 1,041,495 1,089,612 3,460,282 1,329,175 2,131,107
Subtotal 2020 2020 753,080 159,112 B 12,307 360,371 360,391 1,645,281 924,499 720,782
Non-executive Directors
Dorothy Thompson” 2021 300,000 - - - - 300,000 300,000 nfa
N - 2020 506,560 - 5338 ~ C 511898 511898 /2
Mike Daly 2021 65,000 - h - - - 65,000 65,000 n/a
o 2020 80,000 - - - - 80,000 80,000 n/a
Jeremy Wilsan 2021— 95,000 - 890 - - 95,890 95,3;9; N n/a
- 2020 95.000 - 3979 - - 9m979 98979 /s
Genevieve Sangudi - ;021 65,000 - - - - 65,36? 45,000 nfa
2020 65,000 s 781 - - 65,787 65,781 n/a
Sheila Khama 2021 65,000 - - - ©~ 45000 65,000 n/a
2020 65,05677' - 2329 - - 67,329 _67_-?_)5 N ———m’;
Martin Greenslade® 2021 85,000 - - - - 85,000 85,000 nfa
2020 78,720 - - - ~ w70 78720 n/a
Mitchell Ingram™ 2021 80,000 - - - - 80,000 80,000 nfa
o 2020 20,250 - - - - 20,250 20,250 n/a
Phuthuma Nhleko? 2021 11,082 N - - - 11,082 11,082 :la—
Former non-executive Directors N
Steve Lucas 2020 --2'6,550 - - - o 26,550 26,550 n/a
Subtotal 2021 o 2021 766,082 - 890 - - 766,972 766,972 nfa
Subtotal 2020 o
lincludes farmer
non-executive Directors] 2020 937,080 - 12,427 - - 949507 949,507 n/a
Total 2021 1,807,582 202,374 86,191 1,041,495 1,089,612 4,227,254 2,096,147 2,131,107

Total includes former
non-cxecutive Directors) 2020 1,690,140 159112 24,734 360,391 360,391 2594788 1,874006 720,782

1 Base salanes of the Executive Directors have been rounded up to the nearest £11 for payment purposes, in line with established pouacy

2 MNone o the Executive Directors have 3 prospective entit.ernent to a defined benefil pensicn by re‘erence to qua.fying services Bath Rahul Dhir and Les Wood
receve cash in lieu of pension contribution

3 faxable henefits comprize private medical insurance far a. Executive Directers and any other taxabie expenses Traverand subsistence terefits provided ta
Executive Derectars and NEDs have alsa been included on 4 grossed-up basis a3 Tul.ow meets the UK tax Lability on their behal®

4 These figures represent that part o® the 1P Award required tc be deferred inlo shares
5 Rahul Dhir was appeinted Chie® Executve O icer effectve 1 July 2020 Benefits consist of medical insurance and trave. expenses

& 2020 ava 2021 bene’its for Les Woed inc.ude a cash buyout of five days, annua. leave equating to £8,87% This was an arrangement ‘or al. emp.oyees 25 3
response to the COVID- 1% parderms and the ablity to ultise arnual eave Expenses inclade outpacement services 11 relabon to his planned departure
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Directors’ remuneration (audited] continued

7 Dorothy Thompsaan was appointed Non-Executive Chair of the Board on 21 July 2018 and served as Execulive Chdir o' the Board from ¢ Dezember 2019 unti 8
September 2020 wncluding a transiianacy penod ‘rom 1 July 2020 to 8 September 2020, wherealftar she returred to her pesibon as Man-Executive Chaw af the
Tulow Board She stepped dawn from the Board on 31 Decernber 2021,

8 Phuthurna Mhieks was appomied Non-Dxecubve Drector and Chair Designate efiective 25 October 2071 and Mon-Executive Char effecimve 1 January 2022
#. Martin Greens.ade was appsinted Chair of the Audit Camrttee folowing the AGM an 23 Apri. 2020
10 Mitchel, ingram was appointed as Board member e*fective 9 September 2020

Material contracts
There have been no contracts or arrangements during the financial year in which a Director of the Company was materially
interested and/or which were significant in relation to the Group's business.

Payments to past Directors
No payments wers made to past Directors in 2021,

Payments for toss of office
No payments were made for loss of office of Executive Directors in 2027.

As announced September 2021, Les Wood will be stepping down from the Board during 2022 following publicatian of Tullow’s
2021 results.

Les Wood will continue to receive his base salary, pension and benefits through to his departure date. Any remaining balance
of his notice period with be pard foltowing his departure. lLes remained eligible for a TIP award for FY2027, which was
assessed on the original performance criteria and is set outin more detail below. He will remain eligible for a TIP award for
any service through 2027, subject to performance criteria assessed at the end of the year and pro rated for the period of
service rendered.

Les will be treated as & good leaver for the purposes of cutstanding 1P awsrds. &5 per the TIP rules, these awards will
continue to vest on therr normal vesting dates. Shares will continue to be subject to the post-cessation sharehalding
requirement for a period of two years after cessation. The shares that Les holds pursuant to the HMRC tax favoured Tullow
Share Incentive Plan will be released on termination of his emnployment. Les witl also receive a capped contribution towards
his legal fees and has been provided cutplacement services. Full details of Les's remuneration arrangements will be
disclosed in next year's Directors’ Rermuneration Report and in the future as required.

Determination of 2022 TIP Award based on performance to 31 December 2021 [audited)

The corporate scorecard 1s made up of a collection of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) which indicate the Company's overall
performance across a range of operational, fingncial, and non-financial measures. The corporate scorecard is central to
Tullow's approach to performance management and the 2021 indicators were agreed with the Board and focus on targets that
were deemed important for the year. Each KPI measured has a percentage weighting and financial indicators have trigger,
base, and stretch performance targets. For the Executive Directors, an additional TSR metric was included, which represents
a weighting of 30% of the total Company Scorecard. The Group’s progress against its corporate scorecard 1s tracked during
the year to assess s performance against its strategy. Fallowing the end of the 2021 financial year, the corporate scorecard
KPI performance was assessed as 78.7% of the maximum for the workforce and 51.2% for the Executive Directors taking into
account the additional TSR metric. The Committee is satisfied with the outcome based on the broader view of performance and
stakeholder experience.
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Details of variable pay earned in the year
Determination of 2022 TIP Award based on performance to 31 December 2021 (audited)
Details of the performance targets and performance agamnst those targets are as follows:

Actual
“mof award  (Rahul Uhir
% of sa.ary and
Performance metric Perlarmance maximurm]  Les Wood] -
Safety Health and safely of our stalf and everyone who is asscciated with our operations, There has 9 89, g 89
Measure of Total been a marked improvement in EHS performance relative to last year (39)% {39)%
Recordable Incident Trigger Base Stretch 2021 Perfermance
Rate [TRIR) and TRIR as per 0GP 092 072 0.58 0.42
Loss of Primnary
Containment Payaut 0% 50% 100% 100%
(LOPC] Tier 1& 2
as per 10GP trigger Bass Strelch 2021 Performance
Number of LOPC Tier 1 & 2 Ter 1: 1 Tier 1: 0 Tier 1: 0 Tier 1:0
as per I0GP Tier2:2 Tier2:1 Tier2:0 Tier 2:0
Payout 0% 50% 100% 100%
There were two recordable injuries in 2021 [versus 8 1n 2020} and zero process safely events
related to Loss of Primary Cantainment [LOPC] at Tier 1 or Tier 2.
Financial Key value driver for our business and tne delivery of this KPl is driven by cost and warking 9 89 7 0%
Performance capital management. (3%]% (28)%
2021
Trigger Base Strelch Performance
Operating Cash Flow
(OCF] ($mm)] 430 478 526 499
Payout 0% 30% 100% 72%
Narmalised operating cash flow of $4%% million [from our absolute OCF of $711 mellion] s
above the midpoint. Despite material improvements in cost performance [both Opex and
G&A slretch targets were not achieved.
Production oo 13% ?2.9%
Targets related to oil Trigyer Base Streich Performance (52)% (39)%
production and vessel  Group production (kepbd] 54 h8 50 583
efficiency Payout 25% 75% 100% 79%
2021
Trigger Base Stretch Perfarmance
Jubilee production etficiency
(% of uptimel 93% 4% 5% 97.8%
Payout 25% 62.5% 100% 100%
2021
Trigger Base Stratch Perfarmance
TEN production efficiency
(% of uptimel $7% 8% 99% 97.2%
Payout 25% 62.5% 100% 33%

The percentage of the awad which is payable for the Base level of performance d-ffers for
each measure 1o reflect the relative challenge associated with each perlormance target.

Narmalised production of 58.3 kbd [from absolute production of 59.2 khd] for 2027 was close
to the streich larget. Strong production growth at Jubilee offset the production declines at
TEN. Operationally, we delivered top-tier benchmark uptime on both operated FPS0s. In
Gaban, production growth fram Simba (ircluding from the expansion project] helped offset
the disappointing performance from Espoir in COI
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued
Details of variable pay earned in the year continued
Determination of 2022 TIP Award based on performance to 31 December 2021 [audited] continued

Actua.
% of award  [Rahu. Dhir
13 of satary and
Perfermance matric Performance maxirmum)] Les Waaod] -
Business Plan Budget Adherence! 9.8% 5.9%
implementation Trigger Base Stretch 2021 Perfarmance (39)% (22%]
Budget Adherence 1.1 x Mid $241m ¢ 0.9 x Mid $229m
Payout 0% 50% 100% 75%
Work Programme achieved considering Capex & Performance
Trigger Base Stretch 2021 Performance
Adherence to
work programme F0% F9% 100%: Q4%
Payout 0% 50% 100% 37%
In 2021 we implemented 4% of the planned activity for the year and within Budget.
Capital Structure A comprehensive debt refinancing was completed in May 2021. $1.8 billion senior secured g 8o, 978
Agree appropriate notes due 2024 were successfully placed, with the proceeds used lo repay outstandings under (39)% (36)%
debl refinancing the Group's RBL facilily [which was subsequently cancelled), a $300 million convertible bond
. and $650 million senior noles. Following the refinancing the Group has no material debt
} maturities until March 2025, providing (at the time of refinancing] four years” liquidity runway
. which will enable Management lo delwer tne Group's Business Plan as set out at a Capilal
‘ Markels Day in November 2020.
' The refinancing has remaoved the risk and administrative burden associated with semi-annual
. debt capacity redeterminations, which were required under the RBL Facility. Under the new
i debl capilal structure there are no ongoing maintenance covenants, and the Group's financial
! auditors cancurred with the Directors assessmenl that following the reftnancing there 1s no
I longer a maternial uncertainty in respect of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
| The Board gave 9.1% out of maximum score of 9.8% due lo the increased ongoing financing
costs as a result of the refinancing
Sustainability In March 2021, we committed to being Net Zero on our Scope 1 and Scope 2 GHG emissions, 4.5% 4. 7%
Embed on a nel equity basis, by 2030, In 2021, we began implementing decarbonising initiatives in (26)% (19]%

Ghana, including the re-mator of two compressors. We appointed Terra Global to wark with
us on the identfication and selection of locally based offsetling projects and agreed a MOU
wilh the Forestry Commission in Ghana te ensure we align with the Government of Ghana's
REDD+ strategy.

Sustainability across
the organ'sation

We invested $4 million in discretionary socis-economic investment supporting education
ana skills developrnent and ente-prise developmen® i1 our communities and host cauntries,
We supportad »7,800 stugents, 701 commun:ty busimesses and 700 local suse'iere

1 across our lecations and were awarded three local content awards n Ghana in recsgnition

} of ths ach evemen:s.

During 2027 we saw an increase in employee engagement fram 1% (1H] to 66% (2H}

The successful impleentazicn of a Cortinuous Perfermance Manzgement process fecused
an centinuous improvernent. A renewed strategy ageed to accelerate localisation aiming for
90% an increase from 75% in 2021,

Tre above performance delivered anead of the base target set and prowides a solid foundation
an which to build «n the future, therefore, a score of 4. 7% out 0” a possible 6.5% was deemed
as reasonable.
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Aclua.
Wafaward  [Rahul Obir

[ of salary and

Performance metric Performance maximum] Les Wood) ™
Leadership The Board made a judgement an the performance and decision making of the senior £.5% 5.29%
Effectiveness leadership team over the year. They considered several factors, including Lhe strength and (26%) (211%

cohesiveness of the leadership team, a clear strategy being set and understoed across the

organisation, a fully engaged workforce, and the successful delivery of business activities in

2021, The improved pe-formance in 2021 has been driven by the hard work and unrelenting

dedicalion of the entire Tullow team resulting in & 5.2% score

The leadership team has warked in 2021 to position the organisation for tuture

sustainable success.
Relative Total Performance against a bespoke group of Listed exploralion and production companies 359 0%
Shareholder measured from July 2020 to 31 December 2021 - 25% is payable at median, increasing to (140%)] (0]%
Return [TSR)? 100% payable at upper quartile

Tullow placed below median.
Total 100% 51.2%

[400%) [204%)

Was previous.y caled ‘Warkmg Capntal and Cost Management’ This s defined as percentage of wosk programme delwered, assessing Capex efhciency and
periormance aganst pre-set objectives and milestones

2 Norma.sed to g budget comparab.e va.ue $257m x % adherence lo work pregramme

3 The TSR comparatar group for the 2021 TIP Award was as ‘olows A'riza Oil Aker BP, Apache, Cairn Energy, DNG, Enguest, Gene. Energy, Kosmos Energy.
Lundin Petroleurn Oi. Search, Ophir Energy, Pharos Fnergy and Santos

In Line with the Palicy, the TIP cutcornes are divided evenly between cash and deferred shares up to the first 200% of base salary.

Any amount above 200% of base salary is awarded entirely in deferred shares. Deferred shares are normally subject to deferral

until the fifth anniversary of grant, normally subject to continued service. The table below shows the values far the Executive Directors:

[hrecta: Cash TIP  Deferred 1112
Rahul Dhir £530.000  £40s,796
Les Woed £4614%5  [£482816

UK SIP shares awarded in 2021 (audited)

The UK SIP is a tax-favoured all-employee plan that enables UK emptoyees to save out of pre-tax salary, Quarterly contributions
are used by the plan trustee to buy Tullow Ot plc shares [partnership shares). The Group funds an award of an equal number

of shares [matching shares). The current maximum contribution 1s £120 per month. Shares held in the plan for five years will

be free of income tax and national insurance, as well as Capital Gains tax if retained in the plan until sold. Details of shares
purchased and awarded to Executive Directors under the UK SIP are as follows:

Tota, shares SIP shares that
Partnarship Matching held 31 12.21 Bricgend bacame  Total unrestricted
Shares held shares acquired shares awarded  [including dnadend  shares acquired unrestricted shares heid at
Director o ma In year Inyear shares]| in the year In year Jnazzn
Les Wood 24817 5,275 6,275 37387 0 0 1,061

1 Unreatricted sharss [which are inc.uded in the total shares held at 31 Decernber 2021] are those which no longer attract a tax babiaty f they are wathdrawn from
the pan
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued
Executive Director and non-executive Director terms of appointment

Number of
comp.ete  Date of current

Year years an  engagement Expury of

Directar appawnted the Board  rammenced  curreat term

Rahul Dhir 2020 1 01.07.20 n/a
_Les Wood 2017 i 20.06.17 n/a -
Phuthurma Nhieko - 2021 0 250021 24.10.2;

Mike Daly 2014 7 30.05.20 31.06.23

Martin Greenslade o 2019 2 01,1119 31.10.22

7 Sheila Khama - 2019 2 26.04.19 25.04.22

Mitchell Ingram 2020 1 09.09.20  08.09.23
Genevieve Sangudi - 2019 2 26.04.19 25.04.227
Jeremy Wilsan T o3 8 201019 201027

In the case of each non-executive Director, the appeintment is renewable thereafter if agreed by the Director and the Board.
The appaintment of any non-executive Director may be terminated by either party on three months notice. There are no
arrangements under which any non-executive Director is entitled to receive compensation upon the early termination of his or
her appointment.

CEQ - total pay versus TSR
For 2021 the CEO total pay is based on the summation of the actual base pay, pension, benefits and TIP cash bonus and share
award equivalent value far Rahul Ohir for the financial year ending 31 December 2021,

CFD TATAL PAY WERLUS AL TOTAL SHARFEGIDZR BETURY
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Comparison of overall performance and pay

The Remuneration Committee has chosen to compare the TSR of the Company's ordinary shares against the FTSE 250 index;
whilst the Company was placed outside of the index in 2021, we believe the size and complexity of the ocrganisation stitl makes
this a comparable index. The values indicated In the graph above shaw the share price growth plus re-invested dividends for the
period 2012 to 7021 from a £100 hypothetical holding of ordinary shares in Tullow Oil plc and in the index.

The total remuneration figures for the Chief Executive during each of the last 10 financial years are shown in the tables below.
The total remuneration figure includes the annual bonus based on that year’'s performance {2012 to 20273, PSP awards based on
three-year performance periods ending in the relevant year [2012] and the value of TIP Awards based on the performance period
ending in the relevant year (2013 to 2021). The annual bonus payout, PSP vesting level and TIP Award, as 2 percentage of the
maximum opportunity, are also shown for each of these years.

Year ending In

Lidan Heavey 2012 2013 2014 201% 2006 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Total

remuneration £2,623,116 £2,750,273 (2,378,316 {2,835709 £2,893232 £1,717,276 - - - -
Annual bonus 70% - - - - - - - oo
PSP vesting 23% —: - - - - - - -
TIP - 30% 23%  38% 39% 40% - _ _ -

Year ending in

Pau. McDade 2012 3 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total

remuneration n/a nfa n/a n/a nfa £1,416,281£7.759,684 (986,706 - -

TIP - - n/a n/a n/a n/a 40% o 6;-[]_3;/0 0% - -
Year ending in

Derothy Thampson 50_1—2— l 2013 2614 2015 2016 hz&r 7 2018 209 2020 2021

Total

remuneration n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 37,704 418,452 nfa
Year ending 1

Rahu. D1 T 2013 2014 2015 o016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total

remuneration n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa £688,51% £1,860,806

TIP n/a - n/a n/a n/a n/a n_/?af n/a n/a 20% 51.2%

1&2 For 2017 total remuneraticn figures are shown for Aidan Heavey based on the period he he.d the ofice of Chie® kxacutive 0% icar and for the transiion period
upta 31 October 2077 and ‘or Pau. McDade from 27 Apri. 2017 when he commenced in fus office o7 Chie® Executive,

3 For 2020, total remuneration s shown for Darothy Thampsan fer the period she served as Executive Chair, e 1 January 2020 to 8 September 2020 Fer 2019,
the amount shawn 15 the Executive Chatr fee pro-rata for the penod ¢ December 2019 to 31 December 2019 Dorothy Thompson did not partcipate in any
mncentive pians whilst serving as Executive Chair

4 For 2020, total remuneraticn 1s shown for Rahu, Dhir irem the comenencement of his appaintment as Chie® kxecutive 0%izer on b Juy 2020,

Percentage change in Chief Executive’'s remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in the Chief Executive’s total remuneration (excluding the value of any pension
benefits receivable in the year) batween the financial year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, compared to that
of the average for all employees of the Group.

Y change “rom 2020 to 2021

Salary Benefits Bonus
Chief Executive 0% 379.8%" 241.0%!
Average employees 2.8% 7.0%:2 119.9%

1. t~crease in bene‘its and bonus for Rahu, dug to a fulyear cf beneits and bonus payab.e in 2021, he joined as Chig® Exacutive O icer on 1 Juy 2020

2 Increase in average emp.oyee benefitu 15 driven by changes ta an-ua' medical insurance premiums
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued
Additicnal statutory information - percentage change in remuneration for executive and non-executive Directors

% change ‘rem 2020 to 2021 % change from 2019 to 2020

Salary/tees Bene'its Bonus Sa.aryl'ees Benefits Bonus

Phuthurma Nhleko! nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Les Wood 0% 622%7 149% 0% 629%? n/a
) Borothy Thompson (471%]? n/a n/a 59% n/a n/a
Jeremy Wilson 0% [78%]" n/a 5% (60%)° n/a
Mike Daly [19%]" n/a n/a 0% n/a n/a
Martin Greenslade’ 8% n/a nfa 625% n/a - n/a
MitcTer—FHQra—mé o 295% l n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Genevieve Sangud 0% (100%!° n/a 66% {B3%° nfa
Sheita Khama 0% (100%]> n/a 46% (56%]* ‘ nfa

1. Phuthura Nhizko joined during 2027 thereore has no movements to show

2 Increase in benefils *or Les Wood 15 due to hourday cash oul far 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and autplacement services prov.ded in re.ation Lo his
planned departure.

3 Decreave in sa.ary for Dorothy Thempsan ret.ects a derrease of her fees a'ter stepping down from the role o' Executive Chair m 8 September 2020

4 Ihe decrease in fees for Mike Daly 1s due to him stepming dawn from Chair o° the Sa‘ety & Sustainabiaty Committes an 31 Dezember 2020
Bene‘its have reduced due to reduced travel during the COVID-19 pandermic

& Theancrease in‘ees for Mitchelu Ingram re‘lect his appanted to the Board in lale 2020, and ham a.50 becoming Chair of the Safety & Sustainabity Committee
from 1 January 2021

7 Themncrease infees for Martin Greenslade reflect a full year in role as Chair of Lhe Audit Commitlee 1n 2021

CEO pay ratio 2021

2bth percenti.e Median 75th percert.e
Year Method pay ratic pay ratm pay ratic
2021 A 16:1 10:1 8:1
2020 A 7:1 5:1 3:1
2019 A 8.1 5:1 4:1
2018 {voluntary disclosure) A 23:1 15:1 101

Tullow has calculated the CEO pay ratio using the methodology described as "Option A" in the Regulations, as Tuliow recognises
that this s the most statistically accurate form of calculation.

For each UK employee’ the STFR has been calculated as a summation of base pay, benefits, employer pension contributions
recewvable during the year ended 31 December 2021 and cash bonus payable and value of share awards to be granted for the
performance year 31 December 2021, The STFR at 25th percentile 15 £118,182, £181,098 at median and £244,252 at 75th percentile.
The wages component at 25th percentile is £83,524, £130,000 at median and £168,328 at 75th percentile.

In setting both our CEQ remuneration and the remuneration structures for the wider UK workforce, Tullow has adopted a
remuneration structure which includes the same core components for employees at all levels [base pay, benefits, pension, cash
bonus and share awards!. Whilst all employees receve a base salary commensurate to our position in the market, the differences
exist in the guantum of vanable pay achievable by our Executives and Sermor Management; at these levels there is a greater
amphasis placed on variable pay given their apportunity to impact directly on Company performance. Based on this distinction, the
Company believes taking into account Company performance in a particular financial year and the impact on varable pay, that the
median pay ratio 15 consistent with and reflective of the wider pay, reward and progression policies impacting our UK employees.
Performance for 2021 is not easily comparable to 2020 as Rahul Dhir was appointed at the beginning of the second half of 2020
and this 1s reflective in the pre rata remuneration used for the purpose of this calculation in 2020. In 2019, no TIP awards were paid
which also means a lower pay ratio. The Committee will monitor longer-term trends.

1 A.STFRs have baen bazed on a ‘ul-time equiva.ent and annualised to prowide a dataset for the ‘u. year 31 December 2021, Tu..ow wol.d ake tc burd en this
reporting in “uture years by looking at the same dalaset fsr employees glaba.y to deterrming a g.cba. CEO pay ratio
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Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table shows the Group's actual spend on pay for all empleyees relative to tax and retained profits.

Staff costs have been compared to tax expense and retained prafits in order to provide a measure of their scale compared to
other key elements of the Group's financial metrics.

2020 2021 9 change
Statf costs [Em] 105.0 60.4 T4%
Tax (crediti/expense ({m]’ (35.9) 206.1 (117]%
Retained prafits [Em]’ {1,735.9] (1,681.6] 3%
I Vountary disclosure
Summary of past share awards
Detatls of share awards granted to Executive Directors:
Granted Exercised Faruestdate  Latest date
Award grant  Share price an As al during during Asat  sharescan be shaes can
Director dale grant date gro 21 the year Llhe yedr 31z acquired be acquired
Les Wood 27.04.17 214p 101,249 E 101,249 0 270420  27.07.27
US.UZ.TQ - 187p 148,802 ‘ - - 148,807 08.02.23 08.02.28
14.02.19 219p 288,617 - - 288,617 140224 140229
15.03.2] 5i7p 338765 - - 338,765  15.03.26  15.03.31
Dividend equivalents . -
08.02.18 ]Q.UE}.]‘? 187p 2,605 - - 2,600 DS.U?E 08.02.28
14.02.19 10.05.19 219 5,052 - - 5052 140224 1402.29
08.02.8 171009 187 1372 - - 1372 080223 080208
7721.02‘19 17.10.19 2W9p- 2,661 - - 2,661 14.02.24 14.02.29
889,123 - 101,249 787 874
Rahul Dhir? 05.08.20 27 48p 9,000,000 - 9000000 01.07.25  30.06.30
15.02.21 SiJp 319316 319316 150326 15.03.31

1 LesWoad - al. awvards granted to Les Wood are TIP Awards Those granted on 27 Apn. 2017 prior e appoiniment as an Executive Directar have a three-year vesting penod
2 Rahul Dhir - share awards granted on 05 Augus: 2020 represen” 'Buyfour Awards' to replace share arrangements t~at were forirted upon leaving his former employer [full

details of which are avai.ab.e In a5t yaar's Directers Remuneration Report] The awards granted in 2021 are TIF awards
P g

Share price range

During 2021, the highest mid-market price of the Company's shares was 64.94p and the lowast was 25.72p. The year end price

was 46.45p.
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued
Directors interests in the share capital of the Company laudited}
The interests of the Directors (all of which were beneficiall, who held office during FY 2021, are set out in the table below:

% of sa.ary

under 2021
Rermunearation
Ordinary shares held PD_UCV TIP Awards Buyout Awards SIP SIP tota.
sharehaolding
01 01.21 3z guideiunes! Unvested Vested Unvested Vested  Restricted  Unrestricted 3r2.21
Executive Directors
Rahul Dhir? 1,346,000 1,346,000 307% 319316 - 9000000 - - - -
Les Woed 198,457 198,457 &5% 787874 - - - 36,306 1061 37367
Non-executive Directors
Mike Daly 4,795 4,795 - - - - - - - -
Dorothy Thornpson 68,148 68,148 - - - - - - - -
Jeremy Wilson 87,959 87,959 - - - - - . . -
Genevieve Sangudi - - - - - _ - - _ -

Sheila Khama - 7‘077[]7 - - - - - - _ _

Martin Greenslade - - - - - - _ - B -
Mitchell Ingram - 50,000 - - - - _ - _ -
Phuthuma Nhleko - - - _ - _ _ _ _ _

1 Calcu.ated vsing shate price of 46 4bp at year end Under the Company's shareholding guidelines, sach Executive Director is required to buid up then
sharehnidings in the Company s shares to at least 400% o Lheir current salary Further details of the mimmum shareho.ding requirement are set oat in the
Remureration Pelicy Repart

2 QOrdinary shares and unvested awards held by Rahu. Uhir are in respect of his Buyout Award grantad on commencemenl ol emp.oyment
On 5 January 2022 Les Wood was awarded 1,834 SIP shares, all of which are restricted.
There have been na ather changes in the interests of any Birector between 1 January 2022 and the date of this report.

Implementation of Policy for Executive Directors for 2022
The Remuneration Policy will be implemented during 2022 as follows:

- base salary for Rahul Dhir will be increased by 3% in line with increases awarded to UK based employees. No increase will be
awarded to Les Wood for the remainder of his employment during 2021,

- pension provision will be 15% of salary for Rehul Dhir [workforce aligned] and 25% of salary for Les Waood for the remainder of
his employment; and

- TIP Award with a maximum opparturnty of 400% of salary based on:
- Safety [7.5%);
- Financial Performance [5.0%].
- Production (10.0%);
- Business Plan Implementation [7.5%);
- Sustainability {5.0%);
- Unlecking Value £10.0%);
- Leadership Effectiveness [5.0%); and
- Relative TSR (50%)*.

* An adyusted TSR campansen period will a.50 appy, tis coks at the average share price in the 20 trading days prior to tne cemmangement of Raha. Dhir on
T Jaly 2222
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The pension arrangements for any new appointment will be aligned with those of the wider workforce. Any TIP Award will be
pre-rated for the period of service rendered in the year.

Please see page 15 of this report for further disclosure and details of these targets and how they are linked te our strategy.

- No changes will be made to the Chair nor the ncn-executive Director fees from 2027 levels.

Looking forward to 2022

- The Committee will seek to engage and consult with major shareholders as part of the review of the current remuneration
policy ta ensure support and clear understanding of any changes that may be proposed and in anticipation of a binding
vote in 2023,

The Committee will continue to review the remuneration arrangements of the wider workforce when considering arrangements
for Executives and Senior Management.

Governance
Remuneration Committee members
Jeremy Wilson {Cammittee Chairl, Genevieve Sangudi and Mitchell Ingram.

Remuneration Cornmittee membership and attendance

All members of the Cormmitiee are independent non-executive Directors. None of the Committee members has day-to-day
involvernent with the business and nor do they have any personal financial interest, except as shareholders, in the matters to
be recomnmended. The number of formal meetings held and the attendzance by each member is shown in the table on page 54,
The Committee also held informal discussions as required.

The Group Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Cormnmittee and is available to assist the members of the Committee as
required, ensuring that imely and accurate information is distributed accardingly. The Chief Executive and other members of
the Management Team may be invited to attend Commitiee meetings to provide business context and performance updates.
However, no member of Management is present when their awn remuneration is determined.

Advice received fram the Committee during 2021
During 2021, the Company Secretary and the Committee’s consuttants also provided corporate governance guidance support to
the Committee.

The Committee received external advice frem FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT) during 2027 in respect of the
implementation of the Policy. FIT was appointed as the Commitiee’s advisers in 2019 following a competitive tender procass.
FIT1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and is 4 signatory to its Code ot Conduct and provided no other
services to the Company. Fees [ex VAT] paid to FIT respectively for advice provided during 20721 amounted to £546,807. FIT does
not provide any other services and does not have any other connections to the Campany or the Directors that may affect its
independence. The Committee evaluates the services provided by external advisers and is satisfied that the advice received
from FIT was objective and independent.

Activities of the Committee during 2021

A summary of the main Committee activities during 7027 are set out below:

- setting an appropriately stretching set of key performance metrics for the 2021 KPI scorecard;

- monitoring progress against the 2021 KP| scorecard;

- reviewing feedback received from sharehalders at the 2021 AGM;

- review of changes in remunegration-related guidance, shareholder policies and governance matters;

- reviewing the remuneration arrangements, including benchmarking of Total Remuneration for Senior Managers and
reviawing the implementation of the revised pay philosophy and principles for the wider workforce;

- review of the Committee’s performance and terms of reference;
- agreeing the leaver arrangements for Les Wood;
- review of draft KPls for 2022 to align with strategy and culture of Tullow; and

- setting of fees for our new Chairman
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Remuneration report continued

Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Principles of Executive Director remuneration

The Committee seeks to ensure that the Directors Remuneration Policy and its practices are consistent with the six factors set
out in Provision 40 of the new UK Corporate Governance Code:

Clarity

Our Policy 1s well understood by our Senior Executive Team and has been clearly articulated to our shareholders and
representative bodies [both en an sngoing basis and during the recent consultstion exercise).

Simplicity

The Committee 1s mindful of the need to avoid overly complex remuneration structures which can be misunderstood and deliver
unintended outcornes. Therefore, a key objective of the Committee 15 to ensure that our Executive remuneration policies and
practices are straightforward to communicate and operate.

Risk

Our Policy has been designed to ensure that inappropriate risk taking 1s discouraged and will not be rewarded via: (1] the
balanced use of both annuzl and three-year performance periods which employ a blend of financial, non-financial and
shareholder return targets; lul the significant role played by deferred equity in our incentive plans [together with in-employment
and post-cessation shareholding guidelines and five-year vesting period}; {ni] malus/clawback provisions; and (] the ability to
exercise negative discretion to remuneration cutcomes.

Predictability
The TiP is subject to an individual annual cap and market standard dilution limits.

Proportionality

There is a clear link between individual awards, delivary of strategy and our long-term performance. in addition, the significant
role played by incentive/ at-risk’ pay, together with the structure of the Executive Direclors’ service contracts, ensures that poor
performance is not rewarded.

Alignment to culture
Our Executive pay policies are fully aligned to luliow's culture through the use of metrics in the TIP that measure how we
perform against our financial and non-financial KPls.

Shareholder voting at the AGM
At last year's AGM an 16 June 2021 the remuneration-related resolutions received the following vates from shareholders:

2020 Annua. Stalement and Annua. Repart on Bemuneration

lotai number of voles % of votes cast

For ] 700,791,473 81.55

A—gainst 158,497 388 18.45

lata number of votes % o 1ST votes

Total votes cast [for and agalpstf 859,788,841 60.17%
Votes withheld 250,684
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Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report

This part of the Oirectors’ Rernuneration Policy sets out @ summary of the Rernuneration Policy for the Company which became
effective fallowing approval from shareholders through a binding vote at the AGM held on 23 April 2020. The full Policy can be
found in the 2020 Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Policy overview

The principles of the Remuneration Committee are to ensure that remuneration is linked to Tullow's strategy and promote
the aitraction, motivation and retention of the highest quality executives who are key to delivering sustainable long-term valua
growth and substantial returns to shareholders.

Summary Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Base salary

Purpase and ank ta cirategy Opcration Masirmurm appartumity

Ta provide an appropriate level of Generally reviewed annually with increases normally  Any increases to current Execulive Director
fixed cash income effective from 1 April Base salaries w Ul be set by the  salaries, presented in the ‘Application of Policy
Committee taking into account: in 2020 column below this Policy table, will not
normally exceed the average increase awarded
to other UK-based employees

To attract and retain individuals
with the persanal attributes, skills - Lhe scale, scope. and responsibibity of (e role:
and experience required lo deliver

- lhe skills and expenience of the individual,
our strategy.

Increases may be above this level in cerlain
the base salary of other employees, including circumstances, {or inslance if there 1s an
increases awarded to the wider population; and increase In the scale, scope or responsibility
of the role or 1o allow the base salary of
newly appoinied Executives to move lowards
market norms as their experience and
contribution increase

- the base salary of individuals undertaking similar
roles in companies of cemparable s'ze and
complexity. This may include international oil and
gas sector cormpanies or a broader group of FT5E
listed arganisations.

Perfarmance and pravisicns lor the recovery

A broad assessment of individual and business perfarmance is used as part of the salary review

Na recovery provisions apply.

Pension and benefits

Purposs and ank to strategy Operation MaximLm oppartunity
To allracl and retain indwviduals Delined contribution pension scheme or salary Pension: Warkforce aligned for new Executive
with the personal allribules, skills  supplement in lieu of pension. The Company daes Directors. Workforce aligned (as a percentage
and experience required to deliver  not operate or have any legacy defined benefit of salary) by 1 January 2023 for incumbent
our strategy. penston schemes. Direclors.
Medical insurance, income protection and life Benefits: The range of henefits that may
assurance. Additional benefits may be provided as be provided is set by the Commiittee after
appropriate. takirg inlo account local market practice in

the country where the Executive i1s based

No monetary maxirmum is given for benefits
provided to Lhe Executive Directors as the cost
will depend on individual circumstances.

Tullow UK SIP: Up to HM Revenue & Customs
[HMRC] limits Maximum participation levels
and matching levels for all stafl, including
Executive Directors, are set by reference to the
rules of the plan and relevant legislation.

Executive Directors may participale in the Tullow UK
Share Incentive Plan [SIP).

Perforrnance and prawisions for the recovery

MNat applicable.
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Remuneration report continued

Directors’ Remuneration Policy Report continued
Summary Directors’ Remuneration Policy continued

Tullow Incentive Plan (TIP)

Purpose and Link to strategy

To provide a simple, competitive,

performance-linked incentive

plan that:

- aligns the interests of
Management and shareholders;

promotes the long-term
success of the Company;

provides a real incentive

to achieve our slrategic
objectives and deliver superior
shareholder returns; and

will atlract, retain and motivate
ndividuals wilh the required
persanal attributes, skills and
experience.

Operatian

An annual TIP Award cansisting of up to 400% of
base satary which i1s divided evenly between cash and
deferred shares up to the first 200% of base salary.

Any arount above 200% of base salary is awarded
entirely in deferred shares.

Deferred shares are normally subject to deferral
until the fifth anniversary of grant, normatly subject
lo continued service.

TiFP Awards are non-pensicnable and will be
made in line with the Carmnmittee’s assessment of
performance targets.

At Lhe discrelion of the Commitlee, any porlion of
the cash component of a TIP Award can be satisfied
by granting deferred shares with a vesling dale set
by the Committee being not earlier than the first
anniversary of grant.

Performance and provisiens [or the recovery

Maximum opportunity
400% of salary.

Dividend equivalents will accrue on TIP deferred
shares over the vesting period

A balanced scorecard of stretching financial and operatianal objeclives, linked to the achievement of Tullow's long-term strategy, will be used
lo assess TIP gulcomes which may include largets relating to: relative or absolute Total Shareholder Return (TSR): earnings per share (EPS);
environmental, health and safety {EHS]; financial; production; operations; praject; explaration; or specific strateqgic and personal objectives.

Performance will typically be measured over one year for all measures apart from TSR and EPS, which, if adopted, will normally be measured
over the three financial years prior to grant

No mare than 25% of the max:imum TIP oppartunity will be payable for threshold performance.

Recaovery provisions apply [sec below].

Shareholding guidelines

Purpose and Link to strategy

To align the interesls of
Managernent and sharehaolders
and promole a long-term
approach lo performance and risk
managament.

Operater:

Executive Directars are required to retain al least
100% of post-tax share awards untila minimum
shareholding equivalent to 400% of basze =alary is
ach’eved 11 owned shares,

Unvested TIP shares net of applicable taxes count
towards the minimum shareholding requirement.
Shares included in this calculalion are those held
beneficially by the Executive Director and his or her
spouse/civil partner

Frorm the 2020 AGM, 50% af the sharehcld ng guideline
{1.e 200% of salary) will ne=d to be reta ned by
Executive Directors for two years posl-cessalion.

Perfarmance and provisions ‘o tne recovery

Net applicable.

Maximurm oppartunity

400% of salary.
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Non-executive Directors

Purpose and Link to strategy

To provide an apprepriate fee evel
to attract individuals with the
necessary experience and abilily
to maxe a significant contribution
la the Group's activities while also
reflecting the time commitment
and respansibility of the role.

Dperation

The Chair is paid an annual fee and the non-
executive Directors are paid a base lee and additional
respansibility fees for the role of Senior Independent
Director or for chairing & Board Committee.

Fees are normally reviewed annually.

Fach non-executive Directar is also entitled to
areimbursement of necessary travel and other
expenses including associated tax costs.

MNen-executve Directors do not partipate in any

Maxirmurm opportumty

Non-executive Oirector remuneration is
determined within Lthe limits sel by the Articles
of Association.

There 1s no maximum prescribed fee increase
although fee increases for non-executive
Directars will not normally exceed the average
increase awarded to Executive Direclors.
Increases may be above this level if there 1s an
Increase In the scale, scope or responsibility

of the role

share scherne or annual bonus scheme and are nol
cligible to join the Group’s pension schemes,

Perfarmance and provisions for the recovery

Not applicable

Calculation of TIP Awards

fn addition to base salary and other benefits described in the
Remuneration Policy, each Executive Director shall be eligible
to receive an award 1ssued under the rules of the TIP (2 TIP
Award). The TIP combines short- and long term incentive-
based pay and includes a cash bonus cormponent and a
deferred share award component.

At the beginning of each financial year, the Committee will
determine a multiple of base salary, subject to the imits
established under this Policy, to apply to a TIP Award. At the
same time the Committee will also determine a balanced
corporate scorecard of performance metrics applicable to any
TIP Award. The choice of the performance metrics and the
weightings given to them, which are set by the Committee at
the start of the relevant financial year normally, reflect the
Commuttee’s belief that any incentive compensation should be
appropriately challenging and tied to the delivery of stretching
financial, operational and Total Shareholder Return (TSR]
related objectives, explicitly linked to the achievement of
Tullow's long-term strategy.

Following completion of the financial year, the Committee
will review the Company’s performance against the corporate
scorecard resutting in a percentage score. The multiple set
by the Committee is then applied to the percentage score

to determine the total TIP Award amount. A TIP Award 1s
divided equally hetween cash bonus and deferred shares up
to the first 200% of base salary. Any portion of a TIP Award
above 200% of base salary shall be satisfied in deferred
shares only. Deferred shares forming part of a TIP Award
are normally deferred for five years and are subject to malus
and clawback. Inits discretion, the Committee may elect

to satisty any portion of the cash bonus element ofa TIP
Award in deferred shares which will be deferred for a period
determined by the Committee, being not less than one year

from the date of grant. Deferred shares issued in lieu of any
portion of the cash bonus component of a TIP Award shall he
subject to malus, clawback and the minimum shareholding
requirements set out on page 86 of this report.

Approval

This report was approved tiy the Board of Directors on
8 March 2022 and signed on its hehalf by

i

Jeremy Wilson
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

8 March 2022
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Other statutory information

The Directors present their Annual Report and audited
Financial Statements for the Group for the year ended
31 December 2027,

Principal activities

Tullew 15 an independent cil and gas, exploration and
production group, quoted on the London, Euronext Dublin and
Ghanaian stock exchanges. The Group has interests in over
30 exploration and production icences across eight countries,

Strategic Report

The Group is required by section 414A of the Companies Act
2006 and the Central Bank of Ireland’s Transparency (Directive
2004/109/EC} Regutations 2007 (as amended| to present a
Strategic Report in the Annual Report. This can be found on
pages 1to 21. The Strategic Report contains an indication

of the Directors’ view on likely future developments in the
business of the Group. In additian, following the introduction
of the EU Non-Financial Reporting Directive, the Strategic
Report also provides direction on where information on the
impact of activities on employees, sociat and environmental
matters, human rights and anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters can be tound within the Annual Report and Financial
Statements, as well as a description of the Group's policies
and where these are located. The Corporate Governance
Report on pages 52 to 87 is the corporate governance
statement for the purposes of Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 7.2.1. The Annual Report and Financial
Statements use financial and non-financial KPls wherever
possible and appropriate.

Results and dividends

The loss on ordinary activities after taxation of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 was $81 million [2020: (oss
of $1,222 million).

In 2021, the Board recommended that no interim and final
dividend would be paid.

Subsequent events since 31 December 2021

Adjusting events

On 15 February 2022 a panel of arbitrators, working under
the jurisdiction of Norwegian law, delivered an award in
favour of HiTec Vision [HiTec) in relation to its dispute with
Tullow [Award). The panel had been asked to adjudicate as to
whether discoveries made in the PL-537 Licence [Qffshare
Norway] between 2013 and 2016 had triggered a further
payment under the SPA between Tullow and HiTec regarding
the purchase of Spring Energy in 2013, With the Award, the
panel has decided by way of splt decision that conditions for
a further payment outlined in the SPA were met. The Tribunal
ruled that Tullow should pay 76 millian. This amount also
includes interest and costs. This has been recognised in tne
balance sheet as a liability as at 37 December 2021.
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Non-adjusting events

FID for the Tilenga Project in UJganda and the East African
Crude Oil Pipeline [EACOP] as reported by Total Energies Ltd on
1 February 2022 triggered a contingent consideration payment
of $75 million [net of $7 million indemnity provision relating to
tax audits] in relation to Tullow's sale of its assets in Uganda to
Total in 2020 which was received on 16 February 2022. This was
recognised as a current receivable as at 31 December 2021.

There have not been any other events since 371 December
2021 that have resulted in a material impact on the year
end results.

Share capital

As at 7 March 2021, the Company had an allotted and fully
paid up share capital of 1,434,159,242 ordinary shares each
with a nominal value of £0.70.

Substantial shareholdings

I As at 31 December 2021, the Company had been notified

in accordance with the requirements of provision 5.1.2 of
the Financial Conduct Authority's Disclasure Guidance and
Transparency Rutes of the following significant holdings in
the Company's ordinary share capital:

% at1ssued
capia. [as
at date cf

Shargho.der Number of shares  natification]
Petrolin Group

[Samuel Dossou-Aworet) 1,408,609,725 13.07%
Azvalor Assel Management

SGIILC, S A 129 405,439 9 04%
RWC Asset Management LLP 71,022,015 5.09%
Summerhill Trust Company

[Isle of Man] Limited 58 838,104 4.19%
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc 36,204,265 2.54%

As at 7 March 2022, the Company had been notified in
accordance with the requirements of provision 5.1.2 of

the Financial Conduct Autherity's Disclosure Guidance

and Transparency Rules and the Central Bank of Ireland’s
Transparency (Directive 2004/109/EC] Regulations 2007

[as amended) of the following significant hotdings in the
Company’'s ordinary share capital since 31 December 2021:

i ot isssed

capital las

at date o

Sharehoder Nu=ber o shases  nalfication)
Azvalor Asset Management

S.G.ILC, S.A 143,900,820 $0.04%




Sharehelders’ rights

The rights and obligations of shareholders are sel out in the
Company's Articles of Association [which can be amended by
special resolution). The rights and obligations attaching to the
Caompany's shares are as follows:

- dividend rights - holders of the Company’s shares may, by
ordinary resolution, declare dividends but may not declare
dividends in excess of the amount recommended by the
Directors. The Directors may also pay interim dividends.
No dividend may be paid other than cut of profits avatlable
for distribution. Subject to shareholder approval, payment
or satisfaction of a dividend may be made wholly or partly
by distribution of specific assets;

- voting rights - voting at any general meeting may be
conducted by a show of hands unless a poll is duly
demanded. On a show of hands every shareholder who is
present in person at a general meeting (and every proxy or
corporate representative appointed by a shareholder and
present at a general meeting] has one vote regardless of the
number of shares held by the shareholder (or represented
by the proxy or corporate representativel. If 2 proxy has
been appointed by more than one shareholder and has been
instructed by one or more of those sharehaolders to vote for’
the resolution and by one or more of those shareholders
to vote ‘against’ a particutar resolution, the proxy shall
have one vote for and one vote against that resolution. On
a poll, every shareholder who is present in person has one
vote for every share held by that sharehclder and a proxy
has one vote for every share in respect of which he has
been appointed a3 proxy (the deadline for exercising vating
rights by proxy is set out in the farm of proxy]. On a pol!, a
carparate representative may exercise all the powers of the
Company that has authorised him;

- a poll may be demanded by any of the following: (al the
Chairman of the meating: (bl at least five shareholders
entitled to vote and present in person or by proxy or
represented by a duly authorised corporate representative
at the meeting; (c) any shareholder or shareholders present
in persan or by proxy or represented by a duly authorised
corporate representative and holding shares or baing a
representative in respact of a holder of shares representing
in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of the totat voting
rights of all shareholders entitied to attend and vote at the
meeting; or [d] any shareholder ar shareholders present
in person or by proxy or represented by a duly authorised
carparate representative and holding shares or being a
representative in respect of a holder of shares conferring
a right to attend and vote at the meeting on which there
have been paid up sums in the aggregate equal to not less
than one-tenth of the total sums paid up on all the shares
canferring that right;

- return of capital - in the event of the liquidation of the
Company, after payment of all Liabitities and deductions
taking priority, the balance of assets available for distribution
will be distributed among the holders of ordinary shares
according te the amounts paid up on the shares held by
them. A liquidator may, with the authority of a special

resolution, divide among the shareholders the whole or any
part of the Company’s assets, or vest the Company’s assets
in whole ¢r in part in trustees upon such trusts for the
benefit of shareholders, but no sharehotder is compelled to
accept any property in respect of which there is a liability;

- control rights under emplayee share schermes — the
Company operates a number of employee share schemes.
Under some of these arrangements, shares are held by
trustees on behalf of employees. The employees are not
entitled to exercise directly any voting or other control
rights. The trustees will generally vote in accordance with
employees’ instructions and abstain where no instructions
are received. Unallocated shares are generally voted at the
discretion of the trustees: and

- restrictions on holding securities - there are no restrictions
under the Company's Articles of Association or under UK law
that either restrict the rights of UK resident shareholders
to hold shares or mit the nights of non-resident or
foreign shareholders to hold or vote the Company’s
ordinary shares.

There are no UK foreign exchange contral restrictions on
the payment of dividends to US persons on the Company’s
ordinary shares.

Material agreements containing

‘change of control’ provisions

The following significant agreements will, in the event of a
‘change of control’ of the Campany, be affected as follows:

- to the extent that a ‘change of control’ occurs, as a result
of: i) 2 disposal of all or substantially all the properties or
assets of the Company and all its restricted subsidiaries
(other than through a merger or consolidation] in one or
a series of related transactions; [il] a plan being adopted
relating to the liquidation or dissoluticn of the Company; or
(in] any person becoming the beneficial owner, directly or
indirectly, of shares of the Company which grant that person
rnore than 50% of the voting rights of the Company:

- under the $600 million senior secured revolving facility
agreement between, among others, the Company
and certain subsidiaries of the Company, ABSA Bank,
Barclays, BNP Paribas, DNB (UK], JP Morgan, ING
Belgium, Nedbank, Standard Chartered Bank, Standard
Bank of South Africa, Glas Trust Carporation and the
lenders specified there in, the Company is ebliged to
naotify the agent [who notifies the lenders] upon the
occurrence of a change of control. Each lender shall
be entitled to repayment of all outstanding amounts
owed by the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Company to 1t under the agreement and any
connected finance document. Each lender shall be
entitled to cancel its commitments immediately under
the agreement. 5o long as such lender states its
requirement to be repaid within 30 days of being natified
by the agent, the repayment amount will becorme due
and payable by no later than 30 days after the agent
has notified the Company to request such payments.

Tullew Oil ple 2021 An~ual Repart and Accounts 89



Other statutory information continued

Material agreements containing
‘change of control’ provisions continued
- under an Indenture relating to $1.8 billion of 10.25%

senior secured notes due in 2026 between, among
others, the Company, certain subsidiaries of the
Company and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited
as the Trustee, the Company must make an offer to
noteholders to repurchase all or any part the notes
at 101% of the aggregate principle amount cf the
notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest on the notes
repurchased to the date of purchase in the event
that a change of control of the Company occurs.
The repurchase offer must be rnade by the Company
to all noteholders within 30 days following the change
of control and the repurchase must take place no
earlier than 10 days and no later than 60 days from
the date of the repurchase offer.

- relating to $800 million of 7% Senior Notes due in
2025 between, among others, the Company certain
subsidiaries of the Company and Deutsche Trustee
Company Limited as the Trustee, the Company must
make an offer to noteholders to repurchase all the
notes at 101% of the aggregate principte amount of the
notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest in the event
that a change of control of the Company accurs. The
repurchase offer must be made by the Company to
all notecholders within 30 days fotlowing the change of
control and the repurchase must take place no eartier
than 10 days and no later than 40 days from the date
the repurchase offer i1s made. Each noteholder may
take up the offer in respect of all or part of its notes.

Directors
The biographical details of the Directors of the Company at the
date of this report are given on pages b8 and 59.

Details of Directors service agreements and letters of
appointment can be found on page 78. Details of the Directors’
Interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and in the
Group's long term incentive and other share aption schemes
are set out on page 82 in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Directors’ indemnities and insurance cover

As at the date of this report, indemnities are in force under
which the Company has agreed to indemnify the Directors,

to the extent permitted by the Companies Act 2004, against
claimms from third parties in respect of certain liabilities arising
out of, or In connection with, the execution of their powers,
duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries. The Directors are also indemnified
against the cost of defending a criminal presecution or a claim
by the Company. its subsidiaries or a regulator prowvided that
where the defence is unsuccessful the Directar must repay
those defence costs. The Company also maintains directors’
and officers liability insurance cover, the level of which 1s
reviewed annually.
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Conflicts of interest

A Director has a duty to avoid a situation in which he or she
has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts,
or possibly may conflict, with the interests of the Group.

The Board requires Directors to declare all appointments
and other situations that could result in a possible conflict of
interest and has adopted appropriate procedures to manage
and, if appropriate, approve any such conflicts. The Board is
satisfied that there 1s no compromise to the independence of
those Directors who have appointments on the boards of, or
relationships with, companies outside the Group.

Powers of Directors

The general powers of the Directors are set out in Article 104 of
the Articles of Association of the Company. It providas that the
business of the Company shall be managed by the Board which
may exercise all the powers of the Company whether relating
to the management of the business of the Company or not. This
power I1s subject to any timitations imposed on the Campany by
applicable legislation. It is also Limited by the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company and any directions given
by special resolution of the shareholders of the Company which
are applicable on the date that any power I1s exercised.

Please note the following spectfic provisions retevant to the
exercise of power by the Directors:

- Pre-emptive rights and new 1ssues of shares - the holders
of ordinary shares have na pre-emptive rights under the
Artictes of Asscaiation of the Company. However, the ability
of the Directors to cause the Company to 1ssue shares,
securities convertible into shares or nghts to shares,
otherwise than pursuant to an employee share scheme, Is
restricted under the Comparies Act 2006 which provides
that the directors of @ company are, with certain exceptions,
unable to allot any equity secunities without express
authorisation, which rmay be contained in a company's
articles of association or given by its shareholders in
general meeting, but which in either event cannot tast for
more than five years. Under the Companies Act 2006, the
Company may also not allot shares for cash (otherwise
than pursuant to an employee share scherne] without
first making an offer on a pre-emptive basis to existing
shareholders, unless this requirement 1s waived by a
special resolution of the shareholders.

- Repurchase of shares - subject to authorisation by
shareholder resolutton, the Company may purchase its own
shares in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, Any
shares that have been bought back may be held as treasury
shares or must be cancelled immediately upon completion
of the purchase. The Company received authority at the last
Annual General Meeting to purchase up to a maximum of
142,664,747 ordinary shares. The authority lasts until the
earlier of the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company in 2027 or 30 June 2022

- Borrowing powers — the net external borrowings of the Group
outstanding at any time shall not exceed an amount equat to
four times the aggregate of the Group’s adjusted capital and
reserves calculated in the manner prescribed in Article 105
of the Company’s Articles of Association, unless sanctioned
by an ordinary resolution of the Company's shareholders.




Appointment and replacement of Directors

The Company shall appoint (disregarding Alternate Directors)
no fewer than two and no more than 15 Directors. The
appointment and replacement of Directors may be made

as follows:

- the shareholders may by ordinary resolution elect any
person who is willing to act to be a Director:

- the Board may elect any person who is willing to act to be
a Director. Any Director so appainted shall hold office only
until the next Annual General Meeting and shall then be
eligible for election;

- each Director is required in terms of the Articles of
Association to retire from uflive gt the Lhird Annual General
Meeting after the Annual General Meeting at which he or
she was last elected or re-elected. although he or she may
be re-elected by ordinary resoclution if eligible and willing.
However, to comply with the principles of best corporate
governance, the Board intends that ezch Director will
submit him or herself for re-election on an annual basis;

- the Company may by special resolution remove any Director
before the expiration of his or her period of office or may, by
ordinary resolution, remave a Director where special notice
has been given and the necessary statutory procedures are
complied with; and

- there are a number of other grounds on which a Director's
office may cease, namely voluntary resignation, where all
the other Directors [being at legst three in number] request
his or her resignation, where he or she suffers physical or
mental incapacity, where he or she is zbsent from meetings
of the Board without permission of the Board for six
censecutive months, becomes bankrupt or compounds with
his or her creditors or where he or she 1s prohibited by law
from being a Director.

Encouraging diversity in our workforce

Tullow is commutted to elirminating discrimination and
encouraging diversity amongst its workforce. Decisions related
to recrutment selection, development or promotion are based
upon merit and ability to adequately meet the requirements

of the job, and are not influenced by factors such as gender,
marital status, race, ethric origin, colour, nationality, religion,
sexual orientation, age or disability,

We want our workforce ta be truly representative of all sections
of society and for all our employees to feel respected and

able to reach their potential. Our commitment to these aims
and detaited approach are set out in Tullow's Code of Ethical
Conduct and Equal Opportunities Pglicy.

We axm to provide an optimal working environment Lo suit the
needs of all employees, inctuding those of employees with
disabilities. For employees who becorme disabled during their
time with the Group, Tullow will provide support to help them
remain safely in continuous empleyment.

Employee involvement and engagement

We use a range of methods to inform and consult with
employees about significant business issues and cur
parformance. These include webcasts, the Group's intranet and
town hall meetings. In 20719, we established the workforce

|
|
|
|

Tullow Advisory Panel [TAP] in conjunction with existing means
to continue engaging with our workforce. Further details on the
TAP and employee engagement are described on page 60 of
this report.

We have an employee share plan for all permanent employees,
which gives employees a direct interest in the business’ success.

Paolitical donations
tn line with Group policy, no donations were made for
political purposes.

Corpaorate responsibility

The Group works to achieve high standards of environmental,
health and satety management. Jur performance in

these areas can be found on pages 28 to 35 of this report.
Further information is available on the Group website:
www.tullowoil.com, and our 2027 Sustainability Report.

Auditor and disclosure of relevant audit information

Having made the requisite enquiries, so far as the Directors
are aware, there is no relevant audit information [as defined
by section 418(3] of the Campanies Act 2006} of which the
Company's auditer is unaware and each Director has taken alt
steps that ought to have been taken to make him or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information.

A resolution to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the Company's
auditor will be proposed at the 2022 AGM on 25 May 2022,
More information can be found in the Audit Committee Repaort
on page 64.

Annual General Meeting

The AGM 1s expected to be held at 12 noon on Wednesday

75 May 2022. The Nolice of Annual General Meeting will set oul
the resolutions to be proposed at the forthcorming AGM, which
will be sent to shareholders in due course and In accordance
the the requirement of the Listing Rules.

This Corporate Governance Repart [which includes the
Directors’ Remuneration Repart) and the information referred
to herein have been approved by the Board and signed on its
behalf by:

il

Adam Holland
Company Secretary
8 March 2022

Registered office:

7 Chiswick Park

066 Chiswick High Road
London W4 5XT

Company registered in Engtand and Wales No. 3979249
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial
Statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the Group and Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards [IFRSs), and the Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including
Financial Reporting Standard 191 Reduced Disclosure
Framework [FRS 107). Under company law the directers must
not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
and the Campany for that period.

lUnder the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules and the Transparency [Directive
2004/109/EC) Regutations 207 [as amended], Group Financial
Statements are required to be prepared in accordance with
UK adopted international accounting standards and
international Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant
to Regulation {EC] No. 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union.

In preparing these Financial Statements the Directors are
required to:

- select suitable accounting policies in accordance with |AS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently;

- make Judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

- present information, including accounting palicies, In a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable informatian:

- provide additianal disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs and 1n respect of the Parent
Company Financial Statermnents, FRS 101 is insufficient
to enable users to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions on the Group
and Company financial pasition and financial performance;

-~ n respect of the Group Financial Staternents, state whether
UK-adopted international accounting standards and IFRSs
adopted pursuant to Regulation [EC) No. *606/2007 as it
applies in the European Union.

- have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements;

- in respect of the Parent Company Financial Statements,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards,
including FRS 101, have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
Financial Statements; and

- prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern
basis uniess it 1s 1nappropriate to presume that the
Company and/ or the Group will continue in business,
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i Chief Executive Officer

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
and Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Campany
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the Company and
the Group Financial Statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and Parent Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

Under applicable law and requlations, the Directors are also
responsible for prepaning a strategic report, Directors report,
Directors’ remuneration report and corporate governance
statemnent that comply with that law and those requlations.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information included
on the Company's website.

Directors’ respansibility statement [DTR 4.1 and the
Transparency (Directive 2004/109/EC] Regulations
las amended])]

The Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge:

- that the consolidated Financial Statements, prepared in
accordance with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and IFRSs adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No. 1606/2002 as 1t applies in the European Union.

- give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit of the Parent Company and undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

- that the Annual Report, including the Strategic Report,
includes a fair review of the development and performance
of the business znd the position of the Company and
undertakings included in the consclidation taken as a
whole, together with a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that they face; and

- that they consider the Annual Report, taken as a whale, 1s fair,
balanced and understandabte and provides the information
necessary for sharehalders to assess the Company’s
position, performance, business model and strategy.

Rahul Dhir

Les Wood
Chief Financial Officer

8 March 2022 8 March 2022



Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Qil plc

Opinion

In our opinian:

Tullow Qil plc’s group financial statements and parent company financial statements [the “financial statements”) give a
true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of the group’s
profit for the year then ended;

the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting
standards and International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No. 1606/2002 as it applies
in the European Union;

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accardance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and

- the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial staterments of Tutlow Oil plc {the ‘parent company'] and its subsidiaries [the ‘group’] for the year
ended 31 December 20271 which comprise:

Group Parent company

Group balance sheet as at 31 December 2021 Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2021

Group income staterment for the year then ended - Company statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended

Group statement of comprehensive income for the_.year then ended Related notes 1 to 6 to the financial statemenrtsr

including a summary of significant accounting policies

Group statemnent of changes in equity for the year then ended

Group cash flow statement for the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 30 to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable

law and UK adepted international accounting standards and international Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant

o Regulation [EC) Na, 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. The financial reporting framewark thal has been applied
in the preparation of the parent company financial statements 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Acceounting Standards,
including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We canducted our audit in accordance with International Standards an Auditing (UK] {ISAs [UK]) and applicable law

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for cur opinian.

independence

We are independent of the group and parent in accordance with the ethucal reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company and we
remain independent of the group and the parent company in conducting the audit.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Qil plc continued

Conclusions relating to going concern

fn auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the geing concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent
company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included amongst others:

- reviewing the integrity of management's carporate model by checking consistency of the central assumptions and formulas,
with the assistance of cur business madelling sperialists;

- comparing the forecast incorporated in the model with the board approved budget to ensure consistency;
- assessed historical forecasting accuracy through forecast versus actual analysis over the last four years;

- comparing that a number assumptions, such as hedging, provision utilisation and decomnmissioning escrow payments, were
consistent with other areas of our audit;

- comparing the assumptions used in the business plan with the models used in for impairment purposes;

- comparing the consistency between the commercial reserves profile used in the impairment profiles and to calculate Tullow's
future Revolving Credit Facility {RCF’) availability;

- evaluating the sensitivity of the RCF availability to short-term shocks to oil price to determine the impact on liquidity under
different price scenarios and including management’s downside scenaria;

- we recalculated and confirmed with Management that Tullow are compliant with the hedging requirements under the RCF;
- performing independent reverse stress test analysis on the cash flow forecasts to assess the impact of short-term price shocks;

- considering the decarbonisation costs were included in the going concern model; and

- reviewing management’s proposed disclosures to ensure that they were appropniate and reflective of the results of our review.

Qur key abservatians

In ferming our conclusions, we have considered the 2021 refinancing of debt, which has extended maturities of borrowings to
2025 and 2026 with no capital repayment falling due within the going concern period. The increase in oil prices and the hedge
position of the Group has prowided significant headroom under the base case and downside case. Furthermore, the Group has
access to a cammitted Revolving Credit Facility of up to $5300m throughout 2022 and it is considered remote that this will not be
avanlable for the remainder of the going concern period. Under management’s hase case the breakeven point occurs at an ol
price of $39/bbl for the short and long term.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast signifrcant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a period up te 31 March 2023.

In relation to the group and parent company's reporting on how they have applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nathing material to add or draw attention ta in relation to the directars’ statement in the financial statements about whether the
directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the respensibilities of the directors with respecl lo going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report. However, because nat all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a quarantee as to the
group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope - We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 5 components and audit
procedures on specific balances for a further 14 components.

- The components where we performed full or specific audit procedures accounted for 76% of
Adjusted EBITDAX, 92% of Revenue and 97% of Total assets,

Key audit matters - Recoverability of Kenya intangible exploration and evaluation asset

- Uncertan Tax Treatments
- Recoverability of Property plant and equipment
- Estimation of Ghana decommissioning provision

- Impairment reversal of investment in subsidiaries [parent company onlyl

Materiality - Overall Group materiality of $24 million which represents 2.4% of normalised Adjusted Earnings
Before Interest Tax Depreciation Amortisation and Exploration ["EBITDAX"].
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An overview of the scope of the parent company and group audits

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of maternality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit
scope for each company withun the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the group and changes in the business environment.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial statements, and to ensure we had adeguate quantitative
coverage of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 60 reporting components of the Group, we selected

19 components covering entities within Australia, Argentina, Cote D'lvoire, Gaban, Guyana, Jersey, Kenya, Netherlands,
Suriname, Uganda and United Kingdom which represent the principal business units within the Graup.

Of the 19 components selected, we performed an audit of the complete financiat information of 5 components ["full scape
components’) which were selected based on their size or risk charactenstics. For the remaining 14 components ('specific scope
compaonents’], we performed audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that we considered had the potential
for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements either because of the size of these accounts or
their risk profile.

The reparting components where we performad audit procedures accounted for 946% (2021: 98%] of the Group’s Adjusted
EBITDAX, 92% (2021: 97%) of the Group's Revenue and 97% (2021: 94%)] of the Group's Total assets. For the current year, the full
scope components contributed 101% (2021. 95%] of the Group’s Adjusted EBITDAX, 92% (2021: 90%] of the Group’s Revenue and
64% (2021: 73%) of the Group's Total assets. The specific scope companent contributed -6% (2021: -1%)] of the Group’s Adjusted
EBITDAX, 0% [2021: 7%] of the Group’s Revenue and 27% (2021: 21%] of the Group’s Total assets. The audit scope of these
components may not have included testing of all significant accounts of the compenent but will have contributed to the coverage
of significant accounts tested for the Group. We also instructed 7 locations to perform specified procedures over cerlain aspects
of intangisle exploration and evaluation assets, oil and gas assels, borrowings, non-current provisions and exploration costs
written off.

Of the remaining 41 components that together represent 4% of the Group's Adjusted EBITDAX, none are individually greater than
2% of the Group’'s Adjusted EBITDAX. For these components, we performed other procedures, including analytical review and
testing of consolidation journals and intercompany eliminations to respond to any potential risks of material misstatement to
the Group financial statements.

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work performed by our audit teams,

Adjusted EBITDAX Revenue Total assets

amponzats W Folscope carmporerts

g LOMIpnoents
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Oil ple continued

Changes from the prior year
There are no changes to full scope components from prier year. We have updated our scoping in the current year to take
account of the impact of changes in the business and assets sales during the year. This has limited impact on coverage.

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overzll approach to the Group audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of
the cornponents by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by component auditors from other EY global network firms
operating under our instruction. Of the 4 full scope components, audit procedures were performed on 3 of these directly by the
primary audit team. For the 7 specific scope components, the wark was directly performed by the primary audit team.

During the current year's audit cycle, visits were undertaken by the Senior Statutory Auditor with members of the primary audit
team to the component team in Ghana in November 2021 and February 2022. These visits involved discussing the audit approach
with the component team and any issues arising from their work, meeting with local management, attending planning and
closing meetings and reviewing relevant audit working papers on risk areas. The primary team interacted regularly with the
component teams through video conferencing during various stages of the audit, reviewed relevant working papers and were
responsible for the scope and direction of the audit process. This, together with the additional procedures performed at a Group
level, gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements.

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how climate change will impact Tullow. The Group has determined
that the most significant future impacts from climate change on their operations will be from potential falls in oil prices, carbon
pricing mechanisms, and investments required to reduce emissions to achieve decarbonisation targets which might make
production from certain assets uneconomic. These are explamed on page 23 in the required Task Force for Climate related
Financial Disclosures and on pages 34 to 40 in the principal risks and uncertainties, which form part of the "Other information,”
rather than the audited financial statements. Our procedures on these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering
whether they are materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appear to be materially misstated.

As explained in note 26 governmental and societal responses to climate change risks are still developing, and are
interdependent upon each other, and consequently financial statements cannot capture alt possible future outcomes as these
are niot yet known. The degree of certainty of these changes may also mean that they cannot be taken into account when
determining asset and liability valuations and the timing of future cash flows under the requirements of UK adopted
international accounting standards and international Financial Reparting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation [EC] No.
1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. The note also includes supplementary sensitivity disclosures of the impact of
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions and significant judgements and estimates retating to climate change.

Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on ensuring that the effects of material climate risks disclosed on
pages 38 to 40 have been appropriately considerad in asset values, estimating the recoverable value of non-current assets and
associated disclosures where values are determined through rmodelling future cash flows. Details of our procedures and
findings on paga 146 [Note 26 are included in our key audit matters below. We also challenged the Directors’ considerations
of climate change in their assessment of going concern and viability and associated disclosures.

Whilst the group has stated its commitment to being Net Zero on Scope 1and 2 emissions by 2030 and supporting the goal of
Limiting global temperature rise to well below 2°C as per Article 2 of the Paris Agreement, the group has determined some, but
not all, of the future economic impacts on their business model, operational plans and customers to achieve this and therefore,
as set out above, the potential impacts are not fully incorporated in these financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of maost significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the mast significant assessed risks of materal misstatement [whether or not due
to fraud] that we 1dentified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overatl audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Recoverability of Kenya intangible exploration and evaluation asset (‘E&E’)

This is an estimation based on uncertain outcomes. The recoverability of the Kenya E&E asset carries inherent risks that the project
does not progress to development, requiring the write-off or impairment of the related capitalised costs or the reversal of previousty
recorded impairment charges, when the relevant [FRS requirements are met. The risk is elevated compared to 2020 because of the
uncertainties that are present to progress to Final Investment Decision { FID'].

As described in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at 37 December 2021, Tullow have recognised $255 miltion of
E&E assels relating to its interest in Kenya exploration licenses. Whilst ne impairment has been recognised in 2021, in 2020
management recogniset an impairment of $430 million.

The risk is whether it is appropriate to continue carrying capitalised Kenya E&E costs or whether an impairment is required or
whether an impairment reversal 1s required. Auditing the impairment assessment of the Kenya E&E assets is inherently
judgemental given the uncertainties surrounding the progress to FID. Furthermore, management prepared the impairment
assessment under the value-in-use methadology where judgement was used to estimate future oil prices and price
differentials; discount rates; inflation rates; production profiles and oil and gas resources; fiscal terms and uncantracled cost
profiles. The VIU recoverable value is adjusted for the uncertainties associated with the Group’s ability to recover the value
including receiving an acceptable offer from a strategic partner, obtaining financing for the project and obtaining government
deliverables to develop the asset.

As a result of these factors, there is a sigmificant judgement relating to the risk that Kenya E&E costs are impaired or an
impairment is reversed in the reporting period, which also represents a risk of potential management bias.

Our response to the risk

Our procedures included, amongst others:

- obtaining and reviewing the Field Development Plan [FDP] submitted to the Government of Kenya in Decernber 2021, which
was a condition to extend the Production Sharing Contract [PSC);

- reconciling the ail and gas resources used in the Kenya valuation model to the resources report produced by management's
external expert and included in the FDP;

- engaging an EY partner with sigmficant ail and gas expertise and valustion experience to review the resources reports
generated by management's externat expert and assess the appropriateness of inputs of a technical nature;

- evaluating the professional qualifications and objectivity of management’s external experts who performed the detailed
preparation of the reserve estimates and those who are primarily respensible for providing the independent reserve estimate;

- evaluating the appropriateness of the ol prices used in management’'s model and the price differential assumption used by
benchmarking to market and peer data;

- evaluating the operating and capital expenditures forecast to be incurred over the bfe of the project with previous estimates
and budgets included in the business plan:

- evaluating the appropriateness of management’s impairment discount rates based on an independent re-calculation of the
group s welghted average cost of capital with the assistance of cur valuations specialists;

- sensitising the valuation based an less favourable fiscal terms being received;

- assessing the appropriateness of the probabilistic assessment used to adjust for the uncertainties in computing the valuation
of the asset and additionally the range calculated te support the recoverable amount by independently evaluating each
uncertainty’s facts and circumstances through inspection of supporting evidence and discussion with management outside
of the finance function;

- assessing the progress of the farm down process and evaluating the potential impacts on the recoverable amount;
- assessing the carbon intensity of the project and whether this may impact the chances of development; and

- assessing whether the disclosures provided in the financial statements reflect management’s judgements, risks and
uncertainties of the project.

The audit procedures were performed primarily by our group engagement team.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee
We consider acceptable the judgements used by management in calculating a VIU and then applying probabilities to reflect the
remaining project uncertainties to calculate a recoverable armount and a supporting range for the recoverable amount.

We alsc reported the risks af this project in relation ta the energy transition and Tullow's commitment to Net Zero as a portion of the
emissions from the project will need to be offset through nature-based solutions and were not included in the impairment model.

Whilst the Kenya impairment assessment involves significant judgement about future actions of management and other
stakeholders, we satisfied gurselves that sufficient evidence existed at the balance sheet date to support the carrying value
of the Kenya F&E assets based on the submission of the FDE, the current stage of the farm down process and the outcome
of the impairment assessment.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Oil plc continued

Recoverability of Property Plant and Equipment

This is a forecast-hased estimate. The risk is that potential impairments are not identified on a timely basis. The risk is strular
to 2020 qven lower reservoir performance in TEN offset by a number of commereaial reserves increascs duc to the improved
macroeconamic outlook.

As described in Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at 31 December 2021, PP&E amounted to $2,905 million and
management recorded an impairment charge of $124.9 million and impairment reversals of $69.7 million.

Auditing the impairment of PP&E is subjective due ta the significant amount of judgement involved in determining whether
indicatars of impairment or impairment reversat exist. Indicators should refiect significant upward or downward revisions in
assumptions impacting the future potential long-term value of an asset, rather than drivers of short-term fluctuations in value.

Impairment reversals should only be recognised where there has been a clear increase in the potential value of a Cash
Generating Unit and not simply due to headroom created by the passage of time; for instance, the unwind in discount rates,
further DD&A charges or other similar items.

Key judgements in determining whether indicators of impairment or impairment reversal exist include changes in forecast
commaodity price, maovements in oil and gas reserves, changes in asset performance and future development plans, elc.

In performing our audit, we are mindful of the risk of management override in the assessmenl ol whether or not impairment
indicators exist as well as in the central assumptions that are used in the impairment assessments.

As described in the accounting policies to the Group Consolidated Financial Statements, the most complex of these judgements
relate to management’s view an commodity price assumptions and commeraial reserves and related costs profiles. Forecasting
future prices is inherently difficult, as it requires forecasts that reflect developments in demand such as global economic
growth, technalogy efficiency, policy measures and, on the supply side, consideration of investment and resource potential, cost
of development of new supply and behaviour of major resource holders. These judgements are particularty difficult because of
increased demand uncertainty and pace of decarbonisation due to the energy transition.

Our response to the risk

Our procedures included, amongst others:

- confirming our understanding of Tullow's impairment testing process, as well as the control environment implemented by
management by performing a walkthrough of the process;

- evaluating whether impairment / impairment reversal triggers exist by challenging management's assessment on an asset by
assetf basis

- testing the integrity of the underlying ¥IU medel with the assistance of EY Business Modelling specialists by testing the
mechanical accuracy;

- comparing Tullow's commodity price scenarios to assessments provided by our valuation specialists and to prices used by
peer companies. We also compared Tullow's prices to the {EA's Net Zero Emissions 2050 [NZE| and to the [EA's Announced
Pledges Scenario (APS) price assumptions as potential contradictory evidence for best estimates of future oil and gas prices.
The APS assumes that all ¢climate commitments made by gavernments around the world, including Nationally Determined
Contributions [NOCs] and tonger-term net zero targets, will be met in fult and on time;

- assessing the appropnateness of management’s impairment discount rates including an independent re-calculation of the
group’s weighted average cost of capital with the assistance of our valuations specialists;

- reconciting production profiles used in the impairment model to the reserve repert produced by management's external expert:

evaluating the professional expertise and objectivity of management's external experts who performed the detailed
preparation of the reserve estimates and those who are primarily responsible for providing independent reserve estimates,
through understanding their relevant professional qualifications and experience;

- performing benchmarking on cost estimate profiles, the inflation rate and FX rates based on comparison with recent actuals
and our understanding obtained from other areas of the audit;

- tested whether decarbonisation activities announced by Tullow were incorporated and consistent with the budgets and
impairment modet as to their assessment of whether climate change risks impact the modelled recoverable value of the
Group's CGUs. This was done with reference to the Group's assessment of the risks of climate change, commitments made
around climate change initiatives and the analysis performed by the Group te date of the potential impact of such initiatives,
including on potential future investment;

- we challenged the extent of disclosure on climate change with respect to the price sensitivity under |[EA's NZE scenario; and

- Where the financial impacts of climate related risks are either yet to be determined and/or not reflected tn management's
estimates of recoverable value we challenged what sensitivities ray be appropriate in the financiat statements to
demonstrate the reasonably possible impact of these.

The audit procedures were performed primarily by our group engagement team. Qur audit procedures over this risk area covers
100% of the reported risk amaunt.
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Key observations communicated to the Audit Cammittee

We reported to the Audit Committee in its March 2022 meeting that, based on our testing performed and the subsequent
adjustments made by management, we considered the current period impairment charge is fairly stated. We also reported that
based on our challenge on sensitivity disclosures, management disclosed the impact on the value of PP&E under the [EAS
NZE scenario.

Uncertain Tax Treatments
This 1s an estimation based on uncertain outcomes. The risk is that tax provisions are not appropriate given the nature of the tax
matter. The risk has increased compared to 2070 due to the increased engagement and activity of the tax authorities.

As described in note ag of the accounting policies to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at 31 December 31 2021, Tullow's
contingent liabilities in respect to uncertain tax matters amounts to $1,026 million. Tullow have recognised a total provision of
$128 million, which is split into an income tax payable of $34 million, deferred tax liabilities of $40 million and $53 million

in provisions.

Auditing the uncertain tax treatments and the related provisions is subjective because the estimation requires significant
judgement, including evaluating the outcome of the tax matter the timescate for resoluticon and the need to negotiate with
various stakeholders. Furthermore, the outcome of the tax matter s in most instances outside Tullow's control.

Our response to the risk
Cur pracedures included, amongst others:

- where appropriate, obtained correspondence with tax authenties and when required used our local teams and tax specialists
on specific regimes to canfirm management’s assumptions and judgements regarding the tevel of provisions made;

- inspected external legal and tax opintons where considered necessary] to corroborate management’s assessment of the risk
profile in respect of tax claims;

- obtained Tullow's uncertain tax treatments assessments and audited the associzted workings including ensuring any
exposures and provisions were appropriately extrapolated for periods which have yet to be audited; and

- considered the relevant disclosures made within the financial statements to ensure they appropriately reflect the facts and
circumstances of the tax expasures and arein accordance with the reguirernents of 1AS 37 provisions, 1AS 12 Income Tax and
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Incorme Tax Treatments,

Qur audit response was executed by the primary audit team, with support from local tax teams principatly in Ghana and Uganda.
Our audit procedures over this risk area covers 100% of the reported risk amount.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

Based on the on the evidence obtained and the audit procedures performed we are satistied that the accounting treatment
inrespect of potential tax exposures s appropriate. We also concluded that the disclosures made in the financial statements
are appropriate.

Estimation of Ghana decommissioning provision
This is an estimation based on uncertain outcomes. The risk is the expected timing of decommissioning activity and the estimated cost
of activities that are expected to occur in the future. The risk is consistent to 2020.

As described in Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, at 31 December 2021, management recorded a
decommissioning provision in Ghana of $193.3 million

Auditing decommissioning provisions 1s complex because management's estimation of future cash outflows involves significant
judgement and estimation. As explained in the accounting policies to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the estimate 1s
based on current legal obligations, technology and price levels. However, the extent and timing of the actual cutflows incurred in
the future may d:ffer due to changes in legal requirements, changes in market rates for goods and services, the emergence of
new technology or experience at other assets. There is a risk of management override in the determination of both the timing of
activity and estimation of the costs that will be incurred. Furthermore, Tullow is expected to commence payments to the Ghana
decommissioning escrow fund and therefore there is a risk that inappropriate management bias influences the estimate.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Qil plc continued

Estimation of Ghana decommissioning provision continued

Our respense to the risk

Our procedures included, amongst others:

- confirming our understanding of the decemrmissioning provision estimation process. We have performed an assessment
of the control envirenment by performing a walkthrough of the process,

reconciling the costs used in determining the decommissioning estimate to management’s externat expert report;

- evaluating the objectivity and expertise of management's external experts who performed the cost estimates, through
understanding their relevant professional gualifications and experience;

- confirming our understanding of the decarmmissianing reguirements in Ghana and whether there were any updates during
the year;

- assessing the appropriateness of the assumptions underpinning the cost estimale with the assistance of our decommissioning !
experts by comparing with the methodology used by industry peers and compared actual drilling costs incurred in the year;

- festing the completeness of the cost estimate data by corroborating with work performed in other areas of the audit, including
oll and gas reserves and impairment testing of PP&E, where applicable; and

obtained an understanding by meeting with Tullow's external decammisstoning experts of the methodology and differences
between previous estimates.

The audit procedures were perfarmed primarily by our group engagement team. Our audit procedures aver this risk area covers
100% of the reported risk amaount.

Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

We have challenged management on the change in approach to estimate well decommissioning costs and based on our
discussions with management’s expert, along with our internal decommissioning specialist, we agree with management that
the reduction in deccrmmissiening estimate is reasonable and recorded in the appropriate period.

Based on our audit procedures and evidence obtained we are satisfiad that the Ghana decommissioning provision is appropriate.

Impairment reversal of investment in subsidiaries (parent company only)
This (s a forecast-based estimate. The risk is that potential impairments triggers at the subsidiary level are not identified on a timely
hasis and would impact the recoverability of the parent company's investments in subsidiaries.

As described in Note 1 to the parent company Financial Statements, af 31 December 2021, Tullow plc investment in subsidiary
undertakings amounts to $4,350 million [$3,366 million in 2020} and recognised $647 million of reversal of impairment of
investments ip subsidiary undertakings.

Investrnents in subsidiaries in parent company financial staterments are more sensitive to changes in recoverable value than the
Group's underlying assets hecause certain assets have not been subjected to ympairment in the past.

The principal driver of the recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries is the estimated value of the underlying assets
heid by the Group's subsidiaries. Refer to recoverability of property, plant and equipment considerations in the related key audit
matter above,

Changes to assumptions could lead to material changes in estimated recoverable amounts, resulting in either impairment or
reversals of iImpairment taken in prior years (2021 aggregate impairment reversal of $667 million, 2020 aggregate impairment
of $1,975 million).

We consider that the risk associated with this key audit matter has remained consistent with the prior year.

Our response to the risk

Our procedures included, amongst others:

- assessing the methodalogy used by management to estimate the recoverable value of each investment far which an
imparrment test was performed to ensure that this 1s cansistent with accounting standards.

- testing that relevent assets and liabilities of each investment have been appropriately inctuded in the assessment of
recoverable value, Including the effects of intercompany balances.

- Refer to the key audit matter on recoverability of Property Plant and Equipment above with respect to procedures performed
relating to the recoverable value of individual assets tested for impairment.

We considered the potential impact of climate related risks on the recoverability of the Company's investments, in ine with
the consideratiaons in the key audit matter zbove.

The audit pracedures were performed primarnily By our group engagement team with assistance of our valuation specialists.

100 Tullow Oil ple 202! Annuz. Repart and Accounts




Key observations communicated to the Audit Committee

We confirmed that our observations with respect to the recoverable amount of underlying assets are also relevant for the
recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries. We agreed that there ts no impairment of subsidiaries in the year and that
the reversal of the historic impairment in Tullow Overseas Holding B.V. was appropriate. We agree that the updated final
disclosures in the Parent Company financial statements are appropriate.

In the prior year, our auditor’s report included a key audit matter in relation to Oil and Gas reserves. In the current year, this
has not been considered as a key audit matter and has been considered as part of the recaverability of Property, plant and
equipment and Kenya exploration and evaluation asset. This is following our experience gained in the prior year audit and
time spent during the current year end audit.

Our application of materiality
We apply the concapt of materiality in planning and performing the audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on
the audit and in forming nor andit opinian.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a basis for determining the nature and
extent of our audit procedures We determined materiality for the Group to be $24 million (2020: $24.7 million], which is 2.4%
(2020: 2%] of normalised Adjusted EBITDAX.

Our key criterion in determining matenality rermains our perception of the needs of Tullow's stakeholders. We consider which
earnings, activity or capital-based measure aligns best with the expectations of the users of Tullow's financial statements. In
doing so, we apply a ‘reasonable investor perspective’, which reflects our understanding of the common financial information
needs of the members of Tullow as a group. We believe that Adjusted EBITOAX is the most appropriate measure upon which to
calculate materiality as it represents a key performance indicator used by Tullow's investors.

Consistent with the prior year we have determined that the basis of planning materiality should be normalised Adjusted
EBITDAX [1e excluding non-recurring iterms), calculated as the average of 2019 and 2020 actuals as well as management's 2021
hudget (2020: normalised adjusted EBITDA]. In the 4th quarter of 2027 and post year-end, a significant increase has been seen
in the ol price which has increased the EBITDAX position of the graup. The views of cconomists and market participants are that
shart term increase in ot prices is from the management of supply of oil In the market which will be addressed over time. Given
this, we believed it was important that, in setting materiality, we did not overact to what is expected to be a temporary
phenomenon - especially when Tullow continues to be the same company structurally.

By applying a normalised approach, large year-on-year swings in matenality are minimised. We have excluded non-recurring
items such as impairments of E&E assets and producing oil & gas assets, non-cash movements in provisions and gains on sale
to ensure we are using a consistent measure representative of the underlying business.

The non-recurring items excluded in 2021 were: impairment of E&E assets [$60 million] impairment reversal of oil and gas
assets {$20 millon], non-cash movement in provisions [$10 million] offset by a gain on asset sale [$120 million].

The non-recurring items excluded in 2020 were: impairment of E&E assets [$987 million] impairment of a1l and gas assets
[$251 mullion}, non-cash movement in provisions ($nill, less on asset sale [$3.4 million], restructuring costs [$92 million] and
fair value gain on hedging [$1 million).

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be $25.7 million (2021: $5.2 millian], which 15 1.4% [2020: 1%) of equity.
The significant year on year change in materiality is due to Tullow have reversed an impairment of the parent company’s
investment in its subsidiaries.

During the course of our audit, we reassessed initial matenality in the context of the Group’s actuat performance and have
adjusted the management 2021 budget numbers with actuals to determine final materiality. Our revised planning materiality
is $24.1 million.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Qil plc continued

Impairment reversal of investment in subsidiaries (parent company only) continued

Perfoermance materiality
The application of materiality at the indwidual account or balance level. It js set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected missiatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with cur assessment of the Group's overall control environment, our judgement
was that performance materiality was 50% {2020: 50%} of our planning materiality, namely $12 million (2020: $12.5 mitlion),
We have set perfarmance materiality at this percentage due to our assessment of the nature, numhber and impact of the
adjusted and unadjusted audit differences identified in 2020 audit.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality. The performance materiality set for each component is
based an the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as a whole and our assessment of the risk of misstatement
at that component. In the current year, the range of perterrmance matenality allocated to components was $11.5 million to $2.7
million (2020: $11.2 millien to $3.1 mitlion].

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified rrusstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of $1.2 mullion
[2020: $1.2 million), which is set at 5% of planning maleriality, as well as differences below thal threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on quatitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstaternents against both the quantitstive measures of materiality discussed above and in Light
of ather relevant qualitative considerations in farming our opinion,

Other information

The other infermation comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 1 to 92 and 161 to 144, including
Strategic Report, Governance and Supplementary information, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our omnion en the financial staterments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s materiatly
inconsistent with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

In our optnion, hased on the work undertaken in the course of the gudit:

- the infarmation given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in retation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinton:

- adequate accounting recerds have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

- the parent cornpany financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are naot in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit
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Corporate Governance Statement

We have reviewed the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate
Governance Statement relating to tha group and company’s compliance with the provisions of the UK Corpaorate Governance
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules.

Basad on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have cancluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge obtained during the gudit:

- Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material
uncertainties identified as set out on page 92;

- Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the company’s prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period
Is appropriate as set out on page 92;

- Director’s statement on whether it has a reasonable expectation that the group will be able to continue in operation and
meets its Liabilities a5 set out on page 92Z;

- Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable as set out on page 97;
- Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robusl assessment of the emerging and principal risks as set out on page 37,

- The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems
as set out on page 37; and,

- The section describing the work of the audit committes as set out on page 61.

Respaonsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement as set out on page 92, the directors are responstble for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are respensible for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to guing concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess the directers either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but te do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
rmisstatement, whether dua to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Keasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with 15As (UK will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
tinancial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularilies, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate cancealment by,
for example. forgery or intenticnal misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud s detailed below.

However, the primary respansibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of
the company and management,

- We obtained an understanding of the legal and requlatory framewaorks that are applicable to the group and determined
that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting framework [IFRS, Companies Act 2006, the UK Corporate
Governance Code and the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority] and the relevant tax ccmpliance regulations in the
jurisdictions in which Tullow operates. In addition, we concluded that there are certain significant laws and requlations
that may have an effect on the determination of the amaunts and disclosures in the financial statements and those laws
and regulalions relaling to health and safety, employee matters, environmental, and bribery and corruption practices;

- We understood how Tullow Oil plc is complying with those frameworks by making imquiries of management, internal audit
and those responsible for legal and compliance procedures. We corroborated our enguiries through review of hoard minutes,
papers provided to Audit committees and correspondence received from regulatory bodies.

- We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might
occur by meeting with management to understand where it considered there was susceptibility to fraud and assessing
whistleblowing incidences for those with a potential financial reporting impact.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Tullow Oil plec continued

Impairment reversal of investment in subsidiaries (parent company only) continued

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

- We engaged our Forensics specialists in performing a risk assessment to 1dentify additional fraud risk factors which could
result in material misstatement. As part of this assessment, we understood Tullow's compliance with international tax laws
and regulations, procedures in place to address the risk of bribery and corruption in high-risk countries and procedures
around setting key performance indicators. Our procedures included discussion on the potential for the override of controls or
other inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process, such as efforts by management to manage earnings in
order to influence the perceptions of analysts as 1o the company's perforrnance and profitability. Our procedures did not result
in identification of additional fraud risks.

- In addition, we utilised internal and external information to perform a fraud risk assessment for each of the countries of
operation. We considered risk of fraud through management override and, in response, we incorporated data analytics across
manual journal entries into our audit approach. These procedures included testing the cut-off and those manual journal
entries on revenue recognition to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from material fraud
or error. We also censidered the possibility of fraudulent or corrupt payments made through the purchase te pay process by
averriding the cantrols put in place by the Company. Where exceptions and instances of risk behaviour patterns were identified
through data analytics, we performed additional audit procedures. These procedures included testing of transactions back to
the source information and were designed to provide reascnable assurance that the financial statements were free fram
material fraud or error.

- Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations.
Our procedures involved journal entry testing, with a focus on journals meeting our defined risk criteria based on our
understanding of the business; inquiries of legal counsel, group management, internal audit and all full and specific scope
management; review of volume and nature of whistleblowing complaints received during the year; and If any instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations were identified, how these were communicated to the relevant local EY teams who
performed sufficient and appropriate audit procedures to address the risk identified, supplemented by audit procedures
performed at the group level.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www.frc.org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor's repart,

Other matters we are required to address
- Following the recommendation from the audit committee we were appainted by the company at its AGM on 16 June 2021 to
audit the financial staternents for the year ending 31 December 2021

The period of tatal uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals and reappointments 1s 2 years, covering the years
ending 2020 to 2021.

- The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit commuttee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are reqguired to
state to thern in an auditor’s report and for na other purpese. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility 1o anyone other than the company and the cornpany's members as a body, for cur audit work, tor this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Paul Wallek (Senior statutory auditorj
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor

lLonden
8 March 2022
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Group income statement
Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
MNotes $m S
Continuing activities
Revenue 2 1,273.2 1,396.1
Cost of sales 4 (£38.9] 1993.6)
Gross profit 6$34.3 402.5
Administrative expenses 4 (64.1) 186.7)
Gain/(loss] on disposals 8 120.3 {3.4)
Exploration costs written off ¥ (59.9) (986.7)
Impairment of property, plant and equiprment, net 10 (94.3) (250.6)
Restructuring costs and other provisions 4,20 (61.8) (92.8]
Operating profit/iloss) 514.5 (1,017.7]
Loss on hedging instruments 18 - (0.8)
Finance income 5 44.3 594
Finance costs 5 (356.1) (314.3]
Profit/[loss] from continuing activities before tax 202.7 1,273.4)
Income tax lexpense)/credit b 1283.4) 51.9
Loss for the year from continuing activities (80.7) {1,221.5)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (80.7) {12219
Loss per ordinary share from continuing activities 7 ¢ ¢
Basic {5.7) (86.6)
Diluted {5.7) (84.6)
Group statement of comprehensive income and expense
Year ended 31 December 2021
2021 2329
Notes $m $m
Loss for the year (80.7) (1,221.5]
ltems that may be reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods
Cash flow hedges
(Lossl/gain arising in the year 18 (159.3) 271.0
Losses arising in the year - time value 8 (182.1) (37.3)
Reclassification adjustments for iterns included in profit on realisation 18 112.3 {268.1)
Reclassification adjustments far items included in loss on realisation - time value 18 40.7 A9.4
Fxchange differences on translation of foreign operations (1.4] (5.7]
Other comprehensive [expensel/income {189.8) 9.8
Tax relating to components of other comprehensive (expense}/income 2.7 (2.7]
Net other comprehensive (expense]/income for the year (187.1) 7.1
Total comprehensive expense for the year [267.8) [1.214.4)
Attributable to:
Owners of the Campany (267.8) (1,274.4)
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Group balance sheet
As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Motes Sm $m
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible exptoration and evaluation assets 9 354.6 368.2
Property, plant and equipment 10 2,914.6 3.237.9
Other non-current assets 11 489.1 h47 4
Derwvative financial instruments 18 - 2.6
Deferred tax assets 21 354.4 494.3
61127 46504
Current assets
Inventories 12 134.8 96.1
Trade receivables 13 99.8 790
Other current assets i1 704.5 717.1
Current tax assets ) 19.7 36.4
Dervative financial instruments 18 - 17.2
Cash and cash equivalents T4 469.1 805.4
Assets classified as held for sale 1h - 155.6
1,427.9 1,906.8
Total assets 5,540.6 6,557.2
LIABILITIES
Current liabitities
Trade and other payables 16 (751.1) [750.7)
Berrowings 17 {100.0) (3,170.5]
Provisions 20 {296.5) [2298]
Current tax liabilities {115.1) (52.2)
Derivative financial instruments 18 {80.9] (17.8)
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale 15 - (187.3)
e o [1,343.6]‘__ _lfa_.;ﬁUS.S]
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 (987.1)  (1,064.7)
Borrowings 17 12,468.7) -
Provisions 20 (431.0) (620.9)
Deferred tax liabilities 27 (677.3) (673.3)
Berivative financial instruments 18 (99.0} -
— 4,663.1)  (2.358.9]
Total liahil_iii_gi o (6,006, 7}  [6,767.2]
Net liabilities (466.1) (210.0]
EQUITY
Called-up share capital 22 214.2 219
Share premium 72 1,294.7 1,294.7
Equity component of convertible bonds - 48.4
Foreign currency translation reserve (248.8) 1247.4)
Hedge reserve 8 (39.3) 4.8
Hedge reserve - time value 18 (146.9) (5.4)
Merger reserve 755.2 755.2
Retzined earnings [2,295.2) (2,272.0)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company (466.1) {210.0
Total equity [466.1) (210.0)

Approved by the Board and authorised for 1ssue on 8 March 2022.

el oo Uitk

-

Rahul Dhir Les Wood
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
8 March 2022 8 March 2022
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Group statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2021

Fruiry
component Foreign Hedgs
[0 currency resgrve
Share Share convertipie trans.ation Hedge - bime Merger Retained Tatal
capita. premium bands reserve reserve” va.ue’ reserve earnings equity
Notes $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m $rn

At 1 January 2020 210.9 1,294.7 A4 (242.1) 4.6 (17.5) 755.2  {1,070.4) 983.6
Loss for the year - - - - - - - 22rer 1,221.8)
Hedges, net of tax 18 - - - - 0.2 12.1 - - 12.3
Currency translation
adjustments - - (5.3] - - - - (5.3]
Exercising of
employee share
options 27 08 - - - - - (0.8) -
Share-based
payment charges 23 - - - - - - - 20.9 209
At 1 January 2021 2117 1,294.7 48.4 (247.4) 4.8 (5.4) 755.2  (2,272.0) (210.0)
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (80.7) (80.7)
Hedges, net of tax 18 - - - - (46.13  [141.5) - - (185.8)
Derecognition of the
convertible bond? 17 - - (48.4) - - - - 48.4 -
Currency translation
adjustments - - - i1.4] - - - - .4
Exercising of
employee share
aptions 22 2.5 - - - - -~ - (2.5] -
Share-based
payment charges 23 - - - - - - - 11.6 11.6
At 31 December 2021 214.2 1,294.7 - [248.8) (39.3) [146.9] 755.2 (2,295.2) 1465.1)

1 Theforeign currency transiabion reserve represents exchange gaims and .osses ansing on transiation o ‘oreign currency subsidianie s, manetary items recanab.g
from or payable to a fareign operation for whicih sett emeat 15 cather planned nor ukely to occur, which “orm part of the net investment 11 a “oreign operation

2 lhe bedge reserve represents gans and losses on dervatives classified as e*ective rash flow hedges

3 0n 12 July 7021 lutiew regaid the $300 miluor Converlib.e Bond due 2021 [note 17) As the converson oplian was not exercised, the equily component of
$47.4 million has been lranslerred rom the sepa-ale reserve Lo relainea car ngs,
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Group cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Nates $m $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/lloss) from continuing activities befare tax 202.7 (1,273.4)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 10 378.9 467.1
IGainl/loss on disposals 8 (120.3} 3.4
Exploration costs written off 9 59.9 986.7
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, net 10 54.3 730.6
Restructuring costs and other provisions 61.8 928
Payment under restructuring costs and other provisions (12.6) {58.4)
Decommissioning expenditure (52.8] 577
Share-based payment charge 23 11.6 20.9
Loss on hedging instruments 18 - 0.8
Finance income 5 (44.3) (59.4]
Finance costs 5 356.1 314.3
Operating cash flow before working capital movements 895.3 687.7
(Increasel/decrease in trade and other recevables {17.9] 195.2
(Increasel/decrease in inventories (41.9) 85.1
Increase/ldecrease] in trade payables 7.5 [161.9)
Cash generated from operating activities 843.0 806.1
Income taxes paid B i (56.1) (107.5]
Net cash from operating activities 786.9 698.6
Cash flows fram investing activities
Proceeds from disposals 8 132.8 513.4
Purchase of intangible exploration and evaluation assets 27 (86.1) 213.6)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 27 (150.4) (217.3)
Interest received 2.0 1.8
Net cash lused in)/from investing activities (101.7) 84.3
Cash flows from financing activities
Debt arrangement fees 27 (56.6) -
Repayment of borrowings 27 12,379.9) 118%.0]
Drawdown of borrowings 27 1,800.0 270.0
Payment of obligations under leases (155.9) (158.2)
Finance costs paid 27 (234.9] {198.5]
Net cash used in financing activities 11,027.3) 1271.7)
Net [decreasel/increase in cash and cash equivalents (342.11 511.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 805.4 288.8
Foreign exchange gain 5.8 5.4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year T4 4691 805.4
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Accounting policies
Year ended 31 December 2021

(a] General information

Tullow Oil pic is a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006. The address of
the registered office is Tullow Qil plc, Building ¢, Chiswick Park, 566 Chiswick High Road, London W4 5XT. The primary activity
of the Groug is the discovery and production of oil and gas.

(b) Adoption of new and revised standards

New International Financial Reporting Standards adopted

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing
1 January 2021:

- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 - Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.
- Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendment to IFRS 14.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognisad In prior periods and are not expected to
siyrfivantly affect the current or Tulure periods.

Upcoming international Financial Reporting Standards not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments to accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatary for 31 December 2021 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. These standards,
amendments or interpretations are not expected ta have a material impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

(c] Changes in accounting policy
The Group's accounting policies are consistent with the prior year.

[d] Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards {IFRSs)
and international Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation [ECI No. 1606/2002 as it applies in the European
Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framewaork” [United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice].

There were adjustments made in relation to a recognition of additicnal JV receivables ($23.4 million] and reciassification
between accruals ($37.9 million) and provisions [$46 million] that should have been accounted in the prior pericd and was not
done so in error. Consequently, profit before tax for the current year s higher by $15.3 million with no impact on the group cash
flow staterment. in the directors’ judgement, these amounts were not considered material based on their nature as working
capital reclassifications and in assessrment against the relative impact of the financial statement line items, so the prior period
amounts have not been corrected.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost hasis, except for derivative financial instruments and
contingent consideration which have been measured at fair value which are carried at fair value less cost to sell. The Financial
Statements are presented in US dellars and all values are rounded to the nearest $0.1 million, except where otherwise stated.
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out below.

Liguidity risk management and going concern

Assessment period and assumgtions

The Directors consider the going concern assessment period to be up to 31 March 2023, The Group closely moniters and manages
its liguidity headroom. Cash forecasts are reqularly produced and sensitivities run for different scenarios including, but not limited
to, changes in commodity prices, different production rates from the Group’s producing assets and different outcomes on
ongoing disputes or litigation. Management has applied the following oil price assumptions for the going concern assessment:

- Base Case: $74/bb! for 2022, $71/bbl for 2023 and
- Low Case: $60/bbt for 2022, $60/bbl for 2023

- The Low Case includes, in addition to lower oil price assumptions, a 5% production decrease and 12% increased opex
compared fo the Base Case as well as increased ocutilows associated with an ongoing disputes.

On 17 May 2021, the Group announced the completion of its offering of $1.8 billon 2026 Notes. The net proceeds, together with cash
on balance sheet, have been used to [i] repay all amounts outstanding under, and cancel all commitments made avallable pursuant
to, the Company's RBL Facility, lii] redeem in full the Company's seniar netes due 2022, {in) at maturity, repay in full and cancel the
_Company's convertible bonds due 2021 and (v pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the transactions. The Group alsa
entered into 2 $600 million Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility [SSRCF) which is undrawn and will be primarily uscd for working
capital purposes. The 2026 Senior Notes and the SSRCF do not have any maintenance covenants [disclosure of key covenants and the
determination of availability under the SSRCF are provided 1n note 18). Following completion of these transactions the Directors have
concluded that the material uncertainties noted in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts, associated with implementing a
Refinancing Propasal and abtaining amendments or waivers in respect of covenant breaches or, in the event a Refinancing
Proposal is implemented, the revised covenants are subsequently breached, no longer exist.
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Accounting policies continued
Year ended 31 December 2021

{d]) Basis of preparation continued

Liquidity risk management and going concern continued

Assessment period and assumptions continued

The Group had $0.9 billion liquidity headroom of unutilised debt capacity and non restrictive cash as at 31T Decernber 2021. The Group's
forecasts show that the Group will be able to operate within its current debt facilities and have sufficient inancial headroom for the going
concern assessment periad under its Base Case and Low Case. These forecasts show full availzhility of the $600 million SSRCF, which
under the Base Case remains undrawn. Furthermore management has performed a reverse stress test and the average oil price
throughout the geing concern period required to reduce headroom to zero during the assessment period is $39/bbl. Based on the
analysis above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Campany has adequate resaurces to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they have adopted the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the year end results.

(e) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the Financial Statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company [its subsidiaries] made up to 31 Decernber each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the power over an
investee entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns fram its involvement with the investee and has the ability to use its
power to affect its returns.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the Group income statement from the
transaction date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group gains control, and will continue to be included until the date
that control ceases.

If the Greup loses control aver a subsidiary, it derecogmises the related assets, liabilities, non-centrelling interest and other
components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any investment retained 1s recognised
at fair value. All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into
line with those used by the Group.

Joint arrangements

The Group 1s engaged in oil and gas exploration, development and production threugh unincorporated joint arreangements; these
are classified as joint operations in accardance wath IFRS 11. The Group accounts for its share of the results and assets and liabilities
of these joint operations. In addition, where Tullow acls as operator to the joint operation, the gross liabilities and receivables
(including amounts due to or from nan-operating partners) of the joint cperation are included in the Group’s balance sheet.

(f] Assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. A loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset or disposal group to a revised fair value less costs
to sell 1s recocgnised at each reporting date. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition 1s regarded

as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset [or disposal groupl is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to gualify for recognition as a compleled
sale within one year from the date of ¢lassification. Assets and corresponding liabilities classified as held for sale are
presented separately as current items in the statement of financial position.

(g) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers represents the sales vatue, net of VAT, of the Group’s share of Uiftings in the year.
Revenue 15 recognised when performance obligations have been met, which is typically when goods are delivered, and title
has passed.

Gains and losses on realisation of cash flow hedges and tariff income classified as held primarily for the purpose of being
traded are reparted in the Group income statement.

{h] Over/underlift

Lifting or offtake arrangements for ol and gas produced in certain of the Group's jointly owned operatians are such that each
participant may not receive and sell its precise share of the overall production in each period. The resulting imbalance between
cumulative entitlement and cumulative production less stock 1s underlift or averlift. Underlift and overlift are valued at market
value and included within recervables and payables respectively. Movements during an accounting period are adjusted through
cost of sales such that gross profit is recognised on an entitlements basis.

[i} inventory

Inventories, other than ol products, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost s determined an a weighted
average cost basis and comprises direct purchase costs. Net realisable value is determined by reference to prices existing at
the balance sheet date, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Oil product is stated at net realisable value and changes in net realisable value are recogmised in the income statement.

110 Tullow Git ple 2921 Annua. Repart and Azcounts



(j) Foreign currencies

The US dollar is the presentational currency of the Group. For the purpose of presenting consclidated financial statements,

the assets and labilities of the Group's non-US dollar-denominated entities are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. Currency translation
adjustments arising on the restatement of opening net assets of nan-US dollar subsidiaries, together with differences between
the subsidiaries results translated at average rates versus closing rates, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
ncome and expense and transferred to the foreign currency translation reserve. All resulting exchange differences are
classified as equity until disposal of the subsidiary. On disposal, the cumulative amounts of the exchange differences are
recognised as Incame or expense,

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary asselts and
liabilities are translated into functional currency at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date, with a corresponding
charge or credit to the income statement. However, exchange gains and losses arising on monetary items recetvable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement 15 neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment
in a foreign operation, are recagnised in the foreign currency translation reserve and recognised in profit or loss on disposal of
the net investment.

In additton, exchange gains and losses arising on lang-term foreign currency borrowings which are a hedge against the Group’s
overseas investments are dealt with in reserves.

(k) Intangible, exploration and evaluation assets and Oit and Gas assets

The Group sdopts the successful efforts method of accounting for exploration and evaluation costs. Pre-licence costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. All licence acquisition, exploration and evaluation costs and directly
attributable administration costs are initially capitalised in cost centres by well, field or exploration area, as appropriate.

These costs are then written off as exploration costs in the income statement unless commercial reserves have been
established or the determination process has not been completed and there are noindications of impairment.

Exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment when reclassified to development assets, or whenever facts and
circumstances indicate impairment. An impairment loss is recogrused for the amounts by which the exploration and evaluation
assets’ carrying amount exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the exploration and
evaluation asset's fair value less cost to sell and their value in use.

Once commercial reserves are found, exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment and transferred to
development assets. No depreciation and/or amortisation is charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.

All field development costs are capitalised as property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment related to
producticn activities is amortised in accordance with the Group’s depletion and amortisation accounting policy.

Cash consideration received on farm-down of exploration and evatuation assets is credited against the carrying value of the
asset. The excess amount over the carrying value of the assel is recognised as a gain on disposal of exploration and evaluation
assets (n the statement of profit ar loss.

() Commercial reserves

Commercial reserves are proven and probable oil and gas reserves, which are defined as the estimated guantities of crude oil,
natural gas and natural gas liguids which geological, geophysical and engineering data demonstrate with a specified degree of
certainty to he recoverable in future years from known reservoirs and which are considered commercially producible. There
should be a 50% statistical probability that the actual quantity of recoverable reserves will be more than the amount estimated
as proven and probable reserves and a 90% statistical probability that it will be less.

(m) Deptetion and amortisation

All expenditure carried within each field is amortised from the commencement of production on a unit of production basis,
which 1s the ratio of cil and gas production In the period to the estimated quantities of cammercial reserves at the end of the
period plus the production i the period, generally on a held-by-field basis or by a group of fields which are reliant on common
infrastructure. Costs used in the unit of production calculation comprise the net book value of capitalised costs plus the estimated
future field development costs required to recover the commercial resarves remaining. Changes in the estimates of commercial
reserves or future field development costs are dealt with praspectively.

{n) impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an indication that an asset lor CGU] may be impaired. in assessing
whether an impairment is required, the carrying value of the asset or CGU is comnpared with its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount 15 the higher of the asset's/CGU's fair vatue less costs of disposal [FYLCD) and value in use [VIU} Given the nature of the
Group's activities, information on the fain value of an asset is usually difficult to obtain unless negotiations with potential purchasers
or similar transactions are taking place. Conseguently, unless indicated otherwise, the recoverable amaount used in assessing
the impairment charges described below is VIU. The Group generally estimates VIU using a discounted cash flow madel.

In order to discount the future cash flows the Group calculates asset or CGU-specific discount rates.
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Accounting policies continued
Year ended 31 December 2021

{n} Impairment of property, plant and equipment continued

The discount rates are based on an assessment of a relevant peer group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital IWACC).
The post-tax WACC is subsequently grossed up to a pre-tax rate. The Group then deducts any exploration risk premium which
is implicit within a peer group’s WACC and subsequently applies additional country risk premium for all CGUs, an element of
which is determined by whether the assets are onshore or offshore.

Where there i1s evidence of economic interdependency between fields, such as camman infrastructure, the fields are grouped
as a single CGU forimpairment purposes.

Where conditions giving rise te impairment subsequently reverse, the effect of the impairment charge 1s also reversed
as a credit to the iIncome statement, net of any amortisation that would have been charged since the impairment.

{o) Decommissioning

Pravision for decommissioning 1s recognised in full when the related facilities are installed. A corresponding amount equivalent
to the provision is also recognised as part of the cost of the related property, plant and equipment. The amount recognised is the
estimated cost of decammissioning, discounted to its net present value using a nisk-free rate, and 1s re-assessed each year in
accordance with local cenditions and requirements. Changes in the estimated timing of decommissioning or decommissioning
cost estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording an adjustment o the provision, and a corresponding adjustrment to
property, plant and equipment. The unwinding of the discount on the decommissioning provision is included as a finance cost.

(p] Property, plant and equipment - non-oil and gas assets

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised Impairment
loss. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other than production assets is provided at rates calculated to write off the
cost tess the estimalted residuat value of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful economic life of between
three and ten years.

(g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar production af qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of tirme to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such tirme as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Alt other finance costs, which include interest on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method as described in
paragraph (aal, abligations under finance leases, the unwinding effect of discounting provisions and exchange differences,
are recognised in the income statement in the period 10 which they are incurred,

(r) Share issue expenses and share premium account
Costs of share issues are written off against the premium arising on the issues of share capital.

{(s) Taxation

Current and deferred tax, including UK corporalion tax and overseas corporation tax, are provided at amounts expected to be paid
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred corporation
tax 1s recogmised on all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where transactions
or events that result in an obligation to pay mare, or right to pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets are recagnised only to the extent thatit 1s considered more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the underlying temporary differences can be deducted. Deferred lax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences arising on acquisitions that are categorised as business combinations.
Deferred tax i1s recognised at acquisition as part of the assessment of the fair value of assets and Liabilities acquired. Any
deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement as the underlying temporary difference is reversed.

Petroleum revenue tax (PRT] 1s treated as an income tax and deferred PRT 1s accounted for under the temporary difference
method. UK PRT refunds are included in the incame staterment and 1s taxable for UK corporation tax.

{t} Pensions
Contributions to the Group’s defined contribution pension schemes are charged to operating profit on an accrual basis.

{u) Derivative financial instruments
The Group uses dervative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and commeodity options contracts, to hedge
its foreign currency nsks and commodity price risks respectively.

Derivatives are recogrised mnitially at fair value at the date a derivative contract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative

is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the

nature of the hedge relationship.
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(u) Derivative financial instruments continued
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

- fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised
firm commitment:

- cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that s either attributable to a particular risk

- associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment; and

- hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which it wishes
to apply hedge accounting.

Tho documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hadged and
how the Group will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectivenass requirements lincluding the analysis
of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined}. A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge
accounting 1f it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

- There is ‘an economic relationship” between the hedged iterm and the hedging instrument.
- The effect of credit risk does not "dominate the value changes’ that result from that economic relationship.

- The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged itern.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness reqguirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
(i.e. rebalances the hedge] so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged ttem, 1.2. excluding the time value of the option.
The changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the time value hedge reserve, If the hedged itern is transaction related, the time value is reclassified to profit or
loss when the hedged itern affects profit or loss. If the hedged item 1s time-pertod related, then the amount accumulated in the
time value hedge reserve is reclassified to profit or loss on a rational basis. Those reclassified amounts are recognised in profit
or loss in the same line as the hedged item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in
hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount 1s immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expecled life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or tess on the hedging instrument is recogmised in OClin the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective portion is recagnised immediately in the statement of profit or loss. The cash flow hedge reserve 1s adjusted to the
lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item.

The Growup uses oil opticn contracts for its expasure to volatility of Dated Brent prices. The ineffective portion relating to option
contracts s recognised as gam or loss on hedging instruments in the Group income statement.

Amounts previously recogrnised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to prefit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the same line as the recogmised hedged item.

Cash flow hedge accounting 1s discontinued only when the hedging relationship or a part thereof ceases ta meet the qualifying
criteria. This includes when the designated hedged forecast transaction or part thereof 1s no longer considered to be highly
probable to occur, or when the hedging instrument 1s sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover. When cash
flow hedge accounting 1s discontinued, amounts previnusly recognised within other comprehensive income rermain in equity
until the forecast transaction occurs and are reclassified to profit or loss or transferrad to the imitial carrying amount of a
non-financial asset or liability as above. If the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously
recognised within other comprehensive income witl be immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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Accounting policies continued
Year ended 31 Decermnber 2021

(v} Convertible bonds

Where bonds issued with certain conversion rights are identified as cornpound instrurnents, the liability and egurty components
are separstely recognised. The fair value of the liability component on initial recognitian is calculated by discounting the contractual
streamn of future cash flows using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. The difference between
the fair value of the liability component and the fair vatue of the whole instrument is recorded as equity.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the lisbility and the equity components of the instrument based on the amounts
initially recognised. The Lability camponent 1s subseguently measured at amortised cast using the effective interest rate
method, in line with our other financial liabilites. The equity component is not remeasured. On conversion of the instrument,
equity is issued and the liability companent is derecognised. The original equity compenent recognised at inception remains in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised on conversion. In an event of a repayment of the Uability compenent, the original equity
component is transferred to retained earnings.

iw) Leases

On inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. The contract is, or contains, a lease
if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To determine
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of anidentified asset, the Group assesses whether the contract involves
the use of an identified asset, the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use, and the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

il Lessee accounting

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group. The right-of-use asset s imially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease Uability,

in case of Joint operation, adjusted for any amount recewvabile from Joint Venture Partners and any lease payrments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs required to remove or restore the
underlying asset, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis, or applying the unit of production methed, and the Joint Venture receivable is
allocated against the monthly Joint Venture billing cycle,

The imitial measurement of the correspanding lease liability 1s at the present value of the lease payments that are no! paid at the
lease commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Greup's incrernental borrowing rate.

The tease payments include fixed payments, less any lease incentive receivable, variable leases payments based on an index or
rate, and amaunts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees.

The lease liability 1s subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasurad when there
is a change in future lease payrments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension ar termination option,

When the lease liability 1s rerneasured n this way, a corresponding adjusirmant is rnade to the carrying arnount of the right-of-use
asset oris recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assel has been reduced to zero.

The Group has elected not to recognise rnight-sf-use assets and lease habilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
172 months or less, and leases of low-value assets with a value of $5,000.

Over the course of a lease contract, there will be taxable timing differences that could give rise to deferred tax, subject to tocal
tax laws and regulations.

Extension and terrination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group. These are
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majonty of
extension and termination aptions held are exarcisable anly by the Group and not by the respective lessor.

ix) Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments, The Group has share-based awards that are equity
settled and cash settled as defined by IFRS 2. The fair value of the equity settled awards has been determined at the date of
grant of the award allowing for the effect of any market-based performance conditions. This fair value, adjusted by the Group’s
estimate of the number of awards that will eventuatly vest as a result of non-market conditions, is expensed uniformly aver the
vesting pertod.

The fair values were calculated using a binormial opticn pricing model with suitable modifications to allow for emplayee turnover
after vesting and early exercise. Where necessary, this model s supplemented with a Monte Carlo model. The inputs to the
models include: the share price at date of grant; exercise price; expectad volatility; expected dividends; rick-free rate of interest;
and patterns of exercise of the plan participants.

For cash settled awards, a liability 1s recogrused for the gaods or service acquired, measured initially at the far value of the
liability. At each balance sheet date until the liability 15 settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liablity is
remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised 1n the income statement.
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ly] Financial assets

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a tinancial asset nat at tair value
through profit ar loss [FVPL], transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss. The subseguent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification, as set out overieal.

i} Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets are subseguently classified and measured at amortised cost when the business model of the Company is to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payrents of principal and interest.
These assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time vatue of money is significant. Gains
and losses are recognised In profit or loss when the assets are derecognisad, modified or impaired. This category of financial
assets includes trade and other receivables.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost include trade receivables, loans and other recevables that have fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

iil Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets are subsequently classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when the business model
of the Company is to collect contractual cash flows and sell the financial assets, and the contractual cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest.

iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as measured at fair value through profit or loss when the asset does not meet the criteria to be
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income. These assets are carried on the balance sheet
at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement. Dervatives, other than those designated as effective
hedging mstruments, are included in this category.

As at 31 December 2027, the Group does not have any financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss or other
comgprehensive income.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date, being the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are darecegnised when the nights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Impairment of trade and joint venture receivables

The Group applies the IFRS ¢ simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and days past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over the historical period and the carresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. These rates are then applied to the gross carrying amount of the receivable to arrive at
the loss allowance for the period. Based on Management assessment the credit loss in trade receivables and joint venture recevable
as at 31 Decemnber 2021 would be immatenal; therefare, in line with IFRS 9, ne impairment was recogmsed (2020: $nil].

In erder to minimise the risk of default, credit risk is managed on 2 Group basis (note 18].

(z) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents cornprise cash at bank, demand deposits and other short-term highly liguid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(aa) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees on points paid or received that form an integratl part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or

discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

tncome is recagnised on an affective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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{abl Financial liabilities
The measurament of financial Labulities is determined by the initial classification.

i) Financial liabilities at fair value threugh profit or loss:
Those balances that meet the definition of being held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Such
Labilities are carried on the batance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement

il Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

All financiat tiabilities not meeting the criteria of being classified at fair value through profit or loss are classified as financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost. The instruments are initially recognised at its fair value net of transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of financial Lability. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liahilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Trade payables and borrowings fall under this cateqory of financial instruments.
As at 31 December 2021 all financial Liahilities are measured at amortised cost.

The Group derecognises a financial Liability when it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract 1s
discharged or cancelled or expires. A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is
accounted for as an extinguishment of the ariginal financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net armount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there Js a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amaunts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basts, to realise the assets and settle the Labilities simultaneausly.

lac) Equity instruments
Equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

An equity instrument is any contract that ewdences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs.

{(ad) Insurance proceeds

Insurance proceeds related to lost praduction under the Business Interruption insurance policy are recorded as other operating
income in the Income statement. Proceeds related to compensation for incremental operating costs under the Businass Interruption
and Hull and Machinery insurance policies are recorded within the operating costs line of cost of sales. Proceeds related to
compensation for capital costs under insurance policies are recorded within profit and loss with corresponding cost for replacement
assel as additions to property, plant and equipment, except in relation to Jubilee Turret Remediation Project under the Hull and
Machinery insurance policy where no asset 1s disposed, insurance praceeds are netted off within additions to property. plant and
equipment. Insurance proceeds are recognised at the point when the realisation of income is virtually certain.

(ae) Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past event, it s
probable that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation

Restructuring provisions
Restructuning provisions are recognised only when the Group has a constructive obligation, which is when:

il thereis a detailed formal plan that identifies the business or part of the business concerned, the location and number of
employees affected, the detailed estimate of the associated costs, and the timeline; and

[h] the employees affected have been notified of the plan’s main features.

Onerous contracts

If the Group has a contract that 1s onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recogrused and measured as a provision.
However, before a separate provision for an onerous contractis established, the Group recognises any impairment loss that has
occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs [1.e., the costs that the Group cannot avoid because 1t

has the contract] of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benafits expected to be received under it
The unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which 1s the lower of the cost of
fulhitling it and any compensation or penalties arising froem failure to fulfil it. The cost of fulfilling 2 contract comprises the costs
that relate directly to the contract [1.e., both incremental costs and an allecation of costs directly related te contract activities).
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{af) Critical accounting judgements

The Group assesses critical accounting judgements annually. The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations which are dealt with in policy (agl, that the Directors have made in the pracess of epplying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Financial Statements.

Carrying value of intangible exploration and evaluation assets [note 9):

The amounts for intangible exploration and evaluation assets represent active exploration projects. These amounts will be
written off to the income statement as exploration cests unless commercial resarves are established or the deterrmination
process is not completed and there are no indications of impairment in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
process of determining whether there is an indicator for impairment or calculating the impairment requires criticat judgement.

The key areas in which Management has applied judgement and estimation are as follows: the Group’s intention to proceed with
a future wark programme for a prospect or licence; the tikelihood of licence renewal or extensian; the assessment of whether
sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely Lo proceed, the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation asset is untikely lu be recovered in full from successful development or by sale; and the success of a
well result or geological or geophysical survey.

Details on impact of these key estimates and judgements using sensitivities applied to impairment mocels can be found in note 9.

The most material area where this judgement was applied during 2021 was in the assessment of the value in use [VIU] of the
Kenyan CGU and assessing the likelihood of recovery of the net bock value of the asset. A trigger for potential impairment
reversal was identified following the Group’s increase in long-term ail price assumption and revised development concept
resulting in an increase in the underlying value of the project. Due to the stage of this project being pre-final investment
decision ("FID"] and only having 2C resources booked, the ViU assessinent required estimation and judgement in a number of
different aspects including oil prices differentials, uncontracted cost profiles and certain fiscal terms. Furthermore, the Group
has identified the following uncertainties, which require judgement, In respect to the Group's ability to realise the estimated VIU;
receving an acceptable offer from a strategic partner, obtaining financing for the project and government deliverables. These
iterns require satisfactory resolution before the Group can take FID. Due to the hinary nature of these uncertainties the Group
was unable to either adjust the cash flows or discount rate appropriately. It has therefore used its jJudgement and assessed the
probability of achieving FID and therefore the recognition of commercial reserves.

This probability was applied to the VIU to determine a rnisk adjusted VIU and compared against the net bock value of the asset.
Based on this there is no impairment or impairment reversal as at 31 December 2021.5hould the uncertainties around the
project are resolved there will be a reversal of previously recognised impairment. However, If the uncertainties are not resolved
there will be an impairment of $255 million.

Lease accounting [note 19):

Discount rate

The Group has assessed the appropriate incremental borrowing rate appticable for each contract. Management has applied the
practical expedient which allows for the adoption of a portfolio approach, where a single discount rate for a portfolio of leases
with similar characteristics can be applied. As the Group has external borrowings with a consaortium of lenders, these are
considered the best reference for the incremental borrowing rate for the Group. The weighted average cost of those borrowings
Is considered to the Group’s ‘allin rate’, at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. As at 31 December 2027, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate was 7.9%.

Determination of the lease term

Management has exercised judgement in respect of the assessment af the lease term of the Maersk Venturer lease contract.
Whilst the Company has options to extend, it does not have Joint Venture Partner approval beyond 30 Septernber 2022, ahead of
which the Company would be required to reassess the market before seeking to obtain Joint Venture approval to extend.
Management is reasonably certain that the contract wall not be extended beyond the initial period of 18 months if no approval

is given by the Joint Yenture Partners. The current contract terms do not provide for an extensicn beyond 48 months.

Had Management concluded differantly the value of the lease liability would increase.

lag) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.

Carrying value of property, plant and eguipment [note 10)

Management performs impairment reviews an the Group's property, ptant and equipment assets at least annually with
reference to indicators in 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets. Where indicators of impairments or impairment reversals are present
and an impairment or impairment reversal test i1s required, the calculation of the recoverable amount requires estimation of
future cash flows within complex impairment models.
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Accounting policies continued
Year ended 21 December 2021

lag) Key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Carrying value of property, plant and eguipment [nate 10] continued

Key assumptions and estimates in the impairment models relate to: commaodity prices assumptions, pre-tax discount rates, commercial

reserves and the related cost profites. Proven and probable reserves are esiimates of the amount of oil and gas that can be econormicatly

extracted from the Group’s oil and gas assets. The Group estimates its reserves using standard recognised evaluation technigues. '
The estimate 1s reviewed at least annually by Management and by independent consultants. Proven and probable reserves are

determined using estimates of oil and gas in place, recovery factors and future cormnmmodity prices, the latter having an impact

on the total amount of remaining recoverable reserves and the proportion of the gross reserves which are attributable to host

governments under the terms of the Preduction Sharing Contracts. Future development costs are estimated taking into account

the level of development required to produce the reserves by reference to operators, where applicable, and internal engineers.

Net entitlement reserves estimates are subsequently calculated using the current oil price and cost recovery assumptions, in
line with the relevant agreements. Changes in reserves as a result of factors such as production cost, recovery rates, grade of
reserves or il and gas prices could impact the depletion rates, carrying value of assets [refer to the Commercial Reserves and
Contingent Resources Summary on page 164,

The estimation applied by Management to the explaration risk premium adjustment ta its impairment discount rates, estimated
future commodity prices and forecast cash flows on the TEN asset would have the most material impact on the 2021 Financial
Statermnents should Management have concluded differantly. '

Details on the impact of these key estimates and judgements using sensitivity applied ta impairment models can be found in nate 10.

Decommissioning cests {note 20):

There 15 uncertainty around the cost of decommissioning as cast estimates can vary in respanse to many factors, including from
changes to market rates for goods and services, to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new technology or experience
at other assels. The expected timing, work scope, amount of expenditure and nisk weighting may also change. Therefore significant
estimates and assumptians are made in determining the provision for decommissicring. The estimated decommissioning costs
are reviewed at lease annually by Management and 1s annually reviewed by independent cansultants for operated fields and the
resuits of this review are then assessed alongside estimates from operators, Provision for environmental clean-up and
remediation casts is based on current legal and contractual requirements, technology and price levels.

Provisions [note 20]:

Due to the historical reduction n work progremmes the Group identified a number of onerous service contracts in prior years
and has a number of ongoing contractual disputes. Management has estimated the value of any future econamic outflows
associated with these contracts including, where relevant, assessment based on external legal and expert advice and priar
experience of such claims.

If Management had concluded differently regarding the estimated vaiue of any future economic outflows associated with these
contracts the provision and income statement expense recorded would increase/decrease, respectively. Details on the
magnitude of the potential increase can be found within the cantingent Liability disclosure in note 24.

Uncertain tax treatments

The Group is subject to various matenal claims which arise in the ordinary course of its business in various jurisdictions,
including cost recavery claims, claims from other requlatory bodies and both corperate income tax and indirect tax claims.
The Group isin farmal dispute proceedings regarding a number of these tax claims with significant updates described in more
detail below. The resolution of tax positions, through negotiation with the relevant tax authorities or litigation, can take several
years to comnplete. In assessing whether these claims should be provided for in the Financial Staternents, Management has
considered them in the context of the applicable laws and relevant contracts for the countries concerned, Managament has
applied Judgement 1n assessing the likely outcome of the claims and has estimated the financial impact based on external tax
and legal advice and prior expernience of such claims.

Due to the uncertainty of such tax items, it is passible that on conclusion of an apen tax matter at a future date the qutcome rnay
differ significantly from Management's estimate. If the Group was unsuccessful in defending itsell from all of these claims, the
result would be additional liabilibes of $1.025.5 million 12020: $1,070.2 miltion] which incledes $33.6 million of interest and
penalties (2020: $41.2 million].

Provisions of $127.9 million (2020: $129.3 million] are included in income tax payable $34.1 million (2620: $30.4 mitionl, deferred
tax Uability $41.0 million t2020: nill, provisions $52.8 million (2020: $52.4 million] and accruals $nil (2020: $46.4 millian). Where
these matlters relate to expenditure which 1s capitalised within E&E and PP&E, any difference between the amounts zccrued
and the amounts settled 1s capitalised within the relevant asset balance, subject to applicahle impairment indicatars. Where
these matters relate to producing activities or historical issues, any differences between the accrued and settled amounts are
taken to the Group income statement.

The prowistons and contingent liabilittes retating to these disputes have increased following new claims being initiated and
extrapolation of exposures to all open years, but have decreased following the canclusion of tax autharity challenges and matters
lapsing under statutes of limitation, gving rise to an overall decrease in provision of $1.4 mitlion and decrease in contingent
Liabiity of $44.7 rillion,
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{ag) Key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Ghana tax assessments

In August 2018, Tullow Ghana Limited [TGL] received a direct tax assessment from the Ghana Revenue Authority (GRA] for
financial years 2014 to 2016, After discussions, a final assessment was issued in December 2019 for $406 million requesting
that $398 million be paid by 13 January 2020. The GRA is seeking to apply branch profits remittance tax under a law which the
Graup considers is not applicable to TGL, since it falls cutside the tax regime set gutin TGLs Petroleum Agreement and relevant
double tax treaties. The GRA has additionally assessed TGL for unpaid withholding taxes and corporate income tax arising from
the disallowance of lean interest. The Group considers that these assessments also breach TGLs rights under its Petroleum
Agreement, applicable Ghanaian law and double taxation treaties, and, in some cases, have arisen as the result of errors in the
GRA's calculations. In January 2020, TGL issued a Notice of Dispute with the Ministry of Energy (MoEl, disputing the issues and
suspending TGLs obligation to pay any taxes until the disputed issues have been resotved. In April 2020, the GRA issued a
Demand Notice for $365 million ($337 million branch profits remittance tax and withholding tax, and $28 million corporate
incorme tax) which was put on hold by the MoE. In September 20271 TGL received a revised final tax audit report for $471 million
[$320 mitlion branch profits remittance tax, $5 mitlion withholding tax and $146 mitlion corporate incame tax] In Octoher 2021
TGL filed a Request for Arbitration with the internationat Chamber of Commerce disputing the $320 million branch profits
remittance tax assessment and an additional Notice of Dispute objecting against the disallowance of certain expenditure in the
revised tax audit report. In December 2021, TGL paid $3 million on account In respect of a revised withholding tax assessment
of $3 million. TGL received a revised corporate income tax computation in February 2022 assessing a tax liability of $121 mi hut
has yet to receive a Revised Assessment or Demand Notice based on this. If the latest position put forward by GRA 15 finalised in
a Revised Assessment, this would result in sssessments totalling $441 million including branch profits remittance tax.

The Group disputes the assessments issued to date and the tax Liability arising from the February 2022 tex calculation, and is
engaging with the GRA to seek settlement of the i1ssues raised [excluding branch profits remittance tax} on a mutually
acceplable basis cutside of the ongoing dispute process.

Bangladesh litigation

The National Board of Revenue [NBR] is seeking to disallow $118 million of tax relief in respect of development costs incurred
by Tullow Bangladesh Limited (TEL). in 2013, the High Court found in favour of Tullow such that the tax relicf should be reinstated.
However, in March 2017, the NBR won its appeal to the Supreme Court, which was not clear as to the position or liability of TBL.
A review application against this judgment was filed in April 2078, The hearing took place in Novernber 2019 and TBL was
unsuccessful. The NBR subsequently issued a payment demand to TBL in February 2020 for Taka 3,094 million {c.$37 million]
reguesting payment by 15 March 2020. However, under the Production Sharing Contract (PSCI, the Government is required ta
indemnify TBL against all taxes levied by any public authority, and the share of production paid to Petrobangla (PB], Bangladesh’s
national oit company, is deemed to include all taxes due which PB is then obliged to pay to the NBR. TBL sent the payment
demand to PB and the Government requesting the payment or discharge of the payment demand under their respective PSC
indernnities. TBL secured an extensian of the payment deadline to 15 June 2021 from the NBR to allow discussions with PB and
the Government to take place. Such discussions have been delayed several times due to the COYID pandermic. On 14 June 2021
TBL issued a format notice of dispute under the PSC to the Government and PB. A further request for payment was received
from NBR on 28 October 2021 demanding settlement by 13 Novernbar Z021. Arbitration proceedings were initiated under the
PSC on 29 December 2021 and to date, no further enforcement action has been undertaken or threatened by NBR.

Kenya tax assessments

In March 2019, Tullow Kenya BY [TKBV] received a VAT assessment for $11.7 million from the Kenya Revenue Authority (KRAL in
relation to consideration charged for the Block 12A farm-down. The Group considered that VAT was not applicable since TKBY
was not VAT registered at the time of the disposal and the transaction was in relation ta the sale of a capital asset or part of a
business. The KRA scught to apply VAT on the basis that the transaction was a disposal of trading steck and therefore the
exemption to register for VAT did not apply. Tha matter was heard by the Tax Appeals Tribunal [TAT) and TKBY receved a
favourable judgment on 30 April 2021 which set aside the VAT assessment in its entirety. The KRA subsequently appealed the
decision of the TAT to the High Court, but they withdrew that appeal on 19 July 2021. This matter can now be treated as closed.

Uganda Jeint Venture Partner tax assessments
TOTAL E&P Uganda B.Y. and CNOOC Uganda Limited have reached a settlement with the Uganda Revenue Authority on all
existing and patential tax litigstion and/or assessments for the period up to June 2015 for PAYE, VAT and WHT.

Other items

Other items totalling $547.5 mitlion [2020: 745 million] camprise exposures in respect of claims for corperation tax in respect of
disallowed expenditure or withholding taxes that are either currently uader discussion with the tax authorities or which arse in
respect of known 1ssues for periods not yet under audit.

Timing of cash flows

While it 1s not possible to estimate the timing of tax cash flows in relation to possible outcomes with certainty, Management
anticipate that there will not be material cash taxes paid in excess of the amounts provided for uncertain tax positions in the
next 12 months. While it is not possible to estimate the timing of tax cash flows in relation to passible outcomes with certainty,
Management anticipate that there will not be material cash taxes paid in excess of the amoeunts provided for uncertain tax
treatments in the next 12 months.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2027

Note 1. Segmental reporting

The information reported to the Group's Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance 1s focused on four Business Units - Ghana, Non-operated producing assets including Uganda and

decommissioning assets, Kenya and Exploration. Therefore, the Group’s reportable segrments under (FRS 8 are Ghana,
Non-operated, Kenya and Exploration.

The following tables prasent reveriue, lass and certain asset and liahility information regarding the Group's reportable business
segments for the years ended 31 Decernber 20271 and 31 Decernber 2020.

Ghana Non-Operated Kenya Exploration Corporate Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
2021
Sales revenue by origin 910.6 362.6 - - - 1,273.2
Segment result’ 360.0 243.4 - {70.5) (12.8] 520.1
Other Provisions? 6.6 - (13.2) - {52.1) (58.7]
Gain on disposal 120.3
Unallocated corporate expenses? (67.21
Operating profit 514.5
Finance revenue 443
Finance costs (356.1)
Profit before tax 202.7
Income tax expense (283.4)
Loss after tax (80.71
Total assets 4,318.9 495.8 270.6 144.3 311.0 5,540.6
Total liabilities* {2,497.3) (467.71 (24.0) (36.8) 12,980.9] (6,008.7]
Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 99.6 43.9 - - 4.6 148.1
Intangible exploration and evaluation asscis? 1.2 11.8) 8.2 48.8 - 46.3
Depletion, depreciation and amortisaticn (334.5) (28.8) (1.4] (0.1 (14.1) [378.91
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, net (119.1) 64.8 - - - (54.3)
Exploration costs written ofts 11.2) 11.8 - (70.5) - [59.9)
1 Segment resuit 15 3 non-1FRS measure whrohoncludes gross prodit, exploration costs wiitten off and impairment o® praperty, plant ard equipment,
See ~ecencihiation helow
2 Thisagmcwded within the Restructuring costs and cther provisians in the Group Income Statement
3 Una.ocated expendilure and net batulities include amaunts of @ corporate nature and nal speci‘ica.y atlnbutat.e 1o 4 geographic area
4 Totalaabiities - Corporate comprise o° the Group s externa. debl ard other non-attribatable labiaties
5 MNon-oparated segment includes retease of 153 milion indirect tax prowsion fo.ewing sett.ement
Reconciliation of segment result
2021 2020
$m I
Segment result 520.1 (834.8]
Add back:
Exploration costs written off 59.9 986.7
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 54.3 250.6
Gross profit 634.3 4025
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Note 1. Segmental reporting continued

All sales are made to external customers. Included in revenue arising from Ghana and Non-Operated segments are revenues of
approximately $329.6 million, $254.9 multian, $151.1 million and $145.2 million relating to the Group's customers who each conlribute
more than 10% of total sales revenue (2020: $246.6 million, $229.7 million, $131.4 million and $75.5 million). As the sales of oil and
gas are made on global markets and are highly liquid, the Greup does not place reliance on the largest customers mentioned above.

Payment terms are typically 30 days from the bill of lading.

Ghana Non-Operated Kenya Exp.oraticn Corporate Tota.
$m $m 4 $m $m &m
2020
Sales revenue by anigin 9635 432.6 - - - 1,396.1
Segment result 124.9 1410.7) (430.0] (104.3) {15.2] (834.8)
Loss on disposal [3.4]
Unallocated corporate expenses? 1179.5]
Operating loss (1.017.7]
Loss on hedging instruments {0.8)
Finance revenug 0%.4
Finance costs [314.3]
Loss before tax (1,273.4]
Income tax credit 5t.9
Loss after tax (1,221.5]
Total assets 4,859.3 £56.3 3005 181.8 559.3 6,557.2
Total liabilities (2,694.7) (688.4] [34.1] [44.2) {3,303.8) (6,767.2]
Other segment information
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 94.6 127.1 0.6 0.2 7.2 729.7
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 0.9 68.5 9.5 218 - 170.7
Depletion, depreciation and amartisation (390.1] (60.7] (1.5] - {14.8] (467.1]
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, net (149.1) (100.5] - (C.4] (0.5) (250.6)
Exploration costs written off (0.8] (452.0] (430.0] (103.9) - (986.7]
Sales Sawes  Non-current  MNon-current
revenue revenue assets assets
2021 2020 2024 2020
Sales revenue and non-current assets by origin $m $m $m Lm
Ghana 910.7 963.5 3,131.3 3,584.6
Total Ghana 210.7 ?63.5 3,131.3 3.584.6
Kenya - - 261.7 251.8
Total Kenya - - 261.7 251.8
Argenting - - 30.4 21.2
Céte d'lvoire - - - 2.7
Guyana - - 69.1 b61.4
Suriname - - - 35.6
Peru - - - 0.3
Total Exploration - - 99.5 121.2
Gabon 273.0 2745 148.7 48.8
Cate d'lvoire 36.7 41.3 81.4 81.5
Equatoriat Guinea® 52.8 1168 - -
Total Non-Operated 362.5 432.6 2301 150.3
Corporate - - 35.6 £5.6
Total 1,273.2 1,396.1 3,758.3 41535

1 $7e D micaonm of non-current assets was transferred to Assets He.od for Sawe in December 2020, The disposa. of Equatara. Guinea was completed in March 2021

[refer 1o note 8)

Non-current assets exclude derwative financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continuad
Year ended 31 December 2021

Note 2. Total revenue

2021 2020
Sm )
Revenue fraom contracts with customers
Revenue from ¢rude oil sales 1,426.2 11774
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,426.2 1.177.4
(Lossl/gamn on realisation of cash flow hedges (153.0] 218.7
Total revenue 1,273.2 13961
Finance income has been presented as part of net financing costs [refer to note 5).
Note 3. Staff costs
The average annual number of employees employed by the Group worldwide was:
2021 2020
Number Number
Adrministration 192 383
Technical 186 347
Total 378 730
Staff costs in respect of those employees were as follows:
2021 2320
Sm m
Salaries 64.3 1121
Social security costs 10.4 134
Pension costs 5.2 9.5
Redundancy costs 31 641
83.0 198.8

Average staff costs decreased compared to prior year due to the organisational restructuring which took place throughout 2020
which resulted in reduced average headcount and staff cost. A proportion of the Group's staff costs shown above 1s recharged
to the Group's Joint Venture Partners, a propertion 1s allocated to operating costs and a praportion s capitalised into the cost of
fixed assets under the Group's accounting policy for expleration, evaluation and production assets with the remainder classifred
as an admimstrative overhead cost in the income statement. The net staff costs recognised in the income statement were
$73.8 million (2020: $89.4 million].

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for staff and Executive Directars. The contributions are payable
te external funds which are administered by independent trustees. Contributions during the year amounted to $5.2 million
12020: $9.5 rillion).

Details of Directors’ remuneration, Directors' transactions and Directors’ interests are set out in the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report described as having been audited, which forms part of these Financial Statements,
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Note 4. Other costs

2021 2020

Nates $m Em
Operating profit is stated after charging/(deducting:
Operating costs 268.7 337
Depletion and amartisation of oil and gas and leased assets' 10 360.9 4464
Underlift, overlift and oil stock movements 120.0) 160.5
Share-based payment charge included in cost of sales 23 0.5 0.9
Other cost of sales 28.8 54.1
Total cost of sales 638.9 993.6
Share-based payment charge included in administrative expenses 23 1141 20.0
Depreciation of other fixed assets’ 10 18.0 20.7
(ther administrative costs 35.0 46.0
Total administrative expenses 641 B6.7
Total restructuring costs and other provisions? 61.8 928
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for:
The audit of the Company's annual accounts 1.6 1.8
The audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 0.8 0.5
Total audit services 2.4 2.3
Non-audit services:
Audit-related assurance services - half-year review 0.5 0.4
Corporate finance services 0.4 0.5
Other services 0.1 -
Total non-audit services 1.0 0.9
Total 3.6 3.7

1 Depreciation gxpenae an gased assets o $60 & miluon as per note 10 includes a charge of $4 6 milaon an eased administrative assets, which 15 presented withn
administrative expenses in the 1ncermne statement Tne remaming baance of $9¢ U miuen relates to other eased assets and 15 inc.uded within £ost of saes

2 IThisinc.udes restractur ng and redundancy costs of $3 Vinlaan (2020 $67 8 m Lian} as wal. as movements in other previsions al $58 7 rullion (2020 $25 0 ruillion]

Fees payable to Ernst & Young LLP and its associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed
because the consolidated Financial Statements are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis.

Carporate finance services in relation to Class 1 Disposal. Non-audit services were 42% of audit services during the year.
Other services provided during the year related to assurance over cost allocation.

Details of the Company’s policy on the use of the zuditor for non-audit services, the reasons why the auditor was used rather
than ancther supplier and how the auditor's independence and objectivity are safequarded are set out in the Audit Committee
Report on pages é1 to 66. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements,

Note 5. Net financing costs

2021 2020

Naoles $m sm

Interest on bank averdrafts and barrowings 243.0 205.8
Interest on obligations under leases 83.4 21.0
Totat borrowing coslts 326.4 29638
Finance and arrangement fees 19.1 0.8
Other interest expense 3.0 3.6
Unwinding of discount on decommissioning provisions 20 7.6 13.1
Total finance costs 356.1 3143
Interest incame on amounts due from Joint Venture Partners for leasas (38.8) [40.6]
Other finance incame {5.5) [18.8)
Total finance income [44.3) (59.4)
Net financing costs 311.8 2049
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2021

Note 4. Taxation on loss on continuing activities
Factors affecting expense/[credit} for the year

2021 2020
Notes $m $m
Current tax on profits for the year
UK corporation tax (19.2) (24.7]
Foreign tax 162.2 81.1
Adjustments in respect of prier periods (3.3) (25.86}
| Total corporate tax 139.7 30.8
! UK petroleum revenue tax (1.2) [3.4])
Totat current tax 138.5 274
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences
UK corporation tax 181 19.8
Foreign tax 80.3 (85.3)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 43.8 (11.7)
' Total deferred corporate tax 142.2 {77.2]
Deferred UK petroleum revenue tax 2.7 (2.1]
Total deferred tax 23 144.9 [79.3]
Total income tax expense/(credit] 283.4 (51.9)

Factors affecting tax expense/(credit] for the year
: The tax rate applied to profit on continuing activities in preparing the reconciliation below is the UK corporation tax rate
| applicable to the Group's non-upstream UK profits. The difference between the totat incorne tax expense/[credit] shown above
| and the amount calculated by applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax applicable to UK profits of 19% [2020: 19%)] to
i the profit /{loss) before tax is as follows:

2021 2020

$m m
Profit/[loss) from continuing activities before tax 202.7 (1.273.4)
Tax on loss from continuing activities at the standard UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2020: 19%) 38.5 (241.9)

Effects of:
Non-deductible exploration expenditure? 8.5 184.4
: Other non-deductible expenses 13.3 465
i Tax impact of change in discount rate on decommissioning provision - (2.1
i Deferred tax asset not recognised® 94.4 31.0
i Derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised - 0.7
| Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised (0.1) {8.4]
Adjustment relating to prior years® 40.4 [37.4]
Other tax rates applicable outside the UK 124.2 [43.4]
PSC (incomel/expense not subject to corporation tax (15.8) 189
Other income not subject to corporation tax 20.0) 0.2
Total income tax expense/[credit) for the year 283.4 [21.9]

a Incwdes recurnrg exp.arations costs written o* woere tnereg is no dee~red (ax impact
b Ircwdes hedqing .osses and interest expense

< Ircwdes imovements in pravisiens (0 cespect of uncertain tax treatments
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Note 6. Taxation on loss on continuing activities continued

Factors affecting tax credit for the year continued

The Finance Act 2020 sets the Corporation Tax main rate at 19% for the financial year beqinrung 1 April 2021. The Finance Act
2021 sets the Corporation Tax main rate at 19% for the financial year beginning 1 April 2022 and at 25% for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2023. These changes were enacted on 10 June 2021 and hence the effect of the change on the deferred tax
balances has been included, depending upon when deferred tax is expected to reverse.

The Group’s profit befare taxation will continue to arse in jurisdictions where the effective rate of taxation differs from that in the
UK, such as Ghana [35%], Gabon (50%) and Equatorial Guinea (35%). Furthermore, unsuccessful exploration expenditure is often
incurred in jursdictions where the Group has no taxahle profits, such that no related tax benefit arises. Accordingly, the Graup's
tax charge will continue to vary according to the jurisdictions in which pre-tax profits and exploration costs written off arise.

The Group has tax losses of $5,400.0 million (2020: $4,895.4 million] thal are available for offset against future taxabtle profits in
the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised (n respect of losses of $4,749.7 mullion
(2020. $3,219.0 million] as it i5 not sufficiontly probable that there will ke firtiire taxahle profits ggainst which these losses can
be utilised. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

The Group has recagrirsed deferred tax assets of $222.0 million [2020: $335.7 million) in relation to tax losses only to the extent
of anticipated future taxable iIncome or gains in relevant jurisdictions. The Group has suffered these losses in either the current
or preceding peried In the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax asset relates. The tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

There are no temporary differences relating to unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of these temporary differences and 1t 1s probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Tax relating to components of other comprehensive income
During 2021 $2.8 million (2020 $2.8 million tax expense) of tax credit has been recognised through other comprehensive income,

Current tax assets
As at 31 December 2027, current tax assets were $19.7 rillion (2020: $34.4 million) which relates to the UK.

Note 7. Loss per erdinary share
Basic losss per ordingry share amounts are calculated by dividing net loss far the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Parcent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted loss per ardinary share amounts are calculated by dwiding net profit far the year attributable to ordinary eguity holders
of the Parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average
number of dilutive ordinary shares that would be 1ssued if emnployee and other share options or the convertible bonds were
convertad into ordinary shares.

The adjustment in respect of converlible bonds and share options had an anti-dilutive impact on earnings and was thus not
considered in determining diluted underlying EPS for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

2021 2020
$m $m

Loss for the year
Net loss attributable te equity shareholders (80.7) {1.221.5]
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares - ~

Diluted net loss attributable Lo equity shareholders (80.7) (1,221.5)
2021 2020
Number Nuriber

Number of shares

Basic weighted average number of shares 1,418,378,706 1,410,629 325
Diutive potential ordinary shares 45,708,796 67,539,005
Diluted weighted average number of shares 1,464,087,502 1,478,168,330
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Note 8. Asset disposals

On 31 March 2027, the Group completed the sale cf its assets in Equatorial Guinea with a ¢ash consideration received of
$88.9 mitlion. This transaction inctuded contingent future payments of up to $14.0 million which are linked to asset performance
and oil price. As per the SPA, a further $5.0 millian of additional consideration was also receved on completion of Dussafu

Marin Permit in Gabon.

On 7 June 20217, the Group completed the asset sale of Dussafu Marin Permit in Gabon with a cash cansideration received of
$39.0 million. This transaction included contingent future payments of up to $24.0 million which are linked ta zsset performance

and oil price.

Given Tullow no longer holds interest in the above assets, based on publicly available information the Company has assessed

that the asset performance condition is not met. Accardingly, no contingent consideration has been recognised as of

31 December 2021.

Equatorial

i Guinea Dussafu 2021
Book value of assets disposed $m $m $m
Property, plant and equipment 72.9 52.0 124.9
Inventories 6.9 3.2 101
Other current assets 68.5 1.7 70.2
Total assets disposed 148.3 56.9 205.2
Trade and other payables (36.1} (18.5] (54.56)
Provisions {118.2) 4.7 1122.9)
Current tax liabilities (13.4) - {13.6)
Deferrad tax liabilities (17.8] - (17.8]
Total liabilities disposed (185.7] {23.2) {208.9]
Net {liabitities)/assets disposed 137.4) 33.7 3.7}
Cash consideration 93.8 3%.0 132.8
Transaction costs (11.0) (0.3) (11.3)
Gain on disposals? 120.2 5.0 125.2

1 Inadditicn to $125 2 muion gain o1 disposa.s recogmsed “ollowing the Equateria. Guimea and Dussafu misposals the Group recegnised a 1oss of 33 1 milaon
relating to1ts sa.e of Dutch ass2ls to Hague and Losdon Dilp.c [HALOLIn 2017 1n relation ta contingent consideration being setlled at belaw the amourt
estimated and recogmised in the balance sheet, and 3 gain ¢ $0 7 milion re.aling to other transactions during the period which resulted in 3n cveral. gam

of $120.3 mellion,

Uganda

During 2020, the Group campleted the disposal of its interest in Uganda for upfront cash consideration of $300.0 million, with
$75.0 million due on FID and contingent future payments linked to ol prices. On completian, $514.3 millon was receivad in
cash, representing the upfront consideration plus $14.3 million of completion adjustments. The $75.0 million {net of $7 million
indemnity provision relating to tax audits) payment due on FID has been recorded as a current receivable and was received on
16 Tebruary 2022, After deducting transaction costs paid in 2020, net cash proceeds on disposal was $513.4 million.

Book value cf assets disposed Em
Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 580.4
Trade receivables 03
Other current assets 2.8
Total assets disposed 5835
Trade and other payables {0.9)
Net assets disposed 582.4
Note 9. Intangible expleration and evaluation assets
2021 2020
Notes $m M
At 1 January 368.2 1,764 4
Additions 46.3 170.7
Arnounts written off {59.91 (9847}
Net transfer to assets held for sale - {580.4]
Currency translation adjustments - 02
At 31 December 354.6 368.2
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Note 9. Intangible exploration and evaluation assets continued
The below tabte provides a summary of the exploration costs written oft an a pre tax basis by country.

2021

Remaining

Ratianale for 2021 recoverable

202 write-off amount

Country CGU write-off $m Sm
Suriname Blocks 47 and 62 b.d bh8.9 -
Uganda Exploration areas 1,1A, 2 and 3A C {15.3) -
Gabaon Tchatarmba d 2.2 -
Peru Licences 247 and 248 b 1.8 -
Cote d'lvoire Biock 520 b 6.6 -
Other Various a 5.7 -
Total write-off h9.9 -

a  Current year expenchture on assets previcus.y written clf
b Lreence reanquishments, expiry p.anned ext or reduced activity
¢ Release of indirect tax provision ‘gl.owing settlement

d  Unsuccessiu. well costs wr tter of

In Kenya, the Group had received a 15 month lcence extensian from September 2020 to December 2021 which was contingent
on certain conditicns, including submission of a technically and commercially comptiant Field Development Plan [FOP). Cn

10 December 2021 Tullow and 1ts Joint Venture Partners submitted an FOP to the Government of Kenya and fulfilled its Licence
obligations. The Group expects & production licence ta be granted ance due Government process has been completed. In line
with 1ts accounting policy, the Group has performed a VIU assessment of Kenya asset following identification of triggers for
impairment reversal. This resulted inan NPV significantly in excess of the book value of $255.2 million. However, the Group has
identified the following uncertainties in respect to the Group’s ability to realise the estimated VIU; receving and subsequently
finalising an acceptable offer from a strategic partner and securing governmental approvals relating thereto, obtaining financing
for the project and government deliverables. These itemns require satisfactory resolution before the Group can take FID. Due to
the binary nature of thess uncertainties the Group was unable to either adjust the cash flows or discount rate appropriately.

[t has therefore used its judgement and assessed a probability of achieving FID and therefore the recognition of commercial
reserves. This probability was applied to the VIU to determine a risk adjusted VIU and compared against the net book value of
the asset. Based on this there is no impairment or impairment reversal as at 31 December 2021, Should the uncertainties
around the projact be resolved there will be a reversal of previously recerded impairment. However, if the uncertainties are not
resolved there will be an impairment of $255 mullion. Refer to Nate 26 for Net Zerc Ermission scenarios.

2029
Remaining
Rationale ‘or 2020 recoverab.e
2020 wite-o® ariount
Cauntry piely} write-ot & tm
Kenya Blocks 10BB and 13T e 430.0 247.0
Uganda Exploration areas 1,14 2 and 3A f 4514 -
Comoros Blocks 35, 36 and 37 b V2.4 -
Guyana Kanuku a 9.2 42.7
Peru Licence 738 b,d 41.2 -
Céte d'lvoire Blocks 301, 302, 518, 519, 521, 522 and 524 b 14.3 -
Other Various a,c 28.2 -
Total write-off 986.7 289.2
a  Current year excenditure o- assets prevaously wnitten o
b. Licence re.unguishments, expiry, p.anned ext or reduced activity.
¢ Pre-licence exploration expenditure s woitten off as incurred
d  Unsuccessful wel. costs written off
e. Folowing VIU assessment as a result of reduction in .ong-term oil price assumplion. using a pre-tax discount rate of 18%

Written down to the va.ue o the transaction cansideration [refer to note 8 for furthar detait)
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Note 9. Intangible exploration and evaluation assets continued

Oil prices stated in note 10 are benchmark prices te which an individual field price differential1s applied. Exploration write-offs
for the Kenya development area assessmeants are prepared on a value-in-use basis using discounted future cash flows based an
2C resource profiles. A reduction or increase in the long-term price assumptions of $5/bbl, based on the range of annuzlised
average historical prices, are considered ta be reasonably possible changes for the purposes of sensilivity analysis. Decreases
to oil prices would increase the exploration write-off charge by $72.3 million, whilst increases to oil prices specified above would
result in a credit to the exploration writa-offs of $65.9 million. A 1% increase in the 18% pre-tax discount rate would increase the
exploration write-off by $63.7 million, The Group believes a 1% change in the pre-tax discount rate to be a reasonable pessibility
based on historical analysis of the Group’s and a peer group of companies discount rates.

Note 10. Property, plant and equipment

201 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
Oiland gas  Other fixed Right of use 2021 O and gas Gther fixed  Right o use 2020
assets assets assets Total assets assels assets Tota.
Netes $m $m $m $m $m $m $rm $m
Cost
At ¥ January 10,460.2 69.6 1,018.6 11,548.4 11,279.6 190.6 71,0385 12,508.7
Additions 1 73.0 1.6 735 148.1 203.6 9.6 16.5 229.7
Disposals - (1.4) - (1.4 (11.0] [125.6) 117.4) [154.2)
Transfer to assets held
for sale 15 - - - - (1.050.9! - (19.5)  [1,070.4)
Currency transtation
adjustments {11.5) [0.3) (0.4]) (12.2} 38.9 (5.0] 0.7 346
At 31 December 10,521.7 69.5 1,091.7 11,682.9 10,4602 59.6 1018¢ 11,948.4
Depreciation,
depletion,
amortisation and
impairment
At 1 January (7,215.9) (42.3) 1352.3) (8,310.5] (8,194.6) [157.7] [264.7] (8,617.0)
Charge for the year 4 (304.9) (13.4) (60.6) [378.9) (3823 (12.4] (72.4) (467.1)
Impairment loss 154.3) - - 154.3) (250.0) (0.6] - (250.6)
Capitalised
depreciation - - (38.0] (38.0) - - {23.8) 123.8]
Drsposal - 1.4 - 1.4 10.9 122.8 7.1 1408
Transfer to assets held
for sale 15 - - - - 938.2 - 1.6 939.8
Currency translation
adjustments 11.4 0.5 0.1 12.0 (38.1] 5.6 [0.1) (32.6]
At 31 December (8,263.7] (53.8) (450.8) [8,768.3) [7.915.9] (42.3) (352.3) (8,310.5)
Net book value at
31 December 2,258.0 15.7 640.9 2,914.6 25443 27.3 6663 3,2379

The currency translation adjustments arose due to the movement against the Group's presentational currency, USD, of the
Group's UK assets, which have a functional currency of GBP.

During 2021 and 2020 the Group applied the following naminal il price assumptions for imparrment assessments:

fear 1 fear 3 fear £ Year 5 Year 6 o-wards
2021 $76/bbl $71/bbl $68/bbl $65/bbl $65/bbl $65/bbl inflated at 2%
2020 $45/bbl $50/bbl $55/bbl $60/bbl $60/bbl $60/bblinflated at 2%
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Note 10. Property, plant and equipment continued

2021

Irigger ‘or 2021 Remaining

2021 Impairment/ Pre-tax  recoverable

impairment/ lreversal) discount rate amount-

[reversal) m assumplion $m

Limande and Turnix CGU (Gaban) a.c (40.8) 13% 50.8

Ezanga [Gabon] a,c (17.0) 15% 22.4

Oba and Middle Oba CGU [Gabon) a.c (3.2) 15% 10.5

Espoir (Cote d'lvoirel ac (8.7) 10% 81.4

TEN {Ghana] ab,c 1192.1 10% 1,171.4

Mzuritama b 2.1 n/a -

UK CGU b.d 2.8 nfa -
Impairment 94.3

Increase Lo shart, medium and long-term o prce assLmpticns
Change to decommissioning €stimate

Revision of value based an revisions to reserves

T o N oow

The remaiming recoverabie amount of the asset 15 its value in use

The fieids in the UK are grouped intc one CGU as alt fie.ds within those countries share critica. gas infrastructure

Impairments identified in the TEN fields of $119.7 million were primarily due to lower TEN 2P reserves and hgher capital
expenditure partially offset by price and lower decommissioning costs. This is offset by impairment reversals mainty in Gabon
of $61.71 million and Espoir of $8.7 millicn as a result of higher oil prices and higher 2P reserves.

Qul prices stated above are benchmark prices to which an individual field price differential 1s applied. All impairment

assessments are prepared on a VIU basis using discounted future cash flows based on 2P reserves prafiles. A reduction or
increase in the two-year forward curve of $5/bbl, based on the approximate range of annualized average oil price over recent
history, and a reduction or increase in the medium and long-term price assumptions of $5/bbl, based on the range of annualised
average historical prices, are considered to be reasonably possible changes for the purposes of sensitivity analysis. Decreases
to oil prices specified above would increase the impairment charge by $157.7 million for Ghana and reduce the impairment
reversal by $12.4 million for Non-Operated, whilst increases to oil prices specified above would result in a crodit to the impairment
charge of $157.7 million for Ghana and increase the impairment reversal by $1.3 million for Non-Operated. A 1% increase In
the pre-tax discount rate would increase the impairment by $40.7 million for Ghzna and reduce the impairment revarsal by
$3.3 million for Non-Operated. The Group believes a 1% change In the pre-tax discount rate to be a reasonable possibility based

on histarical analysis of the Group's and a peer group of companies” impairment

For Net Zera Ernissions sensitivities refer to Note 26.

2020
Trigger for 2020 Rerna ning
2020 Imparrment/ Pre tax recoverab.e
impairement/ [reversall  discount rate amauJnt
[reversatll S assumption Sm
Limande and Turmix CGU (Gabon) a 28.0 13% 7.4
Ezanga [Gabon) a 205 15% 1.8
Oba and Middle Oba CGU (Gabon) a 38 15% 8.7
Ruche (Gahon| ab 1.2 13% 324
Mauritania C 306 n/a
Espoir [Cate d'lvaire] a.d (2.1 10% 81.
TEN [Ghana] a.d 149.2 10% 1,510.6
UK CGU c,e i3.2 nfa -
Other 6.2 n/a -
impairment 250.6
a  Decrease tc shorl. medium ard wng-term or. price assumptions
b Recegrmtion of FPS0 1ease
¢ Change to deccmmissianing estimate
d  Revision of va.ue based on revisions to reserves
¢ The edsinthe UK are grouped 1nto one CGU g5 all helds witv those countries share crtica. gas in‘rastructure

Tullow Oil plc 2021 Annua. Repart and Azcounts 129



Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2021

Nate 10. Property, plant and equipment continued

In 1H20 impairments identified in TEN and Espoir of $305.8 millien and $12.8 million respectively, were as a result of a reduction
in short, mid and long-term prices. In 2H20 an impairment reversal was recorded in respect of TEN and Espoir resulting in a
full-year impairment/(reversat] of $164.4 million and $12.1] millian respectively. This was as a result of increased boaked 2P
reserves and in the case of TEN lower future capex assumptions associated with well costs,

01l prices stated above are benchmark prices to which an individual field price differential is applied. All impairment assessments
are prepared on a value-in-use basis using discounted future cash flows based on 2P reserves profiles. A reduction orincrease in
the two-year forward curve of $5/bbl, based an the approximate range of annualised average oil price over recent histary, and

a reduction or increase in the medium and lang-term price assumptions of $5/bbl. based on the range of annualised avarage
historical prices, are cansidered to be reasonably possible changas for the purposes of sensitivity analysis. Decreases to oil prices
specified above would increase the impairment charge by $202.2 mullion for Ghana and $29.3 miluon for Non-Operated, whilst
increases to oil prices specified above would result in 3 credit to the impairment charge of $203.9 milion for Ghana and

$48.5 mitlion for Non-Operated. A 1% increase in the pre-tax discoun: rate would increase the impairment by $59.0 million for
Ghana and reduce the net impairment charge by $7.5 million for Nan-Operated. The Group believes a 1% change in the pre-tax
discount rate to be a reasonable possibility based on historical analysis of the Group's and a peer group of companies impairment
discount rates. The Directors considered that the relevant change in this assumption would have a consequential effect on other
key assumptions including cessation of production and cash flows.

Note 11. Other assets

2021 2020
Notes $m Im

Non-current
Amounts due from Joint Venture Partners 19 486.0 547 4
VAT recoverable 3.1 -
4891 5477 4

Current

Arnaunts due frem Joint Venture Partners 19 B54.7 5219
Undertifts 26.7 19.5
Prepayments £9.6 60.7
Other current assets 73.5 115.0
704.5 7171
1,193.6 12645

The decrease 1n non-current receivables from JV Partners compared to December 2020 mainly relate to reduction in time
remaining on the TEN FPPS0 lease, net decrease in GNPC {Ghana National Petroleum Corporation] receivable partially offset
increases assaciated with new lease liabilities. The movermnent in current recewabtes from JV Partners relates mainly to timing
of partner balances and a recognition of the JV recevable associated with the recognition of the Maersk Venturer offshare

drilling rig as a lease Liability [see note 19).

Other current assets mainly include the deferred consideration relating to the Uganda disposal, offset by an indemnity provision

relating to tax audits [$67.% million) and VAT recoverable {$5.6 million).

Note 12. Inventories

2021 2020

$m &m

Warehouse stock and materials 55.5 291
Oil stock 79.3 37.0
134.8 26.1

The increase in oil stock is associated with the timing of liftings of the Group's share of crude ail around period end.

Note 13. Trade receivables

Trade receivables camprise amounts due for the sale of oIl and gas. They are generatly due for settlement vathin 30-60 days and
are therefore all classified as current. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractuat cash

flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amoertised cost using the effective interest method,

The balance of trade receivables as at 31 December 2027 of $9%.8 million {2020.$79.0 rullion] relates to December 2027 oil
liftings 1in Ghanz, Gabon and Cdte d'lvoire which were settled in January 2022. The increase in mainly due to increased ail prices.
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Note 14. Cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020

MNotes $m $m

Cash at bank 18 2256.1 2242
Shert-term deposits and other cash equivalents! 243.0 a81.2
469.1 805.4

1 As at 31 December 2020, short-term degosits and ather cash equivalents mainly relates 1o receipl of cash ‘or the dispssa. o' Uganda of $514 3 milion which
were used for the repayment of borrowings in 2021 Refer to nate 17

Cash and cash equivalents includes an amount of $92.4 mullion [2020: $54.0 million] which the Group holds as operator in Joint
Venture bank accounts. Included within cash at bank 1s $0.8 rmultion (2020: $77.1 million) held in Joint Venture bank accounts as
the Group's share of security for the Letters of Credit [LC) 1ssued in relation to decornmissioning activities. As at 31 December 2021,
cash held as cellateral was reduced as the Group tssued tetters of credit from the LC tranche of $100.0 mitlion SSRCF.

Note 15. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

On 9 February 2021, the Group announced that it signed two separate Sale and Purchase agreements with Panoro Energy
ASA of its entire interest in Equateorial Guinea and its entire interest in the Dussafu Marin Permit in Gabon, in each case
with an effective date of 1 July 2020. Both transactions completed in 1H21. Refer to note 9.

Cn 23 Aprit 2020, Tullow announced that it signed a Sale and Purchase Agreement with Tetal Uganda with an effective date
of 1 January 2020, in which it agreed to transfer its entire interests in Blocks 1, 1A, Z and 3A 1n Uganda and the proposed
East African Crude Oil Pipeline [EACOP) Systern to Total. The transaction complated in 2H20,

The major classes of assels and lLiabilities comprising the assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2020 were
as follows:

Equatania.
Guinsa Ruchs lota.
2020 2020 2020
i Hm tm
Assets

Property, plant and equipment 76.0 54.6 1304
Inventaries 5.6 14 7.0
Other current assets 1.3 4.7 18.0
Assets classified as held for sale 92.9 627 155.4

Liabitities
Trade and other payables (3.5) (27.9] [31.4)
Current tax liabilities (10.0) - (10.0)
Deferred tax Liabilities (16.7] - [16.7)
Provisions [124.3) [£.9) [129.2]
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale (154.5) (32.8] [187.3)
Net (liabilities)/assets directly associated with disposal group (61.6) 29.9 (31.7)

Equatorial Guinea and the Dussafu asset in Gabon are included within the Non-operated segment of the Group.

Note 16. Trade and other payables
Current liabilities

2021 2020

Moles $m $m

Trade payables 60.2 38.3
Other payables 57.4 493
Overlifts 0.7 3.8
Accruals! 381.3 40%9.4
VAT and other similar taxes - 8.9
Current portion of lease liabilities 19 251.5 240.8
751.1 750.7

1 Accryals manly relate 1o capital expend ture, inlerest expense on bands and 1oans and =taff-related expe-ses
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Note 16. Trade and other payables continued
Non-current liabilities

2021 2620

Motes $m Gm

Other non-current Liabilities! 75.2 89.0
Non-current portion of lesse tizbilities 19 911.9 975.7

987.1 1.064.7

1. Other non-current Liabiaties include balances rewated to JV Partners

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing except for leases [note 19).

Payables related to operated Joint Ventures [primarily in Ghana and Kenya) are recorded gross with the amaount representing
the partners’ share recaognised in amounts due from Jaint Venture Partners [note 11]. The ¢change in trade payables and in other
payables predominantly represents timing differences and levels of wark activity.

Note 17. Borrowings

2021 2020
$m $rn
Current

Borrowings — within one year
6.625% Convertible Bonds due 2021 (%300 rrullion) - 2909
6.25% Senior Notes due 2022 ($650 million) - b46.7
Reserves Based Lending credit facility - 14417
7.00% Senior Notes due 2025 ($800 million) - 791.2
10.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2026 (51,800 million) 100.0 -

100.0 3.170.5

2021 2020
$m $rmi
Non-current

Borrowings - after one year but within five years
7.00% Senior Notes due 2025 [$800 mullion] 792.1 -
10.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2026 ($1,800 millian) 1,676.6 -
2,468.7 -
Carrying value of total borrowings 2,568.7 3,170.5

On 17 May 2021, the Group completed a comprehensive refinancing of its debt with the issuance of a five-year $1.8 billion Senior
Secured Notes (2026 Notes] and a new $500 million Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility [SSRCF) which wall primarily be used
for working capital purposes.

The 2026 Notes have been used to (i) repay all amounts autstanding under, and canceal all commitments made avalable
pursuant to, the Company’s Reserves Based Lending Facility, [ii] redeem in full the Company’s Senior Notes due 2022, [iil] repay
in full and cancel the Company's canvertible bonds due 2021 and {iv] pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the
transachons.

The 2024 Notes, maturing in May 2026, require an annual prepayment of $100 million, in May, of the outstanding principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, with the balance due on maturity.

The Seniar Notes due 2025 15 payable in a single payment in March 2025,

The SSRCF, rmaturing in December 2024, comprises of [I] 8 $500 million revelving credit facility and (11F a $100 million letter of
credit facility. The revolving credit facility remains undrawn as at 31 December 2021,

The 2026 Notes and the SSRCF will be senier secured obligations of Tullow Oil Plc and are guaranteed by certain of the
Group's subsidiarics.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group assessad it did not have an unconditional night ta defer payment of the facility, Senwor Notes
due 2022, ar Seruor Notes due 2025 based on a forecast breach in covenants; as such, these borrowings were classified as
current. Following the refinancing in May 2021, the Senior Notes due 2025 have been classified as non-current in line with their
contractual maturnity.
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Note 17. Borrowings continued

Capital management

The Group defines capital as the total equity and net debt of the Group. Caprtal is managed in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits to stakeholders and tc sefeguard the Group’s ability ta continue as a going concern. Tullow is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may put in place
new debt facilities, 1ssue new shares for cash, repay debt, engage in active portfolio management, adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, or undertake other such restructuring activities as appropriate. No significant changes were made to the
capital management objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 20271. The Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing, being net debt divided by adjusted EBITDAX, and maintains a golicy target of between 1x and 2x.

S5RCF covenants

The SSRCF does nat have any financial maintenance covenants. Availability under the $500 miltion cash tranche of the facility
is determined on an annual basis with reference to the Net Present Value of the ZP reserves of the Group [2P NPV) at the end
of the preceding calendar year. SSRCF debt capacity 1s calculated as 2P NPV divided by 1.1x less Senior Notes outstanding.

Senior Notes covenants
The Senior Notes are subject to custarmary high yield covenants including limitations on debt mcurrence, asset sales and
restricted payments such as dividends. The key debt incurrence covenant Is the Fixed Charge Cover Ratio [FCCR].

The FCCR s the ratio of the Consolidated Cash Flow to the Fixed Charges for the previous 12 months. The Consalidated Cash
Flow" essentially represents an Adjusted EBITDAX calculation. The Fixed Charges represent the aggregate financial charges
related to the Company's indebtedness i.e. interest on all the Group's borrowings and interests under capital leases less any
finance revenues. The Company may incur additionat financial indebtedness if the FCCR for the Company’s most recently ended
two full fiscal half-years immediately preceding the date on which such additional indebtedness is incurred would have been

at least 2.25to0 1.0 on a pro-forma basis, Drawdowns under the SSRCF are not subject to the FCCR covenant and are atways
permitted subject to the availability calculation set out above. There has been no debtincurrence event since the Senior Notes
have been I1ssued.

We regularly review options for optimising our capital structure and may purchase outstanding notes or repay debt from time to
time in the open market or otherwise.

Note 1B. Financiat instruments

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates access to international financial
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks retating to the aperations of the Group through internal Management
reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks These risks include market risk {including currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk], credit nisk and Liguidity risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures,
if deemed appropriate. The use of financial derivatives 15 governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directers.
Compliance wath policies and exposure imits are monitored and reviewed internally on a reqular basis. The Group does not
enter inte or trade financial instruments, including derivatives, for speculative purposes.

2021 2020
$m $m
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 99.8 79.0
Amounts due from Joint Venture Partners 1,040.7 1,069.3
Cash and cash equivalents £6%.1 805.4

Derivative financial instruments
Used for hedging - 19.8

1,609.6 1,973.5

Financial liabilities
Liabilities at amortised cost

Trade payables 135.2 1273
Other payables 439.4 471.6
Borrowings 2,568.7 3,170.5
Lease liabilities 1,163.4 1.216.5

Derivative financial instruments
Used for hedging (179.9) (17.8]

4,127.0 4,968.1
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Note 1B. Financiat instruments continued

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

With the exception of the Sentor Secured Notes due 2024 and the Senior Notes due 2025, the Group considers the carrying
value of all its financial assets and liabilities to be materially the same as their fair value. The fair value of the Senior Secured
Notes due 2026 and Senior Notes due 2025 as determined using market value at 31 December 2027, was $1.814.2 mitlion
and $661.0 millien {2020: $529.2 million] respectively. These are compared tc their carrying value of $1,774.7 millicn and
$792.1 million [2020: $791.2 million). The Senior Secured Notes duc 2024 and the Senior Notes due 2025 are categorised

as level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

The Senior Notes due 2022 were redeermed and Convertible bonds matured during the year ended 31 December 2021, The fair value
of the Semor Notes due 2022 and Convertible bonds was $518.5 million and $263.0 million respectively as at 31 December 2020.

The Group has no material financial assets that are past due. No material financial assets are impaired at the balance sheet
date. All financial assets and liabilities with the exception of derivatives are measured at amartised cost.

Fair values of derivative instruments
All derwatives are recogmised at fair value on the balance sheet with valuation changes recognised immediately in the income
statement, unless the derivatives have been designated as a cash flow hedge. Fair value is the amount for which the asset or

Liability could be exchanged in an arm's-length transaction at the relevant date. Where available, fair values are determined
using guoted prices in active markets. To the extent that market prices are not available, fair values are estimated by reference
to market-based transactions, or using standard valuation techniques for the applicable instruments and commadities involved.

The Group's derivative carrying and fair values were as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020
Less than 1-3 2021 Less than 1-3 2020
1year years Total 1 year years Total
Assets/liabilities tm tm $m Hm i $rm
Cash flow hedges
Oil derivatives [56.7) (66.5) 1123.2) 373 4.8 47,1
{56.71 66.5) 1123.2] 373 4.8 421
Deferred prermium
Qil derivatives (24.3) (32.4) (56.7] [38.0] (2.2 {40.2]
(24.3) 132.4) (56.7] [38.0) (2.2 (40.2]
Total assets - - - 17.2 2.6 19.8
Total liabilities (81.0) (98.9) 1179.9) (17.8) - (17.8)

Derivatives” maturity and the timing of their recycling into income or expense coincide.

The faltowing provides an analysis of the Group’s financial instruments measured at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted pricas (unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 which are
observahle for the asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques which include inputs for the asset ar Liability that
are not based on abservable market data.

All the Group's derivatives are Level 2 (2020: Level 2. There were no transfers between fair value levels during the year.

For financial instruments which are recognised on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have sccurred
between levels by re-assessing categorisation [based on the lowest-leval input which 1s significant to the fair value
measurement as a wholel at the end of each reporting period
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Note 18. Financial instruments continued

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and Liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Group balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. No material enforceable master netting agreements were identtfied.

The Group has entered into ISDA Master Agreements with derivative counterparties. The following table shows the amounts
recognised for financial assets and liabilities which are subject to offsetting arrangements on a gross basis, and the amounts
offset in the Group balance sheet,

Gross
amounts Netamounts
offset presented
Gross in Group in Group
amounts balance balance
recognised sheet sheet
31 December 2021 $m $m $m
Derivative assets 0.2 (0.2) -
Derivative Lizbilities (180.1] 0.2 (179.9]
Gross
amounts  Netamaunts
offset pressented
Gross in Group 10 Group
amounts halance ba.ance
recognised sheet sheet
31 December 2020 $m m $m
Derwvative assets 23.7 {3.9] 19.8
Derivative hiabilities (21.7] 3.9 (17.8])

Commuadity price risk

The Group uses a number of dervatives to mitigate the cornmodity price risk associated with its underlying o1l revenue.

Such commodity derivatives tend to be priced using benchmarks, such as Dated Brent, which correlate as far as possible

to the underlying oil revenue. There is an econornic relationship between the hedged iterns and the hedging instrurments due
to a commeon underlying, i.c. Dated Brent, belween them. Forecast ol sales, which are bascd on Dated Brent, are hedged wilh
options which have Dated Brent as reference price. An increase in Dated Brent will cause the value of the hedged item and
hedging instrument to mave in opposite directions. The Group has established a hedge ratio of 1:1 for the hedging relstionships
as the underlying risk of the commodity derivatives is identical to the hedged risk components. To test the hedge effectiveness,
the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method and compares the changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments
against the changes in fair value of the hedged items attributable to the hedged nisks. The Group hedges its estimated ail
revenues on a portfolio hasis, aggregating its oil revenues from substantially all of its African oil interests.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 Decernber 2020, all of the Group's o1l dervatives have been designated as cash flow hedges.
The Group's ol hedges have been assesscd to be highly effeclive.

Financial msk management 1s adopted centrally for the Group. The Group adopted a risk component hedging strategy from 2019.
This results from designating the variability in all the cash flows attributable to the change in the benchmark price per the oil
sales contraclts where the critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument match. There is, however, the potential for
a degree of ineffectiveness inherent in the Group's pre-?019 hedge designation for apen hedge relationship. This is due to the
differential on the Group’s underlying African crudes relative to Dated Brent and the timing of oil Lftings relative to the hedges.
The ineffectiveness recognised in the Group income stalement was $nil (2020: $0.8 million loss].

Floor protection is placed around current market levels and layered in over the course of the year, using 8 combination of
derivatives which protects downside prices and provides some exposura to upside.

The following table demonstrates the timing, volumes and average floor price protected for the Group's commadity hedges:

Hedging position as at 31 December 2021 2022 2023
Oil valume [hopd] 42,462 33,095
Average floar price protected [$/bbl] 51.37 55.00
Hedging position as at 31 December 2020 2021 202
Oil volurme [bopd] 40,000 2,000
Average floor price protected ($/bbl) 48.17 50.63
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Note 18. Financial instruments continued
The following table demonstrates the hedge position as at 31 December 2021:

Bought put Bought
2022 hedge position at 31 December 2027 Bapd [*.00r] Sold cal. cal:
Hedge structure
Collars 32,259 $54.73 $77.30 -
Zera cost dollars 1,203 $55.00 $95.33 -
Straight Puts 9,000 $38.84 - -
Total/weighted average 42 462 $51.37 $77.94 -
Bought put Bought
2023 hedge position at 31 December 2021 Bopd {floar] 50.4 cadl cail
Hedge structure
Collars 33,095 $55.00 $74.62 -
Total/weighted average 33,095 $55.00 $74.62 -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s dervative financial instruments to reasonably possible

movements in Oated Brent ol prices:
Efact on equity

Market
maovement
as at 2021 2020
31 Dec 2021 $m $m
Brent oil price 25% (416.2) (59.0]
Bremt ol price [25%) 411 1929

The following assumptions have been used in calculating the sensitivity in movement of the oil price: the pricing adjustments
relate only to the paint forward mark-to-market IMTM] valuations, the price sensitivities agsume there is no ineffectiveness
related to the oil hedges and the sensitivilies have been run only on the intrinsic element of the hedge as Management
considers this ta be the material component of oil hedge valuations.

Hedge reserve summary
The hedge reserve represents the portion of deferred gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed to be effective cash flow
hedges. The movement in the reserve for the period Is recogrised in other comprehensive income.

The tollowing table summarises the cash flow hedge reserve by intrinsic and time value, net of tax effects:

2021 2020
Cash flow hedge reserve $m %m
Oil derwatives - intrinsic (39.5) 48
Oil derivatives - time value (146.7) {5.4)

I'he deferred gains and losses in the hedge reserve are subsequently transferred to the incorne statement at maturity of derivative
contracts. The tables betow show the impact on the hedge reserve and on sales revenue during the year:

2021 2020

Deferred amounts in the hedge reserve - intrinsic 4tm Sm

At 1 January 4.8 4.8
Reclassification adjustments for items included in the income statement on realisation:

Oil derwvatives - transferred to sales revenue 112.3 [268.1}

Revaluation [losses)/gans arising in the year 1159.1) 2710

Movernent in current and deferred tax 2.7 (2.7]

(44.3) 0.2

At 31 December {39.3) 4.8
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Naote 18. Financial instruments continued
Hedge reserve summary

2021 2020
Deferred amounts in the hedge reserve - time value $m $m
At 1 January (5.4) (17.5]
Reclassification adjustments for items included in the income staterment on realisation:
Qil derivatives - transferred to sales revenue 40.7 495
Revaluation losses arising in the year (182.3] (37.3]
Maovement in current and deferred tax 0.1 0.7]
At 31 December {146.9) (5.4)

2021 2020
Reconciliation to sales revenue $m m
Oil derivatives - transferred to sales revenue 112.3 268.1
Deferred premium paid 40.7 149.4)
Net losses/[gain] from commodity derivatives in sales revenue (note 2] 153.0 218.7

Interest rate risk

interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. During the financial years 2021 and 2020, the Group was exposed to interest rate risk as it borrowed funds
at both fixed and floating interest rates. Following the debt refinancing in May 2021, all of the Group's borrowings are fixed
interest bearing. The Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility 1s based on floating interest rates and remains undrawn as at

31 Decemnber 2021.

Fixed rate debt comprises 2025 Senior Notes and 2026 Senior Secured Notes.

The interest rate profile of the Group's financial assets and latilities, excluding trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, at 31 December 2021 and 2020, was as follows:

2021 2022
Cash and 2021 2021 Casn and 2020 2020

cash Fixed rate Floating rate 2021 cash Fixed rate  Floatirg rate 020

equivalents debt debt Total equiva.ents debt debt latal

$m $m $m $m Sm b tm $m
Uss 376.2  (2,600.0) -~ [2,223.8) 7173 N756.00 0 ,431.0)  (2,463.7)
Eurc 1.3 - - 1.3 G.1 - - 0.1
Sterling 85.4 - - 85.4 72.0 - - 72.0
Other 62 - - 6.2 16.0 - - 16.0

469.1 {2,600.0) (2,130.9) 805.4 i1,750.00  [1,431.00  [2.375.6)

Cash at bank consisted of $159.9 million (2020: $450.0 million] of deposits which earn interest at rates set in advance for
periads ranging from overnight to three months by reference to market rates.

The sensitivity of the Group's financial instruments to reasonably possible movements in interest rates i1s considered not material.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's financial instruments to reasonably possible movements in
interest rates:

Effect on finance costs Effect cn equity
2021 2020 2021 2020
Mar kel movement $m m $m $m
interest rate 100 basis points - (14.3) - (14.3)
Interest rate (10] basis peints - 1.4 - 1.4
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Note 18. Financial instruments continued

Credit risk

The Group has a credit policy that governs the management of credit risk, including the establishment of counterparty credit
Lmuts and specific transaction approvals. The Group Limits its caunterparty credit risk an cash and cash equivalent balances by
dealing anly with financial institutions with credit ratings of at least A or equivalent.

The primary credit exposures for the Group are its recevables generated by the marketing of crude oil and amounts due from
JV Partners {including in relation to their share ot the TEN FPSO lease]. These exposures are managed at the corporate lavel.
The Group’s crude sales are predominantly made to international oil markat participants including the oIl majors, trading
houses and refineries. JV Partners are predominantly international major oil and gas market participants. Counterparty
evaluations are conducted utilising internaticnal credit rating agency and financial assessments. Where considered appropriate,
security in the form of trade finance instruments from financial institutions with an appropriate credit rating, such as letters of
credit, guarantees and credit insurance, are obtained to mitigate the risks.

The Group generally enters into derwvative agreements with banks which are lenders under the SSRCF. Security 1s provided
under the facility agreement which mitigates non-performance risk. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties. The maximumn financial exposure due to credit risk on the Group’s
financial assets, representing the sum of cash and cash equivalents, investments, derivative assets, trade receivables, and
recewvables from Joint Venture Partners, as ot 31 December 2021 was $1,609.6 million (2020: $1,973.5 million].

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts and manages its business predominantly in US dotlars, the operating currency of the industry in which it
operates. The Group also purchases the operating currencies of the cauntries in which it operates routinely on the spot market.
From time to time the Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in other currencies. These expasures are often
managed by executing foreign currency financial derivatives. There were no foreign currency financial derivatives in place as

at 31 December 2021 {2020: nill. Cash balances are held in other currencies to meet immediate operating and administrative
expenses or to comply with local currency regulations.

As at 31 December 2021, the only material monetary assets or liabilities of the Group that were not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective subsidiaries involved were $46.9 million in non-US dollar-denominated cash and cash
equivalents (2020: $20.0 rmitlion).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group’s financial instruments to reasonably possible movements in
US dollar exchange rates:

Effecl cn proft betare tax Effect oneguity
2021 2020 2021 2220
Markel movemert $m $rm $m $m
US$/foreign currency exchange rates 20% 17.8] (3.3] (7.8} {3.3)
USS/foreign currency exchange rates (20%) 11.7 5.0 11.7 5.0

Liguidity risk

The Group manages its Liquidity rnisk using both short-term and long-term cash flow projections, supplemented by debt financing
plans and active portfolio management across the Group. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framewaork cavering the Group's short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Group closely monitors and manages its liguidity risk. Cash torecasts are regularly produced and sensitivities run for differant
scenarios including, but not imited to, changes in cammadity prices, different production rates from the Group's producing assets
and delays to development projects. The Group had 30.9 billion [2020: $1.1 billion} of total facility headroom and free cash as at

31 December 2027.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturities forits nen-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
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Note 18. Financial instruments continued
Foreign currency risk continued

Weighted
average Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 5+
effective 1 month months to 1 year years years Total
interest rate $m $m $m $m $m $m
31 December 2021
Non-interest bearing nfa - 71.9 18.6 26.0 71.3 5.7 193.5
Lease liabilities T.1% 4b4.4 52.7 217.2 950.3 16.4 1,281.0
Fixed interest rate instruments 9.3%
Principal repayments - - 100.0 2,500.0 - 2,600.0
Interest charge - 28.0 207.0 68%.0 - 924.0
116.3 99.3 550.2 £,210.6 221 4,998.5
Weighted
average Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 b~
effestive 1 maonth manths to 1 year years years Tatal
interest rate $m $m $m $m &m $m
31 December 2020
Non-interest hearing n/a 18.9 14.8 55.7 461 347 189.5
Lease liabilities 7.3% 223 599 158.5 9hh.6 201 12165
Fixed interest rate instruments 7.8%
Principal repayments - - 300.0 1,450.0 - 1,750.0
Interest charge 3.9 28.0 78.6 2163 - 332.9
Variable interest rate instruments 5.6%
Principal repayments - - - 14310 - 1.4371.0
Interest charge 4.3 9.9 44 4 2175 - 2761
554 112.6 637.2 43365 54.2 9.196.0

Note 19. Leases

This note provides informatian for leases where the Group is a lessee. The Group did not enter into any contracts acting as a lessor.

il Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

Right-o'-use assels

Lease aabilities

31 December

31 Uerember

31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020
Right-of-use assets [included within property, plant and equipment) and lease liabilities Sm $m $m $m
Property leases 34.8 40.5 41.0 £5.6
Oit and gas production and support equipment leases 599.2 624.3 1,107.3 1,167.8
Transportation equipment teases 6.9 1.5 15.1 2.3
Total 640.9 666.3 1,163.4 1.216.5
Current 251.5 2408
Non-current 211.9 975.7
Total 1,163.4 12185

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year were $73.5 millian. Refer to note 10.

For ageing of lease liabilities, refer to note 18.

The Group's leasas balance includes TEN FPS0O and Espoir FPSO, classified as Oil and gas production and support equipment. As at
31 December 2021, the present value of the TEN FFSQ and Espair FPSO right-of-use asset was $561.6 millian (31 Dacember 2020:

$613.0 million] and $3.6 million (31 December 2020: $5.0 million), respectively. The present value of the TEN FPS0O and

Espoir FPSO lease liability was $1,012.8 million (31 December 2020: $1,133.1 millicn] and $13.2 million (31 December 2020,

$17.7 million], respectively.

Areceivable fram Joint Venture Partners of $478.8 million (31 Decermber 2020: $535.7 million] was recognised in other assals
[note 11} to reflect the value of future payments that will be met by cash calls from partners relating to the TEN FPSO lease,
The present value of the receivable from Joint Venture Partners unwinds over the expected life of the lease and the unwinding

of the discount is reported within finance income,
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

Year ended 371 December 2021

Note 19. Leases continued
il Amounts recognised in the balance sheet continued

On Z April 2021 the Group contracted Maersk Venturer offshore drilling rig to undertake the dnlling work pregramme for Jubilee
and TEN fields in Ghana. As at 31 December 2021, Tullow carries right-of-use assets of $25.8 milltor [note 10, and gross lease
lability of $59.9 million as Tullow entered the lease on behalf of the JV. A receivahle from JV Partners of $33.0 million has been
recognised in other assets to reflect the value of future payments that will e met by cash calls from JV Partners. The lease has
been recognised for an 18-month term, in line with the early termination option included in the contract and approvals received

by the JV Partners.

Carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and joint venture leases recevables and the moverments during the perod:

Joint
Lease  Venture ease
hatnlitizs recevables latal
$m $m $m
At 1 January 2020 (1.425.1] b40.4 (784.7]
Additions and changes in lease estimates [26.5) 2.5 i24.0
Disposals 12.2 (2.4] 2.6
Payments 298.1 [139.9] 158.2
Interest lexpensel/income 191.0] 406 (50.4)
Transfter to liabilities held for sale 16.9 - 16.9
Foreign exchange movements IR - 1A
At 1 January 2021 (1,216.5) 541.0 [675.5]
Additions and changes in lease estimates (161.9} 93.7 (68.2)
Payrments 298.3 (142.4) 155.9
Interest [expensel/income (83.3) 38.7 144.6)
At 31 December 2021 (1,163.4) 531.0 1632.4)

ii] Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss

31 December

31 Nlecember

2021 2020
Right-of-use assets [included within Property, plant and equipment) $m G
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Property leases 7.8 2.9
Oit and gas production and support equipment leases 52.8 62.5
Totat 50.6 72.4
Interest expense on lease liabilities (included in finance cost] 83.4 21.0
Interest income on amounts due from Jomt Venture Partners (38.8] (40.6]
Total 105.2 1228

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was $155.9 mullion (2020: $158.2 million).

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease Liabilities for leases tor short term leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less, and leases of low-value assets. The expenses relating to those leases for the year ended
31 December 2021 were $7.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively. These costs are now being tracked and disclosed in the

current year.
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Note 20. Provisions

Other Otner

Decammissioning provisions Total Decommissioning provisIons Tota!

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

MNotes $m tm $m $ro $m %

At 1 January 696.1 154.6 850.7 850.1 76.2 926.3
New provisions, changes in estimates

and reclassifications (134.8) 20.0 (44.8] 149 136.4 151.5

Transfer to assets and liabilities held for sale 1% - - - (129.2] - 129.2)

Payrments 169.3) (15.7) (85.0) (57.7) (58.4] {116.1)

Unwinding of discount 5 7.6 - 7.6 13.7 - 13.7

Currency translation adjustment 10.9) (0.1] (1.0 4.9 0.2 5.1

At 31 December 498.7 228.8 727.5 6961 154.6 850.7

Current provisions 101.2 195.3 2965 104.4 125.4 2298

Non-current provisions 397.5 335 431.0 591.7 29.2 620.9

Other provisions include non-income tax provisions of $52.8 million [2020: $52.4 million] and $176.0 million [2020: $102.2 million)
of disputed cases and claims. Management estimates nan-current other provisions would fall due between two and five years.

Non-Current-other provisions mainly relales to Bangladesh litigation. Refer to Uncertain Tax Treatments in Accounting Policies.

In January 2013, the Group acquired Spring Energy Narway AS (Springl from HiTecVision V [HiTecl, a Norwegian private equity

carnpany, and Spring employee minority shareholders. In addition to the mitial consideration payable, under the sale and
purchase agreement [Spring SPA] the Group agreed to make certain contingent bonus payrments to Hilec and the Spring

employee miaority shareholders if certain discoverylies) were deemed commercially viable on or before 31 December 2014,
This included the Wisting prospect in licence PLS3Y,

HiTec previously claimed that the conditions for a bonus payment under the Spring SPA had been met in respect of the Wisting
prospect in PLA37 as at 31 December 2014, Tullow disputed this position. In 20164, the Group sold its interest in PLA37 to Equinor
but remained respansible for this dispute. An arbitration took place in Norway in G4 2021 to resolve this issue.

On 15 February 2022, the arbitration panel delivered an award in favour of HiTec. The Tribunal decided by way of split decision that
conditions under the Spring SPA in respect of the bonus payment had been met. The Tribunal ruled that Tullow should pay

$76 million to HiTe< (an amount which includes interest and costs) and a further amount of $0.7 million i respect of

Tribunal costs.

Above includes provision relating to a potential ctaim arising out of historical contractual agreement. Further information is not
provided as it will be seriously prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The decommissioning provision represents the present value of decommissioning costs relating to the European and African o1l

and gas interests.

The Group has assumed cessation of production as the estimated timing for outflow of expenditure. However expenditure could
be incurred prior to cessation of production or after and actual timing will depend on a number of factors including, underlying

cost environment, availability of equipment and services and allocation of capital.

In 2021, the Group has increased the decormnmissioning discount rate by 8.5% from 31 Decernber 2020 due to a movement in the
risk-free rate. This resulted in a decrease of the provision by $23.7 mitlicn in Ghana, $3.7 million in Cote d'lvoire and $4.3 mitlion

in Gabon.
Discount Cessation of

rate production Total Discounl rate  Cessation of Tota,
Inflation  assumption assumption 2021 assumplion production 2020
assumption 2021 2021 $m 2020 2020 tm
Cate d'lvoire 2% 1.5% 2033 61.7 1% 2031 63.9
Gabon 2% 1.5-2% 2026-2036 61.9 1-1.9% 2027-2037 61.8
Ghana 2% 1.5-2% 2035-2036 193.3 1-1.5% 2034-2034 323.5
Mauritama nfa nfa 2018 1.6 n/a 2018 89.0
UK nfa n/a 2018 120.2 n/a 2018 157.9
498.7 696.1

The decrease in the Ghana decommissianing provision was associated with lower well cost estimates.

The Group's decoemmissiening activities are ongoing in the UK and Mauritania and majority of the future costs is expected to be
incurred in 2022 [$1071.1 million] and 2023 [$59.5 millicn]. The remaining activities are planned to continue through to 2027, with

an associated expenditure of $21.2 million.
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Note 21. Deferred taxation

Provision fer

Accelerated Other onerous Deterred
tax temporary service patroleum
depreciation Decommissioning differences contracts  revenue tax Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2020 [738.1] 108.3 [26.8] 217 9.7 1275.91
Credit/[charge] to income statement 78.7 (5.9] 17.3 - 22 79.3
Transfer to assels classified as held
far sale 13.7 2.3 0.7 - - 16.7
Exchange differences - 0.9 0.4 - 0.2 0.9
At 1 January 2021 [645.7) 105.6 (8.4 21.7 121 (179.0)
Credit/[charge) to incorme statement 46.8 (16.5) (58.7) - (2.7) 1144.9]
Transfer to disposals 0.6 (0.2 0.7 - - 1.1
Exchange differences - (0.1 - - - (0.1
At 31 December 2021 (598.3] 88.8 (66.4) 21.7 9.4 (322.9]
2021 2020
$m $m
Deferred tax liabilities (677.3) [673.23]
Deferred tax assets 354.4 4943
(322.9) [179.0]

The majority of the Group's deferred tax assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered aver more than ane year.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it 1s considered probable that those assets will be recoverable. This
involves an assessment of when those deferred tax assets are likely to reverse, and a judgement as to whether or nat there wilt
be sufficient taxable prohts available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires assumptions regarding future
profitability and is therefore inherently uncertain. To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be
an increase or decrease in the level of deferred tax asscts recognised which can result in a charge or credit in the period in

which the change occurs.

Note 22. Called-up equity share capital and share premium account

Allotted equity share capital and share premium

Equity share capral

awotted and ‘u.ly pad

Share premium

tfumber F $m_
Ordinary shares of 10p each
At 1 January 2020 (as adjusted) 1,407,897,957 210.9 1,294.7
Issued during the year
Exercise of share options 6,173,826 08 -

At 1 January 2021
Issued during the year

1,414,071,777

211.7 1,294.7

Exercise of share options 18,008,320 25 -
At 31 December 2021 1,432,080,097 214.2 1,294.7
The Company does not have a maximum authorised share capital,

Note 23. Share-based payments
Analysis of share-based payment charge
2021 2320
Mctes 4m tm
Tullow Incentive Plan 8.1 1.9
Employes Share Award Plan 3.0 8.6
7027 POMR Buyout Award 0.5 0.4
11.6 209
Expensed to oparating costs 4 0.5 0.7
Expensed as administrative cost 4 11.1 200
Total share-hased payment charge 11.6 209
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Note 23. Share-based payments continued
The national insurance liability as at 31 December 2021 was $2.0 million {2020:%$1.3 million}

Tullow Incentive Plan [TIP]

Under the TIP, Senior Management can be granted nil exarcise price options, normally exercisable from three years [five years
In the case of the Company’s Directors! to ten years following grant provided an individual remains in emplaoyment. The size of
awards depends on both annual performance measures and total sharehalder return (TSR] over a period of up to three years.
There are no post-grant performance conditions. No dividends are paid aver the vesting period; however, it has been agreed for
the TIP Awards since Z018 that an amount equivalent to the dividends that would have been paid on the TIP shares during the
vesting period If they were ‘real” shares will also be payable on exercise of the award. There are further details of the TIP in the
Remuneration Report on pages &9 to 77.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for TIP awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 was 3.5 years.

Employee Share Award Plan [ESAP]

Participation in the ESAP was available to most Group employees. Eligible employess were granted nit exercise price oplions,
that are exercisable from three to ten years following grant. An individual must normally remain in employment for three years
from grant for the share to vest. Awards are not subject to post-grant performance conditions. No dividends are paid over the
vesting period; however, for the ESAP awards granted since 2018 1t was agreed that an amount equivalent to the dividends that
would have been paid on the ESAP shares during the vesting period if they were real’ shares would also be payable on exercise
of the award. The ESAP was replaced by the Sharesave [SAYE] plan for grants from 2021.

Phantorn options that provide a cash bonus equivalent to the gain that could be made from a share option (being granted over a
notional number of shares) have also been granted under the ESAP in situations where the grant of share options was not practicable.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for ESAP awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 was 6.6 years.

2010 Share Option Plan (2010 SOP)

Participation in the 2010 50F was available to most of the Group’s employees. Options have an exercise price equal to market
value shortly before grant and are normally exercisable between three and ten years from the date of the grant subject to
continuing employment.

Phantom options, providing a cash bonus equivalent to the gain that could be made from a share option, have also been granted
under the 2010 S0P in situations where the grant of share options was not practicable.

Outstanding options under the SOP at 31 December 2021 had exercise prices of 900p to 1,294p (2020: $00p to 1,2%4pl and
rermaining contractual lives between 80 days and 1.6 years. The weighted average remaining contractual life is 0.8 years.

2020 POMR Buyout Awards

On 5 August 2020, the Company granted the new Chief bxecutive Officer @ number of Buyout Awards following the
commencement of their employment in order to compensate them for certain share arrangements forfeited upon leaving

their former employer. [The grant of the awards was conditional on the CEQ purchasing shares in the Company with a value of
£350,000 (the 'Purchased Shares'} These awards will vest after five years from the date of joining subject to continued service
and the retention of the Purchased Shares. The awards comprise: a restricted share award in the form of a nil-cost opticn over
3,000,000 shares; a share option over 3,000,000 shares with a per share exercise price of [0.2566 [being equal to the market
value of a share at the close of trading on the dealing date immediately following the date an which the Purchased Shares were
acquired); and a share option over 3,000,000 shares with a per share exercise price of £0.5132 [being twice the exercise price for
the above options].

The awards will ordinarily vest on 7 July 2025 and if they remnain unexercised will expire on 1 July 2030. There are further details
of the 2020 PDMR Buyout Awards in the Remuneration Report ¢n pages 6% to 77,

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the PDMR Buyout Awards outstanding at 31 December 2021 was 8.5 years.

2021 Tullow Sharesave Flan [SAYE]

UK based employees are eligible to participate in the SAYE scheme introduced in 2021, These are standard statutory HMRC
approved ‘Save as you earn’ awards. To participate in the SAYE, employees choose how much money of their net salary to
save each month [subject to certain limits) for a period of three years. At the end of the period employeas are entitled to
purchase share using the funds they have saved at a price 20% below the markel price on the day befare the invitatian date.
Alternatively they can elect to take back all their savings as cash. Only employees who remain in service and continue to pay
rnonthly contributions will be eligible to purchase shares. If they leave employment or choose to stop paying centributions
befere the end of the three-year period they will be refunded the amount they have saved,

Outstanding SAYE awards at 31 December 2021 had exercise prices of 38p and remaining contractual Lives of 3.4 years.
The weighted average remaining contractual life 1s 3.4 years.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 December 2027

Note 23. Share-based payments continued

UK and Irish Share Incentive Plans (SIPs)

These are all-employee plans set up in the UK and Ireland, to enable employees to save out of salary up to prescribed monthly
Limits. Contributions are used by the SIP trustees to buy Tullow shares (Partnership Shares] at the end of each three-moanth
accumulation period. The Company makes a matching contribution to acquire Tullow shares [Matching Shares} on a one-for-one
basis. Under the UK SIF, Matching Shares are subject to time-based forfeiture over three years on leaving employment in certain
circumstances or if the related Partnership Shares are sold. The fair value of a Matching Share 1s its market value when it 1s awarded.

Under the UK SIP: (/] Partnership Shares are purchased at the tower of their market vatues at the start of the accumulation
period and the purchase date (which is treated as a three-ronth share aption for IFRS 2 purposes and therefore results in an
accounting chargel; and (1] Matehing Shares vest over the three years after being awarded [resulting in their accounting charge
being spread over that period].

Under the Irish SIP: [iI] Partnershinp Shares are bought at the market value at the purchase date (which does not result in any
accounting charge): and (1l Matehing Shares vest over the two years after being awarded [resulting in their accounting charge
being spread over that period].

The following table illustrates the number and average weighted share price at grant or weighted average exercise price {WAEP]
of, and movements in, share options under the TIP, ESAP, 2010 S0P, 2020 buyout and SAYE.

Outstanding Granted Exarcised Forfeited/  Qutstanding Exercisable

asat during during expired during at at

1 January the year the year the year 31 0ecember 31 December

2021 TiP - number of shares 78,116,828 2,488749 8,191,155 673,619 21,740,803 2,054,238
2021 TIF - average weighted share price

at grant 133.0 605 188.8 81.8 105.3 191.2

2009 7IP - number of shares 19.803.133 10,133,701 (2,274 564] 454,558 728116828 4,394,115
20019 TIP - average weighted share price

at grant 203.6 10.9 2227 2263 133.0 2143

20271 ESAP - number af shares 79,919,699 - 9462175 2,818,626 17.638898 5,181,246
2021 ESAP - average weighted share price

at grant 126.1 - 198.4 7.8 96.5 213.4

2020 ESAP - number of shares 22,256,115 21,858,732 (4,062,562](10,132,584) 29,919,699 11.711.333
2020 ESAP - average weighted share price

at grant 223.6 10.9 2135 57.1 126.1 2189

2021 50P - number of shares 5,943 243 - - 3,896,508 2046755 2,046,725

2021 S0P - WAEP 1.124.6 - - 1,134 .4 1,106.0 1,106.0

2020 S0P - number of shares 6,433,141 - - (489,878) 5,943,263 5,943,263

2020 S0P - WAEP 1,125.6 - - 1,137.7 11246 11246

2021 Buyout Awards — number of shares 2,000,000 - - - 9,000,000 -

20271 Buyout Awards - WAEP 257 - - - 257 -

2020 Buyout Awards — number of shares - 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 -

2020 Buyout Awards - WAEP - 25.7 - - 257 -

2021 SAYE - number of phantom shares - 1,534,247 - - 1,534,247 -

2021 SAYE - WAEP - 38.0 - - 38.0 -

2020 SAYE - number of phantom shares - - - - - -

2020 SAYE - WAEP - - - - - -

The options granted during the year were valued using a proprietary binomial valuatian.
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Note 23. Share-based payments continued

UK and Irish Share Incentive Plans [SIPs] continued

The follawing table details the weighted average fair value of awards granted and the assumptions used in the fair value
expense calculations.

2021 SAYE 2021 TP 2020TIP 2020 ESAP 2020 Buynut
Weighted average fair value of awards granted 34.8p 60.9p 10.9p 10.9p 21.5p
Weighted average share price at exercise for awards exercised L4.6p 3.4p 48.9p 25.8p -
Principal inputs to options valuations modal:
Weighted average share price at grant 53.6p 60.0p 10.9p 10.9p0 27. 70
Weighted average exercise price 38.0p 0.0p 0.0p 0.0p 257p
Risk-free interest rate per annum’ 0.7% 0.1%/0.4% 0.3% 0.3% -0.1%
Fxpected volatility per annum' 2 2% 101%/85% 82% 82% 78%-83%
Expected award Ufe [years| - 36 3.0/5.0 3.0 3.0 L9-42
Dividend yield per annum® 0.0% n/a n/a n/a 0%
Employee turnover before vesting per annum’ 5% 5%/0% 2% HY% 0%

1. Shows the assumption for 2021 TIP awards mads to Senior Management/Executives and Directors respectively 2020 [P Awards were made Lo senior
Management anly.

?  Expected vo.atilty was determined by ca.culating the histerical va.atiaty of the Company's share price cver a period commensurate with the expected J'e ¢ the
awards The fair values of the 2021 and 2020 TIP Awards are not a‘fected by the assumption for the Company's share price vo.atility

3 The expected u'e 15 the average expected period from date of grant to exercise al.owing for the Company's best estimate of participanis’ expacted exercise behaviour

4 Nec dwvidend yield assamotion 13 needed for the fair va.ue calcu.ations ‘or the 2021 TIP Awards a= a dividend equivalent wil. be payable an the exersise of these awards

Note 24. Commitments and contingencies

2021 2020

$m $m

Capital commitments 169.9 253.9
Contingent liabilities

Performance guarantees 100.8 119.6

Other contingent Liabilities 14.0 82.9

114.8 198.5

Where Tullow acts as operatar of a Joint Venture the capital commitments reported represent Tullow's net share of these commitments.
Where Tullow is non-operateor the value of capital commitments is based on committed future work programmes.

Performance guarantees are in respect of abandonment obligations, comrmitted work programmes and certain financial obligations.

Other contingent liabilities
This includes amounts for ongoing legal disputes with third parties where we consider the lkelihcod of a cash outflow to be higher than
remote but not probable. The tirming of any econarmic outflow if it were to occur would likely range belween one and five years.

Note 25. Related party transactions
The Directors of Tullow Oil plc are considered to be the only key Management personnel as defined by IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

2021 2020

$m Lin

Short term employee benefits 3.9 2.7
Post-employment benefits 0.3 0.2
Share-based payments 1.8 2.3
6.0 5.2

Short-term employee benefits
These amounts comprise fees paid to the Directors in respect of salary and benefits earned during the relevant financial year,
plus bonuses awarded for the year.

Post-employment benefits
These amounts comprise amounts paid into the pension schemes of the Directors,

Share-based payments
This is the cost to the Group of Directors’ participation in share-based payment plans, as measured by the fair value of options
and shares granted, accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment.

There are no other related party transactions. Further details regarding transactions with the Directors of Tultow Cil plc are
disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 69 to 85.
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26. Climate change and energy transition
In March 2027, Tullow announced its commitment to being Net Zero on our Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions on a net equity basis
by 2030 supporting the goal of limiting global temperature rise to well below 2°C as per Article 2 of the Paris Agreement.

This note describes how Tullow has considered climate related impacts in some key areas of the financial statements and how
this translates into the valuation of assets and measurement of liabilities as Tullow make progress in the energy transition.

Mote (ag) key sources of estimation uncertainties describes those uncertainties that have the potential to have a material effect
on the Group Balance Sheet in the next 12 months.

This note describes the key areas of climate impacts that potentially have shart and longer-term effects en amounts recognised
in the Group Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021. Where relevant this note contains references to other notes o the Group
Financial Statements and aims to provide an overarching summary.

Financial planning assumptions
Tullow targets to being Net Zero scope 1 and 2 emissions by 2030, compared to 2020 levels on a net equity basis and 40-45%
reduction in GHG by 2025 have been included in Tullow’s business plans.

The financial statements are based on reasonakble and suppertable assumptions that represent management’s current best
estimate of the range of econamic conditions that may exist in the foreseeable future.

The Group has performed an assessment of the potential future impact of Climate Change on key elements of its Financial
Staternants utilising the four IEA scenarios [see page 23 for details] The biggest impact on oil and carbon prices as contained in
the IEA scenarios is typically beyand 2030. The impact to Tullow's forecast capex/opex due to climate risk 15 currently assessed
as minorn comparison to the impact of oil price changes. Our anatysis demonstrates that the impact is lowest on our currently
producing assets, mitigating much of this impact, however 1t does have implications for new developments and exploration
assets mare exposed to the fall in oil prices post 2030.

Similarly, while carbon prices are projected to grow there s low Ukelihood that carbon pricing elements will be fermalised in
support of Article & of the Paris Agreement in our core geographies, and not before Tullow's Scape 1 and 7 emissions have
pezked (before 2025]. Tullow's current internal shadow carbon price of $40/tC0ze remains suitable but wili be reviewed in
line with IEA's emerging market and developing economies carbon price assumptions and further developments in relation
to international carbon market instruments,

Pricing assumptions used will continue to be updated for changes in the economic environment and the pace of the energy transition.

Intangible explaration and evaluation assets

Under "Stated Policy Scenario”, "Announced Pledges Scenario” and "Sustainable Development Scenario”, the Group believes
there would be no impact on its exploration portfolio. However the "Net Zere Emission by 2050 Scenario” represents a
challenging ol price environment for these future investments, particularly post 2030 when the bulk of the cash flows would be
generated from these types of projects. Therefore could result in a potential write-off of part or all of the $255 mullion net book
value if these scenarios were to arise.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group has included the costs in its impairment assessment directly attributable to CGU's associated with its Nel Zero plans.
Under "Stated Policy Scenario”, "Announced Pledges Scenario” and "Sustainable Development Scenario”, the Group believes
there would be nofpesitive impact an its producing assets. However the "Net Zero Ermission by 2050 Scenario” would trigger
reductions in cash flows of between 0-10%. Specially if the "net zero emission by 2050 scenario” were to arise the Group would
recogmse an additional impairment of $591 million. As stated above the Group does not expect a material impact on any other
balance sheet line item as a result of the four IEA scenarios.

Decammissiening provision

The energy transition could result in decommissioning taking place earlier than anticipated. The risk on the timing of
decommissioning activities 15 brmited, supported by production plans to fully produce fields in the foreseeable future.

The discount rate used to discaount decomrussioning provision is hetween 10-15-years term in line with the average
remaining life of aur producing assets. Under the "Net Zerc Emission by 2050 Scenario” cessation of production assumptions
would accelerate by, Ghana 0-5 years, Gabon 0-8 years and Espoir 5 years.

Governmental and societal responses to climate change risks are still developing, and are interdependent upon each other,
and conseguently financial statements cannot capture all possibie future outcomes as these are not yet known.
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Note 27. Events since 31 December 2021

Adjusting events

On 15 February 2022 a panel of arbitrators, working under the jurisdiction of Norwegian taw, delivered an award in favour of
HiTec Vision (HiTec) in relation to its dispute with Tullow [Award]. The panel had been asked to adjudicate as ta whether
discoveries made in the PL-537 Licence (Offshore Norway) between 2013 and 2016 had triggered a further payment under the
SPA between Tullow and HiTec regarding the purchase of Spring Energy in 2013, With the Award, the panel has decided by way
of split decision that conditions for a furlther payment gutlined in the 5PA were met. The Tribunal has ruled that Tullow should
pay $76 million. This amount also includes interest and costs, This has been recognised 1n the balance sheet as a liability as at
31 December 2027.

Non-adjusting events

FIG for the Tilenga Project in Uganda and the East African Crude Oil Pipeline (EACOP] as reported by Total Energies Ltd on

1 February 2022 triggered a contingent consideration payment of $75 million in relation to Tullow's sale of its assets in Uganda
ta Total in 2020 which was received on 16 February 2022. This was recognised as a current receivable as at 31 Decermnber 2021,

There have not been any other events since 31 December 2021 that have resulted in @ material impact on the year end results.

Note 28. Cash flow statement reconciliations

2021 2020
Purchases of intangible exploratian and evaluation assets $m $m
Additions to intangible exploration and evaluation assets 46.3 170.7
Associated cash flows
Purchases of intangible exploration and evaluation assets 85.1) (213.6)
Non-cash movements/presented in other cash flow lines
Movement in working capital 39.8 (42.9]
2021 2020
Purchases of property, plant and equspment $m 4m
Additions to property, plant and equipment 148.1 2297
Associated cash flows
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (150.4) (217.3]
Non-cash movements/presented in other cash flow lines
Decornmissioning asset revisions 134.8 (14.9)
Right-of-use asset additions [73.5) (14.5)
Mavement in working capital {59.0) 19.0
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020
Moverment in borrowings $n Em $m Movement Mavement
Borrowings 2.568.7 3.170.5 3,071.7 {601.8) 98.8
Associated cash flows
Debt arrangement fees (56.61 -
Repayment of borrowings (2,379.9} (185.0
Drawdown of borrowings 1,800.0 270.0
Non-cash movements/presented in other cash flow lines
Amortisation of arrangement fees and accrued interest 34.7 13.8

Note 29. Dividends
In 2021, the Board recarmnmended that no interim or final dividend would be paid.
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Note 30. Tullow Gil plc subsidiaries
As at 31 December 2021

Each undertaking listed below 1s a subsidiary by virtue of Tullow Cil plc helding, directly or indirectly, a majority of voting rights
in the undertaking. The ownership percentages are equal to the effective equity owned by the Group. Unless otherwise noted,
the share capital of each undertaking comprises ordinary shares or the local equivalent thereof,

The percentage of equity owned by the Group is 100% unless otherwise noted. The results of all undertakings listed below are
fully consolidated in the Group's Financial Statements,

Cormpany name

Ceuntry of incorporation

Direct cr
indirect

Address of reqistered office

Hardman Cil and Gas Pty Ltd
Hardman Resources Pty Ltd

Tullow Chinguetti Production Pty Ltd
Tutlow Petrateum [Mauritamiz] Pty Ltd
Tullow Uganda Holdings Pty Ltd
Tullow Uganda Operations Pty Ltd
Tullow [EA} Holdings Limited

Planet Oil International Limited
Tullow Argentina Limited

Tullow Comeros Limited

Tullow Céte d'lvaire Onshore Limited
Tullow EG Exploration Limited’
Tullow Gambia Limited?

Tullow Group Services Limited
Tullow Jamaica Limited

Tullow New Yentures Limited

Tullow Mozambique Limited

Tullow il 100 Limited

Tullew il 107 Limited

Tultow Ot Finance Limited

Tutlow 01l SK Limuted

Tullow il SNS Limited?

Tullow Qit SPE Limited

Tullow Peru Limited

Tullow Senegal [Exploration Limited?
Tullow Technologtes Limited

Tullow Uganda Midstrearn Limited®

Tullow Uruguay Limited

Tullow Oil Gabon SA

Austratia

Australia

Australia

Austratia

Australia

Australia

British Virgin Islands
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engtand and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

England and Wales

Gabon

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Direct

Indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Direct

Direct

Dhrect

Direct

Direct

Oirect

indirect

Indirect

Indirect

indirect

Indirect

Indirect

Level 9, 1 Wiltiam Street, Perth WA 6000, Australia
Level 9, 1 William Street, Perth WA 46000, Australia
Level 9, 1 Williarmn Street, Perth WA 46000, Australia
Level @ 1 Willlam Street, Perth WA 6000, Australia
Level 9 1 William Street, Perth WA 6000, Australia
Level 2,1 William Street, Perth WA 46000, Australia

Ritter House, Wickhams Cay, Tortola, VG1110,

9 Chrswick Park,
2 Chiswick Park,
? Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
? Chiswick Park,

? Chiswick Park,

9 Chiswick Park,

9 Chiswick Park,
2 Chiswick Park,
? Chiswick Park,
? Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
? Chiswick Park,
7 Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
% Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,
9 Chiswick Park,

9 Chiswick Park,

British Virgin Islands

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdem

366 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, Landon
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chuswick High Road, London
W4 BXT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, Londaon
W4 BXT1, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 0XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W 5XT, United Kingdom

Dé6 Chiswick High Road, Landon
W4 BXT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

546 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

56é Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

266 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

h6éa Chiswick High Road, London
Wa OXT United Kingdom

244 Chiswack High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, London
Wi GXT, United Kingdom

564 Chiswick High Road, London
Wa 5XT, United Kingdom

564 Chiswick High Road, Lendon
W HXT, United Kingdom

966 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

566 Chiswick High Road, Lenden
W4 5XT, United Kingdom

Rue Louise Charon B.P. 9773, Libreville
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Note 30. Tullow Oil plc subsidiaries continued

As at 31 December 2021 continued

Direct ar
Caompany narne Cauntry ot incorparation indirect Address o registered o'fice
Tullow Gakon Limited Iste of Man Indirect First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas
IM2 4DF Isle of Man
Tullow Oil IMauritania) Ltd Guernsey indirect P.O. Box 119, Martello Court, Admiral Park,
St. Peter Port GY1 3HB, Guernsey
Tullow Oil Holdings {Guernsey] Ltd Guernsey indirect P.0. Box 119, Martello Court, Admiral Park,
St. Peter Port GY1 3HB, Guernsey
Tullaw Oil Limited Ireland Direct Number 1, Central Park, Leopardstown, Dublin 18,
Ireland
Tullow Congo Limited Isle of Man indirect First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas
M2 4DF, Isle of Man
Tullow Gabon Holdings Limited Isle of Man indirect First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas
IM2 4ADF, Isle of Man
Tullow Mauritama Limited Iste of Man Indirect First Names House, Victoria Road, Douglas
IM2 4DF, Isle of Man
Tullow Namibia Limited Isle of Man Indirect First Names House, Victoria Road, Dougtas
IM2 4DF, Isle of Man
Tullow Cote d'lvoire Exploration Limited  Jfersey Indirect 44 Esplanade, 5t Helier JE4 WG, Jersey
Tullow Cdte d'lvoire Limited Jersey Indirect 44 Esplanade, St Helier JE4 9WG, Jersey
Tullow Ghana Limited Jersey Indirect 44 Esplanade, 5t Helier JE4 WG, Jersey
Tullow India Operations Limited Jersey Indirect 44 ksplanade, 5t Helier JE4 9WG, Jersey
Tullow Oil (Jersey) Limited Jersey Direct 44 Esplanade, St Helier JE4 9WG, Jersey
Tullow Oil International Limited Jersey Indirect 44 Esplanade, 5t Helier JE4 WG, Jersey
Tullow Ethiopia BV Netherlands Indirect ¢ Chiswick Park, 566 Chiswick High Read, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom
Tullow Guyana BY Netherlands Indirect 9 Chiswick Park, 564 Chiswick High Read, London
Wi 5XT, United Kingdom
Tullow Hardmzn Holdings BY Netherlands Indirect Prinses Margrietplantsoen 33, 2095AM
‘s-Gravenhage, The Netherlands
Tullow Kenya BV Netherlands Indirect ¢ Chiswick Park, 566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 5XT, United Kingdom
Tullow Netherlzands Holding Cooperatief BA Netherlands Indirect Prinses Margrietplantsoen 33, 25%0AM
's-Gravenhage, The Netherlands
Tullow Overseas Holdings BY Netherlands Direct 9 Chiswick Park, 566 Chiswick High Road, London
W4 OXT, United Kingdom
Tullow Suriname BV Netherlands Indirect Prinses Margrietplantsoen 33, 2595AM
's-Gravenhage, The Netherlands
Tullow Uganda Holdings BV Netherlands indirect Prinses Margrietplantsoen 33, 2595AM
's-Gravenhage, The Netherlands
Tullow Zambia BV Netherlands Indirect ? Chiswick Park, 566 Chuswick High Road, Lendon
W4 5XT, United Kingdom
Tullow Oit Norge AS Naorway Indirect Tordenskioldsgate 6B, 0160 Oslo, Norway
Energy Africa Bredasdorp [Pty] Ltd South Africa Indirect 11th Floor, Convention Tower, Heerengracht
Street, Foreshore, Cape Town 8001, South Africa
Tullow South Africe [Pty) Limited South Africa Indirect 11th Floor, Convention Tower, Heerengracht
Street, Foreshare, Cape Town 8001, South Africa
T.U. S.A. Uruguay Indirect Colonmia 810, Of. 403, Montevideo, Uruguay

Struck offan 19 January 2621
Struck off on 19 January 2021
Struck o on 13 Apn. 2021

Struck off an 1% January 2021
Struck of on 19 January 2021

o Lr o —
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continuad
Year ended 31 December 2027

Note 31 Licence interests

Current exploration, development and production interests

Ghana
Area Tullow

Licence/Unit area Fields 5q kin interest  Operator Other partners
Deepwater Tano Jubilee, Wawa, Tweneboa, 619 47.18%  Tullow Kosmos, KEGIN', GNPC,
Enyenra, Ntomme Jubilee Oil Holdings, Petro SA
West Cape Threa Foints  Jubilee, Mahogany, Teak 150 25.466%  Tullow Kosmas, GNPC,
Jubilee Oil Holdings, Petro SA
Jubilee Field Unit Area?  Jubilee, Mahogany, Teak 35.48%  Tullow Kosmos, KEGIN?', GNPC,

Jubilee Oil Holdings, Petro SA

1 Farmery Anadarko.

2 Aumtisation agreement covering the Jubitee hield was agreed by the partners of the West Cape Three Paints and the Deepwater Tano Licences The Jubilee Unit
Area was expanded in 2017 to include the Mahogany and leak fie.ds It now includes al. of the rernaining part of the West Cape Toree Poinls acence and a sma..
part of the Deepwater Tano ucence

Non-Operated

Area Tusllowe
Licence/Unt area Fie.ds sq km interest  Operator Other parinars
Cote d'Ivoire
Cl-26 Special Area 'E Espair 235 2133% CNR Petroc
Gahon
Avouma Avouma, South Tchibala 52 7.50%  Vaalco Addax [Sinopec), Sasol, PetroEnergy
Ebouri Ebour 15 7.00%  Vaalco Addax 1Sinopec), Sasol, PetroEnergy
Echira j Echira 76 40.00%  Perenco Gabon Oil Company
Etame Etame, North Tchibala 49 7.50%  Vaalco Addax [Sinopec], Sasol, Petroknergy
Ezanga B 5.626  857%  Maurel & Prom '7_
Gwedid N Gwedidi 5 7.50%  Maurel & Prom Gabon Oil Company
Limande Limande b4 40.00%  Perenco Gabon Ot Company
Mabounda Mabounda b 7.50%  Maurel & Prom Gabon Qil Campany
Marac Maroc 17 7.50%  Maurel & Prom Gabon Gil Campany
Maroc‘No;d Maroc Nord 17 7.50% Maurel & Prom Gabon Oil Company
Mbigou Mbigou 5 750%  Maurel & Prom ) Gabon Oil Company
M'Oba M'Oba 57  2431%  Perenco i Gabon Oil Company
Niemb Niembi 4 7.50%  Maurel & Prom ] Gaboen Qil Company‘r
Niungo L Niungo 96 40.00% Perenco Gabon Qil Company
Oba Oba 44 10.00%  Perenco Gabon Oil Company
Omko Omko 16 7.50%  Maurel & Prom Gabon Oil Company
Onal 3 Onal 46 7.50%  Maurel & Prom Gabon Qil Company
Simba _ Simba 315 57.50%  Perenco
Tchatamba Marin Tchatamba Marin 30 25.00%  Perenco ONE-Dyas BY
Tchatamba South Tchatamba South 40 25.00%  Parenco ONE-Dyas BV
Tchatamboa West Tchatamba West 25 2500%  Perenco ONE-Dyas BV
Turnix Turnix - 18 2750%  Perenco Gabon Oil Company
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Kenya

Area lullow
Licence Fie.ds sq km interest  Operator Other partners
Kenya
Block 10BA 11,069 50.00%  Tullow _Africa OiL Total
Block 10BB Amosing, Ngaria 6,172 50.00% Tullow Africa OiL, Total
Block 12B 6,200 100.00% Tullow
Block 13T Ekales, Twiga 4,719 50.00%  Tullow Africa Qil, Total
Exploration

Area Tu..ow
Licence/Unit area Fie.ds sq km interest  Operator Other partners
Argentina o
Block MLO-114 9942 40.00%  Tullow Pluspetrol, Wintershall Dea
Block MLO-11% 4546 40.00%  Tullow Pluspetrot, Wintershall Dea
Block MLO-122 4420 100.00%  Tullow
Céte d'lvoire ) N
Cl-924 o3l 70.00%  Tullow Petroci
Guyana
Kanuku 5165  37.50% Repsol  Total
Ornndulk 1,774 60.00%  Tullow Total, Eco Atlantic &G
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2027

2020
201 Restated'
MNotes $m Sm
ASSETS
Non-current assets
lnvestments 1 4,350.3 3.366.1
4,350.3 3,366.1
Current assets
Other current assets 3 544.8 5092.0
Cash at bank 741 5.9
619.0 5149
Total assets 4,969.2 3,881.0
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 4 (389.4) [437.8)
Borrowings 5 (100.00 (2,879.5]
Derwative financial instruments [73.1) -
(562.5) {3317.1)
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 5 [2,468.7) -
Derwative financial instruments 5 (99.0] -
(2,567.7) -
Total liabilities (3,130.21 (3317.1]
Net assets 1,839.0 563.9
Capital and reserves ;
Called-up share capital 7 214.2 2117 !
Share premium 7 1,294.7 1,294.7 ‘
Foreign currency translation reserve 671.5 6715
Merger reserves 194.5 194.5
Retatned earnings (535.91 (1.808.5]
Total equity 1,839.0 563.9 |
[

1 Please re'erto Nate ! fer detars on prior year restatement

Ouring the year the Company made a profit of $1,263.8 million (2020:
Approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 8 March 2022.

Rahul Dhir Les Woaod
Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity (restated)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Foreign

Currency
Share Share Trans:ation Merger Retained latal
capital premium reserve Reserves earnings equity
$rn $m $m $m $FT1 $m
At 1 January 2020 [as previously reported) 210.9 1,294.7 1945 6715 [78.0) 24497
Loss for the year [restated] - - - - (1,906.9]  (1,906.9)
Exercising of employee share options 0.8 - - - i0.8) -
Share-hased payrment charges - - - - 209 20.9
As 1 January 2021 [as adjusted) 211.7 1,294.7 194.5 4715  (1,808.8) 563.6
Profit for the year - - - - 1,263.8 1,263.8
Exercising of employee share options 2.5 - - - (2.5]) -
Share-based payment charges - - - - 11.6 1.6
At 31 December 2021 214.2 1,294.7 194.5 671.5 (535.9) 1,839.0

Please refer to Note 1 for details on prior year restatement.
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Company accounting policies
As at 31 December 2021

la) General information

Tullow Qil plc is a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act, The address of the registered office
15 Tullow Oil plc, Building 9, Chiswick Park, 56¢6 Chiswick High Road, London W4 5XT. The Financial Statements are presented

in S dellars and all values are rounded to the nearest $0.1 mullion, except where otherwise staled, Tullow Qil glc is the ultimate
Parent of the Group.

|b) Basis of preparation

The Company meets the definitian of a qualifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard 100 [FRS 100) issued by the
Financial Reporting Council. The Financial Statements have therefore been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 [FRS 107) Reduced Disclosure Framework as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

The following exernptions from the requirements of IFRS have been applied in the preparation of these Financial Statements,
in accordance with FRS 107:

- paragraphs 45(b] and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2 Share-bacsed Payment [details of the number and weighted average exarcise prices
of share options, and how the fair value of goods or services received was determined];

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;

- paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement [disclosure of vatuation technigues and inputs used for fair value
measurement of assets and liabilities); and

- paragraph 38 of JAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - comparative information requirements in respect of certain
assets.

The following paragraphs of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:

- 10[d) (statement of cash flows);

- 111 {cash flow statement information);

- 134-136 [capital management disclosures];

- IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

- paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors;
- paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures [key Management compensation); and

- the requirements in AS 24 Related Party Disclosures, to disclose related party transachians entered into between two or more
members of a group. Where relevant, equwvalent disclosures have been given in the Group accounts.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for derivative financial instrurments that have
been measured at fair value.

The Company has applied the exernption from the reguirement to publish a separate profit and loss account fer the Parent
Company set outin section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

During the year the Cornpany made a profit of $1,263.8 mullion [2020: $1,906.9 million lass).

[c) Going concern
Refer to the Basts of prepacation in the Accounting Palicies section af the Graup accaunts.

{d} Foretgn currencies

The US dotlar is the functional and presentational currency of the Company. Transactions in fereign currencies are translated
at the rates of exchange ruling at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into US dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, with a corresponding charge or credit to the
incorme statement. However, exchange gains and losses arising on long-term foreign currency borrowings, which are a hedge
against the Company’s overseas investments, are dealt wath in reserves.
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{e] Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments. The Company has share-based awards that are
equity settled and cash settled as defined by IFRS 2. The fair value of the equity settled awards has been determined at the date
of grant of the award allowing for the effect of any market-based performance conditions. This fair value, adjusted by the
Company’'s estimate ¢f the number of awards that will eventually vest as a result of non-rmarket conditions, is expensed
uniformly over the vesting period.

The fair values were calculated using 2 binormial eption pricing model with suitable modifications to allow for employee turnover
after vesting and early exercise. Where necessary, this model is supplemented with a Monte Carlo model. The inputs to the
maodels include: the share price at date of grant; exercise price; expected volatility; expected dividends; risk-free rate of interest;
and patterns of exercise of the plan participants.

For cash settled awards, a Liability 1s recognised for the goods or service acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the
liability. At each balance sheet date until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the Liability is
reneasured, with any changes in fair value recagnised in the income staterment.

(f} Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less any provision for impairment.

lg] Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss; and loans and
receivables. The classification depends cn the purpese far which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. As of 31 Oecember 2021, all financial
assets were classified at amortised cost.

Assets are classified and measured at amortised cost when the business model of the Company is to collect contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. These assets are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised, modified or impaired.

(h] Financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities is determined by the initial classification.

il Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Those balances that meet the definition of being held for trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Such
liabilities are carried on the balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recagnised In the income staterment.

Intercompany derwative liabilities fall under this category of financial instruments.

ii} Financial liabilities measured at amaortised cost:
All financial Labilities not meeting the criteria of being classified at fair value through prefit or loss are classified as financial
Liabilities measured at amortised cost. The instruments are inttially recognised at their fair vatue net of transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of financial liability. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial tiabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings and trade creditors fall under this category of financial instruments.

(i) Share issue expenses
Costs of share issues are written off against the premium arising on the issues of share capital.

[j] Finance costs of debt
Finance costs of debt are recognised in the profit and loss account over the term of the related debt at & constant rate on the
carrying amount.

Interest-bearing borrowings are recerded as the proceeds received, net of direct issue cesls. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income
statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are
not settled in the period in which they arise.
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Company accounting policies continued
As at 31 December 2021

{k) Taxation

Current and deferred tax, including UK corporation tax and overseas corporation tax, are provided at amounts expacted to be paid
using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred corporation tax
is recagnised on all temgporary differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where iransactions

or events that result in an obligation to pay more, ar right to pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.
Deferrad tax assets are recagnised only to the extent that it s considerad mare likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the underlying temporary differences can be deducted. Deferred tax s measured on a non-discounted basis.

Deferred tax 1s provided on temporary differences arising on acquisitions that are categonised as business combinations. Deferred
tax is recognised at acquisition as part of the assessment of the faw value of assets and liabitities acquired. Any deferred taxis
charged or credited in the income statement as the underlying temporary difference is reversed.

{l] Capital management

The Company defines capital as the total equity of the Campany, Capitalis managed in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits to stakeholders and ta safequard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Tullow is not subject to any
externally impased capital requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital, issue new shares for cash, repay debt. and put in place new debt facilities.

(m] Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group assesses critical accounting Judgements annually. The following are the critical judgements, apart from Lthose
invelving estimations which are dealt with in policy [ag), that the Directors have made in the pracess of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect an the amounts recognised i the Financial Staterments.

Investments [note 1):

The Company is required to assess the carrying values of each of its investments in subsidiarnies for impairment. The net assets
of certain of the Company's subsidiaries are predominantly intangible exploration and evaluation [E&E] and property, plant and
equipment assets.

‘Where facts and circumstances indicate that the carrying arnount of an E&E asset held by a subsidiary ray exceed s
recoverable amount, by reference to the specific indicators of impairment of E&E assets, an impairment test of the asset g
performed by the subsidiary undertaking and the asset is impaired by any difference between its carrying value and its
recoverable amount. The recognition of such an impairment by a subsidiary is used by the Company as the primary basis for
determining whather or nat there are indications that the investment in the related subsidiary may also be impaired, and thus
whether an impairment test of the investment carrying value needs to be performed. The results of exploration actvities are
inherently uncertain and the assessment of impairment of E&E assets by the subsidiary, and that of the related investment by
the Company, is judgemental,

For property. plant and equipment, the value of assets/fields supparting the investment value is assessed by estimating the
discounted future cash flows based on Management’'s expectations of future ol and gas prices and future costs.

In order to discount the future cash flows the Group calculates CGU-specific discount rates. The discount rates are based on
an assessment of a relevant peer group’s post-tax weighted average cost of capital [WACC]. The post-tax WACC is subsequently
grossed up to a pre-tax rate. The Group then deducts any exploration risk premium which is implicit within a peer group’'s WACC,

Where there is evidence of economic interdependency between fields, such as common infrastructure, the fields are grouped as
a single CGU for impairment purposes.

Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings [note 3):
The Company is required to assess the carrying values of each of the amounts due from subsidiary undertakings, considering
the requirements established by IFRS 7 Financial instruments.

The IFRS 9 impairment model requires the recognition of "expected credit losses’, in contrast to the requirement to recognise
incurred credit losses” under [AS 39. Where conditions exist for impairment on amounts due from subsidiary undertakings
expected credit losses assume that repayment of 3 loan is demanded at the reporting date. If the subsidiary has sufficient liqurd
assets to repay the loan if demanded at the reporting date, the expected credit loss 1s Ukely to be immaterial. However, if the
subsidiary cannat demanstrate the ability ta repay the loan, if demanded at the reparting date, the Campany calculates an
expected credit loss. This calculation considers the percentage of loss of the amount due from subsidiary undertakings, which
involves judgement arsund how amounts would likely be recovered, and over what time they would be recovered.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Year ended 371 December 2021

Note t. Investments

2020

2021 Restated

$m $m

Subsidiary undertakings 4,350.3 3.366.1

4,350.3 3,386.

I

The movement in Company’s investment in subsidiaries of $%84.2 million [2020: $1,175.4 mitlion] is due to additions of

$317.0 million (2020: $741.0 million) and ret impairment reversal of $667,2 million [2020: $1,975.0 impairment charge] which

was recognised against the Company’s investments in subsidiaries in relation to losses incurred by Group service companies

and exploration companies and underlying value of the Group's production companies. [Refer to notes 9 and 10 in the Notes to
the Group Financial Statements.)

2020

2021 Remaning

Trigger for 2021 Remaining 2029 recoverable

2021 Impairment/ recoverable Impairmant armount

impairment/ [reversal] amount Restated Restated

(reversal) $m $m $m %m

Tullow Oil [Jersey] Limited a 0.1 - - -
Tullow Oil SK Limited a 17.4 - 75.8 -
Tullow Group Services Limited a 11.1 - 85.2 -
Tullow Overseas Holdings B.V. a,b,c (755.8) 4,273.2 1.814.0 3,300.8
Tullow Oit SPE Limited n/a - 65.3 - 65.3
Tullow Gabon Holdings Limited n/a - 11.8 - -
Tullow Oil Finance Limited a 60.0 - - -
Total 1667.2) 4,350.3 1,975.0 3,366.7

a  Reduction in net asset value as 2 result of impairment of direct and indirect subadiaries
b Impact o' lass making subsidiaries
¢ Netrmparment reversal due to increased headroom in Jubiee and Gabaon

Comparative information in respect of impairment charge and remaining recoverable amount has been restated in relation to
the recognition of additional iImpairment of investments in subsidiaries due to an error from the exclusion of certaim group
adjustments from the net book value of investments. The invastment balance as at 31 Decernber 2020 was overstated and
impairment charge for the year ended 31 December 2020 was understated by $38.7 million.

The Company's subsidiary undertakings as at 31 Decernber 2021 are Usted on pages 148 to 149, The principal activity of all
companies relates to oil and gas exploration, development and production.

Climate change

The value of property, plant and equipment and E&E assets supporting the investment value will be affected by the potential
future impact of Climate Change. The Company estimates that the impact on oil and carbon prices as contained in the IEA
scenarios aon the value of asseots held by subsidiaries could result in a patential write off of investmants of up to $846 million.
Refer to note 26 to the Group Financial Staterments.

Note 2. Deferred tax

The Company has tax losses of $874.7 million (2020: $620.0 million) that are available indefinitely for offset against future
non-ring-fenced taxable profits in the Company. A deferred tax asset of $nil (2020: $mil) has been recognised in respect of
these losses on the basls that the Cormpany does not anticipate making non-ring-tenced profits in the foreseeable future.

Note 3. Other current assets
Amounts falling due within one year

2021 2020

$m tm

Other debtors 7.3 8.4
Due from subsidiary undertakings 537.5 500.6
544.8 50%.0

The amounts due from subsidiary undertakings include $564.2 million [2020: $200.1 million] that incurs interest at LIBOR plus
4.5% [2020: LIBOR ptus 4.5%). The remaining armounts due from subsidiaries accrue no interest. All amounts a~e repayable on
demand. At 31 December 2027 a provision of $26.7 million (2020: $444.2 mullion) was held in respect of the recoverabitity of
amounis due from subsidiary undertakings.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued
Year ended 31 Decernber 2021

Note 4. Trade and other payables
Amounts falling due within one year

2021 2021
Sm fin
Accrued interest 42.2 315
Accruals 1.2 -
Provigions 1.6 -
Due to subsidiary undertakings 344.4 406.3
389.4 4378
Note 5. Borrowings
2021 2620
$m S
Current
Barrowings - within one year
£.25% Senior Note due 2022 {$650 miltion) - 6467
Reserves Based Lending credit facility - 1,441.7
7.00% Senior Notes due 2025 [$800 million) - 791.2
10.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2026 (41,800 million] 100.0 -
100.0 2.879.4
Non-current
Borrowings - after one year but within five years
7.00% Sermior Notes due 2025 ($800 mulion) 792.1 -
10.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2026 ($1,800 rmullion) 1,676.6 -
7 2,468.7 -
Carrying value of total borrowings 2,568.7 2.879.6

On 17 May 2021, the Company compleled a comprehensive debt refinancing with the issuance of a five-year $1.8 billion high-yield
bond (2026 Notes) and a new $600 million Super Senior Revolving Credit Facility [[SSRCF] which will primarily be used for
working capital purposes.

The 2026 Notes, maturing in May 2026, require an annual prepayment of $700 million, in May, of the outstanding principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, with the bzlance due on maturity.

The Senior Notes due 2025 is payable in a single paymentin March 2025,

The SSRCF, maturing 1n December 2024, comprises of (i} a $500 mithion revelving credit facitity and i) a $100 rutlion tetter
of credit facility. The revolving credit facility rermains undrawn as at 31 Decemnber 2021.

The 2026 Notes and the SSRCF are senior secured obligations of Tullow Ol plc and are guaranteed by certain of the
Group's subsidiaries.

As gt 31 December 2020, the Group assessed that it did not have an unconditional nght to defer payment of its Reserves Based
Lending Facility, Senior Notes due 2022, or Senior Notes due 2025 based on a forecast breach in covenants; as such, these
borrowings were classified as current. Following the debt refinancing in May 2027, the Senfor Notes due 2025 have been
reclassified as non-current in line with their contractual maturity.

Mote 6. Financial instruments

Disclosure exemptions adopted

Where equivalent disclosures for the requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and IFRS 3 Fair Value
Measuremenis have been included in the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts of Tullow Oil plc, the Company has adopted the
disclosure exemptions available to the Campany’s accounts.

Financial risk management objectives
The Company follows the Group’s policies for managing all its financial risks.

Fair values of derivative instruments

All derivatives are recogrised at fair value on the balance sheet with valuation changes recegnised immediately in the income
statement. Fair value is the amaunt for which the asset or bakility could be exchanged in an arm/’s-length transaction at the
relevant date. Where available fair values are determined using quoted prices in active markets. Ta the extent that market
prices are not available, fair values are estimated by reference to market-based transactions, or using standard valuation
technigques for the applicable instruments and commodities involvad The Company had an intercompany ol derivative trade
with a wholly owned subsidiary which matured an 31 December 2021.
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Note 6. Financial instruments continued
The Company's derivative carrying and fair values were as follows:

2021 2020
Less than 2021 2021 Less than 2020 2020
1 year 1-3 years Total 1 year 1-3 years lotat
Assets/liabilities $m $m $m Fm $m $m
Option market value

Oil derivatives (51.0} (66.5] {117.6) - - -
Deferred premium - - -

Oil derivatives (22.1) (32.4) (54.5]
Total assets - - - - - -
Total tiabilities (73.1) (99.0) (172.1] - - -

The following provides an analysis of the Company's financial instruments measured at fair value, grauped into Levals 1 to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for identical assets or liabitities;
Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 which are
observable for the gsset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3. fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques which include inputs for the asset or Liability that
are not based on ohservable market data.

All of the Company's derivatives are Level 2 [2020: Level 2). There were no transfers between fair value levels during the year.

Fer financial instruments which are recognised on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels by re-assessing categorisation [basad on the lowest-level input which is significant to the fair value
measurement as 3 whole] at the end of each reporting period.

Income statement summary
Dervative fair value movemnents during the year which have been recognised in the income statement were as follows:

2021 2020
Loss on derivative instruments $m $rm
Oil derivatives (172.1) (2.1]

Cash flow and interest rate risk
The interest rate profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, excluding trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables, at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 was as fallows:

2021 2021 2020 2020
2021 Fixed rate Floating rate 2021 2020 Fixed rate  F.oating rate 7020
Cash at bank debt debt Total Cash at bank debt deht Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m Hm $m
Us$ T4.1 (2,600.0) - 2,525.9) 5.8 (1,450.0] (1,431.0) [2,875.2)
Euro - - - - 0.1 - - 0.

74.1 {2,600.0) (2,625.9) 2.9 (1.450.0) (143100 [2875.1)

Cash at bank consisted of $20.8 million [2020: $nil) deposits which earn interest at rates set in advance for periods ranging
from overnight to three months by reference to market rates. The remaining balance is held in bank accounts which are either
interest free or earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

Year ended 31 December 2021

Note 4. Financial instruments continued
Liguidity risk

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Weighted
average Less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 5+
effective 1 manth months te 1 year years years Total
interest rate %m $m $m $m $m $m
31 December 2021
Nan-interest bearing nfa - 18.7 370.7 - - 389.4
Fixed interest rate instruments 2.3%
Principal repayments - - 100.0 2,500.0 - 2,600.0
Interest charge - 28.0 207.0 689.0 - 924.0
- 46.7 677.7 3,189.0 - 3,913.4
Weighted
average Less than 1 3 months -5 b+
effective 1 manth manths to | year years years Total
Interest rate $m % $rn $m $ir: $m
31 December 2020
Non-interest bearing n/a 31.5 - 406.0 - - 4375
Fixed interest rate instruments 6.9%
Principal repayments - - - 1,450.0 - 1,400.0
Interest charge - 28.0 68.6 2163 - 312.9
Variable interest rate instruments 5.6%
Principal repayments - - - 1,431.0 - 1.431.0
Interest charge 4.3 9.9 L4 4 2175 - 2760
358 37.9 512.0 33148 - 3,907.5
Note 7. Called-up equity share capital and share premium account
Allotted equity share capital and share premium
Equity share
capita. a.ottea Share Share
and ‘uily paid [EFRER premium
Number $m $m
At 1 January 2020 1,407 897,951 2109 1,294.7
Issued during the year
Exercise of share options 6,173,826 08 -
At 1 January 2021 1.414,071,777 211.7 1,294.7
Issued during the year
Exercise of share optians 18,008,320 2.5 -
At 31 December 2021 1,432,080,097 214.2 1,294.7

The Company does not have an authorised share capital. The par value of the Company’s shares is 10p.
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Alternative performance measures

The Group uses certain measures of performance that are not
specifically defined under [FRS or other generally accepted
accounting principles. These nan-IFRS measures include
capital investment, net dabt, gearing, adjusted EBITDAX,
underlying cash operating costs, free cash flow, underlying
operating cash flow and pre-financing free cash flow.

Capital investment

Capital investment is defined as additions to property, plant
and equipment and intangible exploration and evaluation
assets less decommissioning asset additions, right-of-use
asset additions, capitalised share-based payment charge,
capitabised finance costs, additions te administrative assets,
Norwegian {ax refund and certain other adjustments. The
Directors believe that capital investment is a useful indicator
of the Group's organic expenditure on exploration and appraisal
assets and ol and gas assets incurred during a period because
it eliminates certain accounting adjustments such as capitalised
finance costs and decommissioning asset additions.

The value of the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021
was $251.5 mitlion current and $911.9 million non-current; it
should be noted that these balances are recorded gross for
operated assets and are therefore not representative of the
Group's net exposure under these contracts.

2021 2020

$im $m

Barrowings 2,568.7 3.170.5
Non-cash adjustments 31.3 10.5
Less cash and cash equivalents 1469.1] (805 .4
Net debt 2,130.9 2,375.6

Gearing and adjusted EBITDAX

Gearing is a useful indicatar of the Group's indebtedness,
financial flexibility and capital structure and can assist
securities analysts, investors and other parties to evaluate
the Group. Gearing is defined as net debt divided by adjusted
EBITDAX. Adjusted EBITDAX is defined as profit/[loss) from
continuing activities adjusted for income tax [expensel/credit,
finance costs, finance revenue, gain on hedging instruments,
deprectation, depletion and amortisation, share-based
payment charge, restructuring costs, gain/[loss] on disposal,

2021 2020
$m $m

Additians to property, plant and
equipment 148.1 229.7
Additions to intangible exploration
and eveluation assets 46.3 170.7
Less:
Changes to Decornmissioning asset
estimates (134.8) 14.9
Right-of-usc asset additions 73.5 16.5
Lease payments related to capital
activities (26.8] (4.0]
Additions to administrative assets 1.6 2.4
Other non-cash capital expenditure 17.7 75.3
Capital investment 263.2 288.1
Movement in working capital (28.3) 133.2

Additions to administrative assets 1.6 9.6
Cash capital expenditure
per the cash flow statement

236.5 430.9

Net debt

Net debt is a useful indicator of the Group's indebtedness,
financial flexibitity and capital structure because it indicates
the level of cash borrowings after taking account of cash and
cash equivalents within the Group’s business that could be
utilised to pay down the outstanding cash borrowings. Net
debt s defined as current and non-current borrowings plus
non-cash adjustments, less cash and cash equivalents.
Non-cash adjustments include unamortised arrangement
fees, adjustment to convertible bonds, and ather adjustments.
The Group’s definition of net debt does not include the Group's
leases as the Group's focus is the management of cash
borrowings and a lease Is viewed as deferred capital investment.

exploration costs written off, impairment of property, plant
and equipment net, and provision for onerous service contracts.

2021 2020
$m $n

Loss from continuing activities (80.71  (1,221.5)
Adjusted for:
Income tax expense/ [credit] 283.4 (31.9]
Finance costs 356.1 3143
Finance revenue 144.3) (59.4)
Loss on hedging instruments - 08
Depreciation, depletion and
amortisation 378.9 L4671
Share-based payment charge 11.6 2*.0
Restructuring costs and provisions
for onerous contracts 61.8 92.8
Gain/ (loss} on disposal (120.3) 3.4
Exploraticn costs written off 59.9 986.7
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment, net 54.3 250.6
Adjusted EBITDAX 960.7 803.9
Net debt 2,130.9 2.375.6
Gearing {times) 2.2 3.0
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Alternative performance measures continued

Underlying cash operating costs

Underlying cash operating costs 1s a useful indicator of the
Group’s costs incurred to produce oil and gas. Underlying
cash operating costs eliminates certain non-cash accounting
adjustments to the Group’s cost of sales to produce ail and
gas. Underlying cash operating costs is defined as cost of
sales less operating lease expense, depletion and amortisation
of oil and gas assets, underlift, overlift and oil stock movements,
share-based payment charge included in cost of sales, and
certain other cost of sales. Underlying cash operating costs
are divided by production to determine underlying cash
operating costs per boe. in 2020 and 2021, Tullow incurred
abnormal non- recurring costs which are presented separately
below. The adjusted normalised cash operating costs are a
helpful indrcator to the forward underlying costs of the business.

2021 2020
$m S

Cost of sales 638.9 993.4
Less:
Depletion and amortisation of oil and
gas and leased assets 360.9 4ib 4
Underlit, avartift and oil stock
movements 120.0) 160.5
Share-based payment charge
included in cost of sales 0.5 0.9
Other cost of sales 28.8 54.7
Underlying cash operating costs 268.7 331.7
Covid-19 & DOSYS costs (7.9] (11.2)
Total normalised operating costs 260.8 3208
Production [mmboe] 21.6 27.4
Underlying ¢ash operating costs per
boe [$/boe) 12.4 12.1
Normalised cash operating costs
per boe ($/boe) 12.1 1.8

Free cash flow
Free cash flowis a useful indicator of the Group’s ability to

generate cash flow to fund the business and strategic acquisitions,

reduce borrowings and provide returns to shareholders
through dividends. Free cash flow I1s defined as net cash fram
operating activities, and net cash used in investing activities,
less debt arrangement fees, repayment of obligations under
leases, finance costs paid, and foreign exchange gain.

2021 2020
$m $m
Net cash fram operating activities 786.9 698.6
Net cash from/{used] in
investing activities (101.7) 84.3
Repayment of obligations
under leases 1155.9) [158.2]
Finance costs paid (234.9) [(198.5)
Debt arrangement fees (56.6) -
Foreign exchange gain 6.9 5.4
Free cash flow 244.7 4316
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Underlying operating cash flow
This is a useful indicator of the Group's assets ability to

generate cash flow to fund further investment in the business,

reduce borrowing and provide returns ta shareholders.
Underlying operating cash flow is defined as net cash from
operating activities less repayments of obligations under
teases plus decommissioning expenditure.

Pre-financing free cash flow

This is a useful indicator of the Group's ability to generate
cash flow to reduce borrowings and provide returns to
shareholders through dividends. Pre-financing free cash flow
is defined as net cash from operating actvities, and net cash
used in investing activities, less repayment of obligations
under leases and foreign exchange gain.

2021 2020
Net cash from operating activities 786.9 698.6
Less:
Decommissioning expenditure 52.8 57.7
Lease payments related to capital
actwities 246.8 -
Plus:
Repayment of obligations under
leases (155.9] (158.2]
Operating cash flow 710.6 598.1
Net cash from/lused] in invesiing
activities (101.7) 84.3
Decommissioning expenditure (52.8) (57.7)
Lease payments related to capital
activities (25.8) -
Pre-financing free cash flow 529.3 6247




Shareholder information

Financial calendar

2021 full year results announced ¢ March 2022

Annual General Meeting 25 May 20272
KGM trading update 25 May 2022
Trading statement and operational update 13 July 2027
2022 half-year results announced TBC
November trading update TBE

Shareholder enquiries

All enquiries concerning shareholdings, including notification
of chamge of address, loss of a share certificate or dividend
payments, should be made to the Company’s registrar.

Far shareholders on the UK register, Cormnputershare
provides a range of services through its online portal,
investor Centre, which can be accessed free of charge
alwww.inveslorcenlre.co.uk. Once regislered, this service,
accessible from anywhere in the world, enables shareholders
to check details of their shareholdings or dividends, downtoad
forms to notify changes in personal detalls and access other
relevant information.

United Kingdom registrar
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 67Y

lel - UK shareholders: 0370 703 4247
Te!l - Irish shareholders: +353 1 247 5413
Tel - overseas shareholders: +44 870 703 6247

Contact: www.investarcentre.co.uk/contactus

Ghana registrar

The Central Securities Depository [Ghana] Limited
4th Floor, Cedi House, P.M.B CT 465 Cantonments,
Accra, Ghana

Tel — Ghana sharehalders: + 233 303 972 254/302 689 313

Contact: info@csd.com.gh

Share dealing service

A telephone share dealing service has heen established for
shareholders with Computershare for the sale and purchase
of Tullow Gil shares. Shareholders who are interested in using
this service can obtain further details by calling the
appropriate telephone number below:

UK sharehotders: 0370 703 0084
Irish shareholders: +353 1 447 5435

If you live cutside the UK or Ireland and wish to trade you
can do so through the Computershare Trading Account.
To find out more or to open an account, please visit
www.computershare-sharedealing.co.uk or phone
Computershare on +44 870 707 1606,

ShareGift

If you have a small number of shares whese value makes il
uneconomical to sell, you may wish to consider donating them
to ShareGift which s a UK registered charity specialising in
realising the value locked up in small shareholdings for
charitable purposes. The resulting proceeds are donated

to a range of charities, reflecting suggestions received from
donors. Should you wish to donate your Tullow Qil ple shares
in this way, please downtoad and complete a transfer iorm
from www.sharegift.org/forms, sign it and send it together
with the share certificate to ShareGift, PO Box 72253, London
SW1P 9LA. For more information regarding this charity, visit
www.sharegift.org.

Electronic communication

To reduce impact on the environment, the Company
encourages all shareholders {o receive their shareholder
communications, including Annual Reports and notices of
meetings, electronically. Once registered for electronic
communications, shareholders will be sent an email each
time the Company publishes statutory documents, providing
a link to the information.

Tullow actively supports Woodland Trust, the UK's leading
woodland conservation charity. Computershare, together

with Woodland Trust, has established efree, an environmental
programme designed to promote electronic shareholder
communications. Under this pregramme, the Company makes
a donation to elree for every shareholder who registers for
electronic communication. To register far this service, simply
visit hitp:/fwwwanvestarcentre.co.uk/etreeuk/tullowoilptc with
your shareholder number and email address to hand.

Shareholder security

Shareholders are advised to be cautious about any unsolicited
financial advice, offers to buy shares at a discount or offers

ot free Company reports, More detailed information can be
found at http://scamsmart.fca.org.uk/ and in the Shareholder
Services section of the Investors area of the Tullow website:
www.tulloworl.com.

Corporate brokers
Barclays
5 North Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London Ei4 488

J. P. Morgan Cazenove
2h Bank Street, Canary Wharf, London ET14 5JF

Davy
Davy House, 49 Dawson Street, Dublin 2 Ireland
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Commercial reserves and contingent resources summary
(unaudited] working interest basis

Ghana Nan-Operated Kenya Exploration Totat
[¢]R Gas O Gas O Gas [8]8 Gas Q. as  Petroteum
mmbht bet mrobbt bt mrbbl bet mrnbbl bet mmbbl bcf mmboe
Commercial reserves!’
1 January 2021 180.1 179.2 48.4 11.1 - - - - 2285 190.2 260.2
Revisions® 3.5 (40.3) 1.1 (2.71 - - - - 14.6  (43.0) 7.4
Disposalss - - (14.6) - - - - - (14.6) - 14.8)
Production 15.31 - 511 (1.3) - - - - (214 (131 (21.8)
31 December 2021 168.3 138.7 38.8 7.1 - - - - 207.1  145.9 231.4
Contingent resources’
1 January 2027 217.0 7491 59.5 78.4 170.8 - 54.5 - 501.7 8275 639.7

Revisions®*3 4.9 [163.9) 0.3 - 50.6

{
1
|

31 December 2021 212.1 585.2 29.7 0.9 231.4 - 54.5

56.0 [163.9) 28.7
Disposals® - - (30.1) (77.5) - - - - (30.1} (77.5) {43.0)

- 527.6 586.1 625.4
Total
31 December 2021 380.4 7241 68.5 8.0 231.4 - 54.5 - 7347 732.0 854.8

1 Proven and Probab.e Reserves above are a5 audited and reported by independent third-party reserve audilors The auditor was prowded with al the sigmificant
data up unli. 31 Decemter 7021

7 Proven and Prohable Cortingent Resources above are aiso as audiled and reported by independent third-party auditors tased on besl avaiable informat.on as of

31 December 2021

3 Reseryes and mesourcas rensicn in Ghana reates 10 successfuliniio di bing in Jubiee, improved field uptime on the tao FPS0s, and the maturation ° & number
aof projects including taree new Jubilee welis, the TEN Enhancement project and the Tweneboa North Asscciated Gas project This s party of set by & downward

revision on Mtomme and Enyenra exssting producing wels, reslecting fie d performance
4 Reserves revisionin Gaban mainy re.ales to success'u. execution of a number of warkover projects on Echira, Bzanga, and ichalamba, and ar infil well on Simbs

5 Rescurces revisicn in Kenya reaates toindependent evaluation of resources by Ga'“ney Cane & Associales, incarporating production data from the Eary O: Pilat
Scheme [EOPS) and updated hi2ld development strategy (See page 19 of the Gperations Revigw)

& Dispoza.s consist o the sales of Equatonia. Guinea (completed n March 2021] and Bussa‘u Asset [compieted in June 2021]

A gasconversien ‘actor ol b msci/bos s used 1o caltu.ate the total Pelro.eum mmrhboe

The Group provides for depletion and amortisation of tangible fixed assets on a net entitlements basis, which reflects the terms

of the Production Sharing Contracts related to each field. Total net entitlement reserves were 227.0 mmboe at 31 December 2027
(31 December 2020: 248.9 mmboe).

Contingent Resources relate to resources in respect of which development plans are in the course of preparation or further
evaluatron 1s under way with a view to future development.
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Stay up to date

www.tullowoil.com

Our main corporate website has key information about our business,
operations, investors, media, sustainability, careers and suppliers.

RESULTS, REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

Financial results, corporate Annual Reports, webcasls and
fact books are all stored In the Investor Relations section
of our website: www.tullowoil.com/reports.

E-COMMUNICATIONS

All documents on the website are available to view without
any particular software reguirement other than the software
which is avallable on the Group's website.

For every shareholder who signg up for electronic
communications, a donation is made to the eTree initiative
run by Woodland Trust. You can register for email
communication at- www.etree.com/tullowoilple.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Adam Holland

Tullow Cil plc

¢ Chiswick Park

566 Chiswick High Road

London

Wé BXT

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 20 3249 9000
Fax: +44 20 3249 8801

Te contact any of Tullow's principal subsidiary
undertakings, please find address details on
www.tullowoil.com/contacts

or send in care of to Tutlow's registered address.

Tullow Oil plc’'s commmitment to environmental issues is reflected in

this Annual Report, which has been printed on Arena, an FSC*
certified material This document was printed by Pureprint Group
using its environmmental print technology, with 99% of dry waste
diverted fromm landfill, minimising the impact of printing on the

environment, The printer is a CarbonNeutral® company.

Both the printer and the paper mill are registered to 150 14001.

Printed by Pureprint Group



Tullow Oil plc

9 Chiswick Park

566 Chiswick High Road
London W4 oXT

United Kingdom

Tel: +44 20 3249 9000
Fax: +44 20 3249 8801
Email: info@tullowoil.com

Website: www.tullowoil.com



